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Report of the Directors

The Directors are pleased to present their report together with the audited consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2021.

Principal Activities

The Bank is a licensed bank authorised under the Hong Kong Banking Ordinance. The principal activities of the Group are the
provision of banking and related financial services. An analysis of the Group’s performance for the year by business segments is set
out in Note 42 to the Financial Statements.

Results and Appropriations
The results of the Group for the year are set out in the consolidated income statement on page 55.

On 30 August 2021, the Board declared an interim dividend of HK$0.110 per ordinary share amounting to approximately HK$4,735
million, which was paid on 21 September 2021.

On 14 December 2021, the Board declared an interim dividend of HK$0.164 per ordinary share amounting to approximately HK$7,059
million, which was paid on 30 December 2021.

The Board does not recommend the payment of a final dividend for the year 2021.
Donations

Charitable and other donations made by the Group during the year amounted to approximately HK$79 million.

Note: These donations do not include the donations and sponsorships made by BOCHK Charitable Foundation (“the Foundation”). The Foundation is a
separate legal entity established in Hong Kong and is a charitable institution exempted from tax under the Inland Revenue Ordinance.

Debentures Issued

During the year, BOCHK issued the following debentures to raise funds for general corporate purposes.

Class Amount issued Consideration received

2.8% CNY Senior Notes due 2023 RMB1,500,000,000 RMB1,500,000,000
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Report of the Directors (continued)
Directors

The Directors of the Bank during the year and up to the date of this report are:

Chairman LIU Liange*
Vice Chairmen LIU Jin# (appointment as Vice Chairman and Non-executive Director
effective from 3 August 2021)
SUN Yu
WANG Jiang* (resignation effective from 5 February 2021)
Directors LIN Jingzhen*
CHENG Eva*

CHOI Koon Shum*

FUNG Yuen Mei Anita* (appointment as Independent Non-executive Director effective from
3 March 2022)

KOH Beng Seng*

LAW Yee Kwan Quinn*

TUNG Savio Wai-Hok*

# Non-executive Directors
* Independent Non-executive Directors

In accordance with Article 87 of the Articles of Association, the terms of office of Mr LIU Liange will expire at the forthcoming annual
general meeting (the “2022 AGM”). The retiring Director, being eligible, will offer himself for re-election at the 2022 AGM. Further,
pursuant to Article 85 of the Articles of Association, any Director appointed by the Board shall hold office only until the next following
general meeting or the next following annual general meeting, and shall then be eligible for re-election at such meeting. Accordingly,
the terms of office of Mr LIU Jin and Mdm FUNG Yuen Mei Anita, who were appointed on 3 August 2021 and 3 March 2022 respectively,
will expire at the forthcoming annual general meeting and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election.

A full list of the names of the directors of the Bank’s subsidiaries during the year ended 31 December 2021 is kept at the Bank’s
registered office.

Directors’ Interests in Transactions, Arrangements or Contracts

No transactions, arrangements or contracts of significance, in relation to the Group’s business to which the Bank, its holding
companies, or any of its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director or his/her connected entity had a
material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the year.

Management Contracts

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the whole or any substantial part of the business of the Bank were
entered into or existed during the year.

Equity-linked Agreements

No equity-linked agreements were entered into by the Bank during the year or subsisted at the end of the year.

Permitted Indemnity Provision

Pursuant to the Articles of Association, every Director shall be indemnified out of funds of the Bank against all liabilities incurred by
him/her to the extent permitted by the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. The Bank has maintained insurance for the benefit of the
Directors against liability which may lawfully be insured by the Bank.
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Report of the Directors (continued)
Compliance with the Banking (Disclosure) Rules

This Annual Report complies with the applicable requirements set out in the Banking (Disclosure) Rules under the Banking Ordinance.

Auditor

The financial statements for the year 2021 have been audited by Messrs PricewaterhouseCoopers who will retire and offer themselves
for re-appointment at the 2022 annual general meeting. Messrs PricewaterhouseCoopers has been appointed as new auditor of the
Bank at the annual general meeting of the Bank held on 17 May 2021 upon the retirement of Messrs Ernst & Young.

On behalf of the Board

WLJN@

LIU Liange
Chairman

Hong Kong, 29 March 2022
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Corporate Governance

The Bank is committed to maintaining and upholding high standards of corporate governance in order to safeguard the interests of
shareholders, customers and employees. It abides strictly by the relevant laws and regulations in Hong Kong, and observes the rules
and guidelines issued by regulatory authorities including the HKMA and Hong Kong Securities and Futures Commission. The Bank
has followed the guidelines as set out in the Supervisory Policy Manual module CG-1 entitled “Corporate Governance of Locally
Incorporated Authorised Institutions” issued by the HKMA.

To further enhance corporate governance standard, the Bank will revamp its corporate governance system and strengthen relevant
measures by referencing to market trend as well as guidelines and requirements issued by regulatory authorities.

Corporate Governance Policy

The Bank recognises the importance of high standards of corporate governance and maintains an effective corporate governance
framework which delivers long-term success of the Group. The Bank is also strongly committed to embracing and enhancing sound
corporate governance principles and practices. The established well-structured corporate governance framework directs and regulates
the business ethical conduct of the Bank, thereby protects and upholds the interests of shareholders and stakeholders as a whole in
a sustainable manner.

Corporate Culture

The Board provides strategic guidance for the Group, reviews, approves and monitors objectives, values and strategies that align
with the corporate culture of the Group. The Board approved the 2021-2025 strategic development plan during the year which
established the Group’s mission, vision, values, methodology and strategic goals, with deepening corporate culture as one of the
four development supports.

The Board attaches a high degree of importance to the continuous deepening for the building of corporate culture and to strengthen
the transmission of values. Senior management, led by example, demonstrates their commitment and determination to promote
proper bank culture and values. The Sustainability Committee under the Board is a specialized committee for corporate culture
construction, with one of its responsibilities to supervise the Group’s development of a good and sustainable corporate culture, and
to continuously monitor the implementation of the corporate culture. The Sustainability Committee is responsible for approving or
recommending for the approval of the Board on relevant policies related to corporate culture of the Group, including the Group's
professional standards, in order to promote ethical and responsible professional behaviour; the Group’s commercial principles and
standards to be adopted in its business activities, in order to establish culture and behavioural standards that promote prudent risk-
taking and fair treatment of customers; the Group's staff code of conduct and appropriate training, in order to ensure our staff can
maintain good personal integrity and conduct, and comply with the Group's culture and behavioural standards. The Bank has made
action plans to implement corporate culture building by surrounding governance, incentive systems, assessment and feedback
mechanism, and conducted annual review on the effectiveness of the plans and made report to the Sustainability Committee. The
Bank has launched multi-level and multi-angle corporate culture trainings and promotional activities to strengthen the promotion of
corporate culture and values, deepen employees’ understanding and build consensus across the Group. The Bank has improved
the incentive and restraint mechanism, by introducing or increasing the weight for a separate rating in respect of adherence to
“corporate values” in annual performance assessment, guided the establishment of a correct view of performance and avoided short
term behaviour and hidden risks. The Bank has established a customer feedback mechanism, and obtained feedback from employee
surveys, focused group discussions, individual interviews, etc., so as to obtain the views of customers and staff on the continuous
development on corporate culture.

Anti-corruption and whistleblowing

The Bank promotes the corporate culture of adherence to the principle of integrity as well as observance of rules and regulations,
and strongly values the ethical conduct and integrity of the employees. A zero-tolerance approach is taken towards bribery and
corruption for all levels of employees. The Bank has established “Anti-Bribery and Corruption Policy”, which strives to uphold all
relevant anti-bribery and corruption laws in Hong Kong and all jurisdictions where it operates, and implement a robust anti-bribery
and corruption control framework to provide guidance to, and strengthen the standards of conduct of its employees. The overall anti-
bribery and corruption framework is jointly supervised by the Board, its designated committee and the senior management. The
Bank conducts regular anti-bribery and corruption institutional risk assessment to evaluate the effectiveness of the framework to
ensure the framework is properly and adequately managed and implemented.
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Corporate Governance (continued)
Corporate Governance Policy (continued)

The Bank has also established policy and administrative measures on handling staff reporting of irregularities to ensure employees
can whistle blow through proper channel under confidence when suspected misconducts occurred or may occur which relate to the
business or other aspects, and such reports are handled and followed-up appropriately, without risk of retaliation or revenge. The
Bank regularly reviews the whistle-blowing mechanism and related policies and administrative measures to ensure their
effectiveness.

Corporate Governance Framework

Responsibilities of the Board and the Management

The Board is at the core of the Bank’s corporate governance framework and there is a clear division of responsibilities between the
Board and the Management. The Board is responsible for providing high-level guidance and effective oversight of the Management.
It operates under the well-defined Board’'s Mandate which sets out matters specifically reserved for its deliberation. Generally, the
Board is responsible for:

» formulating the Group’s mid and long-term strategies and monitoring the implementation thereof;
* reviewing and approving the annual business plans and financial budgets;

« approving the annual results and interim results;

» reviewing and monitoring the Group’s risk management and internal control;

* ensuring good corporate governance of the Group and effective compliance; and

» monitoring the performance of the Management.

Five physical Board meetings were held during the year. Major agenda items reviewed and approved included important matters such
as the Group’s strategies, business plans, financial budget, disclosure of financial results, sustainability report, risk management and
internal controls, amendment of the articles of association of the Bank (the “Articles of Association”), as well as annual review of
relevant policies. Besides physical meetings, the Board also approved written resolutions on certain matters, including changes of
directors and senior management, etc. Supporting explanatory materials accompanying the written resolutions were sent to Directors
to facilitate their understanding of the matters and assist them to make informed decisions.

During the year, the Board reviewed and approved amendments made to certain corporate governance related policies and procedures
so as to align with the latest changes in regulatory requirements. The Board also reviewed the disclosure in the Corporate Governance
Report contained in the 2020 Annual Report.

The Bank has established relevant mechanisms to ensure independent views and input are available to the Board and conducted
review of such mechanisms on an annual basis. The Bank has adopted the “Working Rules of the Board”, which states that Directors
are entitled to seek, at the Group’s expense, independent professional advice reasonably necessary for discharging their duties as
Directors. The Company Secretary will make necessary arrangements when the Directors wish to seek such independent professional
advice.

The Board authorises the Management to implement the strategies as approved by the Board. The Management is responsible for
the day-to-day operations of the Group and reports to the Board. For this purpose, the Board has formulated clear written guidelines
which stipulate the circumstances where the Management should report to and obtain prior approval from the Board before making
decisions or entering into any commitments on behalf of the Group. The Board will conduct regular review on these authorisation and
guidelines.
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Corporate Governance Framework (continued)
Roles of the Chairman and the Chief Executive

To avoid concentration of power in any single individual, the positions of the Chairman and the Chief Executive of the Bank are held
by two different individuals. Their roles are distinct, clearly established and stipulated in the Board’s Mandate.

Mr LIU Liange, the Chairman is responsible for ensuring that the Board properly discharges its responsibilities and conforms to good
corporate governance practices and procedures. In addition, as the Chairman of the Board, he is also responsible for ensuring that all
Directors are properly briefed on all issues currently on hand, and that all Directors receive adequate, accurate and reliable information
in a timely manner.

Mr SUN Yu, the Chief Executive is responsible for providing leadership for the whole management and implementing important policies
and development strategies as adopted by the Board. Led by the Chief Executive, the Management Committee fulfils responsibilities
including management of the Group’s routine operation, implementation of business development strategies and realisation of the
Group’s long-term targets and strategies.

Board Committees

Taking into consideration the latest regulatory requirements, guidelines as well as market practices and international best practices,
the Board has established five standing Board Committees to assist in performing its responsibilities, namely the Audit Committee,
the Nomination and Remuneration Committee, the Risk Committee, the Strategy and Budget Committee as well as the Sustainability
Committee.

Each of the Board Committees has a well-defined Mandate and makes recommendations to the Board on relevant matters within its
scope of responsibilities or makes decisions under appropriate circumstances in accordance with the power delegated by the Board.
All Board Committees are assigned a professional secretarial department which ensures that the Board Committees have adequate
resources to perform their duties effectively and properly. All Board Committees adopt the same governance process as the Board as
far as possible and report regularly to the Board on their decisions and their recommendations. The Board and Board Committees will
participate in the annual performance appraisal of those professional secretarial departments to warrant and enhance the services
provided and ensure that adequate and efficient supports are provided to the Board and Board Committees. In addition, according to
their respective Mandates, the Board and each of the Board Committees will evaluate and review their work process and effectiveness
annually, with a view to identifying areas for further improvements.

The following chart sets out the Bank’s corporate governance framework:

The Board of

Directors

Audit Nomination and Risk Strategy and -
_ Remuneration _ Budget Sggﬁ'%ﬁ?glety
Committee Committee Committee Committee

Details including the Bank’s corporate governance principles and framework adopted by the Board, the composition of the Board and
each of the Board Committees and their respective Mandates, Corporate Governance Policy and Information Disclosure Policy are
available under the sub-section “Corporate Governance” of the section headed “About Us” on the Bank’s website at www.bochk.com.
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Board of Directors

Composition and Terms of Office of the Board

As at the date of this Annual Report, the Board is composed of ten Directors, of whom one is Executive Director, three are Non-
executive Directors and six are Independent Non-executive Directors. The Board maintains an appropriate level of checks and
balances to ensure independence and objectivity of the decisions of the Board, as well as the impartial oversight of the Management.
The Board acts honestly and in good faith so that decisions are made objectively and in the best interests of the Group with a view to
delivering long-term and maximum shareholder value and fulfilling its corporate responsibility to other stakeholders of the Group.

Mr LIU Jin was appointed as Vice Chairman, Non-executive Director and a member of each of the Nomination and Remuneration
Committee as well as the Strategy and Budget Committee with effect from 3 August 2021. Mdm FUNG Yuen Mei Anita was appointed
as Independent Non-executive Director and a member of each of the Audit Committee, Risk Committee, Strategy and Budget
Committee as well as Sustainability Committee with effect from 3 March 2022. Mr WANG Jiang resigned as Vice Chairman,
Non-executive Director and ceased to be a member of each of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee as well as the Strategy
and Budget Committee with effect from 5 February 2021. Save as disclosed above, there are no other changes to the composition of
the Board and Board Committees during the year and up to the date of this Annual Report.

In accordance with Article 87 of the Articles of Association, the term of office of Mr LIU Liange will expire at the 2022 annual general
meeting and, being eligible, offer himself for re-election. Further, pursuant to Article 85 of the Articles of Association, any Director
appointed by the Board shall hold office only until the next following general meeting or the next following annual general meeting of
the Bank, and shall then be eligible for re-election at such meeting. Accordingly, the terms of office of Mr LIU Jin and Mdm FUNG Yuen
Mei Anita, who were appointed on 3 August 2021 and 3 March 2022 respectively, will expire at the 2022 annual general meeting and,
being eligible, offer themselves for re-election.

Further details regarding the proposed re-election of Directors are set out in the section headed “Report of the Directors”. In addition,
the Bank has also established a written and formal process for the appointment of the Independent Non-executive Directors to ensure
that the appointment procedures are standardised, thorough and transparent.

Selection and Nomination of Board Members

The Bank has in place relevant policies on the nomination of Board members. The Nomination and Remuneration Committee is
responsible for reviewing the structure, size, composition and members’ qualifications for the Board regularly, and it shall take into
account the existing composition of the Board and the business requirements of the Group and follow the board diversity,
independence of directors and other relevant supervisory and policy requirements and be responsible for the identification, selection
and nomination of Board members.

Potential candidates of Executive Directors could be sourced and selected amongst the senior management. Potential candidates of
Independent Non-executive Directors could be recruited through global selection and also upon nomination by Independent Non-
executive Directors. Pursuant to the provisions of the Articles of Association and relevant regulations, shareholders could also
nominate a person other than a retiring Director for election as a Director (including Non-executive Director) at a general meeting.
Where necessary, the Nomination and Remuneration Committee may appoint external advisors to assist in recruiting appropriate
individuals. The Nomination and Remuneration Committee shall consider various factors in assessing the suitability of a proposed
candidate for appointment as Board member, which include:

* Board diversity;

* Reputation and past performance of candidate;

» Professional knowledge, industrial experience and skills of candidate;

» Commitment of candidate to devote sufficient time to discharge duties as a Board member, and the effective management of
potential conflict of interest; and

» Satisfaction of independence requirements as set out in the HKMA's Guideline on Empowerment of Independent Non-Executive
Directors in the Banking Industry in Hong Kong (the “Guideline”) and the “Policy on Independence of Directors” of the Bank in the
case of a candidate for Independent Non-executive Director.
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The Nomination and Remuneration Committee shall assess the candidates pursuant to the selection criteria, hold meetings to discuss
and arrange interviews with the candidates where necessary, and make recommendation to the Board. The appointment of Directors
shall be eventually approved by the Board and/or shareholders at general meetings.

For the Board members of the Bank who were newly appointed in 2021 and the retiring Board members standing for re-election at the
next following general meeting of the Bank, the Nomination and Remuneration Committee reviewed their biographical details against
the selection criteria set out in the Bank’s nomination policies of Board members and, where applicable, the relevant requirements
under the Guideline and considered they have the required character, integrity and professional knowledge and experience to continue
fulfilling their role and contributing to the Bank and the diversity of the Board.

Under the current board membership, all Directors possess extensive experience in banking and/or management. In addition, over
one-third of them are Independent Non-executive Directors, who possess experience in banking and financial industry as well as
expertise in strategic development, corporate governance, investment management, risk management and sustainable development.
The Bank has received from each of the Independent Non-executive Directors an annual confirmation of his/her independence by
reference to the “Policy on Independence of Directors” of the Bank. Based on the information available to the Bank and upon
considering relevant factors, it considers that all of the Independent Non-executive Directors are independent. Currently, Mr KOH Beng
Seng and Mr TUNG Savio Wai-Hok, who have served on the Board for more than nine years, and they have continued to make
significant contributions to the Bank by offering valuable guidance from their areas of expertise and extensive experience in business
strategy, banking operation, risk management, governance as well as accounting and finance, all of which are relevant to the Group’s
business. It is considered that the length of service of Mr KOH and Mr TUNG has not affected their independence, given both of them
have consistently demonstrated strong independence in judgement and have provided effective oversight of the Management during
their tenure. In the event that any director has been appointed for over nine years, the Bank will discuss and consider relevant factors
and make appropriate disclosures in accordance with relevant regulations. Moreover, all Directors have disclosed to the Bank their
significant commitments and have undertaken and confirmed that they are able to devote sufficient time to the affairs of the Bank.
Biographical details of the professional experience, skills and knowledge of the Board members are available under the sub-section
“Organisation” of the section headed “About Us” on the Bank’s website at www.bochk.com.

Board Diversity

The Bank recognises the importance and benefits of board diversity. In order to promote the Board’s effectiveness and standards
of corporate governance, the Bank has adopted the “Board Diversity Policy” which will be observed when identifying suitable and
qualified candidates to be a Board member and whenever a Board member is proposed to be re-elected. The said policy provides
that in designing the Board’s composition, board diversity should be considered in various aspects, including but not limited to,
gender, age, cultural and educational background, ethnicity, geographical location, professional experience, skills, knowledge and
track records, etc., to ensure an appropriate diversity of skills, backgrounds and viewpoints. At the same time, all Board nominations
and appointments are made on merit, in the context of the skills and experience the Board as a whole required. The Board will
review the Board Diversity Policy annually and enhance relevant practices continuously based on latest situation.

Currently, there are two female members in the Board. At the same time, the Bank has adopted the Succession Policy for Directors,
in which the Bank is committed to promoting diversity including gender diversity of Board members with a view to exercising more
comprehensive consideration and judgement by the Board at the time of making succession planning of the Directors. At present,
out of the eight members of senior management, three of them are females, representing approximately 38% of the senior
management team. The Bank strives to promote diversity and inclusion in the teams, in strict compliance with relevant laws and
regulations as well as the Staff Guidelines on Eliminating Discrimination. The Bank offers diversity and inclusion training and applies
the principle of equal opportunity to all policies related to human resources, remuneration and benefits, to ensure employment
opportunities for people of all kinds. Any discrimination or harassment against employees owing to their marital status, pregnancy,
disability, family status, race or gender are prohibited. During the year, our female employees accounted for around 57% of the total
workforce.
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Board of Directors (continued)

An analysis of the Board’s composition as at the date of this Annual Report is set out below:

Number of Directors

United States
— Female
Over 65 Singapore Over 6 years Below 90%

Independent
Non-
executive
Director

1-6 years

Non-
executive
Director

Gender Designation Age group Geographical Directorship Attendance

location with the Bank rate at Board
(Number of meetings in
years) 2021*

* Mdm FUNG Yuen Mei Anita was appointed as Independent Non-executive Director with effect from 3 March 2022. Accordingly, attendance rate at
Board meetings in 2021 is not applicable to her.

Mr LIU Liange, Mr LIU Jin and Mr LIN Jingzhen are Executive Directors of BOC. During the year, Mr WANG Jiang was Executive
Director of BOC (he resigned such position with effect from 5 February 2021). Save as disclosed above, there are no other relationships
between the Board members, including financial, business, family or other material relationships.

In addition, it is expressly provided in the “Policy on Managing Conflicts of Interest of Directors” that, unless the applicable laws or
regulations allow otherwise, if a substantial shareholder or Director has a conflict of interest in the matter to be considered by the
Board, a Board meeting must be convened and attended by the Independent Non-executive Directors who have no material interest
and give professional advice to the subject matter for further consideration and approval.

Directors’ Liability Insurance Policy

During the year, the Bank has arranged for appropriate cover on Directors’ Liability Insurance Policy to indemnify the Directors for
liabilities arising from the corporate activities. The coverage and the amount insured under such policy are reviewed annually by the
Bank.

29



BANK OF CHINA (HONG KONG) LIMITED

@ ¥ 84 tsmn)aman

Corporate Governance (continued)

Board of Directors (continued)

Self-evaluation of the Board

During the year, the Board conducted annual self-evaluation pursuant to the “Regulations on Self-Evaluation of the Board and
Individual Evaluation of the Directors”. With the endorsement of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee, the annual self-
evaluation questionnaire was distributed to Directors for completion. Based on the completed questionnaire, the Bank analysed the
results and a report delineated the results and recommendation has been submitted to the Board for review and consideration.

Review of Effectiveness of the Individual Directors

During the year, the Bank has also engaged an external professional consultant to conduct independent review of the effectiveness
of the individual Directors. A questionnaire was distributed to all Directors for their completion and included Directors’ self-assessment
in areas such as their time commitment and participation, interaction and communication with senior management, as well as
evaluation of other members of the Board and Board Committees, and other factors that impact director effectiveness. Based on the
completed questionnaire and other available information, the external consultant assessed the effectiveness of individual Directors
and prepared a report setting out its observations and recommendations, which has been submitted to the Board for review and follow-

up.
Directors’ Training and Professional Development

To ensure the newly appointed Directors have adequate understanding of the Bank’s business operations and to enable all Directors
to update their knowledge regularly so as to provide informed recommendation and advice and make contribution to the Bank, the
Board has established a set of written policies specifying guidelines on Directors’ induction upon appointment and continuous training.

The Bank arranges appropriate Directors’ induction through the use of induction handbook, face-to-face meetings and other means,
and in accordance with the needs of individual Directors. Topics include but not limited to:

— governance structure;

— mandates of the Board and the Board Committees;

— standing agenda of the Board;

— regulatory requirements on corporate governance;

— focus of concern of regulators; and

— business operation, strategic plan and focus of internal control.

The Bank also provides regular updates to Board members on material changes to regulatory requirements applicable to the Directors
and the Group on a timely basis; and the Bank arranges regular meetings with the Management to facilitate the understanding of its
latest business development. In addition, Board members are encouraged to participate actively in continuous training programmes.
The Bank also arranges relevant professional training programmes for Board members at the Group’s expense.

During the year, all Directors have participated in continuous professional development to develop and refresh their knowledge and
skills. In 2021, the Bank invited expert to conduct seminars related to digital transformation in banking and climate risk to the Directors
and the senior management, discussing areas such as digital transformation trends, framework and climate risk management.

Furthermore, each of the Directors has received a series of training as he/she thought fit. During the year, they attended seminars and
workshops and received training materials from the Bank, regulatory authorities and professional firms, covering a wide range of topics:

- green and sustainable finance;

- climate risk management;

- digital transformation;

- stock and bond markets in Hong Kong;
- regtech;

- anti-money laundering;

- risk management and internal control;

- corporate governance; and

- banking industry development trend; etc.
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The Directors’ records of annual training information have been entered in the register of directors’ training records maintained and

updated by the Bank from time to time. As at year end, the participation of all Directors in continuous professional development is
summarised as follows:

Corporate Governance/

ESG Development/ Risk Management Banking Industry

Directors No*© Regulatory Updates  and Internal Control Development Trend
Non-executive Directors
Mr LIU Liange v v v
Mr LIU Jin (appointed with effect from 3 August v v v

2021)
Mr LIN Jingzhen v v v
Independent Non-executive Directors
Mdm CHENG Eva v v v
Dr CHOI Koon Shum v v v
Mr KOH Beng Seng v v v
Mr LAW Yee Kwan Quinn v v v
Mr TUNG Savio Wai-Hok v v v
Executive Director
Mr SUN Yu v v v

Note: The training records for Director who resigned during the year have not been included therein. Mdm FUNG Yuen Mei Anita was appointed as
Independent Non-executive Director with effect from 3 March 2022, and her training records was not included herein. Please refer to the section
headed “Composition and Terms of Office of the Board” under “Board of Directors” for details of changes in Directors during the year and up to
the date of this Annual Report.

Directors’ Attendance at Board Meetings and Board Committee Meetings

Five Board meetings were held during 2021 with an average attendance rate of 98%. Regular meeting schedule for the year was
prepared and approved by the Board in the preceding year. Formal notices of regular Board meetings were sent to all Directors at
least 14 days before the date of the scheduled meetings, and Board agenda and meeting materials of sufficient quality were
despatched to all Board members for review at least seven days prior to the scheduled meetings. Board agenda of each meeting was
approved by the Chairman following consultation with other Board members and the senior management. Members of the senior
management were regularly invited to attend the Board meetings to make presentation and answer questions that the Directors might
have. Draft and final versions of Board minutes were sent to all Directors for their comment and record respectively within a reasonable
period after the meetings were held.

The Board also received monthly reports with information on the Group’s latest financial and operating performance. Accordingly, the
Directors can have a balanced assessment of the Group’s performance, position and prospects throughout the year. In addition, the
Directors received, on a regular basis, thematic reports regarding the Bank’s precautionary measures taken against COVID-19,
professional services and products rendered to customers, active participation in anti-pandemic charity activities as well as the
pandemic support work of Southeast Asian institutions.

In addition, in order to facilitate open discussion with all the Independent Non-executive Directors, the Chairman met with all the

Independent Non-executive Directors in the absence of other Directors and the senior management. Relevant practice has been
incorporated in the Working Rules of the Board.
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Details of respective Directors’ attendance at the Board meetings and Board Committee meetings in 2021 are set out as follows

Number of meetings attended/Number of meetings convened during
Directors’ term of office

Board Committees

Nomination and Strategy
Audit Remuneration Risk  and Budget Sustainability

Directors Nt Board Committee Committee Committee Committee  Committee
Number of meetings held during 5 6 2 4 4 2

the year
Non-executive Directors
Mr LIU Liange (Chairman) 5/5 - - - 4/4 -
Mr LIU Jin (Vice Chairman) 3/3 - 1/1 - 3/3 -

(appointed with effect from 3

August 2021)

Mr LIN Jingzhen 5/5 - - - 4/4 -
Independent Non-executive Directors
Mdm CHENG Eva 5/5 6/6 - - 4/4 2/2
Dr CHOI Koon Shum 5/5 - 2/2 - 3/4 1/2
Mr KOH Beng Seng 5/5 6/6 2/2 4/4 - 2/2
Mr LAW Yee Kwan Quinn 5/5 6/6 - 4/4 - 2/2
Mr TUNG Savio Wai-Hok 4/5 5/6 1/2 2/4 3/4 1/2
Executive Director
Mr SUN Yu (Vice Chairman and Chief 5/5 - - - 4/4 2/2

Executive)
Average Attendance Rate 98% 96% 88% 84% 92% 83%

Note: Mr WANG Jiang resigned as Non-executive Director with effect from 5 February 2021 and no meeting of the Board and Board Committee
was held during the period when he was in office. Mdm FUNG Yuen Mei Anita was appointed as Independent Non-executive Director with
effect from 3 March 2022, and her attendance records was not included herein. Please refer to the section headed “Composition and Terms
of Office of the Board” under “Board of Directors” for details of changes in Directors during the year and up to the date of this Annual Report.

Apart from formal Board meeting, the Bank has set up a system of pre-communication meetings for the Independent Non-executive
Directors, where major agenda items have been presented to the Independent Non-executive Directors before each Board meeting,
and their comments have been timely conveyed to the Management for follow up actions so as to enhance the effectiveness of
deliberation at Board meetings.

Before the outbreak of COVID-19, the Bank used to arrange informal events for Board members and the senior management to
facilitate their communication and interactions. For example, the Bank would organise working meals from time to time, with Board
members and the senior management invited to join and share insights on the Bank’s business and strategic issues. Board retreat
would also be organised for Directors (in particular the Independent Non-executive Directors) to gain a good understanding of the
Bank’s regional business and operations and enhance communication with the senior management. During the year, the Bank invited
Board members and senior management to participate in the communication meetings through electronic mean to discuss and
communicate on the Bank’s latest business and strategic development and other aspects. Some of the activities might resume to
conduct physically in 2022, depending on the latest development on the pandemic.
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Audit Committee

The Audit Committee currently comprises five members, all of whom are Independent Non-executive Directors. Its composition, main
duties and major works performed during the year are as follows:

Composition Main duties

Mr TUNG Savio Wai-Hok (Chairman) » oversight of the integrity of financial statements and financial reporting process
Mdm CHENG Eva » oversight of risk management and internal control systems

Mdm FUNG Yuen Mei Anita°*® » review of performance of the internal audit function and the General Manager of
Mr KOH Beng Seng Group Audit

Mr LAW Yee Kwan Quinn » review of the appointment of external auditor and assessment of its qualification,

independence and performance and, with authorisation of the Board and
shareholders at general meeting, determination of its remuneration

review of the periodic review and annual audit of the Bank’s and the Group’s financial
statements

oversight of compliance with applicable accounting standards as well as legal and
regulatory requirements on financial disclosures

oversight of corporate governance framework of the Group and implementation

thereof

Major works performed during the year (included the review and, where

applicable, approval of)

the Bank’s financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2020 that were
recommended to the Board for approval

the Bank’s interim financial statements for the six months ended 30 June 2021 that
were recommended to the Board for approval

the audit reports and report on internal control recommendations submitted by
external auditor, the audit reports submitted by the internal audit, and the on-site
examination reports issued by regulators

the proposed appointment of external auditor, and the fees payable to external
auditor for the annual audit, interim review and other non-audit services

the connected transactions carried out in 2020

the annual review of the effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and internal
control systems

the Group’s 2022 internal audit plan

the organisation structure, deployment of human resources of Group Audit, as well
as its 2022 budget

external consultant’s independent review of the internal audit function

annual review of the effectiveness of the internal audit function

the 2020 performance appraisal and 2022 key performance indicators for the
General Manager of Group Audit and Group Audit

annual review of the “Policy on External Auditor Management”, the “Policy on Staff
Reporting of Irregularities”, the “Anti-Bribery and Corruption Policy” and the “Internal
Audit Charter”

Note: Independent Non-executive Director and appointed as a member of the Audit Committee with effect from 3 March 2022
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Nomination and Remuneration Committee

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee currently comprises four members, including one Non-executive Director and three
Independent Non-executive Directors. Its composition, main duties and major works performed during the year are as follows:

Composition Main duties

Dr CHOI Koon Shum? (Chairman) » review of overall human resources strategies of the Group

Mr LIU Jin? » selection and nomination of Directors, Board Committee members and Senior
Mr KOH Beng Seng* Management

Mr TUNG Savio Wai-Hok* * regular monitoring and review of structure, size and composition (including but not

limited to gender, age, cultural and educational background, ethnicity, geographical
location, professional experience, skills, knowledge and track records, etc.) of the
Board and Board Committees

+ review of the effectiveness of the Board and Board Committees

« ensuring the participation in training and continuous professional development of
Directors and Senior Management

* review and recommendation of remuneration strategy and incentive framework of
the Group

+ review of the remuneration of Directors, Board Committee members, Senior

Management and Key Personnel

Major works performed during the year (included the approval, review and

proposal to the Board)

» consideration of the matters relating to the appointment and changes of Directors
and Board Committee members

» consideration of the matters relating to the appointment, removal and remuneration
of the Executive Director and Senior Management

» performance appraisal result of the Senior Management for year 2020

» proposal on staff bonus for year 2020 for the Group, including Senior Management

» key performance indicators of the Group and the Senior Management for year 2022

» proposal on human resources budget of the Group for year 2022

» coordination and oversight of the annual performance evaluation of the Board, Board
Committees and individual Directors

» annual review and amendment of the major human resources and remuneration
policies

» annual review of the “Policy on Independence of Directors” and the “Policy on
Directors’ Remuneration”

Notes:

1. Independent Non-executive Director
2. Non-executive Director and appointed as a member of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee with effect from 3 August 2021
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Risk Committee

The Risk Committee currently comprises four members, all of whom are Independent Non-executive Directors. Its composition, main
duties and major works performed during the year are as follows:

Composition Main duties

Mr KOH Beng Seng (Chairman) » formulation of the risk appetite and risk management strategy of the Group and
Mdm FUNG Yuen Mei AnitaNote determination of the Group’s risk profile

Mr LAW Yee Kwan Quinn » identification, assessment and management of material risks faced by various
Mr TUNG Savio Wai-Hok business units of the Group

+ review and assessment of the adequacy and effectiveness of the Group’s risk
management policies, systems and internal controls

» review and monitoring of the Group’s capital management

» review and approval of the Group’s target balance sheet

» review and monitoring of the Group’s compliance with risk management policies,
systems and internal controls, including the Group’s compliance with prudential,
legal and regulatory requirements governing the businesses of the Group

» review and approval of high-level risk-related policies of the Group

» review and approval of significant or high risk exposures or transactions

+ review of risk management reports, including risk exposure reports, model

development and validation reports, and credit risk model performance reports

Major works performed during the year

« review and approval of key risk management policies of the Group, including the
Group’s risk appetite, the Risk Management Policy Statement, the Capital
Management Policy, the Stress Test Policy, Data Management Policy, Risk Data
Aggregation & Risk Reporting Management Policy, and a range of risk management
policies covering credit risk, market risk, liquidity risk, interest rate risk, operational
risk, legal risk, compliance risk, technology risk, strategic risk and reputation risk,
etc.

» review and approval of the proposal for the annual review of the Group’s recovery
plan, the risk adjustment method for group bonus funding mechanics, the results of
risk adjustment of the Group, the proposal for the amendment of the credit asset
impairment methodology and the Secure Tertiary Data Backup (STDB) independent
assessment report

» review and approval of the Group’s operating plans, including the Group’s target
balance sheets, the results of Internal Capital Adequacy Assessment Process
(ICAAP), the investment plans and portfolio key risk indicators, as well as risk
management limits

» review of risk management reports, including the Group’s risk management report,
the institutional money laundering risk assessment report, reports on the credit
quality and provision of the Bank’s credit portfolios arising from the Covid-19
pandemic and debt moratorium, the report on the credit quality of the loan portfolios
in SEA operations, the report on cybersecurity, the report on outsourcing
management, credit risk and market risk model validation reports, credit risk model

performance reports, etc.
Note: Independent Non-executive Director and appointed as a member of the Risk Committee with effect from 3 March 2022
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Strategy and Budget Committee

The Strategy and Budget Committee currently comprises eight members, including three Non-executive Directors, four Independent
Non-executive Directors as well as the Executive Director and Chief Executive of the Bank. Its composition, main duties and major
works performed during the year are as follows:

Composition Main duties

Mr LIU Liange! (Chairman) » review of the Group’s medium to long-term strategic plan for Board’s approval

Mr LIU Jin? * monitoring of the Group’s implementation of medium to long-term strategy, providing
Mr SUN Yu® guidance on strategy direction for the management

Mr LIN Jingzhen* + review of major investments, capital expenditure and strategic commitments of the
Mdm CHENG Eva* Group, and making recommendations to the Board

Dr CHOI Koon Shum* » review and monitoring of the Group’s regular/periodic (including annual) business plan
Mdm FUNG Yuen Mei Anita® » review of budget for Board’s approval and monitoring of performance against budgeted
Mr TUNG Savio Wai-Hok* targets

Major works performed during the year

» review of the Group’s medium and long-term development strategy plan, sub-plans for
the southeast Asian region and digital transformation for Board’s approval

» receipt of and discussion on the Group’s RMB business strategy

» receipt of and discussion on the Group’s plan on the reform of interest rate benchmarks

» review and monitoring of the implementation of 2021 Financial Budget and Business
Plan of the Group, and also review and endorsement of the Financial Budget and
Business Plan of the Group submitted by the Management for the year 2022 and

recommendation of the same to the Board

Notes:

1. Non-executive Director

2. Non-executive Director and appointed as a member of the Strategy and Budget Committee with effect from 3 August 2021

3. Executive Director

4. Independent Non-executive Director

5. Independent Non-executive Director and appointed as a member of the Strategy and Budget Committee with effect from 3 March 2022
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Board Committees (continued)

Sustainability Committee

The Sustainability Committee currently comprises seven members, including six Independent Non-executive Directors as well as the
Executive Director and Chief Executive of the Bank. Its composition, main duties and major works performed during the year are as

follows:
Composition Main duties
Mdm CHENG Eva' (Chairlady) » review of the Group’s sustainability strategies, goals and priorities as well as
Mr SUN Yu? material sustainability related policies
Dr CHOI Koon Shum' * review of environmental, social and governance issues which are material to the
Mdm FUNG Yuen Mei Anita® Group and the related measures
Mr KOH Beng Seng' » oversight of the Group’s sustainability performance
Mr LAW Yee Kwan Quinn' » oversight of corporate culture of the Group and review of related policies
Mr TUNG Savio Wai-Hok' » determination of the appropriate reporting principles and boundaries and review
of the Sustainability Report
Major work performed during the year
» oversight of the formulation and implementation of the Group’s sustainability
strategies
» oversight of the Group’s materiality assessment mechanism and the related work
progress
* review of the Groups’ Five-Year Sustainability Plan and measures to promote the
low-carbon transition of the Group’s own operations
» review of the 2020 Sustainability Report for Board’s approval
« review of the Group’s sustainability related policies, including the “Sustainability
Policy”, and recommendation of the same to the Board for approval
» review of sustainability related reports, including the “Report on Bank Culture
Building” and the “Report on Annual Review of the Staff Code of Conduct”
» supervision and review of the various sustainability measures taken by the Group
» receipt of and discussion on the market trend and progress update on Task Force
on Climate-Related Financial Disclosure of the Group
Notes:
1.  Independent Non-executive Director

2. Executive Director

3. Independent Non-executive Director and appointed as a member of the Sustainability Committee with effect from 3 March 2022
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Directors’ Securities Transactions

BOCHK (Holdings) has established and implemented the “Code for Securities Transactions by Directors” to govern the Directors’
dealings in securities transactions of BOC, BOC Aviation Limited (BOC’s subsidiary), BOC International (China) Co, Ltd (BOC’s
associate) and BOCHK (Holdings). Upon specific enquiry by BOCHK (Holdings), all Directors confirmed that they had strictly complied
with the provisions as set out in both the said Code and the “Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers”
as contained in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules throughout the year 2021.

Directors’ Remuneration

Pursuant to the “Policy on Directors’ Remuneration” adopted by the Bank, when recommendation of the remuneration of Directors is
made, the Nomination and Remuneration Committee should benchmark against companies of comparable business type or scale,
the role (chairmanship or membership) they played, job nature and workload at both the Board and Board Committee levels (including
frequency of meetings and nature of agenda items) in order to compensate Directors fairly. The remuneration of Directors is subject
to regular review based on market practices, regulatory requirements and inflation, etc. No individual Director is allowed to participate
in the procedures for deciding his/her individual remuneration package. The remuneration of the Independent Non-executive Directors
is not linked with the performance of the Bank. Information relating to the remuneration of each Director for 2021 is set out in Note 19
to the Financial Statements. Director’s fees, including additional fees for membership of Board Committees, paid to or receivable by
the Directors in respect of their services rendered in year 2021 for the Bank are given below:

Board of Directors:
All Directors HK$400,000 p.a
Board Committees:
Chairman HK$100,000 p.a
Other Committee members HK$50,000 p.a,

Note: Forthe year ended 31 December 2021, all Non-executive Directors (excluding Independent Non-executive Directors) and Executive Director have
not received their Directors’ fees as mentioned above.

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee also has the delegated responsibility from the Board to determine the remuneration
packages of the Executive Directors and the Senior Management, including benefits in kind, pension rights and compensation
payments (including any compensation payable for loss or termination of their office or appointment, early payout of deferred
remuneration), as well as the performance-based remuneration. Moreover, it will recommend to the Board on their remuneration
package upon joining, sign-on bonus and contract guaranteed bonus, etc.
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Remuneration and Incentive Mechanism

The Remuneration and Incentive Mechanism of the Group is based on the principles of “effective motivation” and “sound remuneration
management”. It links remuneration with performance and risk factors closely. It serves to encourage staff to enhance their
performance, and at the same time, to strengthen their awareness of risk so as to achieve sound remuneration management.

The Remuneration and Incentive Policy of the Group is generally in line with the broad principles set out in the HKMA's “Guideline on
a Sound Remuneration System” and applicable to the Bank and all of its subsidiaries (including the branches and entities in and out
of Hong Kong).

* “Senior Management” and “Key Personnel”

The Remuneration and Incentive Policy of the Group defines “Senior Management” and “Key Personnel” as follows:

» “Senior Management”: The senior executives designated by the Board who are responsible for oversight of the firm-wide
strategy or material business lines, including the Chief Executive, Deputy Chief Executives, Chief Financial Officer, Chief Risk
Officer, Chief Operating Officer, Board Secretary and General Manager of Group Audit.

+ “Key Personnel”: The employees whose individual business activities involve the assumption of material risk which may have
significant impact on risk exposure, or whose individual responsibilities are directly and materially linked to the risk management,
or those who have direct influence to the profit, including heads of material business lines, heads of major subsidiaries, senior
executives of Southeast Asian entities, head of trading, as well as heads of risk control functions.

¢ Determination of the Remuneration Policy

To fulfil the above-mentioned principles and to facilitate effective risk management within the framework of the Remuneration Policy
of the Group, the Remuneration Policy of the Group is initiated by Human Resources Department with consultation of the risk
control units including risk management, financial management and compliance in order to balance the needs for staff motivations,
sound remuneration and prudent risk management. After the proposed Remuneration Policy is cleared by the Management
Committee, it will be submitted to the Nomination and Remuneration Committee for review and thereafter to the Board for approval.
The Nomination and Remuneration Committee and the Board will seek opinions from other Board Committees (e.g. Risk Committee,
Audit Committee, etc.) where they consider necessary under the circumstances.

¢ Key Features of the Remuneration and Incentive Mechanism

1. Performance Management Mechanism
The Group has put in place a performance management mechanism to formalise the performance management at the levels of
the Group, units and individuals. The annual targets of the Group will be cascaded down under the framework of balanced scorecard
whereby the performance of the “Senior Management” and different units (including business units, risk control units and other
units) would be assessed from the perspectives of financial, strategy implementation, building blocks, human capital, risk
management and compliance. For individual staff at different levels, annual targets of the Group will be tied to their job requirements
through the performance management mechanism. Performance of individuals will be appraised on their achievement against
targets, their contribution towards performance of their units, fulfilment of risk management duties and compliance and adherence
to the Group’s corporate culture, etc. Not only is target accomplishment taken into account, but also the values-based behaviours
and sufficient risk management during the course of work, ensuring prudent operation and sustainable development of the Group.

2. Risk Adjustment of Remuneration

To put the principle of aligning performance and remuneration with risk into practice, based on “The Risk Adjustment Method”, the
key risk modifiers of the Bank have been incorporated into the performance management mechanism of the Group. Credit risk,
market risk, banking book interest rate risk, liquidity risk, operational risk, legal risk, compliance risk (including Anti-money laundry)
and reputation risk form the framework of “The Risk Adjustment Method”. The size of the bonus pool of the Group is calculated
according to the risk adjusted performance results approved by the Board and is subject to the Board’s discretion. This method
ensures the Group to fix the Group’s bonus pool after considering risk exposures and changes and to maintain effective risk
management through the remuneration mechanism.
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Remuneration and Incentive Mechanism (continued)

3. Performance-based and Risk-adjusted Remuneration Management
The remuneration of staff is composed of “fixed remuneration” and “variable remuneration”. The proportion of one to the other for
individual staff members depends on job grades, roles, responsibilities and functions of the staff with the prerequisite that balance
has to be struck between the fixed and variable portion. Generally speaking, the higher the job grades and/or the greater the
responsibilities, the higher will be the proportion of variable remuneration so as to encourage the staff to follow the philosophy of
prudent risk management and sound long-term financial stability.

Every year, the Group will conduct periodic review on the fixed remuneration of the staff with reference to various factors like
remuneration strategy, market pay trend and staff salary level, and will determine the remuneration based on the affordability of the
Group as well as the performance of the Group, units and individuals. As mentioned above, performance assessment criteria
include quantitative and qualitative factors, as well as financial and non-financial indicators.

According to the “BOCHK Group Bonus Funding Policy”, the size of the bonus pool of the Group is determined by the Board on
the basis of the financial performance of the Group and the achievement of non-financial strategic business targets under the long-
term development of the Group. Thorough consideration is also made to the risk factors in the determination process. The size of
the bonus pool is reached based on pre-defined formulaic calculations but the Board can make discretionary adjustment to it if
deemed appropriate under prevailing circumstances. When the Group’s performance is relatively weak (e.g. failed to meet the
threshold performance level), no bonus will be paid out that year in principle. However, the Board reserves the rights to exercise
its discretion.

As far as individual units and individual staff are concerned, allocation of the variable remuneration is closely linked to the
performance of the units, and that of each individual staff as well as the unit he/she is attaching to, and the assessment of which
should include risk modifiers. The performance and remuneration arrangement of risk control personnel are determined by the
achievement of their core job responsibilities, independent from the business they oversee; for front-line risk controllers, a cross-
departmental reporting and performance management system is applied to ensure the suitability of performance-based
remuneration. Within the acceptable risk level of the Group, the better the performance of the unit and the individual staff, the higher
will be the variable remuneration for the individual staff. The allocation of variable remuneration to staff should also consider
individual behaviour comprehensively. For behaviour which is positive and adhering to the Group’s corporate culture, the variable
remuneration should be tilted forward; for misconduct or behaviour which is negative and not adhering to the Group’s corporate
culture, the variable remuneration should be forfeited or reduced.

4. Linking the payout of the variable remuneration with the time horizon of the risk to reflect the long-term value creation of the Group
To work out the principle of aligning remuneration with the time horizon of risk and to ensure that sufficient time is allowed to
ascertain the associated risk and its impact before the actual payout, payout of the variable remuneration of staff is required to be
deferred in cash if such amount reaches certain prescribed threshold. The Group adopts a progressive approach towards deferral.
The longer the time horizon of risk in the activities conducted by the staff and the higher amount of the variable remuneration, the
higher will be the proportion of deferral. Deferral period lasts for three years.

The vesting of the deferred variable remuneration is linked with the long term value creation of the Group. The vesting conditions
are closely linked to the annual performance of the Group in the next three years and the individual behaviour of the staff concerned.
When the Group’s performance has met the threshold requirement, the deferred variable remuneration would be vested following
the corresponding schedule. However, if a staff is found to have committed fraud, or any financial or non-financial factors used in
performance measurement or variable pay determination are later proven to have been manifestly worse than originally understood
in a particular year, or individual behaviour/management style poses negative impacts to the business unit and even the Group,
including but not limited to improper or inadequate risk management, significant incident and economic loss incurred by improper
management, etc., the unvested portion of the deferred variable remuneration of the relevant staff would be forfeited.
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Remuneration and Incentive Mechanism (continued)

* Annual Review of Remuneration Policy

The Remuneration Policy of the Group is subject to annual review with reference to changes in external regulatory requirements,
market conditions and risk management requirements, etc. According to the latest regulatory requirement, the Group reviewed the
related policies of remuneration and incentive, including “BOCHK Group Remuneration and Incentive Policy”, “BOCHK Group
Variable Pay Deferral Policy”, “‘BOCHK Group Bonus Funding Policy” etc, revised the approval authority of remuneration packages,
identification criteria and position lists, deferral threshold and deferral rates of “Senior Management” and “Key Personnel”,
supplemented the link between misconduct risk and remuneration, specified the roles and responsibilities of risk management units.
The above amendments were effective from 1 January 2022.

¢ External Remuneration Consultant

To ensure the suitability and competitiveness of the remuneration and incentive mechanism, the Group appointed Willis Towers
Watson, Mercer and McLagan for independent consultation in areas of pay management and market remuneration data of the
Senior Management and key positions, etc.

¢ Disclosure on Remuneration

The Group has fully complied with the guideline in Part 3 of the “Guideline on a Sound Remuneration System” issued by the HKMA
to disclose information in relation to our remuneration and incentive mechanism.

External Auditor

Pursuant to the “Policy on External Auditor Management” adopted by the Board, the Audit Committee reviewed and monitored and
was satisfied with the independence and objectivity of PricewaterhouseCoopers, the Bank’s external auditor, and the effectiveness of
its audit procedures, based on the principles and standards set out in the said Policy that were in line with international best practices.
Upon the recommendation of the Audit Committee, the Board will propose that PricewaterhouseCoopers be re-appointed as auditor
of the Bank at the Bank’s 2022 annual general meeting. Subject to shareholders’ authorisation, the Board will authorise the Audit
Committee to determine the remuneration of PricewaterhouseCoopers.

For 2021, the fee paid or payable by the Group to PricewaterhouseCoopers was HK$34 million, of which HK$24 million related to
audit services and HK$10 million related to other services (mainly including tax-related and advisory services). For 2020, the fee paid
or payable by the Group to preceding external auditor, Ernst & Young, was HK$42 million, of which HK$28 million related to audit
services and HK$14 million related to other services (mainly including tax-related and advisory services). The Audit Committee was
satisfied that the non-audit services in 2021 did not affect the independence of PricewaterhouseCoopers.
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Risk Management and Internal Control

The Board is responsible for evaluating and determining the nature and extent of the risks it is willing to take in achieving the Group’s
strategic objectives, and ensuring that the Group establishes and maintains appropriate and effective risk management and internal
control systems. The Board oversees the Management in the design, implementation and monitoring of the risk management and
internal control systems. According to the Board’s scope of delegation, the Management is responsible for the day-to-day operations
and risk management, and the Management needs to provide a confirmation to the Board on the effectiveness of these systems.

The risk management and internal control systems are designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business
objectives, and can only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss; to manage the risk of
system failure; and to assist in the achievement of the Group’s objectives. In addition to safeguarding the Group’s assets, it also
ensures the maintenance of proper accounting records and compliance with relevant laws and regulations.

The Group conducts an annual review of the effectiveness of its risk management and internal control systems covering all material
controls, including financial, operational and compliance controls as well as risk management. The review is conducted by reference
to the guidelines and definitions given by the regulatory and professional bodies for the purpose of assessing five different internal
control elements, namely, the control environment, risk assessment, control activities, information and communication, and monitoring.
The assessment covers all the major internal controls and measures, including financial, operational and compliance controls as well
as risk management functions. The review also considers the adequacy of resources, staff qualifications and experience and training
of the Group’s accounting, financial reporting and internal audit functions. The review is coordinated by the Group’s internal audit
which, after the Management and various business departments have performed their self-assessment and the Management has
confirmed the effectiveness of the relevant systems, carries out an independent examination and other post-assessment work on the
review process and results. The results of the 2021 review, which have been reported to the Audit Committee and the Board, revealed
that the Group’s risk management and internal control systems were effective and adequate.

In addition, the key procedures that the Group has essentially established and implemented to provide internal controls are
summarised as follows:

« arational organisational structure with appropriate personnel is developed and whose responsibility, authority, and accountability
are clearly delineated. The Group has formulated policies and procedures to ensure reasonable checks and balances for all the
operating units, reasonable safeguard for the Group’s assets and adherence to relevant laws and regulations and risk management
in its operations;

« the Management draws up and continuously monitors the implementation of the Group’s strategies, business plans and financial
budgets. The accounting and management systems that are in place provide the basis for evaluating financial and operational
performance;

« the Group has various risk management and human resources policies. There are specific units and personnel that are responsible
for handling reputation, strategic, legal, compliance, credit, market, operational, liquidity and interest rate risks. There are also
procedures and internal controls for the handling and dissemination of inside information. The Group has set up mechanisms to
identify, evaluate and manage all the major risks, and has established corresponding internal control procedures as well as
processes for resolving internal control defects. (Details about the Group’s risk management are provided on pages 319 to 327 of
this Annual Report);

» the Group has established an information technology governance structure that produces a range of reports on information systems
and management, including information on the monitoring of various business units, financial information and operating
performance. Such information facilitates the Management, business units and the regulatory bodies in assessing and monitoring
the Group’s operation and performance. Proper communication channels and reporting mechanisms are in place at various
business units and levels to facilitate exchange of information;
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Risk Management and Internal Control (continued)

» pursuant to a risk-based approach and in accordance with the internal audit plan approved by the Audit Committee, the Group’s
internal audit conducts independent reviews on such aspects as financial activities, various business areas, various kinds of risks,
operations and activities. Reports are submitted directly to the Audit Committee. The Group’s internal audit closely follows up on
the items that require attention in a systematic way and reports to the Management and the Audit Committee in a timely manner;
and

» the Audit Committee reviews the reports submitted by external auditor to the Group’s Management in connection with the annual
audit as well as the recommendations made by regulatory bodies on risk management and internal control. The Group’s internal
audit follows up on the same to ensure timely implementation of the recommendations, and also periodically reports the status of
the implementation to the Management and the Audit Committee.

The Group is committed to upholding good corporate governance practices and the internal control system of all subsidiaries are
reviewed regularly. During the year of 2021, continuous improvements on the organisation structure and segregation of duty, the risk
management policy and procedure, and the enhancement of disclosure transparency have been undertaken by the Group. In response
to internal and external changes in global economic condition, operating environment, regulatory requirement and business
development, the Group has implemented a series of measures and undertaken an on-going review on the effectiveness of the internal
control mechanism. In 2021, areas for improvement have been identified and appropriate measures have been implemented.

Amendments to the Articles of Association

At the 2021 annual general meeting, the Bank had adopted a new Atrticles of Association with the following summary changes including
(i) to enable the convening, holding and conducting of general meetings (including an annual general meeting, any adjourned meeting
or postponed meeting) as a physical meeting in any part of the world (except that the principal place of the general meeting must be
a location in Hong Kong) and at one or more locations, or as a hybrid meeting; (ii) to recognise the use of electronic communication
and/or facilities by the Bank in addition to traditional and/or mechanical means; (iii) to empower the Board to postpone a general
meeting (or an adjourned general meeting) before such meeting (or adjourned meeting) is held; and (iv) to update and tidy up
definitions and other references, and to make consequential amendments in line with the aforesaid amendments and other house-
keeping amendments.

Directors’ Responsibility Statement in relation to Financial Statements

The following statement should be read in conjunction with the auditor’s statement of their responsibilities as set out in the auditor’s
report. The statement aims to distinguish the responsibilities of the Directors and the auditor in relation to the financial statements.

The Directors are required by the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance to prepare financial statements, which give a true and fair view
of the state of affairs of the Bank. The financial statements should be prepared on a going concern basis unless it is considered
inappropriate. The Directors are responsible for ensuring that the accounting records kept by the Bank at any time reasonably and
accurately reflect the financial position of the Bank, and that the financial statements comply with the requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance. The Directors also have duties to take reasonable and practicable steps to safeguard the assets of the Group
and to prevent and detect fraud and other irregularities.

The Directors consider that in preparing the financial statements, the Bank has adopted appropriate accounting policies which have

been consistently applied and supported by reasonable judgements and estimates, and that all accounting standards which they
consider to be applicable have been followed.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

To the Members of Bank of China (Hong Kong) Limited
(incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

Opinion
What we have audited

The consolidated financial statements of Bank of China (Hong Kong) Limited (the “Bank”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”), which are
set out on pages 55 to 318, comprise:

the consolidated balance sheet as at 31 December 2021;

the consolidated income statement for the year then ended,;

the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the year then ended;

the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year then ended;

the consolidated cash flow statement for the year then ended; and

the notes to the consolidated financial statements, which include significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information

e o o o o o

Our opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at
31 December 2021, and of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have been properly prepared in compliance with the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor’'s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements
section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the Code”), and
we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Key audit matters identified in our audit are summarised as follows:
. Measurement of expected credit loss (“ECL”) for advances to customers
. Valuation of financial instruments measured at fair value
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Independent Auditor’s Report (continued)

Key Audit Matter

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

Measurement of expected credit
advances to customers

loss (“ECL”) for

Refer to Note 2.14, Note 3.1, Note 4.1, Note 12 and Note 23
to the Group’s consolidated financial statements.

As at 31 December 2021, the gross carrying amount and
impairment allowances of advances to customers in the
Group’s consolidated balance sheet was HK$1,598,389
million and HK$9,877 million, respectively. The impairment
losses on advances to customers recognised in the Group’s
consolidated income statement for the year ended 31
December 2021 amounted to HK$1,962 million.

The Group assessed whether the credit risk of advances to
customers had increased significantly since their initial
recognition, and applied a three-stage impairment approach
to measure their ECL. For advances classified into stages 1
and 2, the Group assessed the ECL using the risk parameter
modelling approach that incorporated relevant key risk
parameters, including probability of default (“PD”), loss given
default (“LGD”), exposure at default (‘EAD”). For advances
to customers in stage 3, the Group assessed ECL by
estimating the future cash flows for the advances to
customers.

We understood and evaluated management’s internal controls
and assessment process for the measurement of ECL for
advances to customers.

We assessed the inherent risk of material misstatement by
considering the degree of estimation uncertainty and level of
other inherent risk factors such as the complexity of estimation

models used,

the subjectivity of significant management

judgements and assumptions, and susceptibility to management

bias.

We tested the key internal controls over the measurement of ECL

for advances to customers.

These primarily included periodic

assessment and approval controls over:

)

@

©)

)

®)

ECL models, including the selection of modelling
methodologies; model optimisation and application of
key parameters, and model back-testing;

significant management judgements and assumptions,
including portfolio segmentation, relevant ECL model
parameters estimation, determination of significant
increases in credit risk, identification of default and
credit impaired assets, as well as economic indicators,
economic scenarios and weighting used in forward
looking measurement;

estimated future cash flows and calculations of present
values with respect to advances to customers in stage
3;

the accuracy and completeness of key data used in the
model;

information technology (“IT”) systems for ECL
measurement, including IT general controls, data
interfaces, application of model parameters and IT
controls over impairment calculations.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (continued)

Key Audit Matter

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

The measurement of ECL for advances to customers involves
significant judgements and assumptions, mainly on:

1) Segmentation of portfolios based on credit risk
characteristics, selection of appropriate models and
determination of relevant key parameters;

2) Determination and application of criteria to identify
significant increase in credit risk, default and credit
impaired assets;

3) Economicindicators, economic scenarios and weighting
used in the forward-looking measurement;

4) Estimation of future cash flows for advances to
customers that are impaired.

We have identified the measurement of ECL for advances to
customers as a key audit matter due to the material balance of
the Group’s impairment allowances for advances to customers
and high inherent risk given the uncertainty of estimates,
adoption of complex models, involvement of significant
management judgements and assumptions and use of
numerous parameters and data inputs in such measurement.

@)

@

@)

)

®)

We involved our credit risk experts in evaluating the model
methodologies, significant judgements and assumptions, data
and key parameters used in the ECL measurement for advances
to customers. The substantive audit procedures performed by us
were mainly as follows:

We assessed the appropriateness of portfolio
segmentation and the models adopted for the
measurement of ECL in respect of different portfolios
by considering the risk characteristics of advances to
customers, the Group’s risk management practices
and industry practices. We tested ECL calculations
on a sampling basis and examined whether the
models’ calculation engines are in accordance with the
Group’s methodologies;

We checked the accuracy and completeness of
historical and measurement date data used in the ECL
models on a sampling basis. The sampled data
inputs included but not limited to the following:

@ in respect of PD: financial and non-financial
information for determining borrowers’ credit
rating, and overdue repayment status, etc.;

(i) in respect of LGD: types of guarantees and
collateral, and historical actual loss rates, etc.;

(iii)  in respect of EAD: borrowers’ outstanding loan
balances, interest rates, maturity dates and
repayment methods, etc.

We agreed these data inputs to loan contracts and

other relevant documents. We also agreed the total

credit risk exposure in the ECL models to data from
other information systems;

In respect of PD and LGD, we assessed the
reasonableness of the parameters by comparing the
historical expected default and loss given default with
the subsequent actual default and loss given default for
significant exposures through independent back-

testing;

On a sampling basis, we assessed the
appropriateness of staging classifications and
management’s judgements used in determining

significant increases in credit risk and identification of
default and credit-impaired assets based on the
borrower’s financial and non-financial information and
other external evidence provided by management. We
took into consideration the credit risk profile of
borrowers and the Group’s risk management practices
in our assessment;

For forward looking measurement, we evaluated
management’s selection of economic indicators,
economic scenarios and weightings assigned based
on statistical analysis and management judgements.
We assessed the reasonableness of the forecasted
economic indicators by performing back-testing and
comparing with publicly available forecasts from third-
party institutions. We performed sensitivity analysis on
the economic indicators and weightings under different
economic scenarios;
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Independent Auditor’s Report (continued)

Key Audit Matter

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

(6) We reviewed the annual ECL model validation result
and assessment performed by management and
evaluated if significant finding has been addressed in
the ECL calculation;

For advances to customers that were classified as
stage 3, we checked, on a sample basis, forecasted
future cash flows prepared by management based on
the financial information of borrowers and guarantors,
latest collateral valuations and other available
information together with discount rates used to
support the computation of impairment allowances.

)

We checked and evaluated the financial statements disclosures
in relation to the measurement of ECL for advances to customers.

Based on the procedures performed, we considered that the
models, significant judgements and assumptions, as well as
relevant data and key parameters used by management in
measuring ECL for advances to customers were supported by
available evidence.

Valuation of financial instruments measured at fair value

Refer to Note 2.12, Note 3.2 and Note 5.1 to the Group’s
consolidated financial statements.

As at 31 December 2021, the Group’s financial assets
measured at fair value were HK$938,598 million, representing
27% of total assets, of which (1) 31% were classified as Level
1 fair value, measured using quoted prices (unadjusted) in
active markets; (2) 69% were classified as Level 2 fair value,
measured using valuation techniques for which inputs are
observable for the financial instruments, either directly or
indirectly; and (3) less than 1% were classified as Level 3 fair
value, measured using valuation techniques using
unobservable inputs that have a significant impact on the
valuation. Level 3 financial instruments are unlisted equity held
by the Group. While the Group’s financial liabilities measured
at fair value were HK$42,217 million as at 31 December 2021,
representing 1% of total liabilities, of which more than 99%
were classified as Level 2 fair value.

We have identified this as a key audit matter due to the material
balance of the financial instruments measured at fair value.
Also, management has used complex valuation models to
determine the fair value of financial instruments that are not
quoted in active markets. The valuation models involve
management’s judgements and assumptions, including the
selection of data inputs.

We understood and evaluated management’s internal controls
and assessment process of the valuation of financial instruments
measured at fair value.

We assessed the inherent risk of material misstatement by
considering the degree of estimation uncertainty and level of
other inherent risk factors such as the complexity of valuation
techniques and models, the subjectivity of management's
judgements and assumptions in selecting valuation techniques,
models and data inputs and susceptibility to management bias.

We tested the key internal controls over the valuation of financial
instruments measured at fair value. These included controls over
independent price verification, model validation and approval,
review and approval of valuation results, and the IT general
controls of related systems, systems interfaces of inputs such as
market data and automated calculations within the valuation
system.

We performed the following substantive procedures on a
sampling basis:

(1) For Level 1 financial instruments, we tested their
valuations by comparing to quoted prices in active
markets.
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Key Audit Matter How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

(2) For Level 2 and Level 3 financial instruments:

0] we assessed the appropriateness of the Group’s
valuation models and benchmarked against
common market models, taking into
consideration the product characteristics and
industry practice;

(i)  we tested the accuracy of data inputs used for
valuation of Level 2 financial instruments by
comparing to market observable data and
involved our valuation experts to assess the
reasonableness of any judgements and
assumptions that management applied;

(i)  we obtained an understanding of management'’s
judgements in the selection of unobservable
data inputs used for valuation of Level 3 financial
instruments and involved our valuation experts
to assess the reasonableness of any
judgements and assumptions that management
applied. We also compared the unobservable
data inputs to alternatives in the market and
performed  sensitivity analysis on the
unobservable data inputs.

We checked and evaluated the financial statements disclosures
in relation to fair value of financial instruments.

Based on the procedures performed, we considered that the
valuation models, significant judgements and assumptions as
well as relevant data used by management in the valuation of
financial instruments measured at fair value were supported by
available evidence.

Other Information
The directors of the Bank are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises all of the information included in
the annual report other than the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing
so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge
obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required
to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Directors and the Audit Committee for the Consolidated Financial Statements
The directors of the Bank are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the
directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Audit Committee is responsible for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (continued)

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. We report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with Section 405 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and for no other purpose. We do
not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report. Reasonable assurance is a
high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial
statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout

the audit. We also:

. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control.

. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.

. Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors' use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our
auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However,
future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

. Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business activities within the

Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and
performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of
the consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s report is Ms. Lam Hung.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 29 March 2022
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Consolidated Income Statement

b3
For the year ended 31 December Notes 2021 2020
AWEET AEET
HK$’'m HK$'m
Interest income 36,501 46,430
Interest income calculated using the
effective interest method 36,199 45,966
Others 302 464
Interest expense (8,357) (15,132)
Net interest income 6 28,144 31,298
Fee and commission income 14,942 13,658
Fee and commission expense (2,483) (2,260)
Net fee and commission income 7 12,459 11,398
Net trading gain 8 4,932 4,763
Net (loss)/gain on other financial instruments at
fair value through profit or loss 9 (65) 157
Net gain on other financial instruments 10 967 4,383
Other operating income 11 752 737
Net operating income before impairment
allowances 47,189 52,736
Net charge of impairment allowances 12 (2,133) (2,671)
Net operating income 45,056 50,065
Operating expenses 13 (15,809) (15,775)
Operating profit 29,247 34,290
Net loss from disposal of/fair value adjustments
on investment properties 14 (227) (1,641)
Net loss from disposal/revaluation of
properties, plant and equipment 15 (20) (63)
Share of results after tax of associates and
joint ventures 25 75 42
Profit before taxation 29,075 32,628
Taxation 16 (4,844) (5,095)
Profit for the year 24,231 27,533
Profit attributable to:
Equity holders of the Bank 24,049 27,352
Non-controlling interests 182 181
24,231 27,533
Dividends 17 11,794 12,138

The notes on pages 63 to 318 are an integral part of these financial statements.
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P&t
For the year ended 31 December Notes 2021 2020
AEEET A EETT
HK$’m HK$'m
Profit for the year 24,231 27,533
Items that will not be reclassified subsequently
to income statement:
Premises:
Revaluation of premises 27 645 (1,692)
Deferred tax 34 (98) 292
547 (1,400)
Equity instruments at fair value through other
comprehensive income:
Change in fair value (132) 139
Deferred tax 1 (5)
(131) 134
Own credit risk:
Change in fair value of own credit risk of
financial liabilities designated at fair value
through profit or loss - 1
Deferred tax - -
- 1
416 (1,265)
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HFeazHWEE (#) Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
(continued)

FaE
#BZE 12 A 31 HILFE®E For the year ended 31 December Notes 2021 2020
BEEET BEEHET
HK$’'m HK$'m
g v R WG R ARY Items that may be reclassified subsequently to
IEHH - income statement:
DU ESE EET A A 2 UL Debt instruments at fair value through other
tmZfEH LA comprehensive income:
INEAESEAL Change in fair value (412) 5,505
E 2 bR s R Change in impairment allowances charged
to income statement 12 29 90
ISl A= g - (E1Pd = St sk T Release upon disposal/redemption
BEWNEE reclassified to income statement 10 (1,059) (4,411)
AN EE SRR RS Amortisation of accumulated amount of fair
BN E I B ES = value hedge adjustment reclassified to
income statement 8 89
WBAEFRIA Deferred tax 275 (165)
(1,159) 1,108
BsR R A Currency translation difference (584) 239
(1,743) 1,347
EERREHA S TS Other comprehensive income for the year,
net of tax (1,327) 82
EEPEWESEEE Total comprehensive income for the year 22,904 27,615
FE(E & EUESAEEE Total comprehensive income attributable to:
AERTTHE R Equity holders of the Bank 22,722 27,434
JEIERIfE RS Non-controlling interests 182 181
22,904 27,615

5 63 & 318 H it @AM 15 The notes on pages 63 to 318 are an integral part of these financial statements.
ARy -
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Consolidated Balance Sheet

i3
As at 31 December Notes 2021 2020
EREET A EETT
HK$’'m HK$'m
ASSETS
Cash and balances and placements with banks
and other financial institutions 20 462,492 463,081
Financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss 21 44,902 32,745
Derivative financial instruments 22 33,247 52,811
Hong Kong SAR Government certificates of
indebtedness 203,810 189,550
Advances and other accounts 23 1,596,499 1,499,808
Investment in securities 24 991,321 789,869
Interests in associates and joint ventures 25 687 663
Investment properties 26 18,363 18,740
Properties, plant and equipment 27 45,730 46,504
Current tax assets 30 69
Deferred tax assets 34 192 95
Other assets 28 45,702 50,595
Total assets 3,442,975 3,144,530
LIABILITIES
Hong Kong SAR currency notes in circulation 29 203,810 189,550
Deposits and balances from banks and other
financial institutions 485,807 326,241
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or
loss 30 12,520 20,336
Derivative financial instruments 22 29,697 60,355
Deposits from customers 31 2,334,362 2,190,322
Debt securities and certificates of deposit in
issue 32 2,423 426
Other accounts and provisions 33 59,206 51,086
Current tax liabilities 3,414 3,878
Deferred tax liabilities 34 5,631 5,778
Total liabilities 3,136,870 2,847,972
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Consolidated Balance Sheet (continued)

FEE
As at 31 December Notes 2021 2020
AREET BEEHET
HK$’m HK$'m
EQUITY

Share capital 35 43,043 43,043
Reserves 239,299 229,749

Capital and reserves attributable to equity
holders of the Bank 282,342 272,792
Other equity instruments of the Bank 36 23,476 23,476
Non-controlling interests 287 290
Total equity 306,105 296,558
Total liabilities and equity 3,442,975 3,144,530

The notes on pages 63 to 318 are an integral part of these financial statements.

Approved by the Board of Directors on 29 March 2022 and signed on behalf of the Board by:

#E SUN Yu

= Director
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Profit for the year
Other comprehensive
income:
Premises
Equity instruments
at fair value
through other
comprehensive
income
Own credit risk
Debt instruments at
fair value through
other
comprehensive
income
Currency
translation
difference

Total comprehensive
income

Release upon
disposal of equity
instruments at fair
value through other
comprehensive
income:

Transfer
Deferred tax
Current tax

Release upon
redemption of
financial liabilities
designated at fair
value through profit
or loss:

Transfer
Deferred tax
Current tax

Transfer to retained
earnings

Dividend paid to other
equity instrument
holders

Dividends

At 31 December 2020

¥ & 4L £5 (&) A mAT

BANK OF CHINA (HONG KONG) LIMITED

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

BRI A SRTRER
Attributable to equity holders of the Bank
i
Reserves

. RETHAL

- X o TR

B ATE B " other

i BB Reserve o IR
i3 Premises Reserve for forown  EE{EEMH HREEE  WEERA equity Non- AL
Share revaluation fair value credit Regulatory Translation Retained yazf  instruments controlling Total
capital reserve changes risk reserve* reserve earnings Total _of the Bank interests equity
BMSEE T BIEE T OBIEE T BWEE T BEEEDT BEEEDT BWEEDT BWEET OBREsDT OBIEET BN EEDT
HK$'m HK$'m HK$'m HK$'m HK$'m HK$'m HK$'m HK$'m HK$'m HK$'m HK$'m
43,043 39,505 2,336 (33) 11,077 (581) 163,525 258,872 23,476 282 282,630
- - - - - - 27,352 27,352 - 181 27,533
- (1,400) - - - - - (1,400) - - (1,400)
- - 134 - - - - 134 - - 134
- - - 1 - - - 1 - - 1
- - 1,108 - - - - 1,108 - - 1,108
- - 161 - - 78 - 239 - - 239
- (1,400) 1,403 1 - 78 27,352 27,434 - 181 27,615
- - ) - - - 7 - - - -
- - 1 - - - - 1 - - 1
- - - - - - ©) ©) - - M
- - - 38 - - (38) - - - -
- - - ® - - - ® - - ®

- - - - - - 6 6 - - 6
- - - - (6,297) - 6,297 - - - -
- - - - - - (1,376) (1,376) - - (1,376)
- - - - - - (12,138) (12,138) - (173) (12,311)
43,043 38,105 3,733 - 4,780 (503) 183,634 272,792 23,476 290 296,558
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BANK OF CHINA (HONG KONG) LIMITED

LEOTERSEEIR (&) Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity (continued)

BN ASRITROR
Attributable to equity holders of the Bank
B
Reserves
BHER ATHEAML
FE AHE BB LR
S BEHRE  Reserve Other  JEiEAliES
A&  Premises Reserve for forown EEEREE HREHE | EHEEF equity Non-  EAYE
Share revaluation fair value credit Regulatory Translation Retained 4f=t instruments controlling Total
capital reserve I risk reserve* reserve earnings Total of the Bank interests equity
EWEETT AWEET EWEET ANEET BWEET BWEDET EWSET BYEET BWEET BWEET B¥EET
HK$’'m HK$’m HK$’m HK$’m HK$’'m HK$’m HK$’m HK$’m HK$’'m HK$’m HK$’'m
#2021 1 H1H At 1 January 2021 43,043 38,105 3,733 - 4,780 (503) 183,634 272,792 23,476 290 296,558
DR Profit for the year - - - - - - 24,049 24,049 . 182 24,231
HoAt g2 AR ¢ Other
comprehensive
income:
R Premises - 547 - - - - - 547 - - 547
PUATHEEE Equity instruments
FTAHA 2 at fair value
inltienyed:its through other
TR comprehensive
income - - (131) - - - - (131) - - (31)
BAAHESE(E Debt instruments
BT AHA 2 at fair value
[illienydi-y through other
BIE comprehensive
income - - (1,159) - - - - (1,159) - - (1,159)
R AR Currency
translation
difference - - (86) - - (498) - (584) - - (584)
Ell ek Total comprehensive
income - 547 (1,376) - - (498) 24,049 22,722 - 182 22,904
REE LA TFEE  Release upon
{bat AH:Ath 2 disposal of equity
Wi BET R instruments at fair
R value through other
comprehensive
income:
o] Transfer - - - R . R R R R ~ }
IRAEFRTE Deferred tax - - - - - R . . . N R
JETFRIE Current tax - - - - - - . - . _ R
R AR Transfer from
retained earnings - - - - 1,293 - (1,293) - . - B
T HAREE T E  Dividend paid to
FrAEHERE other equity
instrument holders - - - - - - (1,378) (1,378) - - (1,378)
4358 Dividends - - R - - . (11,794) (11,794) . (185) (11,979)
2021512 H31H At 31 December 2021 43,043 38,652 2,357 - 6,073 (1,001) 193,218 282,342 23,476 287 306,105

Y IRIEE MBS G AERE 9 SEEEEREURE * In accordance with the requirements of the HKMA, the amounts are set aside for general banking risks, including future losses or
HEGEIN o Al R R R S E KR B other unforeseeable risks, in addition to the loan impairment allowances recognised under HKFRS 9.
R TESRTT— AR BR 2 . (BB AR AR S AL
AT ) -

% 63 £ 318 HffsFE A% The notes on pages 63 to 318 are an integral part of these financial statements.
GHRZER ST
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The notes on pages 63 to 318 are an integral part of these financial statements.

62

CETHESRER Consolidated Cash Flow Statement
FEE
BE12 H 31 HiHFEE For the year ended 31 December Notes 2021 2020
AREEET BHET
HK$’'m HK$'m
RBEBIHESRE Cash flows from operating activities
iR E S 27 R A Operating cash inflow before taxation 37(a) 89,527 148,682
FE R Hong Kong profits tax paid (5,044) (9,306)
WD Outside Hong Kong profits tax paid (291) (348)
RBEK SR AIFHE Net cash inflow from operating activities 84,192 139,028
REEB I ERE Cash flows from investing activities
WEYE ~ 230 KR Additions of properties, plant and equipment (382) (1,297)
REYIZE ~ 2o B TS ETE Proceeds from disposal of properties, plant
and equipment 12 11
W BB Additions of investment properties 26 (233) 9)
BB A Additions of intangible assets 28 (747) -
WS AN E RS B R ERLE Dividend received from associates and joint
ventures 25 51 -
BRI SR Net cash outflow from investing activities (1,299) (1,295)
MEEBIHESRE Cash flows from financing activities
TSR TR RS Dividend paid to equity holders of the Bank (11,794) (12,138)
ST EAT R T BRRE R R Dividend paid to other equity instrument
holders (1,378) (1,376)
SR S Dividend paid to non-controlling interests (185) (173)
I [E1& B & EF a0 Payment for redemption of subordinated
liabilities 37(b) - (12,603)
T A EEER A Interest paid for subordinated liabilities 37(b) - (350)
THEEE Payment of lease liabilities 37(b) (681) (692)
REEBE RS H$5E Net cash outflow from financing activities (14,038) (27,332)
4 R EIR ST H i Increase in cash and cash equivalents 68,855 110,401
™1 A1 H2ZRE REERSIEH Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January 455,428 331,459
PR ENIN & N EEIRSTEE R Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and
= cash equivalents 4,589 13,568
?12 H 31 HZHSREEHSER Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December 37(c) 528,872 455,428
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©)

A B BRI
1. EEEH

Notes to the Financial Statements

1. Principal activities

AER I £ S AR AL RTT R AR
H.Z SRR -

The Group is principally engaged in the provision of banking and related financial services.

RIRTR—RNERELILH
MREBAE - A MRS
AEACEE 1 9Pk 14 1 -

The Bank is a limited liability company incorporated in Hong Kong. The address of its
registered office is 14/F, Bank of China Tower, 1 Garden Road, Hong Kong.

2. FEEHER 2.

Significant accounting policies

MR REASGT SV BT L EH
GETEEGTEYIT -

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these consolidated financial
statements are set out below.

EEEERIEERRSN » 22 St EeRY These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise

We— Bt RN A~ 2 7% stated.
fERE -
2.1 4REEAE 2.1 Basis of preparation

KR 2 Gr A B R ) %
RERGMAGHMZE
AR AERICE I B
SR Ry — i B EAERT
M Z E A RS
TG HEA R ) el
WAFEEHE (DERRET) 28
5 o

IRERE A TR T S
AEA B ML E S DL HE
BbaT AH M e 2 &
AhEE - LA PEE b AR
2 R N AR
AT ERTR) ~ DUAHE
Yl 50 LA AR
ZAEYIFE R VAP E S E
(A IRR BT 8 & Rtk
ERRERIIRZ AR
BB R EH & KILE
HEGLUHRAERATE
R B A Z B ERES R
WES BTG EE 2.2 K
2.25-

The consolidated financial statements of the Group have been prepared in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“‘HKFRSs”) (HKFRSs is a collective term
which includes all applicable individual Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, HKASs
and Interpretations) issued by the HKICPA and the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost
convention, as modified by the revaluation of financial assets at fair value through other
comprehensive income, financial assets and financial liabilities (including derivative
financial instruments) at fair value through profit or loss, precious metals at fair value,
investment properties which are carried at fair value and premises which are carried at fair
value or revalued amount less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment
losses. Disposal group and repossessed assets held for sale are stated at the lower of
their carrying amounts and fair values less costs to sell as further explained in Notes 2.2
and 2.25 respectively.
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2.1 ERERE (F)

FIAE I B s SR R
MsEeRnT - BRAETE
RZEGHER - EEEIHR

BRI Al 3

B

TR ARG - Bk
[ ~ 1R R~ 5
SrEM BRI S BERY
B B R > AT

FE3e

(@ B 20214E1 H 1 H&E

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with HKFRSs requires the use of

certain critical accounting estimates. It also requires the Management to exercise

judgement in the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies. The areas involving

a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates

are significant to the consolidated financial statements are disclosed in Note 3.

(@) Amendments that are initially adopted for the financial year beginning on 1

FRAEHYEETERE R January 2021
FZMERT
EREAZEE  RAEE
Applicable for  EAEEFHRR
e financial years  Currentl
&3 P beginning relevant);o
Amendments Content on/after the Group
EAEETTEA 39 9t - FARMGH FREAREEE — BT 2211 H1H 2
HAERIE 4 5F - BB ELE
RIS 7 5% - TR BHRELERSE
9 5t BB R AR 16 5
(&1
HKAS 39, HKFRS 4, HKFRS 7, Interest Rate Benchmark Reform — Phase 2 1 January 2021  Yes
HKFRS 9 and HKFRS 16
(Amendments)
EEM SRS 16 9 2021 4 6 H 30 H & Bt K AHR A TH SR % 202144 H1H 2
(#&1E5T)
HKFRS 16 (Amendments) COVID-19-Related Rent Concessions beyond 30 June 2021 1 April 2021 Yes
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FIERFRHEE (&) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

2. FEEESE (&) 2. Significant accounting policies (continued)
21 FREE (&) 2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)
(a) 202141 H 1 Hi#E (a) Amendments that are initially adopted for the financial year beginning on 1

BB R IR January 2021 (continued)

RzEET (%)

o EBEGEERIE 39 . HKAS 39, HKFRS 4, HKFRS 7, HKFRS 9 and HKFRS 16 (Amendments),
5t EAMBRS “Interest Rate Benchmark Reform — Phase 2”. The amendments address the
AERIEE 4 5i - & issues that arise during the reform of an interest rate benchmark rate (IBOR

45 2 3t 1 . . . .

s RIS 7 reform”), including the replacement of one benchmark with an alternative one.

9T~ HRME S
AR O SEREE
WA HERIE 16
it (KLEaT) T AR
MRLE - F2
FERL - IERTEAE
IS B RS
Frs RS > &
FE AR R AE By
B L EETHITE
2019 4FE M Z A8
BEESTALELLIT N
AR |

The amendments complement those issued in 2019 and relate to:

- YR E R g - changes to contractual cash flows — a company does not have to

BT R H derecognise or adjust the carrying amount of financial instruments for
T E RS 5 changes that are direct consequence of the reform and occur on an
BAEK S F%E economically equivalent basis, but will instead update the effective interest
WYELRE FREAE rate to reflect the change to the alternative benchmark rates;
1 SET PR
[IEQI AT
Rl THAR
e > TR E
PEFZRF T LA
B R R
ZEER
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FIERFRHEE (&) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

2. TEeEEEE (8) 2. Significant accounting policies (continued)
21 FREE (&) 2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

(a) 202141 H 1 HiE
FEAARY & ST B 2RER
T ()

- HdEst - EH
HHE A R B T
MEEE - A
R HoAt 3
SHRAFRYES - 4
SEH DR AL
gt S5
Ji RS
DL 8 4t T A
AR EE S
1 24 {15 5 M B
oAl o BIfETEHS
TE H IR E B A
el o e E
Fy IR RIS
E B R AT
K

- WEEE - &
S 7R L 2 A A
IR FEFTOTE
Fy L iz 1 A
PN e S S
PRRVEEL » R
ARk A Y
FY 3 feg e A
& B It A
Ez -

ST 1 5T BB
A T
HHaE 48 -

(a) Amendments that are initially adopted for the financial year beginning on 1
January 2021 (continued)

hedge accounting — a company does not have to discontinue its hedge
accounting solely because it makes changes required by the reform, if the
hedge meets other hedge accounting criteria; furthermore, if a company
reasonably expects that alternative benchmark rates will be separately
identifiable within a period of 24 months, it can designate the alternative
benchmark rates as a non-contractually specified risk component even if it
is not separately identifiable at the designation date; and

disclosures —a company is required to disclose information about the nature
and extent of risks arising from IBOR reform to which the company is
exposed, how the company manages those risks, and the company’s
progress in completing the transition to alternative benchmark rates and
how it is managing that transition.

The amendments have been applied retrospectively. Further information is
included in Note 48.
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12 708 P 7 DR e Hil
REERS T ER
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A B WEH
#HE20204E1 B 1
H#a% 2021 4E 6
30 [ 40 IR e i
Ry E S EEAYFE &
TR R E
K - 7t 2021 4
4 H o FEUBERS
EHIEE 16 SEZHE
HE ARt Seasy
TSER A HAL R -
R REHE A
Ik R 2 8 R
2022 46 H 30 HAf
YR B (F7RKEH - A5R
B2 5 A I ET
3tz B % A R T
AL E A&
WIS B T HY
& B B Al 3%
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HERZE -

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

(a) Amendments that are initially adopted for the financial year beginning on 1
January 2021 (continued)

HKFRS 16 (Amendments), “COVID-19-Related Rent Concessions beyond 30
June 2021”. The amendments provide an optional practical expedient allowing
lessees to elect not to evaluate whether qualifying rent concessions are lease
modifications and, instead, account for those rent concessions as if they were
not lease modifications. The practical expedient only applies to rent concessions
occurring as a direct consequence of the COVID-19 pandemic.

The amendments were effective on 1 June 2020 and applicable to COVID-19-
related rent concessions that reduce lease payments from 1 January 2020 to 30
June 2021. In April 2021, further amendment to HKFRS 16 was announced to
extend the availability of the practical expedient so that it applies to rent
concessions for which any reduction in lease payments affects only payments
originally due on or before 30 June 2022, provided the other conditions for
applying the practical expedient are met. The Group has early adopted the
amendments and applied the practical expedient to all qualifying COVID-19-
related rent concessions granted to the Group during the reporting period. The
application of the amendments does not have a material impact on the Group’s
financial statements.
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2.1 GEEERE (8

(b) EFEMERAR ML

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

(b) Amendments and interpretations issued that are not yet mandatorily effective

REAEWMAERR and have not been early adopted by the Group in 2021

2021 FIRETRIZAE

HpS &

BB ZER  INAREE
1857,/ 2R Applicable for  ZHASEIHEH
A d / e financial years Currently
mendments A& beginning relevant to
Interpretations Content on/after the Group
@EHESE 598 (ieaT) KIEETEEHED S 5 YRR GO S Pre s RE 2022 E1B1H 5
Accounting Guideline 5 (Revised) Revised Accounting Guideline 5 Merger Accounting for { january 2022 Yes
Common Control Combinations
BB BRI 2 (B TE EER RS EAIE0E (2018 45 2020 4F) 202 E1H1H &2
Amendments to HKFRSs Annual Improvements to HKFRS Standards 2018-2020 1 January 2022 Yes
FAEETEA 158 (&1E5T]) P E I =li=wday | 2023 1H1H &
HKAS 1 (Amendments) Classification of Current or Non-current Liabilities 1 January 2023 No
FAEEREAE 1 9b &Y aatBrRiEE 2023 1H31H 2
RAEBAES 2 98 (KT
HKAS 1 and HKFRS Practice Disclosure of Accounting Policies 1 January 2023  Yes
Statement 2 (Amendments)

EAGETAENISE 8 97 (K1E5T) GEHETHYESR 202371 H1H 2
HKAS 8 (Amendments) Definition of Accounting Estimates 1 January 2023  Yes
EAGETAEAIS 12 58 (&E83T) BLERTE R 5y e AR Y FE AT & (R AH BRI R AR 20231 H1H 2
HKAS 12 (Amendments) Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities arising from 1 January 2023  Yes

a Single Transaction
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2. FEEETEER (8D

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

2.1 GEEERE (8

(b) EFEMERAR ML

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

(b) Amendments and interpretations issued that are not yet mandatorily effective

MR EHRALEEHR and have not been early adopted by the Group in 2021 (continued)
2021 FREFIRMZE
IR (D
BB ZER  INAREE
ECipg== Applicable for  ZHASEIHEH
e financial years Currently
Amendments/ A& beginning relevant to
Interpretations Content on/after the Group
AR 16 5F (KEET) Y2k ~ et heaell © ERITHE AR ATSROH 20224 1H1H Z
HKAS 16 (Amendments) Property, Plant and Equipment: Proceeds before Intended 1 January 2022  Yes
Use
GaTAERISE 28 57(2011) K EHUARENEGELE L ENEENESCEA FFE =
TRV SRS 10 57
(&f237)
HKAS 28 (2011) and Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and To be determined Yes
HKFRS 10 (Amendments) its Associate or Joint Venture
EEETAERISE 37 9% (&{E5]) EHAEERE — BETaREAE 20221 H1H =2
HKAS 37 (Amendments) Onerous Contracts — Cost of Fulfilling a Contract 1 January 2022  Yes
FAEM SRS 35F (K85 MRS ER 5 [ 20221 H1H 2
HKFRS 3 (Amendments) Reference to the Conceptual Framework 1 January 2022  Yes
RIS 5 57(2020) Eﬁkiﬁ%ﬁﬁzT — [ERAHESAIGEERAENE 2023F1H1H &
7/\1—
HK Int 5 (2020) Presentation of Financial Statements — Classification by 1 January 2023  No

the Borrower of a Term Loan that Contains a
Repayment on Demand Clause
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BRI (8D
2. FEEETEER (8D

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

2.1 GEEERE (8

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

(b) E.45 i 5 ¥ >R 58 i e (b) Amendments and interpretations issued that are not yet mandatorily effective
AR RBHAEE and have not been early adopted by the Group in 2021 (continued)
Y 2021 FERFTHRAZ

BRI hRE (@)

i 8 A A
B I I
AT -

o GRHETIE 59k (K
B3] &fERT = E
5155 5 SfSLEIFERA
G HF G R -
EACEI Ryt S
fH515% 5 Bk
EOERZ RN )6 S
PEARAE E I T #iE
L5 7 i FRTSRDUT
SRR R © $5
5125 19 Buin T H
Fe[EIFZE R AE A IR
BEDK - f55 R Bl
o B S [ A OF
BEAYIRERIME RS
EBHIG R
HE PEviTsE 2%
B DS EIRITH
o B Al -
&R EETH AL
MBS HRFLHER

=
W

Further information about those HKFRSs that are expected to be applicable to the
Group is as follows:

Accounting Guideline 5 (Revised), “Revised Accounting Guideline 5 Merger
Accounting for Common Control Combinations” (“AG 5”). The amendments revise
to reflect a clearer rationale for why the transaction described in paragraph 5 of AG
5 is not a business combination and why, in practice, a principle similar to that for
a reverse acquisition is applied to those transactions is provided. New disclosure
requirements for common control combinations are added to paragraph 19 of AG
5. The accounting for change in non-controlling interests as a result of common
control combination is clarified in the example in AG 5. The terminologies and
references in AG 5 are updated to align with existing HKFRSs. The application of
the amendments will not have a material impact on the Group’s financial
statements.
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BRI (8D
2. FEEETEER (8D

2.1 GEEERE (8

(b) 545 7 15 o R 5 1R 1
ERRRBRAEHE
Y 2021 FERFTHRAZ
TR (&)

o EAEEHEALE 158
(BT EatEsR
HUHEEE ) A IERTER
SR EE R G
RER  MIELEEE
SHBUR - BETIRER
THEREERGEE
EREISEIN A=)
ol G ERE S A
BHEE Y - HAh - 3%
TRIEETEHE T 43k
BB ERNES
BOREE -8 Al
SEBERIEE - MEMRIR
HAEHEEAGT
BURER -

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

(b) Amendments and interpretations issued that are not yet mandatorily effective
and have not been early adopted by the Group in 2021 (continued)

* HKAS 1 (Amendments), “Disclosure of Accounting Policies”. The amendment aims
to require entities to disclose their material rather than their significant accounting
policies. The amendments define what is ‘material accounting policy information’
and explain how to identify when accounting policy information is material. They
further clarify that immaterial accounting policy information does not need to be
disclosed. If it is disclosed, it should not obscure material accounting information.
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MAERRMEE (&)  Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

2. FESeESE (&) 2. Significant accounting policies (continued)
2.1 4EEUEE (&) 2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)
(b) E.45 i 5 ¥ >R 58 i e (b) Amendments and interpretations issued that are not yet mandatorily effective

AR RBHAEE and have not been early adopted by the Group in 2021 (continued)

7 2021 FEIRFTERANZ

eIk (&)
By SZF5IEREET > & To support this amendment, the HKICPA also amended HKFRS Practice
: Wasny i
%Eﬁ}iﬁ%ﬁ?ﬁ’ﬁﬁﬂai‘% Statement 2 “Making Materiality Judgements” to provide guidance on how to apply
N 2598 T{RIME . . o o
FUHIE | T T the concept of materiality to accounting policy disclosures. The application of the
(BT » E,;D@V’%EFH amendments will not have a material impact on the Group’s financial statements.
STBURHEFEY E A
iR AES - FER
B CEE RS i)
HHERLHEREY
.

72



@ ¥ 8 4L £ m ) maa

BANK OF CHINA (HONG KONG) LIMITED

MAERRMEE (&)  Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

2. FEEESE (&) 2. Significant accounting policies (continued)
2.1 EEUEE (8]) 2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)
(b) E.45 i 5 ¥ >R 58 i e (b) Amendments and interpretations issued that are not yet mandatorily effective

ERBREAHAEE and have not been early adopted by the Group in 2021 (continued)

7 2021 FEERTERGTZ

EETRER (&)

o EBEGETHEHIE 8 + HKAS 8 (Amendments), “Definition of Accounting Estimates”. The amendment
i ﬁ?éﬂ%ﬂ) F&st clarifies how companies should distinguish changes in accounting policies from
fEETHIES |- % & changes in accounting estimates. The distinction is important, because changes in
STEE T A& sy

accounting estimates are applied prospectively to future transactions and other
future events, but changes in accounting policies are generally applied
retrospectively to past transactions and other past events as well as the current

FHERBEA G
BHERHETE - Ehy
RBET - TR

SR (L AT period. The application of the amendments will not have a material impact on the
H%’fiiﬁﬁé%%iﬁaﬁ Group’s financial statements.
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MAERRMEE (&)  Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

2. FEEESE (&) 2. Significant accounting policies (continued)
2.1 EEUEE (8]) 2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)
(b) E.45 i 5 ¥ >R 58 i e (b) Amendments and interpretations issued that are not yet mandatorily effective

ERBREAHAEE and have not been early adopted by the Group in 2021 (continued)

7 2021 FEIRFTERANZ

eIk (&)

o EEGEHEAIE 12 + HKAS 12 (Amendments), “Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities arising from
g% (4RME5T) TElEe a Single Transaction”. The amendments require companies to recognise deferred
Iﬁxiéﬁzé’\jﬁé tax on transactions that, on initial recognition, give rise to equal amounts of taxable
ﬂ]\%\{i*gjia El\jﬁi\% and deductible temporary differences. They will typically apply to transactions such
ﬁ% ’ E‘ﬂZEE%?Zi as leases of lessees and decommissioning obligations and will require the
F AL IR TERI tion of additional def - -
e o AR recognition of additional deferred tax assets and liabilities. The application of the
T 1A W 5 amendments will not have a material impact on the Group’s financial statements.
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MAERRMEE (&)  Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
2. FEEHBOR (8

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

2.1 GEEERE (8

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

(b) E.45 i 5 ¥ >R 58 i e (b) Amendments and interpretations issued that are not yet mandatorily effective
AR RBHAEE and have not been early adopted by the Group in 2021 (continued)
Y 2021 FERFTHRAZ
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HKAS 16 (Amendments), “Property, Plant and Equipment: Proceeds before
Intended Use”. The amendments prohibit an entity from deducting from the cost of
an item of property, plant and equipment any proceeds received from selling items
produced while the entity is preparing the asset for its intended use. It also clarifies
that an entity is ‘testing whether the asset is functioning properly’ when it assesses
the technical and physical performance of the asset. The financial performance of
the asset is not relevant to this assessment. Entities must disclose separately the
amounts of proceeds and costs relating to items produced that are not an output of
the entity’s ordinary activities. The related sales proceeds together with the costs
of providing these items as determined by HKAS 2, should be included in profit or
loss. The amendments are applied retrospectively, but only to items of property,
plant and equipment made available for use on or after the beginning of the earliest
period presented in the financial statements in which the entity first applies the
amendments. The application of the amendments will not have a material impact
on the Group’s financial statements.
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MAERRMEE (&)  Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

2. TEeEEEE (8) 2. Significant accounting policies (continued)
2.1 4EEUEE (&) 2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)
(b) E.45 i 5 ¥ >R 58 i e (b) Amendments and interpretations issued that are not yet mandatorily effective
ERREEHAEH and have not been early adopted by the Group in 2021 (continued)
7 2021 FEERTERGTZ
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HKAS 28 (2011) and HKFRS 10 (Amendments), “Sale or Contribution of Assets
between an Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture”. The amendments
address an acknowledged inconsistency between the requirements in HKAS 28
(2011) and those in HKFRS 10, in dealing with the sale or contribution of assets
between an investor and its associate or joint venture. The main consequence
of the amendments is that a full gain or loss is recognised when a transaction
involves a business (whether it is housed in a subsidiary or not). If the assets do
not meet the definition of a business, the gain or loss is recognised by the
investor only to the extent of the other investor’s interests in the associate or
joint venture. The amendments are to be applied prospectively and early
application is permitted. The application of the amendments will not have a
material impact on the Group’s financial statements.
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MAERRMEE (&)  Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
2. FEEHBOR (8

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

2.1 GEEERE (8

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

(b) E.45 i 5 ¥ >R 58 i e (b) Amendments and interpretations issued that are not yet mandatorily effective
AR RBHAEE and have not been early adopted by the Group in 2021 (continued)
Y 2021 FERFTHRAZ

BRI hRE (@)

ot (&EET) ThS
BEF-JETER
HIRA o % IBRTE

o HAEEEHEAISE 37 * HKAS 37 (Amendments), “Onerous Contracts — Cost of Fulfilling a Contract”. The

amendments clarify that for the purpose of assessing whether a contract is onerous,
the cost of fulfilling the contract includes both the incremental costs of fulfilling that
contract and an allocation of other costs that relate directly to fulfilling contracts.

TS E Before recognising a separate provision for an onerous contract, the entity
Bl idnd ait=y recognises any impairment loss that has occurred on assets used in fulfilling the
[E8% - BT & ERY contract. The amendments are applied to contracts for which exist at the date when
WAERFEETE the amendments are first applied, with the cumulative effect of applying the
[E] 3 & gl A kg EL amendments to be recognised as an opening balance adjustment to retained
T & [E AT E B2 earnings or other component of equity, as appropriate. The comparatives are not
A5 5 - restated. The application of the amendments will not have a material impact on the
FREEE E Y RS Group’s financial statements.
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MAERRMEE (&)  Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

2. TEeEEEE (8) 2. Significant accounting policies (continued)
2.1 4EEUEE (&) 2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)
(b) E.45 i 5 ¥ >R 58 i e (b) Amendments and interpretations issued that are not yet mandatorily effective
ERREEHAEH and have not been early adopted by the Group in 2021 (continued)
7 2021 FEERTERGTZ
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HKFRS 3 (Amendments), “Reference to the Conceptual Framework”. The
amendments update a reference in HKFRS 3 to the Conceptual Framework for
Financial Reporting issued in 2018. The amendments also add to HKFRS 3 an
exception to its requirement for an entity to refer to the Conceptual Framework to
determine what constitutes an asset or a liability, that for some types of liabilities
and contingent liabilities, an entity applying HKFRS 3 should instead refer to
HKAS 37. The exception has been added to avoid an unintended consequence of
updating the reference to the Conceptual Framework. The amendments also
confirm that contingent assets should not be recognised at the acquisition date.
The amendments are applied prospectively. Earlier application is permitted if at
the same time or earlier an entity also applies all the amendments made by
Amendments to References to the Conceptual Framework in HKFRS Standards,
issued in June 2018. The application of the amendments will not have a material
impact on the Group’s financial statements.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

(c) Improvements to HKFRSs

“Improvements to HKFRSs” contains a number of amendments to HKFRSs which the
HKICPA considers not urgent but necessary. It comprises amendments that result in
accounting changes for presentation, recognition or measurement purpose as well as
terminology or editorial amendments related to a variety of individual HKFRSs. These
improvements will not have a material impact on the Group’s financial statements.

(d) Comparative figures
Certain comparative figures in the notes have been adjusted to conform with

presentation in the current year, including the classification in Note 21 financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss and Note 24 investment in securities.
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MAERRMEE (&)  Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

2. FESeESE (&) 2. Significant accounting policies (continued)
2.2 GREMBEER 2.2 Consolidation
é&%é‘ﬁﬁ‘%iﬁ?@@@ﬁiﬁﬁ The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements of the Bank and all
R P A H I o F B R of its subsidiaries for the year ended 31 December 2021.
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(1) Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are entities (including structured entities), directly or indirectly, controlled
by the Group. Control is achieved when the Group is exposed, or has rights, to variable
returns from its involvement with the investee and has the ability to affect those returns
through its power over the investee (i.e. existing rights that give the Group the current
ability to direct the relevant activities of the investee). When the Group has, directly or
indirectly, less than a majority of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the Group
considers all relevant facts and circumstances in assessing whether it has power over
an investee, including: (a) the contractual arrangement with the other vote holders of
the investee; (b) rights arising from other contractual or non-contractual arrangements;
and (c) the Group’s voting rights and potential voting rights. Subsidiaries are fully
consolidated from the date on which control is transferred to the Group. They are de-
consolidated from the date that control ceases.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

2.2 Consolidation (continued)

(1) Subsidiaries (continued)

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises (i) the assets (including
goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary, (ii) the carrying amount of any non-
controlling interests; and recognises (i) the fair value of the consideration received,
(ii) the fair value of any investment in that former subsidiary retained; reclassifies
the amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive income to the income
statement or retained earnings, as appropriate, on the same basis as directly
disposed of the related assets or liabilities; recognises any resulting differences as
gain or loss in the income statement.

If the Group is committed by the Board to a sale plan involving loss of control of a
subsidiary (a disposal group) that is unlikely to be withdrawn or changed
significantly, the Group shall classify all the assets and liabilities of that subsidiary
as held for sale only when the following criteria are met on or before the end of the
reporting period: (i) the carrying amount will be recovered principally through a sale
transaction rather than through continuing use; (ii) the subsidiary is available for
immediate sale in its present condition subject only to terms that are usual and
customary for the sale of its kind and its sale must be highly probable, including a
high probability of shareholders’ approval, if needed; (iii) an active programme to
locate a buyer at a reasonable price has been initiated and to complete the sale
within one year, regardless of whether the Group will or will not retain a non-
controlling interest after the sale. Disposal group (other than investment properties
and financial instruments) is initially recognised and subsequently remeasured at
the lower of its carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell. Properties, plant
and equipment classified as held for sale are not depreciated.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

2.2 Consolidation (continued)

(1) Subsidiaries (continued)

(i) Business combinations not under common control

Acquisitions of businesses not under common control are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred in a business combination is
the fair values at the acquisition date of the assets transferred, the liabilities
incurred (including contingent consideration arrangement) and the equity
interests issued by the Group in exchange for control of the acquiree. Acquisition-
related costs are expensed in the income statement as incurred.

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the consideration transferred, the
amount of any non-controlling interests in the acquiree, and the fair value of the
Group’s previously held equity interest in the acquiree (if any) over the net of the
acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities
assumed. If after assessment, the fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets
exceeds the sum of the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling
interests in the acquiree and the fair value of the Group’s previously held interest in
the acquiree (if any), the excess is recognised immediately in the income statement
as a gain on bargain. Subsequently, goodwill is subject to impairment testing at least
annually.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

2.2 Consolidation (continued)

(1) Subsidiaries (continued)

(i) Business combinations not under common control (continued)

Where the consideration transferred by the Group in a business combination
includes assets or liabilities resulting from a contingent consideration arrangement,
the contingent consideration is measured at fair value at the acquisition date and
considered as part of the consideration transferred in a business combination.
Changes in the fair value of the contingent consideration that qualify as
measurement period adjustments are adjusted retrospectively, with the
corresponding adjustments being made against goodwill or gain on bargain
purchase. Measurement period adjustments are adjustments that arise from
additional information obtained during the measurement period about facts and
circumstances that existed as of the acquisition date. The measurement period
does not exceed one year from the acquisition date.

On an acquisition-by-acquisition basis, the Group recognises any non-controlling
interests in the acquiree either at fair value or at the non-controlling interests’
proportionate share of the fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

2.2 Consolidation (continued)

(1) Subsidiaries (continued)

(ii) Business combinations under common control

For a combination with a company under common control, the merger accounting
method will be applied. The principle of merger accounting is a way to combine
companies under common control as though the business of the acquiree had
always been carried out by the acquirer. The Group’s consolidated financial
statements represent the consolidated results, consolidated cash flows and
consolidated financial position of the Group as if any such combination had
occurred from the date when the Bank and the acquiree first came under common
control (i.e. no fair value adjustment on the date of combination is required). The
difference between the consideration and carrying amount at the time of
combination is recognised in equity. The effects of all transactions between the
Group and the acquiree, whether occurring before or after the combination, are
eliminated in preparing the consolidated financial statements of the Group.
Comparative amounts are presented as if the acquiree had been combined at the
beginning of the previous reporting period. The transaction costs for the
combination will be expensed in the income statement.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

2.2 Consolidation (continued)

(1) Subsidiaries (continued)

Inter-company transactions, balances and unrealised gains on transactions between
group companies are eliminated; unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the
transaction provides evidence of impairment of the assets transferred. Where
necessary, accounting policies of subsidiaries have been changed to ensure
consistency with the policies adopted by the Group.

In the Bank’s balance sheet, the investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost less
allowance for impairment losses. The results of subsidiaries are accounted for by the
Bank on the basis of dividends received and receivable. Dividend income from
subsidiaries is recognised in the income statement when the right to receive payment
is established.

(2) Changes in ownership interests

The Group treats transactions with non-controlling interests without change of
control as transactions with equity owners of the Group. For purchases from non-
controlling interests of equity interest, the difference between any consideration paid
and the relevant share acquired of the carrying value of net assets of the subsidiary
is recognised in equity. Gains or losses on disposals to non-controlling interests are
also recognised in equity.
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2. TEeEEEE (8) 2. Significant accounting policies (continued)
2.2 HEMEBEE (8) 2.2 Consolidation (continued)
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(2) Changes in ownership interests (continued)

When the Group ceases to have control, any retained interest in the entity is re-
measured to its fair value, with the change in carrying amount recognised in the
income statement. The fair value is the initial carrying amount for the purposes of
subsequent accounting for the retained interest as an associate, joint venture or
financial asset. In addition, any amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income in respect of that entity are accounted for as if the Group
had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities. Amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income are reclassified to the income statement
or retained earnings, as appropriate.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

2.2 Consolidation (continued)

(3) Associates and joint ventures

An associate is the entity over which the Group has significant influence but not
control or joint control, generally accompanying a shareholding of between 20% and
50% of the voting rights.

A joint venture is a type of joint arrangement whereby the parties that have joint
control of the arrangement have rights to the net assets of the joint venture. Joint
control is the contractually agreed sharing of control of an arrangement, which exists
only when decisions about the relevant activities require unanimous consent of the
parties sharing control.

Investments in associates and joint ventures are accounted for using the equity
method of accounting and are initially recognised at cost, unless it is classified as held
for sale (or included in a disposal group that is classified as held for sale). The Group’s
investments in associates and joint ventures include goodwill, net of accumulated
impairment loss and any related accumulated foreign currency translation difference.
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2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

2.2 Consolidation (continued)

(3) Associates and joint ventures (continued)

The Group’s share of the post-acquisition profits or losses of associates or joint
ventures is recognised in the income statement, and its share of post-acquisition
movements in reserves is recognised in reserves. The accumulated post-acquisition
movements are adjusted against the cost of the investment. When the Group’s share
of losses in an associate or a joint venture equals or exceeds its interest in the
associate or joint venture, the Group does not recognise further losses unless the
Group has incurred obligations or made payments on behalf of the associates or joint
ventures.

Dividends received or receivable from associates and joint ventures are recognised
as a reduction in the carrying amount of the investment.

Unrealised gains on transactions between the Group and its associates or joint
ventures are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s interest in the associates or joint
ventures. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the transaction provides
evidence of impairment of the asset transferred.

If the ownership interest in an associate or a joint venture is reduced but significant
influence is retained, only a proportionate share of the amounts previously recognised
in other comprehensive income are reclassified to the income statement or retained
earnings, where appropriate.

2.3 Segmental reporting

The operating result of segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal
reporting provided to the Management Committee, which is the chief operating decision
maker of the Group, that allocates resources and assesses the performance of operating
segments. Income and expenses directly associated with each segment are included in
determining operating segment performance.
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Items included in the financial statements of each of the Group’s entities are measured
using the currency of the primary economic environment in which the entity operates (the
“functional currency”). The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollars, which is the Bank’s functional and presentation currency.

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the
exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions or exchange rates at the end of
the reporting period for items that are re-measured. Foreign exchange gains and losses
resulting from the settlement of foreign currency transactions using the exchange rates
prevailing at the dates of the transactions and monetary assets and liabilities denominated
in foreign currencies translated at the exchange rate at the end of the reporting period are
recognised directly in the income statement, except when deferred in other
comprehensive income as qualifying cash flow hedges or qualifying net investment
hedges.

Translation differences on monetary securities held at fair value through profit or loss are
reported as part of the fair value gain or loss. Changes in the fair value of monetary
securities denominated in foreign currency classified as fair value through other
comprehensive income are analysed between translation differences resulting from
changes in the amortised cost of the securities and other changes in the carrying amount
of the securities. Translation differences related to changes in the amortised cost are
recognised in the income statement, and other changes in the carrying amount are
recognised in other comprehensive income.
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2.4 JNEIRE (8D

2.4 Foreign currency translation (continued)
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Translation differences on non-monetary items, such as equities held at fair value through
profit or loss, are reported as part of the fair value gain or loss. Translation differences on
non-monetary financial assets such as equities classified as fair value through other
comprehensive income are included in other comprehensive income.

The results and financial position of all the group entities that have a functional currency
different from Hong Kong dollars are translated into Hong Kong dollars as follows:

« assets and liabilities are translated at the closing rate at the end of the reporting period;

« income and expenses are translated at average exchange rates; and

« all resulting exchange differences are recognised in the currency translation reserve in
equity.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising from the translation of the net investment
in foreign entities, borrowings and other currency instruments designated as hedges of
such investments are taken to other comprehensive income and are accumulated
separately in the translation reserve. When a foreign entity is disposed, such exchange
differences are reclassified from equity to the income statement, as part of the gain or loss
on sale.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

2.5 Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on the date the derivative contract is
entered into and are subsequently re-measured at fair value. Fair values are obtained
from quoted market prices in active markets, including recent market transactions, and
through the use of valuation techniques, including discounted cash flow models and
option pricing models, as appropriate. All derivatives are carried as assets when fair value
is positive and as liabilities when fair value is negative.

Certain derivatives embedded in financial liabilities are treated as separate derivatives
when their economic characteristics and risks are not closely related to those of the host
contract and the host contract is not carried at fair value through profit or loss. These
embedded derivatives are measured at fair value with changes in fair value recognised
in the income statement.

Derivatives are categorised as held for trading and changes in their fair value are
recognised immediately in the income statement unless they are designated as hedges
and are effective hedging instruments, then they are subject to measurement under the
hedge accounting requirements.
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2.5 Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting (continued)
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For derivative instruments being designated as hedging instrument in an effective hedge,
the method of recognising the resulting fair value gain or loss depends on the nature of the
item being hedged. The Group designates certain derivatives as either:

(a) hedges of the fair value of recognised assets or liabilities or firm commitments (fair
value hedge); or

(b) hedges of a particular risk associated with a highly probable future cash flow
attributable to a recognised asset or liability, or a highly probable forecast transaction
(cash flow hedge) ; or

(c) hedges of a net investment in a foreign operation (net investment hedges).

The Group documents at inception the relationship between hedging instruments and
hedged items, as well as its risk management objective and strategy for undertaking various
hedge transactions. The Group also documents its assessment, both at the hedge inception
and on an ongoing basis, of the economic relationship, credit risks, the hedge ratio and an
evaluation of the effectiveness of the hedging instruments in offsetting changes in fair
values or cash flows of hedged items. These criteria should be met before a hedge can be
qualified to be accounted for under hedge accounting. Hedge accounting may become
ineffective if the hedging instrument and the hedged item lose economic relationship, or a
significant change of the counterparties’ credit risks that dominates the fair value change of
the hedging instruments or the hedged items.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

2.5 Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting (continued)

(a) Fair value hedge

Changes in the fair value of derivatives that are designated and qualified as effective
fair value hedges are recognised in the income statement, together with any changes
in the fair value of the hedged asset or liability that are attributable to the hedged risk.

When fair value hedge accounting is applied to financial instruments carried at
amortised costs, the carrying values of the hedged items are adjusted for changes in
fair value that are attributable to the risk being hedged with the derivative instruments
rather than carried at amortised cost, such carrying value adjustment is recognised in
the income statement together with the changes in fair value of the hedging
derivatives.

If the hedge relationship no longer meets the criteria for hedge accounting or is
terminated for reasons other than derecognition, e.g. due to repayment of the hedged
item, the unamortised carrying value adjustment (the difference between the carrying
value of the hedged item at the time of termination and the value at which it would
have been carried had the hedge never existed) to the hedged item is amortised to
the income statement over the remaining life of the hedged item by the effective
interest method. If the hedged item is derecognised, the unamortised carrying value
adjustment is recognised immediately in the income statement.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

2.5 Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting (continued)

(a) Fair value hedge (continued)

For fair value hedge relationships where the hedged items are debt instruments
carried at FVOCI, changes in fair value are recorded in the income statement whilst
hedge accounting is in place. When the hedge relationship no longer meets the
criteria for hedge accounting or is terminated for reasons other than derecognition,
the cumulative effective hedged portion of fair value change recognised in the
income statements are amortised by the effective interest method back to the equity.
If the hedged item is derecognised, the unamortised cumulative effective hedged
portion of fair value change recognised in the income statement are reclassified to
equity immediately.

(b) Cash flow hedge

The effective portion of changes in the fair value of derivatives that are designated
and qualified as cash flow hedges are recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated in equity. The gain or loss relating to the ineffective portion is
recognised immediately in the income statement. Amounts accumulated in equity
are reclassified to the income statement in the periods when the hedged item affects
profit or loss.

94



@ ¥ 84 tsmn)aman

BANK OF CHINA (HONG KONG) LIMITED

BRI (8D
2. FEEETEER (8D

2.5 fTESEMT B REHEst

(&

(b) BEHEHH (FD

TR EIH
e SEEAH
(SRS RLil -y
Ko L2 AL
B BB T U B HR AT
TREF LA > HE
TR B i et
> AR R
A - ETAMSR G A
e AR Rt
PR ER AU 22 SRS 1R
GEI R E TR
Wzs A o

(c) BIREHHF

HBIMNEE A
LR R A R
BUTEMM - $PT
AR ER I
IS - G
R IR R
REL N BT S s
SHI R BRI R
AR TSR, - 2
PP A 2 TR 2t
E e
HEFIE I BT
SRR —H oy > AL
BB MEFR
B HERERA -

2.6 SRl TR 7K

EAFAEEE B AT
M AT AN ZTH
HAE TR - HABLUS
HBHER  SREES
PR [FIRE A E s > Al
B S R B ] TR
B 0 WS EE AR
TR -

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

2.5 Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting (continued)

(b) Cash flow hedge (continued)

When a hedging instrument expires or is sold, or when a hedge no longer meets the
criteria for hedge accounting, any accumulated gain or loss existing in equity at that
time remains in equity and is recognised in the income statement when the forecast
transaction is ultimately recognised in the income statement. When a forecast
transaction is no longer expected to occur, the accumulated gain or loss that was
reported in equity is immediately reclassified to the income statement.

(c) Net investment hedge

Hedges of net investments in foreign operations are accounted for in a similar way
to cash flow hedges. A gain or loss on the effective portion of the hedging instrument
is recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity; a gain or
loss on the ineffective portion is recognised immediately in the income statement.
Accumulated gains and losses previously recognised in other comprehensive
income are reclassified to the income statement upon disposal of the foreign
operation as part of the gain or loss on disposal.

2.6 Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the
balance sheet when there is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts
and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or realise the asset and settle the
liability simultaneously.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

2.7 Income and expense

(1) Interest income and expense

Interest income and expense are recognised in the income statement for all financial
assets carried at amortised cost and fair value through other comprehensive income,
and financial liabilities using the effective interest method. Similar interest income and
expense arising from non-derivative financial assets and liabilities carried at fair value
through profit or loss are determined using similar method, but excluding their
transaction costs.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a
financial asset or a financial liability and of allocating the interest income or interest
expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash payments or receipts through the expected life of the
financial instrument or, when appropriate, a shorter period to the net carrying amount
of the financial asset or financial liability. When calculating the effective interest rate,
the Group estimates future cash flows considering all contractual terms of the
financial instrument (e.g. prepayment options or incentives relating to residential
mortgage loans) but does not consider future credit losses. The calculation includes
fees, premiums or discounts and basis points paid or received between parties to the
contract, and directly attributable origination fees and costs which represent an
integral part of the effective yield.

For all hedge transactions where interest rate is the hedged risk, interest income or
interest expense from hedged instruments such as fixed rate debt securities or fixed
rate subordinated notes are disclosed on a net basis together with net interest
income/expense arising from the hedging instrument such as interest rate swap.
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(2) Non-interest income and expense
Income from service is recognised when the Group fulfils its performance obligation,
either over time or at a point in time on a basis when a customer obtains control of
the service.

Fee income from services are recognised over time at a fixed or variable price on a
systematic basis over the life of the agreement when the contract requires services
to be provided over time such as account service and credit card fees, or recognised
at a point in time under transaction-based arrangements when service has been fully
provided to the customer such as broking services and loan syndication arrangement.

Dividend income from financial asset is recognised when the right to receive payment
is established.

Non-interest expenses are charged to profit or loss during the reporting period in which
they are incurred.

2.8 Financial assets

The Group classifies its financial assets into one of the following measurement categories
at initial recognition as subsequently measured at: fair value through profit or loss
(“FVPL”), amortised cost and fair value through other comprehensive income (“FVOCI”).
The classification depends on the entity’s business model for managing its financial
instruments and the contractual cash flow characteristics of the instruments, or the
election of fair value option. All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value.
Except for financial assets carried at FVPL, all transaction costs of financial assets are
included in their initial carrying amounts.
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2.8 Financial assets (continued)
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This category has two sub-categories: financial assets designated at fair value
through profit or loss at inception, or financial assets mandatorily required to be
measured at fair value through profit or loss, including those held for trading.

A financial asset which has been acquired or incurred principally for the purpose of
selling in the short term or is part of a portfolio of identified financial instruments that
are managed together and for which there is evidence of a recent actual pattern of
short-term profit-taking is classified as held for trading. Derivatives are also classified
as held for trading unless they are designated as effective hedging instruments.

Afinancial asset, other than those held for trading or mandatorily measured at fair value,
will be designated as a financial asset at FVPL, if it eliminates or significantly reduces
a measurement or recognition inconsistency (sometimes referred to as “an accounting
mismatch”) that would otherwise arise from measuring the financial assets or
recognising the gains and losses on them on different bases, and is so designated by
the Management.

These assets are recognised initially at fair value, with transaction costs taken directly
to the income statement, and are subsequently re-measured at fair value.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

2.8 Financial assets (continued)

(1) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (continued)

Gains and losses from changes in the fair value of such assets (excluding the interest
component) are reported in net trading gain/loss or net gain/loss on other financial
instruments designated at FVPL. The interest component is reported as part of the
interest income. Dividends on equity instruments of this category are also recognised
in net trading gain/loss or net gain/loss on financial instruments at FVPL when the
Group’s right to receive payment is established.

(2) Financial assets at amortised cost

Financial assets are classified as subsequently measured at amortised cost if both of
the following conditions are met: (i) the financial assets are held within a business
model with the objective to hold financial assets in order to collect contractual cash
flows (“hold-to-collect” business model), and (ii) the contractual terms of the financial
asset give rise to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the
principal amount outstanding on specified dates. They are initially recognised at fair
value plus any directly attributable transaction costs and are subsequently measured
at amortised cost using the effective interest method less allowances for impairment
losses. Interest income which includes the amortisation of premium or discount is
calculated using the effective interest method and is recognised in the income
statement. Any gains or losses are recognised in profit or loss when the asset is
derecognised, modified or impaired.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

2.8 Financial assets (continued)

(3) Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income

Debt instruments are classified as subsequently measured at FVOCI if both of the
following conditions are met: (i) the financial assets are held within a business model
with the objective of both holding to collect contractual cash flows and selling, and (ii)
the contractual terms of the financial assets give rise to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding on specified
dates.

Financial assets at FVOCI are initially recognised at fair value plus any directly
attributable transaction costs, and are subsequently measured at fair value.
Unrealised gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of the financial assets
are recognised directly in other comprehensive income, until the financial asset is
derecognised or impaired at which time the accumulated gain or loss previously
recognised in equity should be transferred to the income statement. However, interest
income which includes the amortisation of premium or discount is calculated using the
effective interest method and is recognised in the income statement.

100



@ ¥ 84 tsmn)aman

BANK OF CHINA (HONG KONG) LIMITED

MAERRMEE (&)  Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

2. FEEESE (&) 2. Significant accounting policies (continued)
2.8 &REE (B) 2.8 Financial assets (continued)

(3) AN ES (LT AR (3) Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income (continued)
& HW R SRS
E (8
AR E > T2 For equity investments, an irrevocable election can be made at initial recognition to
FERHAETEC IR TR recognise unrealised and realised fair value gains or losses in other comprehensive
FIREHIEERE - e income without subsequent reclassification of fair value gains or losses to the income
HAREBNTCERN

4= statement even upon disposal. Dividends on equity instruments classified as FVOCI
AR ERE 7=t s
Eftr g o Bl
(EE A= SR IA T
RS B assessment.
INHEE EEE AFA
ERCIle Pt
TH » HEEEAE
SR 2 2 R
TERF R HA A=A

are recognised in other operating income when the Group’s right to receive payment
is established. Equity instruments designated at FVOCI are not subject to impairment

fEET AF A 2

HIRERERE B TR AT T

TR -

DA EE b AR The treatment of translation differences on FVOCI securities is dealt with in Note 2.4.

4TINS & BRI

IR AR T A

CEFFIRkTEE 2.4 -

2.9 SREf 2.9 Financial liabilities

REEZ LT ER 58S The Group classifies its financial liabilities under the following classes: trading liabilities,
FhEfE R GHMEE RE financial liabilities designated at fair value through profit or loss, deposits, debt securities
B LU ESE BT ASB and certificates of deposit in issue and other liabilities. All financial liabilities are classified
ZEEE T BT at inception and recognised initially at fair value, and in the case of financial liability not
(ER S 25 Rk Es R HoAt at fair value through profit or loss, plus or minus transaction costs.

A - FrAEfE N
Z 8% LR SE HO AN B
DPEETGES - IF
DIAPEE( L ARG
Szt B 5 U RS PIRR A 2 ok
& o

101



@ ¥ 8 4L £ m ) maa

BANK OF CHINA (HONG KONG) LIMITED
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2. TEeEEEE (8) 2. Significant accounting policies (continued)
29 &pag (&) 2.9 Financial liabilities (continued)
(1) XBHaR (1) Trading liabilities

SAEMAIHAER 4 A financial liability is classified as held for trading if it is incurred principally for the
BB B R TE purpose of repurchasing in the short term. It is measured at fair value and any gains
RGH®RZ BlE- 25 and losses from changes in fair value are recognised in the income statement, with
PEEEDLA T ESE interest component being reported as part of the interest expenses.
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(2) AEBIUAFERL (2) Financial liabilities designated at fair value through profit or loss
sF AR SRIEH
& Bk BB AL G A financial liability can be designated at fair value through profit or loss if it is so
BB B DU E (L designated at inception. A financial liability is so designated if it meets one of the
STAESZ ERlEfE - following criteria:

e LT e 2 — 75
el 2 A — R

B SE Rt

o A DLA R BH BE R « eliminates or significantly reduces a measurement or recognition inconsistency
D IRIFE R ] e S (sometimes referred to as “an accounting mismatch”) that would otherwise arise from
EERHMEMEHE measuring the financial liabilities or recognising the gains and losses on them on
& - SRR H different bases; or
B - MR
—H 2 E R

B (— it B
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R (8) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
2. TEeEEEE (8) 2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

29 &paf (&) 2.9 Financial liabilities (continued)

(2) REBMUNEEEL (2) Financial liabilities designated at fair value through profit or loss (continued)
AR SREAE
(&)

o JEFR—MHERE « applies to a group of financial assets, financial liabilities or both that is managed and
JE ~ R fE - B0 its performance is evaluated on a fair value basis, in accordance with a documented
HRANMESG  H risk management or investment strategy, and information about the Group is
BEHEKBELE provided internally on that basis to the key management; or
T e V7 A e e B
B & ORI AR
fE» ARBEEA
S B Ry A B AR
& 0 AR
AR T ENE
i FEE G
AR 5 5

o BAfS—(H B % . relates to financial liabilities containing one or more embedded derivatives that
R TSR T significantly modify the cash flows resulting from those financial liabilities.
H Ay &/t &
BA > His ki
TR T HH
FeREANHEE
MEFERTE -

W TE Ry LA PEEE Financial liabilities designated at fair value through profit or loss are measured at fair
Lat AR 2 BRE value and any gains and losses from changes in fair value are recognised in the
HRAAPHET IR A income statement, except for fair value changes arising from own credit risks are
“PE S A 1 E 4 2 W recognised as other comprehensive income and subsequently reclassified to the
i RS TR SR Y s retained earnings upon derecognition, unless such would create or enlarge an
‘AR TRESER accounting mismatch in profit or loss, then all gains and losses from changes in fair
g 72 R 1Y 2 VB 52 value are recognised in the income statement.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

2.9 Financial liabilities (continued)

(3) Deposits, debt securities and certificates of deposit in issue and other liabilities

Deposits, debt securities and certificates of deposit in issue and other liabilities, other
than those classified as trading liabilities or designated at fair value through profit or
loss are carried at amortised cost. Any difference (if available) between proceeds net
of transaction costs and the redemption value is recognised in the income statement
over the period using the effective interest method.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

2.10 Financial guarantee contracts and undrawn loan commitments

Financial guarantee contracts are contracts that require the issuer to make specified
payments to reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because a specified debtor fails to
make payments when due, in accordance with the terms of a contract between the
holder and the debtor.

Financial guarantee contracts are initially recognised as financial liabilities at fair value
on the date the guarantees were given. Subsequent to initial recognition, the Group’s
liabilities under such guarantees are measured at the higher of (i) an ECL provision as
set out in Note 2.14 and (ii) the amount initially recognised less, where appropriate,
accumulated amortisation recognised over the life of the guarantee on a straight-line
basis. Any changes in the liability relating to financial guarantee contracts are taken to
the income statement.

Undrawn loan commitments are commitments under which, over the duration of the
commitment, the Group is required to provide a loan with pre-specified terms to the
customer. These contracts are in the scope of the ECL requirements as set out in Note
2.14.

The ECL provision for financial guarantees and loan commitments are reported under
“Other accounts and provisions” in the financial statements.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

2.11 Recognition, derecognition and modification of financial instruments

Purchases and sales of financial assets subsequently measured at FVPL, securities
measured at FVOCI and amortised costs are recognised on the trade date, the date on
which the Group purchases or sells the assets. Loans and advances and other financial
assets are recognised when cash is advanced to the counterparties. Financial assets
are derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the financial assets have
expired or where the Group has transferred substantially all risks and rewards of
ownership. When the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of the financial asset, the Group either continues to recognise the
transferred financial asset to the extent of its continuing involvement if control remains
or derecognise it if there is no retained control. If the financial instrument measured at
amortised cost or FVOCI is renegotiated or modified with substantially different terms,
the original financial instrument should be derecognised and then a new financial
instrument should be recognised at fair value. Otherwise, the difference is adjusted to
the original carrying value and accounted for in the profit or loss.
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R (8) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
2. TEeEEEE (8) 2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

211 &R T EHIRESY ~ 4R 1ERE 2.11 Recognition, derecognition and modification of financial instruments (continued)
FORIEE (&)

TSR - WE R L Trading liabilities, financial liabilities designated at FVPL and debt securities and
AN HEE(LET ABRZE certificates of deposit in issue are recognised on the trade date. Deposits that are not
FEE > RESE(TELED designated at FVPL are recognised when money is received from customers, other
75 R AFRGEETA AL 5 H liabilities are recognised when such obligations arise. Financial liabilities are
FE o KA E BLLAE derecognised from the balance sheet when and only when the obligation specified in
FELET A B AIFEAEYR the contract is discharged, cancelled or expires. If the Group purchases its own debt, it
FE B ERREY > is removed from the balance sheet, and the difference between the carrying amount of
& EN AR EEEEE a liability and the consideration paid is included in profit or loss, except the own credit
el - A S SERIE risk component for those designated at FVPL.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

211 &ET BAVRESE - &KIETE

2.11 Recognition, derecognition and modification of financial instruments (continued)
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Securities and bills sold to a counterparty with an obligation to repurchase at a pre-
determined price on a specified future date under a repurchase agreement are referred
to as repos. Securities and bills purchased from a counterparty with an obligation to re-
sell to the counterparty at a pre-determined price on a specified future date under a
resale agreement are referred to as reverse repos.

Repos or securities lending are initially recognised as due to banks, placements from
banks and other financial institutions, as appropriate, at the actual amount of cash
received from the counterparty. Financial assets given as collateral for repurchase
agreements are not derecognised and are recorded as investment in securities or
financial assets at FVPL. Reverse repos or securities borrowings with a “hold-to-collect”
business model and contractual cash flow of solely payments of principal and interest
on the principal outstanding are initially recognised in the balance sheet as cash and
due from banks or placements with banks and other financial institutions, as appropriate,
at the actual amount of cash paid to the counterparty. Financial assets received as
collateral under reverse repurchase agreements are not recognised on the balance
sheet. The difference between the sale and the repurchase price is recognised as
interest income or interest expense over the life of the agreements using the effective
interest method.
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2. FESHEE () 2. Significant accounting policies (continued)
212 A PEEH R 2.12 Fair value measurement
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The Group measures its premises and investment properties, precious metals and
certain financial instruments at fair value at the end of each reporting period. Fair value
is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an
orderly transaction between market participants in its principal market or the most
advantageous market accessible by the Group at the measurement date.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market
participants would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market
participants act in their best economic interest.

The Group uses the price within the bid-offer spread that is most representative of the
fair value of financial instruments, where appropriate, includes using on the residual of
the net offsetting risk position of portfolios of financial assets and financial liabilities in
cases the Group manages such groups of financial assets and liabilities according to
their net market risk exposures. Despite the Group measures the fair value of these
groups of financial instruments on a net basis, the underlying financial assets and
financial liabilities are separately presented in the financial statements unless the
offsetting criteria stated in Note 2.6 are fulfilled.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market
participant’s ability to generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and
best use or by selling it to another market participant that would use the asset in its
highest and best use.
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2. FEEESE (&) 2. Significant accounting policies (continued)
212 NP ERE (&) 2.12 Fair value measurement (continued)
EEENAERE T If the market for assets or liabilities is not active, the Group uses valuation techniques,
AR ER - AEBETE including the use of recent arm’s length transactions, discounted cash flow analysis,
EHE MBI option pricing models and other valuation techniques commonly used by market
SR BRFEE T AR E participants, that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are
HONE - wfEEF available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and
ZONETIER 5~ REERER minimising the use of unobservable inputs.
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213 H&E 2.13 Precious metals
BEEEAiEES  RRIE Precious metals comprise gold, silver and other precious metals. Precious metals are
& - EaEm I EHA initially recognised and subsequently re-measured at fair value. Mark-to-market gains
SEEE VIR A H AR or losses on precious metals are included in net trading gain/loss.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

214 SRAEERE

2.14 Impairment of financial assets
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The Group recognises a loss allowance for expected credit losses (“ECLs”) on the
following items:

« financial assets measured at amortised cost;

« debt securities measured at FVOCI; and

* loan commitments and financial guarantees issued, which are not measured at FVPL.

Financial assets measured at fair value, including units in bond funds, equity securities
measured at FVPL, equity securities designated at FVOCI (non-recycling) and derivative
financial assets, are not subject to the ECL assessment.

ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate of credit losses. Credit losses are measured
as the present value of all expected cash shortfalls (i.e. the difference between the cash
flows due to the Group in accordance with the contract and the cash flows that the Group
expects to receive).
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

2.14 Impairment of financial assets (continued)

For undrawn loan commitments and financial guarantees outstanding, expected cash
shortfalls are measured as the difference between (i) the contractual cash flows that
would be due to the Group if the holder/beneficiary of the loan commitment/financial
guarantee draws down/claims on the loan/financial guarantee and (ii) the cash flows
that the Group expects to receive if the loan is drawn down/financial guarantee is
claimed.

The expected cash shortfalls are discounted where the effect of discounting is material.
The maximum period considered when estimating ECLs is the maximum contractual
period over which the Group is exposed to credit risk. Where the financial instrument
such as revolving credit facilities includes both a drawn and undrawn commitment, ECL
is measured over the period that the Group remains exposed to credit risk that is not
mitigated by management actions in respect of credit risk.

In measuring ECLs, the Group takes into account reasonable and supportable
information that is available. This includes information about past events, current
conditions and forecasts of future economic conditions.
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BRI (8)  Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

2. TEeEEEE (8) 2. Significant accounting policies (continued)
214 £&PISERE (8) 2.14 Impairment of financial assets (continued)
TEH(E AEAELTH ECLs are measured on either of the following bases:

o —{EARRE EHIE

« 12 (& B AYTEER{E 8 » 12-month ECLs: these are losses that are expected to result from possible default events

I BIFHEHE e HHA within 12 months after the reporting date; or
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K ELT B ERAYR

PR
o FEBARAYTEEAE A « lifetime ECLs: these are losses that are expected to result from all possible default

a4 BITERA(S 8%k events over the expected lives of the items to which the ECL model applies.
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R &R T BEWiaHEET The Group will account for expected credit losses within the next 12 months as Stage 1
I > KEFEBEREK 12 when those financial instruments are initially recognised; and to recognise lifetime
{# H NI TEER(S i85 expected credit losses as Stage 2 when there has been significant increases in credit risk
S SRR G H since initial recognition. Lifetime expected credit losses will be recognised for credit-
VRS % T RS impaired financial instruments as Stage 3 if the future cash flows of that financial
g BEZ TS IR s - 7 instruments are adversely affected by one or more events and interest income will then
FEBRATEHAE B be accrued net of the impairment amount of the respective Stage 3 financial assets.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

2.14 Impairment of financial assets (continued)

In assessing whether the credit risk of a financial instrument has increased significantly
since initial recognition, the Group compares the risk of default occurring on the financial
instrument assessed at the reporting date with that assessed at the date of initial
recognition.

In particular, the following information is taken into account when assessing whether
credit risk has increased significantly since initial recognition:

« failure to make payments of principal or interest 30 days after their contractually due
dates;

« an actual or expected significant deterioration in a financial instrument’s external or
internal credit rating (if available);

« an actual or expected significant deterioration in the operating results of the debtor;
and

» existing or forecast changes in the technological, market, economic or legal
environment that have a significant adverse effect on the debtor’s ability to meet its
obligation to the Group.

For loan commitments and financial guarantees, the date of initial recognition for the
purpose of assessing ECLs is considered to be the date that the Group becomes a party
to the irrevocable commitment. In assessing whether there has been a significant
increase in credit risk since initial recognition of a loan commitment or a financial
guarantee, the Group considers changes in the risk of default occurring on the loan and
advances to which the loan commitment/financial guarantee relates.
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Depending on the nature of the financial instruments, the assessment of a significant
increase in credit risk is performed on either an individual basis or a collective basis.
When the assessment is performed on a collective basis, the financial instruments are
grouped based on shared credit risk characteristics, such as past due status and credit
risk ratings.

The Group considers that a financial instrument is credit-impaired when there is
observable data about:

significant financial difficulty incurred by the debtor;

a breach of contract, such as a default or delinquency in principal or interest
payment;

for economic or legal reasons related to the debtor’s financial difficulty, the Group
has granted to the debtor a concession that it would not otherwise consider;

probable that the debtor will become bankrupt or undergo other financial
reorganisation;

the purchase or origination of a financial asset at a deep discount that reflects the
incurred credit losses; or

other observable data indicating that there is a measurable decrease in the
estimated future cash flows from such advances.

The Group considers on an individual basis both quantitative and qualitative information
that is reasonable and supportable, including historical experience and forward-looking
information that is available without undue cost or effort.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

2.14 Impairment of financial assets (continued)

ECLs are remeasured at each reporting date to reflect changes in the financial
instrument’s credit risk since initial recognition. Any change in the ECL amount is
recognised as an impairment gain or loss in profit or loss. The Group recognises an
impairment gain or loss for all relevant financial instruments with a corresponding
adjustment to their carrying amount through a loss allowance account, except for
investments in debt securities that are measured at FVOCI, for which the loss allowance
is recorded in the fair value reserve.

Interest income recognised in accordance with Note 2.7 is calculated based on the gross
carrying amount of the financial asset unless the financial asset is credit-impaired (Stage
3), in which case interest income is calculated based on the amortised cost (i.e. the gross
carrying amount less loss allowance) of the financial asset. The determination of credit-
impaired financial asset is further explained in Note 4.1.

When a financial asset is uncollectible, it is written off against the gross carry amount of
the financial asset and the related allowance for impairment losses. Such assets are
written off after all the necessary procedures have been completed and the amount of
the loss has been determined. The assets written off are still subject to enforcement
activity. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off decrease the amount of

impairment losses in the income statement.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

2.15 Impairment of investments in subsidiaries, associates, joint ventures and

non-financial assets

Assets are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. Potential indications of
impairment may include significant adverse changes in the technological, market,
economic or legal environment in which the assets operate or whether there has been
a significant or prolonged decline in value below their cost. “Significant” is evaluated
against the original cost of the investment and “prolonged” against the period in which
the fair value has been below its original cost. Impairment of intangible assets with
indefinite useful life are tested for impairment annually.

An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount
exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s
fair value less costs to sell and value in use. For the purposes of assessing impairment,
assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable cash
flows (cash-generating units). Impaired assets are reviewed for possible reversal of
the impairment at each reporting date.

In the Bank’s balance sheet, impairment testing of the investment in a subsidiary,
associate or joint venture is also required upon receiving dividend from that entity if the
dividend exceeds the total comprehensive income of that entity concerned in the period
the dividend is declared or if the carrying amount of that entity in the Bank’s balance
sheet exceeds the carrying amount of that entity’s net assets including goodwill in its
consolidated balance sheet.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

2.16 Investment properties

Properties (including right-of-use assets arising from leases over leasehold land on
which properties are situated), that are held for long-term rental yields or for capital
appreciation or both, and that are not occupied by the companies in the Group, are
classified as investment properties. Properties leased out within group companies are
classified as investment properties in individual companies’ financial statements and as
premises in consolidated financial statements.

Investment properties are recognised initially at cost, including related transaction costs.
After initial recognition, investment properties are measured at fair value.

Subsequent expenditure is charged to the asset’s carrying amount only when it is
probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Group
and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The work in progress item is stated
at fair value. All other repairs and maintenance costs are expensed in the income
statement during the financial period in which they are incurred.

Any changes in fair value are recognised directly in the income statement.

If an investment property becomes owner-occupied, it is reclassified as premises, and
its fair value at the date of reclassification becomes its cost for accounting purposes. If
an item of premises becomes an investment property because its use has changed, any
difference resulting between the carrying amount and the fair value of this item at the
date of transfer is recognised in other comprehensive income or profit or loss in the same
way as a revaluation of premises under HKAS 16 “Property, Plant and Equipment” as
set out in Note 2.17.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

2.17 Properties, plant and equipment

Properties (including right-of-use assets arising from leases over leasehold land on
which properties are situated) are mainly branches and office premises. Premises are
stated at fair value based on periodic, at least annually, valuations by external
independent valuers less any subsequent accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses. Any accumulated depreciation at the date of revaluation is eliminated against
the gross carrying amount of the asset and the net amount is restated to the revalued
amount of the asset. In the intervening periods, the directors review the carrying amount
of premises, by reference to the open market value of similar properties, and
adjustments are made when there has been a material change.

Increases in the carrying amount arising on revaluation of premises are credited to the
premises revaluation reserve through other comprehensive income. Decreases that
offset previous increases of the same individual asset are charged against premises
revaluation reserve through other comprehensive income; all other decreases are
expensed in the income statement. Any subsequent increases are credited to the
income statement up to the amount previously debited, and then to the premises
revaluation reserve. Upon disposal of premises, the relevant portion of the premises
revaluation reserve realised in respect of previous valuations is released and transferred
from the premises revaluation reserve to retained earnings.

All plant and equipment and right-of-use assets other than leasehold land (see Note
2.19) are stated at historical cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses.
Historical cost includes expenditures that are directly attributable to the acquisition and
installation of the items.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

2.17 Properties, plant and equipment (continued)

Subsequent costs are included in an asset's carrying amount or are recognised as a
separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. The item is stated at cost less impairment until it begins to generate economic
benefits, then the item is subsequently measured according to the measurement basis
of its respective assets class. All other repairs and maintenance costs are charged to
the income statement during the financial period in which they are incurred or provided
for.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line method to write down the cost or revalued
amount of such assets over their estimated useful lives as follows:

. Properties
Over the life of government land leases

. Plant and equipment
2 to 15 years

. Right-of-use asset
Shorter of useful lives and lease terms

The useful lives of assets are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, as at the end of
each reporting period.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

2.17 Properties, plant and equipment (continued)

At the end of each reporting period, both internal and external sources of information
are considered to determine whether there is any indication that properties, plant and
equipment are impaired. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the
asset is estimated and where relevant, an impairment loss is recognised to reduce the
asset to its recoverable amount. Such an impairment loss is recognised in the income
statement except where the asset is carried at valuation and the impairment loss does
not exceed the revaluation surplus for that same asset, in which case it is treated as a
revaluation decrease. The recoverable amount is the higher of the asset’s fair value less
costs to sell and value in use. Impairment loss is reversed through the premises
revaluation reserve or the income statement as appropriate.

Gains or losses on disposals are determined as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount, relevant taxes and expenses. These are recognised
in the income statement on the date of disposal. Any related revaluation surplus is
transferred from the revaluation reserve to retained earnings and is not reclassified to
the income statement.
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Intangible assets are identifiable non-monetary assets without physical substance
owned and controlled by the Group, mainly computer application software. Intangible
assets are stated at acquisition cost less accumulated amortisation and impairment.

Amortisation of intangible assets with finite useful lives is charged to profit or loss on a
straight-line basis over the assets’ estimated useful lives. The following intangible assets
with finite useful lives are amortised from the date they are available for use and their
estimated useful lives are as follows:

- Capitalised computer application software: 3 to 5 years

Both the period and method of amortisation are reviewed annually.

Gains or losses on disposals are determined as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount, relevant taxes and expenses. These are recognised
in the income statement on the date of disposal.

2.19 Leases

At inception of a contract, the Group assesses whether the contract is, or contains, a
lease. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use
of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration. Control is
conveyed where the customer has both the right to direct the use of the identified asset
and to obtain substantially all of the economic benefits from that use over the contract
period.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

2.19 Leases (continued)

(1) As a lessee

On the lease commencement date, the Group recognises a right-of-use asset and a
lease liability, except for short-term leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less
and leases of low-value assets. When the Group enters into a lease in respect of a
low-value asset, the Group decides whether to recognise the lease as a right-of-use
asset and a lease liability on a lease-by-lease basis. The lease payments associated
with those leases which are not recognised as right-of-use assets and lease liabilities
are recognised as an expense on a systematic basis over the lease term.

The lease liability is initially recognised at the present value of the lease payments
payable over the lease term, after taking into account payments to be made in the
optional period if the extension option is reasonably certain to be exercised, discounted
using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if that rate cannot be readily determined,
using a relevant incremental borrowing rate. The lease payments include fixed
payments (including in-substance fixed payments) less any lease incentives
receivable, variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, and amounts
expected to be paid under residual value guarantees. The lease payments also include
the exercise price of a purchase option reasonably certain to be exercised by the
Group and payments of penalties for termination of a lease, if the lease term reflects
the Group exercising the option to terminate.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

2.19 Leases (continued)

(1) As a lessee (continued)

After initial recognition, interest expense is calculated using a constant periodic rate
of interest. Variable lease payments that do not depend on an index or a rate are not
included in the measurement of the lease liability and hence are charged to income
statement in the accounting period in which they are incurred.

The right-of-use asset recognised is initially measured at cost, which comprises the
initial amount of the lease liability plus any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date, and any initial direct costs incurred. Where applicable, the cost
of the right-of-use assets also includes an estimate of costs to dismantle and remove
the underlying asset or to restore the underlying asset or the site on which it is located,
then discounted to its present value, and less any lease incentives received.

Payments associated with short-term leases of equipment and all leases of low-value

assets are recognised on a straight-line basis as an expense in profit or loss.

The right-of-use asset is subsequently stated at cost less accumulated depreciation
and impairment losses (see Note 2.17), and adjusted when the lease liabilities are
remeasured, except for the following types of right-of-use asset:

- right-of-use assets that meet the definition of investment property are carried at
fair value in accordance with Note 2.16; and
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

2.19 Leases (continued)

(1) As a lessee (continued)

- right-of-use assets related to leasehold land and buildings that do not meet the
definition of investment property and where the Group is the registered owner of
the leasehold interest are carried at revalued amount in accordance with Note
2.17.

The lease liability is remeasured when there is a change in future lease payments
arising from a change in an index or a rate, or there is a change in the Group’s estimate
of the amount expected to be payable under a residual value guarantee, or there is a
change of lease terms, or there is a change arising from the reassessment of whether
the Group will be reasonably certain to exercise a purchase, extension or termination
option. When the lease liability is remeasured in this way, a corresponding adjustment
is made to the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset, or is recorded in income
statement if the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset has been reduced to zero.

The Group presents right-of-use assets that do not meet the definition of investment
property in “Properties, plant and equipment” and presents lease liabilities in “Other

accounts and provisions”.
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219 fHE (&) 2.19 leases (continued)
(2) FERHFEA (2) As a lessor
2 E E B 1A When the Group acts as a lessor, it determines at lease inception whether each
0 GE TS lease is a finance lease or an operating lease. A lease is classified as a finance lease
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miEEHeSRERNS For the purposes of the consolidated cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents

HEREERSHEEE comprise balances with original maturity less than three months from the date of
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BA#EET =& A N RN EH >~ term bills and notes classified as investment securities and certificates of deposit.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

2.21 Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation
as a result of past events, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying
economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate of the
amount of the obligation can be made.

2.22 Employee benefits

(1) Retirement benefit costs

The Group contributes to defined contribution retirement schemes under either
recognised ORSO schemes or MPF schemes that are available to the Group’s
employees. Contributions to the schemes by the Group and employees are
calculated as a percentage of employees’ basic salaries for the ORSO schemes and
in accordance with the MPF rules for MPF schemes. The retirement benefit scheme
costs are charged to the income statement as incurred and represent contributions
payable by the Group to the schemes. Contributions made by the Group that are
forfeited by those employees who leave the ORSO scheme prior to the full vesting
of their entitlement to the contributions are used by the Group to reduce the existing
level of contributions or to meet its expenses under the trust deed of the ORSO
schemes.

The assets of the schemes are held in independently-administered funds separate
from those of the Group.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

2.22 Employee benefits (continued)

(2) Leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave and sick leave are recognised when they
accrue to employees. A provision is made for the estimated liability for unused
annual leave and the amount of sick leave expected to be paid as a result of services
rendered by employees up to the end of the reporting period.

Compensated absences other than sick leave and special approved annual leave
are non-accumulating; they lapse if the current period’s entitlement is not used in
full. Except for unexpired annual leave, they do not entitle employees to a cash
payment for unused entitlement on leaving the Group.

(3) Bonus plans

The expected cost of bonus payments is recognised as a liability when the Group
has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of services rendered by
employees and a reliable estimate of the obligation can be made. Liabilities for bonus
plans that are expected to be settled longer than twelve months will be discounted if
the amounts are significant.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

2.23 Current and deferred income taxes

Tax expenses for the period comprise current and deferred tax. Tax is recognised in the
income statement, except to the extent that it relates to items recognised directly in other
comprehensive income. In this case, the tax is also recognised in other comprehensive
income.

Income tax payable on profits, based on the applicable tax law enacted or substantially
enacted at the end of the reporting period in each jurisdiction where the Bank and its
subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures operate and generate taxable income, is
recognised as a current income tax expense in the period in which profits arise.

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the balance sheet liability method, on
temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their
carrying amounts in the consolidated financial statements. Deferred income tax is
determined using tax rates and laws that have been enacted or substantially enacted by
the end of the reporting period and are expected to apply when the related deferred
income tax asset is realised or the deferred income tax liability is settled.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

2.23 Current and deferred income taxes (continued)

The principal temporary differences arise from asset impairment provisions,
depreciation of premises and equipment, and revaluation of certain assets including
securities at FVOCI and premises. However, the deferred income tax is not recognised
if it arises from initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction other than a
business combination that at the time of the transaction affects neither accounting nor
taxable profit or loss.

Deferred income tax liabilities are provided in full on all taxable temporary differences.
Deferred income tax assets are recognised on deductible temporary differences, the
carry forward of any unused tax credits and unused tax losses to the extent that it is
probable that future taxable profit will be available against which the deductible
temporary differences, the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses
can be utilised.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

2.23 Current and deferred income taxes (continued)

Deferred income tax is charged or credited in the income statement except for deferred
income tax relating to fair value re-measurement of securities at FVOCI and revaluation
of premises which are charged or credited to other comprehensive income, in which
case the deferred income tax is also credited or charged to other comprehensive income
and is subsequently recognised in the income statement together with the realisation of
the deferred gain and loss.

Deferred tax liability or deferred tax asset arising from an investment property is
determined based on the presumption that the revaluation amount of such investment
property will be recovered through sale with the relevant tax rate applied.

2.24 Government grants

2.25

Grants from the government are recognised at their fair value where there is a
reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and the Group will comply with all
attached conditions. Government grants are recognised in the profit or loss over the
period necessary to match them with the related costs that they are intended to
compensate.

Repossessed assets

Repossessed assets are initially recognised at the lower of their fair value less costs to
sell and the amortised cost of the related outstanding loans on the date of repossession,
and the related loans and advances together with the related impairment allowances
are derecognised from the balance sheet. Subsequently, repossessed assets are
measured at the lower of their cost and fair values less costs to sell and are reported as
“non-current assets held for sale” included in “Other assets”.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

2.26 Fiduciary activities

The Group commonly acts as a trustee, or in other fiduciary capacities, that result in its
holding or managing assets on behalf of individuals, trusts and other institutions. These
assets and any gains or losses arising thereon are excluded from these financial
statements, as they are not assets of the Group.

2.27 Contingent liabilities and contingent assets

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events and whose
existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more
uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Group. It can also be a present
obligation arising from past events that is not recognised because it is not probable that
an outflow of economic resources will be required or the amount of obligation cannot be
measured reliably.

A contingent liability is not recognised as a provision but is disclosed in the notes to the
financial statements. When a change in the probability of an outflow occurs so that
outflow is probable, it will then be recognised as a provision.

A contingent asset is a possible asset that arises from past events and whose existence
will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain
future events not wholly within the control of the Group.

Contingent assets are not recognised but are disclosed in the notes to the financial
statements when an inflow of economic benefits is probable. When the inflow is virtually
certain, it will be recognised as an asset.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

2.28 Related parties

For the purposes of these financial statements, a party is considered to be related to the
Group if that party (i) controls, jointly controls or has significant influence over the Group;
(ii) is a member of the same financial reporting group, such as parents, subsidiaries and
fellow subsidiaries; (iii) is an associate or a joint venture of the Group or parent reporting
group; (iv) is a key management personnel of the Group or parents; (v) is subject to
common control with the Group; (vi) is an entity in which a person identified in (iv)
controls; and (vii) provides key management personnel services to the Group or its
parent. Related parties may be individuals or entities.
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3. EResBEER &KL 3. Critical accounting estimates and judgements in applying
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accounting policies

The Group makes estimates and assumptions that affect the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next reporting period. Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated
and based on historical experience and other factors, including expectations of future events
that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. Areas susceptible to changes in
essential estimates and judgements, which affect the carrying amount of assets and liabilities,
are set out below. The effects of changes to either the key assumptions or other estimation
uncertainties are presented below if it is practicable to determine. It is possible that actual
results may require material adjustments to the estimates referred to below.

3.1 Impairment losses on advances to customers

The Group reviews its credit portfolios to assess impairment at least on a quarterly basis.
Under HKFRS 9, the measurement of impairment losses across all categories of financial
asset requires judgement, in particular, the estimation of the amount and timing of future
cash flows and collateral values when determining impairment losses and the assessment
of a significant increase in credit risk. These estimates are driven by a number of factors,
changes of which can result in different levels of allowances.

The Group’s ECL calculations are outputs of complex models. The choice of variable
inputs and their interdependencies involves a series of assumptions. ECL models for
stage 1 and stage 2 exposures are developed by leveraging on the parameters
implemented under Note 4.1, where feasible and available. Elements of the ECL models
that are considered accounting judgements and estimates include:
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MAERRMEE (&)  Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

3. ERestBSERf & A 3. Critical accounting estimates and judgements in applying
et EE R EET (8) accounting policies (continued)

3.1 ZEEENREREE (&) 3.1 Impairment losses on advances to customers (continued)

o« REENKNIE(E S « The Group’s internal credit rating models, which assign Probability of Defaults to the
R DL B R e individual ratings;
ZELIE

. FEHMEEERGCEHIREE « The Group’s significant credit deterioration criteria (including internal credit rating
EZEALEEHE Y SRNE downgrade, days past due, drop in Mark-to-Market and qualitative assessment) for
BT R (E R TE assessing whether the financial assets’ impairment allowances should be measured on
B B EH &0 - BT a lifetime ECL basis;

RAEEELE (BEN
ERETAR I ~ SR
SEE T eSS )

o EIRFAH AR 4R « The segmentation of financial assets according to credit risk characteristics (portfolios
B TARI(S FHE & including Sovereign, Bank, Corporates, Retail Small Medium-sized Enterprise,
REEEEEREE (HE Residential Mortgage Loan and Credit Card) when their ECLs are assessed on a
BETE - T F collective basis;

B/ EEEEER
FAERF) HemEER

AT EHE T

o THEA{S A 18R 0 8 « Development of ECL models, including the determination of macroeconomic factor
& RS RS forecasts (including Gross Domestic Product growth, Consumer Price Index, Property
HITEMI (ELFEA A FEAR Price Index and Unemployment Rate) and the effect on Probability of Defaults, Loss
ES & HEEYERE Given Defaults and Exposure at Defaults; and

VEREREBRISER)
DU ERAIMR - 2L
TR R KR LR bR AR
2 RV

o BFETEEM: KSR « Selection of forward-looking macroeconomic scenarios (including three independent

(B ET ~ FBE R AR scenarios i.e. good, baseline and bad) and their probability weightings.

=EEIIER) AVEEREE R

EnrERE
M ERHBERONS  TEE In respect of credit-impaired exposures, expected credit losses are measured on an
FH A2 i i Ak E R A AT Ui =] individual basis by estimating the future recoverable cash flows. Factors affecting this
IR B BHIET = - T RERY estimate include, among other things, the granularity of financial information related to
2y Ay R 2 AR E R R specific borrowers and their guarantors, the availability of meaningful information of
AT B EER AR H competitors and the relevance of sector trends to the future performance of specific
LR A TS BIEERTERE borrowers and cash flows from the sale of collateral.

EE/ONEEFE S Syl e
ST SRS (TR SRS
B TE fE AR R AR AE B R B
Z FEIFTARIRHIEE - DAREF AT
i AT BB R A
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

3. Critical accounting estimates and judgements in applying
accounting policies (continued)

3.1 Impairment losses on advances to customers (continued)
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It has been the Group’s policy to regularly review its models in the context of actual loss
experience and adjust when necessary.

Carrying amounts of advances to customers as at 31 December 2021 are shown in Note
23.

3.2 Fair values of financial instruments

The fair values of financial instruments that are not quoted in active markets are
determined by using valuation techniques. Valuation techniques used include the use of
recent arm’s length transactions, discounted cash flows analysis and models with built-in
functions available in externally acquired financial analysis or risk management systems
widely used by the industry such as option pricing models, and other commonly used
market pricing models. To the extent practical, the models use observable data. In
addition, valuation adjustments may be adopted if factors such as credit risk are not
considered in the valuation models. Management judgement and estimates are required
for the selection of appropriate valuation parameters, assumptions and modelling
techniques.

The Group assesses assumptions and estimates used in valuation techniques including
review of valuation model assumptions and characteristics, changes to model
assumptions, the quality of market data, whether markets are active or inactive, other fair
value adjustments not specifically captured by models and consistency of application of
techniques between reporting periods as part of its normal review and approval
processes. Valuation techniques are validated and periodically reviewed and, where
appropriate, have been updated to reflect market conditions at the financial reporting date.
Further details will be discussed in Note 5.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

3. Critical accounting estimates and judgements in applying
accounting policies (continued)

3.3 Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets on unused tax losses and unused tax credits are recognised and the
determination of the amount to be recognised requires significant management
judgement. Deferred tax asset on unused tax losses are recognised to the extent that it
is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the losses can be utilised.
Judgement is required to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be
recognised, based upon the likely timing and level of future taxable profits. For deferred
tax assets on unused tax credits, judgement is required to determine the amount of
deferred tax assets that can be recognised, based upon the estimation of available tax
credits and the possibility to recover such deferred tax assets recognised.
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MBERMEE ()  Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

3. EResBEER &KL 3. Critical accounting estimates and judgements in applying
et EE R EET (8) accounting policies (continued)

3.4 REEHBHHER 3.4 Determination of lease terms of leases
AEEEENHE N AHE The Group determines the lease term as the non-cancellable term of the lease, together with
RS EARR » DA A TR any periods covered by an option to extend the lease if it is reasonably certain to be
HEE G T E ST B & exercised, or any periods covered by an option to terminate the lease, if it is reasonably
HEE A G T EAYER (- FEPT certain not to be exercised.

ERETHARR -

REBFEIL T THLY T al B2 The Group has the option, under some of its leases, to renew the leases for additional terms
BT S ARSNGB 39 of three to nine years. The Group applies judgement in evaluating whether it is reasonably
o INHERAH - ANEEe certain to exercise the option on the lease commencement date. During the evaluation, the
{E H H o DLSEE RE 6 & B Group considers all relevant factors that create an economic incentive for it to exercise the
LB TEESETHRE - F LS renewal option. After the commencement date, the Group reassesses the lease term if there
(HiEfE  EEEE-E R AR is a significant event or change in circumstances that is within its control and affects its ability
AT (5 SR A 2 S s R Y to exercise (or not to exercise) the option to renew (e.g. a change in business strategy).

HERBARZR - FEAHAY AR H
&> WA TEA B 2 FEE
NS EARE SISk
LA B EET (AT
{50 GURH BRI (B : 2
TSRURSE ) - AIAGEE & E
HrEFEFE Y -

732021412 H 31 H Ay Carrying amounts of right-of-use assets as at 31 December 2021 are shown in Note 27.

B E R HEC YR EE
27 -

138



©)

PRI (80
4. SRlEEEE

REE AT B LI
P& ol il S s st )
EEERRE - SRR (R
A NeEE g B MR ) Bt E)
BB o A R A S
st R - DU H
T~ UG BB 2R ~ B
TREE Fp i B i g Y
Jiik e

SRR

A B e\ R B AR
EEB R R AR DAOR
SRR ALE Y B ER
HORER A B R - A
S E A S A g AR
A — L AR E
BUR B 2R FI DA~ &
B % S P T RE LB AT 208
JeE\fz: - A SR R E B AR B
R EHBOR R AER - LA
Gl MRS RIS R e -
I i T Y Jr e R o 0 T R
T HAR R Y R B B A

BERGRRERFNI G 2
A SR L Y e e SR
R SIS P R R A
E-HEEGELETZREN
FRENT » A P E A SR B
P e LSRRI ~ B R e L
b A HEPRA BB B AR
Y JE B B 2B DU BT
RS -

JE\bsZ B &R R E I
HREEE ARER AL
YR - AL — R
EHIPR - WETEHT  #F
Eiin= =N E T =SS
R A e = b i
HEETABERE AR
PR -

¥ & 4L £5 (&) A mAT

BANK OF CHINA (HONG KONG) LIMITED

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

4. Financial risk management

The Group is exposed to financial risks as a result of engaging in a variety of business
activities. The principal financial risks are credit risk, market risk (including currency risk and
interest rate risk) and liquidity risk. This note summarises the Group’s exposures to these
risks, as well as its objectives, risk management governance structure, policies and processes
for managing and the methods used to measure these risks.

Financial risk management framework

The Group’s risk management governance structure is designed to cover all business
processes and to ensure various risks are properly managed and controlled in the course of
conducting business. The Group has a robust risk management organisational structure with
a comprehensive set of policies and procedures to identify, measure, monitor and control
various risks that may arise. These risk management policies and procedures are regularly
reviewed and updated to reflect changes in markets and business strategies. Various groups
of risk takers assume their respective responsibilities for risk management.

The Board of Directors, representing the interests of shareholders, is the highest decision-
making authority of the Group and has the ultimate responsibility for risk management. The
Board, with the assistance of its committees, has the primary responsibility for the formulation
of risk management strategies, risk appetite and risk culture and ensuring that the Group has
an effective risk management system to implement these strategies.

The Risk Committee (“RMC”), a standing committee established by the Board of Directors, is
responsible for overseeing the Group’s various types of risks, approving Level | risk
management policies and monitoring their implementation, and approving significant or high
risk exposures or transactions. The Audit Committee assists the Board in fulfilling its role in
overseeing the internal control system.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

Financial risk management framework (continued)

The Chief Executive (“CE”) is responsible for managing the Group’s various types of risks,
and approving material risk exposures or transactions within his authority delegated by the
Board of Directors. The Deputy Chief Executives (“DCEs”) assist the CE in fulfilling his
responsibilities on the day-to-day management of various types of risk, and are responsible
for approving material risk exposures or transactions within their authorities delegated by the
CE. The Chief Risk Officer (“CRO”) together with the Deputy Chief Executive in charge of
legal, compliance, operational risk and anti-money laundering assist the CE in fulfilling his
responsibilities on day-to-day management of various types of risks and internal control;
responsible for initiating new risk management strategies, projects and measures in response
to regulatory changes that will enable the Group to better monitor and manage any risks that
may arise from time to time from new businesses, products and changes in the operating
environment and responsible for reviewing material risk exposures or transactions within the
delegated authority. In accordance with the principle of setting the hierarchy of risk
management policies approved by the Board, senior management is also responsible for
approving the detailed risk management policies of their areas.

Various units of the Group have their respective risk management responsibilities. Business
units act as the first line of defence while risk management units, which are independent from
the business units, are responsible for the day-to-day management of different kinds of risks.
Risk management units have the primary responsibility for drafting, reviewing and updating
various risk management policies and procedures.

The Group’s principal banking subsidiaries are subjected to risk management policies that
are consistent with those of the Group. Risk management units of BOCHK monitor the risk
management status of these subsidiaries.

The Group has put in place appropriate internal control systems, including the establishment
of an organisation structure that sets clear lines of authority and responsibility for monitoring
compliance with policies, procedures and limits. Proper reporting lines also provide sufficient
independence of the control functions from the business areas, as well as adequate
segregation of duties throughout the organisation which helps to promote an appropriate
internal control environment.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

Product development and risk monitoring

To ensure the effectiveness of risk assessment and monitoring, the Group has a
comprehensive product development and roles and
responsibilities of all related units are clearly defined and proper due diligence processes on
product development are in place.

risk monitoring system where

In accordance with the strategic objectives set by the Board and the Management, respective
product management units are responsible for formulating business and product development
plans, and proceeding to specific product development activities. The department of strategic
development shall ensure the plans are aligned with the Group’s overall strategies.
Departments that are responsible for risk management, legal, compliance and finance, etc.
are accountable for review of the risk assessment results.

Apart from product development, respective product management units shall work closely with
relevant risk evaluating departments to identify and assess the risks of new products. Risk
evaluating departments shall conduct independent review on the risk assessment results and
the corresponding risk management measures. Products can only be launched upon
completion of the product due diligence process to the satisfaction of all risk evaluating
departments.

A prudent approach is adopted in offering treasury products to our clients. All new treasury
products require approval from a special committee before launching.

4.1 Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of loss that a customer or counterparty is unable to or unwilling to
meet its contractual obligations. Credit risk exists in the trading book and banking book,
as well as from on- and off-balance sheet transactions of the Group. It arises principally
from lending, trade finance and treasury businesses.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.1 Credit risk (continued)

Credit risk management framework

The Group has formulated a comprehensive set of credit risk management policies and
procedures, and appropriate credit risk limits to manage and control credit risk that may
arise. These policies, procedures and credit risk limits are regularly reviewed and updated
to cope with changes in market conditions and business strategies.

The Group’s organisation structure establishes a clear set of authority and responsibility for
monitoring compliance with policies, procedures and limits.

The Chief Credit Officer, who reports directly to the CRO, takes charge of credit risk
management and is also responsible for the control of credit risk exposures of subsidiaries
in line with the credit risk management principles and requirements set by the Group.
Various units of the Group have their respective credit risk management responsibilities.
Business units act as the first line of defence in risk management. The Risk Management
Department (“RMD”), which is independent from the business units, is responsible for the
day-to-day management of credit risks and provides an independent due diligence through
identifying, measuring, monitoring and controlling credit risk to ensure an effective checks
and balances, as well as drafting, reviewing and updating credit risk management policies
and procedures. It is also responsible for the design, development and maintenance of the
Group’s internal rating system and ensures the system complies with the relevant regulatory
requirements. Back offices are responsible for credit administration, providing operations
support and supervision on the implementation of prerequisite terms and conditions of credit
facilities.

In accordance with the Group’s operating principle, the Group’s principal subsidiaries have
to formulate their own credit risk policies that are consistent with those of the Group’s core
principle. These subsidiaries are required to submit their risk management reports to the
Group’s Management on a regular basis.
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4. Financial risk management (continued)

41 FERE (8) 4.1 Credit risk (continued)
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Credit risk management framework (continued)

The Board of Directors delegates credit approval authority to the CE. The CE can further
delegate to the subordinates within his limit authorised by the Board of Directors. The Group
sets the limits of credit approval authority according to the credit business nature, rating,
the level of transaction risk, and the extent of the credit exposure.

Credit risk measurement and control

In view of the rapidly changing market conditions, the Group has been continuously
revisiting its credit strategies and conducting rigorous reviews on the concerned portfolios.

Advances

Different credit approval and control procedures are adopted according to the level of risk
associated with the customer, counterparty or transaction. The Credit Risk Assessment
Committee, comprising experts from credit and other functions, is responsible for making
an independent assessment of material credit applications which require the approval of
DCEs or above. Credit applications for non-retail exposures are independently reviewed
and objectively assessed by risk management units. Obligor ratings (in terms of probability
of default) and facility ratings (in terms of loss given default) are assigned to these portfolios
to support credit approval. Retail internal rating systems are deployed in the risk
assessment of retail credit transactions, including small business loans under retail
exposures, residential mortgage loans, personal loans and credit cards, etc. Loan grades,
obligor and facility ratings as well as loss estimates (if applicable) are used to support credit
approval.
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4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.1 EEREE (&) 4.1 Credit risk (continued)
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Credit risk measurement and control (continued)

Advances (continued)

The Group also uses loan grades, obligor ratings and loss estimates (if applicable) to
support credit monitoring, reporting and analysis of credit risk information. For non-retail
exposures, more frequent rating review and closer monitoring are required for higher-risk
customers. For retail exposures, monthly updated internal ratings and loss estimates are
used for credit monitoring on a portfolio basis. More comprehensive review is required for
obligors being identified under high-risk pools.

The Group employs an internal master rating scale that can be mapped to Standard &
Poor’s external credit ratings. The structure of internal master rating scale is in compliance
with the requirement of the Banking (Capital) Rules under the Hong Kong Banking
Ordinance.

RMD provides regular credit management information reports and ad hoc reports to the
Management Committee (“MC”), RMC and Board of Directors to facilitate their continuous
monitoring of credit risk.
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4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.1 EEREE (&) 4.1 Credit risk (continued)
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Credit risk measurement and control (continued)

Advances (continued)

In addition, the Group identifies credit concentration risk by industry, geography, customer
or counterparty. The Group monitors changes to every counterparties credit risk, quality
of the credit portfolio and credit risk concentrations, and reports regularly to the Group’s
Management.

The Group adopts loan grading criteria which divide credit assets into five categories with
reference to the HKMA's guidelines, as below:

“Pass” represents loans where the borrower is current in meeting its repayment obligations
and full repayment of interest and principal is not in doubt.

“Special Mention” represents loans where the borrower is experiencing difficulties which
may threaten the Group’s recoverability of the loan principal and interest. Ultimate loss is
not expected at this stage but could occur if adverse conditions persist.

“Substandard” represents loans where the borrower displays a definable weakness that
is likely to jeopardise repayment.

“Doubtful” represents loans where collection in full is improbable and the Group expects
to sustain a loss of principal and/or interest, taking into account the net realisable value of
the collateral.

“Loss” represents loans which are considered uncollectible after all collection options
(such as the realisation of collateral or the institution of legal proceedings) have been
exhausted.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.1

Credit risk (continued)

Credit risk measurement and control (continued)

Debt securities and derivatives

For investments in debt securities, the obligor ratings or external credit ratings and credit
limits setting on customer/security issuer basis are used for managing credit risk
associated with the investment. For derivatives, the Group sets customer limits to manage
the credit risk involved and follows the same approval and control processes as applied
for advances. On-going monitoring and stop-loss procedures are established.

Settlement risk arises mainly from foreign exchange transactions with counterparties and
also from derivative transactions in any situation where a payment in cash, securities or
equities is made in the expectation of a corresponding receipt in cash, securities or
equities. Daily settlement limits are established for each counterparty or customer to cover
all settlement risks arising from the Group’s market transactions on any single day.

Financial instruments are default when one or more events that have a detrimental impact
on the estimated future cash flows have occurred such as past due for more than 90 days
or the borrower is unlikely to pay in full for the credit obligations to the Group.

Credit-impaired financial instruments are classified as Stage 3 and lifetime expected
credit losses will be recognised. Evidence that a financial instrument is credit-impaired
include observable data about the following events:

Significant financial difficulty incurred by the borrower;

146



@ ¥ 84 tsmn)aman

BANK OF CHINA (HONG KONG) LIMITED

MBEHENE (&) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
4, SRIEEEE (8) 4. Financial risk management (continued)

41 EERE (8) 4.1 Credit risk (continued)
fEEEBEETAE R B (|) Credit risk measurement and control (continued)

- HERELIEHEG - ) - Abreach of contract, such as a default or delinquency in principal or interest payment;
A JE T EE I E
BAGHEIE

- EEEANIR S - For economic or contractual reasons related to the borrower’s financial difficulty, the
R > AREEED Group has granted to the borrower a concession that it would not otherwise consider;
TR 1146 T &K
NEF R LRI
H

- HEBERERA - Probable that the borrower will become bankrupt or undergo other financial
e EE s TR reorganisation; or

THEE

- HA RSB R - Other observable data indicating that there is a measurable decrease in the estimated
WA R <@ T 2T future cash flows from such financial instruments.
FRACRB RS
ARSI -
TEHAfE BB (ECL) 5 Expected Credit Loss (“ECL”) Methodology
B
EHNBEEE - R For impairment assessment, an impairment model is introduced in compliance with
WA TSR HIEE 9 5f5 | A HKFRS 9, it requires the recognition of ECL for financial instrument held at amortised cost
VBB AR > LB SR and fair value through other comprehensive income. Under HKFRS 9, ECL is assessed
R AT 2 B DL A {E in three stages and the financial assets, loan commitments and financial guarantees are
FALET A At 2 U A= classified in one of the three stages.

EHEHERITE - FEH
FHE RS (ECL) - 1£
B AERISE 9 5t
T THEHERIEE
={EPE B TR S M
MEE - ERUKH U
Y& PR AE = (P B T B
SRR —(EPREL -

B—PEEY R EE T A Stage 1: if the financial instruments are not credit-impaired during origination and their
T HEREE BB credit risk has not increased significantly since origination, and the impairment allowance
HEE - DRATWHETER is measured at an amount up to 12-month ECL;

%15 BRI 3R B
EEANAYIEIL - BEAER
B 12 i A R TEEIE
Ei=P S

147



©)

¥ & 4L £5 (&) A mAT

BANK OF CHINA (HONG KONG) LIMITED

BRI (8D
4. CRVEBREE (8)

4.1 ERERE (8

FHMERIRKA(ECL)TTA
i (&)

BPEEE C ReR T A
FE 9146 H A 6 (5 R
HEE  (BAEYHBHEE
15 5l gy b 35 855 3
B - BB Ry B
FEHNTITRERER

FPEEE  WRER T E
FySHIRERRE - HARZ
ReRBEC28 —HI
IR B8 i
B Ry B (E A A Y
TAHIE B -

FEFCETENES
JeE R SR AL A6 A HE 2R 2R
B & & Fih T ELAY PR I
B IAEREARE B R E
PEAVRFE - AR
MR LR AR
b~ RS bR P I B

W ERFFARIE I AT & 5
HRHR T Ry 27 8 &
{5 FIEPER (RIS 27 40
JBENES > MEAAIE
HEFRAI IR ROE = -
H 7 E RS B R R A
HY S B A 4 R P R A
Bt

TE AT

- REFEEIIEHE®
=+HAZN AR
FIE

- RHEH > EFGRT
IEEA B LI R )
YRR R AT R T
BB —ERE
S B A A5 R A
YIdAHER % T Bk ZE A
JEKSE > Ry (5
JR\ g B S - K%
BT - EEFWN
{SFRPR TR 5 B
g EAERCHE
eI

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.1 Credit risk (continued)

Expected Credit Loss (“ECL”) Methodology (continued)

Stage 2: if the financial instruments are not credit-impaired during origination but their
credit risk has increased significantly since origination, and the impairment allowance is
measured at an amount equal to the lifetime ECL;

Stage 3: if the financial instruments are credit-impaired and their future cash flows of that
financial instruments are adversely affected by one or more events, and the impairment
allowance is also measured at an amount equal to the lifetime ECL.

The Group has established the significant credit deterioration criteria framework to
determine the stage of the financial instrument. The framework incorporates both
quantitative and qualitative assessment, taking into account of factors such as number of
days past due, change in IRB rating, low credit risk threshold and the watchlist.

The customer credit ratings in the internal model are classified into 27 grades. The lowest
(27th) credit grading equates to defaulted customers while the others are assigned to
non-defaulted customers. The quantitative and qualitative criteria considered in
determining significant credit deterioration include:

Quantitative criteria
- Failure to make payments of principal or interest 30 days after the contractual due
dates;

- At the reporting date, the credit risk is deemed to increase significantly when the
remaining lifetime PD rises by more than a certain range from initial recognition,
reflected as drop in credit rating by corresponding level according to the different PD
at initial recognition. In majority cases, there is a significant increase in credit risk when
the customer's credit rating drops by 5 grades.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.1 Credit risk (continued)

Expected Credit Loss (“ECL”) Methodology (continued)

Qualitative criteria
- Significant adverse change in debtor's operations or financial status;

- Customers with sign of credit deterioration are put into watchlist for staging review.

The Group leverages the parameters implemented under Basel Il IRB models and internal
models where feasible and available to assess ECL. For the portfolios without models, all
other reasonable and supportable information such as historical information, relevant loss
experience or proxies are utilised. The measurement of ECL is the product of the financial
instrument’s probability of default (“PD”), loss given default (‘LGD”) and exposure at
default (“EAD”) discounted at the effective interest rate to the reporting date.

ECL is measured at an unbiased and probability-weighted amount that is determined by
evaluating a range of possible outcomes, the time value of money and reasonable and
supportable information about past events, current conditions and forecasts of future
economic conditions. The Group adopts three economic scenarios in the ECL
measurement to meet the requirements of HKFRS 9. The “Baseline” scenario represents
a most likely outcome and the other two scenarios, referred to as “Good” scenario and
“Bad” scenario, represent less likely outcomes which are more optimistic or more
pessimistic compared to Baseline scenario.

149



©)

¥ & 4L £5 (&) A mAT

BANK OF CHINA (HONG KONG) LIMITED

BRI (8D
4. CRVEBREE (8)

4.1 ERERE (8

FHMEFARAR(ECL) A
i (&)

EREREAEERE
MRt - BiEIRER
BEFIAEE R R
B TR0 PR S B ~ 0%
%L~ BITRISEE 744
F 4715 4 7% FEUHI 55
TERS%E - BN RFHER
FERER S - REESH
JFE SRR IR E

AEEAERELEEF
o PRA B ER
b 188 HO [ 8 72 A% [
o A A FE A Y
£ DURHAM E 278
KOENZER > AUHEEYE
TR~ VESEERS IR EIE
TETAIE 1L 4T o7
MHEERER - 5EE
HEEEEE -

7 B[] 5 SO B 3 Y
B 7 e 7% 5 {15 5 P
FCAIERANRE - i A SR
RHFELEVINESE
TRl > DANECRIREAEFRY
FERM: - BETREIE RIS
2 v O AR 3R T A A S
A RERYAS AR, > 1T A
B 2R 15 5 53 B e AY
108 3 o A A S i i K ]
RERYAEIR - 7t 2021 £F 12
A AEEEREE S
RN = B R R
ERZ -

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.1 Credit risk (continued)

Expected Credit Loss (“ECL”) Methodology (continued)

The Baseline scenario is prepared by our Economics & Strategic Planning Department.
Historical data, economic trend, external forecast from governmental and non-
governmental organisation, etc. are also used as benchmarks to ensure the scenario is
reasonable and supportable. For the Good and Bad scenarios, the Group makes
reference to the historical macroeconomics data.

The core macroeconomic factor in the major countries/regions the Group operates such
as Gross Domestic Product growth, and other key macroeconomic factors such as
Consumer Price Index, Property Price Index and Unemployment Rate are applied in the
economic scenarios. These macroeconomic factors are considered to be important to the
Group’s ECL in statistical analysis and business opinion.

The probability weight assigned for each scenario reflects the Group’s view for the
economic environment, which implements the Group’s prudent and consistent credit
strategy of ensuring the adequacy of impairment allowance. A higher probability weight is
assigned to the Baseline scenario to reflect the most likely outcome and a lower
probability weight is assigned to the Good and Bad scenarios to reflect the less likely
outcomes. As of December 2021, the probability weight of the Group’s Baseline scenario
is higher than the sum of probability weight of Good and Bad scenarios.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.1 Credit risk (continued)
Expected Credit Loss (“ECL”) Methodology (continued)

The core macroeconomic factor used by the Group to assess ECL:

EEKHAZE RIS = SR REFIHER
Macroeconomic Factor Bad Scenario Baseline Scenario Good Scenario
2022 FEFBEAM A EHEN R £ aqo 0 0
2022 Hong Kong GDP Growth 5.88% +3.50% *6.77%

HIEHERNETRZE
BB R BB ST
E - ERR AR
BB N Z TR L
AN R P AR AR
5o ORgERTHMEAE
K BT - REEIREEE
i el E=i sy isn zutlii
(R R EOR N Z e 8
BRI TE
e

2021 E12 531 H -
i S%H IR IR
SRS 2RSSR -
{5 AR & % o
2.95%; % 5% NME
AT IS 2 R E
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b 2 5 o 2 B AL T
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JEA - (EEEREHER
HEE T HIRR A
i > R E AR E
R SHER - BT
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The calculation of ECL is affected by macroeconomic factors and economic scenarios. If
more pessimistic macroeconomic factors are applied in ECL assessment or a higher
probability weight is assigned to the Bad scenario, it would result in an increase in ECL.
The Group reviews the macroeconomic factors used in the ECL model and the probability
weight of economic scenarios on a quarterly basis according to the established
mechanism.

As at 31 December 2021, the ECL will be increased by 2.95% if 5% of the probability weight
is shifted from Baseline scenario to Bad scenario; and will be decreased by 2.51% if 5% of
the probability weight is shifted from Baseline scenario to Good scenario.

RMC is responsible for approving ECL methodology and the Management is responsible
for the ECL model implementation. Credit Risk Management is responsible for the
maintenance of ECL methodology including models review and parameters update on a
regular basis. Independent Model Validation Team is responsible for the annual validation
of ECL models. If there is any change in ECL methodology, the Group will follow the
proper approval process.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.1 Credit risk (continued)

Collateral held as security and other credit enhancements

The valuation and management of collateral have been documented in the credit risk
management policies and procedures which cover acceptance criteria, validity of
collateral, loan-to-value ratio, haircut ratio, valuation and insurance, etc. The collateral is
revalued on a regular basis, though the frequency and the method used varies with the
type of collateral involved and the nature and the risk of the underlying credit. The Group
has established a mechanism to update the value of its main type of collateral, property
collateral including the use of public indices on a portfolio basis. Collateral is insured with
the Group as the primary beneficiary. In the personal sector, the main types of collateral
are real estate, cash deposits and securities. In the commercial and industrial sector, the
types of collateral include real estate, securities, cash deposits, vessels, aircraft, etc.

For loans guaranteed by a third party, the Group will assess the guarantor’s financial
condition, credit history and ability to meet obligations.

As at 31 December 2021, the fair value of collateral held by the Group that was permitted
to sell or re-pledge in the absence of default by the borrower amounted to HK$20,891
million (2020: HK$5,168 million). The Group had not sold or re-pledged such collateral
(2020: Nil). These transactions are conducted under terms that are usual and customary
to reverse repurchase and securities borrowing agreements.
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4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.1 ERERE (8
(A) EERBEE

4.1 Credit risk (continued)

(A) Credit exposures
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The maximum credit exposure is the worst case scenario of exposure to the Group
without taking into account any collateral held or other credit enhancements. For on-
balance sheet assets, the maximum exposure to credit risk equals their carrying
amount. For letters of guarantee issued, the maximum exposure to credit risk is the
maximum amount that the Group could be required to pay if the guarantees are called
upon. For loan commitment and other credit related liabilities, the maximum exposure
to credit risk is the full amount of the committed facilities.

The nature of the collateral held and other credit enhancements and their financial
effect to the different classes of the Group’s financial assets are as follows.

Balances and placements with banks and other financial institutions

These exposures are generally considered to be low risk due to the nature of the
counterparties. Collateral is generally not sought on these assets.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss and investment in securities

Collateral is generally not sought on debt securities.

153



@ ¥ 84 tsmn)aman

BANK OF CHINA (HONG KONG) LIMITED

PRI (80
4. CRVEBREE (8)

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.1 ERERE (8
() EERBEE (8

4.1 Credit risk (continued)

(A) Credit exposures (continued)
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Derivative financial instruments

The Master Agreement published by the International Swaps and Derivatives
Association, Inc. (‘ISDA Master Agreement”) is the preferred agreement for
documenting derivative activities of the Group. It provides the contractual framework
under which dealing activities of over-the-counter (“OTC”) transactions are
conducted, and sets out close-out netting provisions upon termination following the
occurrence of an event of default or a termination event. In addition, if deemed
necessary, Credit Support Annexes will be included to form part of the Schedule to
the ISDA Master Agreement. Under the Credit Support Annexes, collateral is passed
from one counterparty to another, as appropriate, to mitigate the credit exposures.

Advances and other accounts, loan commitments and financial guarantee contracts

The general types of collateral are disclosed on page 152. Advances and other
accounts, loan commitments and financial guarantee contracts are collateralised to
the extent considered appropriate by the Group taking account of the risk assessment
of individual exposures. The collateral coverage of advances to customers is
analysed on pages 167 to 168. The components and nature of loan commitments and
financial guarantee contracts are disclosed in Note 38. Regarding the commitments
that are unconditionally cancellable without prior notice, the Group would assess the
necessity to withdraw the credit line in case where the credit quality of a borrower
deteriorates. For loan commitments and financial guarantee contracts, 12.34% (2020:
13.19%) were covered by collateral as at 31 December 2021.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.1 Credit risk (continued)

(B) Advances and other accounts

Gross advances and other accounts before impairment allowances are summarised
by product type as follows:

2021 2020
BEEET BEEHET
HK$’m HK$'m
Advances to customers
Personal
- Mortgages 386,220 340,587
- Credit cards 12,096 10,981
- Others 109,262 105,445
Corporate
- Commercial loans 1,017,200 973,746
- Trade finance 73,611 66,497
1,598,389 1,497,256
Trade bills 7,264 9,826
Advances to banks and other financial
institutions 727 1,898
1,606,380 1,508,980

Advances with a specific repayment date are classified as overdue when the principal
or interest is past due and remains unpaid. Advances repayable by regular
instalments are classified as overdue when an instalment payment is past due and
remains unpaid. Advances repayable on demand are classified as overdue either
when a demand for repayment has been served on the borrower but repayment has
not been made in accordance with the instruction or when the advances have
remained continuously to exceed the approved limit that was advised to the borrower.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.1 Credit risk (continued)

(B) Advances and other accounts (continued)

Advances classified as Stage 3 may not necessarily result in impairment loss where
the advances are fully collateralised.

Gross advances and other accounts before impairment allowances are analysed by
internal credit grade and stage classification as follows:

2021
E—PEE EFEE B T
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
BREET BEEET BEHET  B¥EET
HK$’'m HK$’'m HK$’'m HK$’'m
Advances to customers
Pass 1,557,572 25,138 - 1,582,710
Special mention 3,039 8,319 - 11,358
Substandard or below - - 4,321 4,321
1,560,611 33,457 4,321 1,598,389
Trade bills
Pass 7,264 - - 7,264
Special mention - - - -
Substandard or below - - - -
7,264 - - 7,264
Advances to banks and
other financial
institutions
Pass 727 - - 727
Special mention - - - -
Substandard or below - - - -
727 - - 727
1,568,602 33,457 4,321 1,606,380
Impairment allowances (4,843) (2,406) (2,632) (9,881)
1,563,759 31,051 1,689 1,596,499
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4.1 Credit risk (continued)

(B) Advances and other accounts (continued)

(€:-))
2020
EIEE B FEIHER dast
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
R ETT TR ST BWEHETT B EET
HK$'m HK$'m HK$'m HK$'m
EFEER Advances to customers
=y Pass 1,466,038 20,352 - 1,486,390
TERE Special mention 3,846 3,026 - 6,872
KERBLLT Substandard or below - - 3,994 3,994
1,469,884 23,378 3,994 1,497,256
HERE Trade bills
Btk Pass 9,826 - - 9,826
TRERE Special mention - - - -
RERBLLT Substandard or below - - - -
9,826 - - 9,826
$R1T R H A& Rl AR Advances to banks and
5% other financial
institutions
=y Pass 1,898 - - 1,898
TERE Special mention - - - -
RERBLLT Substandard or below - - - -
1,898 - - 1,898
1,481,608 23,378 3,994 1,508,980
TRAE Impairment allowances (5,405) (1,115) (2,652) 9,172)
1,476,203 22,263 1,342 1,499,808
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.1 Credit risk (continued)

(B) Advances and other accounts (continued)

Reconciliation of impairment allowances and gross amount for advances and other

accounts is as follows:

2021
[ -l :924 EFEE E=MEEE 4Eat
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
BEEETT BREET  A¥EER B¥EET
HK$’m HK$’m HK$’'m HK$’m
Impairment allowances
At 1 January 2021 5,405 1,115 2,652 9,172
Transfer to Stage 1 105 (103) (2) -
Transfer to Stage 2 (226) 242 (16) -
Transfer to Stage 3 (14) (13) 27 -
Changes arising from
transfer of stage (82) 1,062 963 1,943
Charge for the year() 2,590 682 703 3,975
Reversal for the year( (2,912) (473) (375) (3,760)
Changes in models 5 (65) (42) (102)
Write-offs - - (1,247) (1,247)
Recoveries - - 90 90
Exchange difference
and others (28) (41) (121) (190)
At 31 December 2021 4,843 2,406 2,632 9,881
Charged to income
statement (Note 12) 1,966
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4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.1 FEEE (8
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4.1 Credit risk (continued)

(B) Advances and other accounts (continued)

(&)
2021
E—TEE 924 FE=FEE: Qe
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
AEEETT ABEEET A¥aEn A¥EER
HK$’'m HK$’'m HK$’'m HK$’'m
LEEE Gross amount
w2021 FE1H1H At 1 January 2021 1,481,608 23,378 3,994 1,508,980
LB S 123 Transfer to Stage 1 1,472 (1,455) (7) -
TR TR Transfer to Stage 2 (15,700) 15,726 (26) -
P = R Transfer to Stage 3 (1,392) (229) 1,621 -
B R b Net change in
exposures 104,338 (4,008) (33) 100,297
sy Write-offs - - (1,247) (1,247)
PR 7 RE Ky HoAh Exchange difference
and others (1,724) 45 29 (1,650)
2202112 431 H At 31 December 2021 1,568,602 33,457 4,321 1,606,380
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4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.1 Credit risk (continued)

(B) Advances and other accounts (continued)

2020
FPEEE 5 IEES HPEE HEEt
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
AlEEET  BNEERT BYEET BEET
HK$'m HK$'m HK$'m HK$'m
Impairment allowances
At 1 January 2020 4,564 297 2,175 7,036
Transfer to Stage 1 96 (94) 2) -
Transfer to Stage 2 (166) 177 (11) -
Transfer to Stage 3 (8) (19) 27 -
Changes arising from
transfer of stage . (76) 782 772 1,478
Charge for the year() 2,894 104 300 3,298
Reversal for the year(i) (1,920) (132) (235) (2,287)
Write-offs - - (561) (561)
Recoveries - - 136 136
Exchange difference
and others 21 - 51 72
At 31 December 2020 5,405 1,115 2,652 9,172
Charged to income
statement (Note 12) 2,489

(i) Charge for the year comprises the impairment losses attributable to new loans,
remaining loans without stage transfers, and changes to risk parameters, etc.

(i) Reversal for the year comprises reversal of impairment losses attributable to loan
repaid, remaining loans without stage transfers, and changes to risk parameters,

etc.
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4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.1 FEEE (8
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4.1 Credit risk (continued)

(B) Advances and other accounts (continued)

(&)
2020
ETEE B E=IEE T
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
I ETT BT ET AWEET A ETT
HK$'m HK$'m HK$'m HK$'m
e Gross amount
20201 H1H At 1 January 2020 1,412,107 4,213 3,217 1,419,537
2 o — [ Transfer to Stage 1 1,207 (1,197) (10) -
B 5 T I Transfer to Stage 2 (22,369) 22,384 (15) -
R =R Transfer to Stage 3 (804) (403) 1,207 -
B R Net change in
exposures 87,157 (1,628) 62 85,591
Hig Write-offs - - (561) (561)
D 2 2R S LA Exchange difference
and others 4,310 9 94 4,413
72020412 H 31 H At 31 December 2020 1,481,608 23,378 3,994 1,508,980
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4.1 Credit risk (continued)

(a) Impaired advances

(B) Advances and other accounts (continued)

Impaired advances to customers are analysed as follows:

Gross advances
to customers

Percentage of
gross advances
to customers

Impairment
allowances
made in respect
of such advances

2021 2020
BT HEEL FFE ST
B EAIER
J{E Classified or Ji{E  Classified or
Impaired impaired Impaired impaired
BEEET BEEERT AEEsET BEEET
HK$’m HK$’m HK$'m HK$'m
4,321 4,321 3,994 3,994
0.27% 0.27% 0.27% 0.27%
2,632 2,632 2,652 2,652

Classified or impaired advances to customers represent advances which are either
classified as “substandard”, “doubtful” or “loss” under the Group’s classification of

loan quality, or classified as Stage 3.

The impairment allowances were made after taking into account the value of

collateral in respect of the credit-impaired advances.
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4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.1 Credit risk (continued)

(B) Advances and other accounts (continued)

(a) Impaired advances (continued)

Current market value of collateral
held against the covered portion
of impaired advances to
customers

Covered portion of impaired
advances to customers

Uncovered portion of impaired
advances to customers

2021 2020
BEEET A & T
HK$’'m HK$'m
2,260 3,046
1,062 1,558
3,259 2,436

As at 31 December 2021, there were no impaired trade bills and advances to

banks and other financial institutions (2020: Nil).
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4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.1 Credit risk (continued)

(B) Advances and other accounts (continued)

(b) Advances overdue for more than three months

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

The gross amount of advances overdue for more than three months is analysed

as follows:

2021 2020
L5 SRR & PSR
Bath Horth
% of gross % of gross
S50 advances to $%H advances to
Amount customers Amount customers
AEEET BEHET
HK$’'m HK$'m
Gross advances to
customers which
have been
overdue for:
- six months or
less but over
three months 245 0.02% 174 0.01%
- one year or
less but over
six months 1,291 0.08% 718 0.05%
- over one year 1,488 0.09% 2,137 0.14%
Advances overdue
for over three
months 3,024 0.19% 3,029 0.20%
Impairment
allowances
made in respect
of such
advances
- Stage 3 1,907 2,332
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4, SRIEEEE (8) 4. Financial risk management (continued)

41 EERE (8) 4.1 Credit risk (continued)
(B) Bk K HAMARIE (B) Advances and other accounts (continued)
(&
(b) #uHA#EE 3EH (b) Advances overdue for more than three months (continued)
ZE= (&)
2021 2020
BEEET A EETT
HK$’'m HK$'m
AR Current market value of collateral held
ENEFERZ against the covered portion of such
AR B advances to customers 1,196 1,312
AR EE Covered portion of such advances to
p-9=5-¢ ¢ customers 814 913
IR R E Uncovered portion of such advances to
EZERPE customers 2,210 2,116
18 3 & K B E Collateral held against overdue or impaired loans is principally represented by
BRI S charges over business assets such as commercial, residential premises and
HEFEAERE vessels for corporate loans and mortgages over residential properties for personal
FHETHMEHE loans.
ARG - FEE
AR ~ B
BEREETHNES
Y -
W 2021 & 12 H As at 31 December 2021, there were no trade bills and advances to banks and
31 H & mbE other financial institutions overdue for more than three months (2020: Nil).
wIEAZHESE
B SR AT R H A

& b B K
(2020 £ : fii) -
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4, SRIEEEE (8) 4. Financial risk management (continued)

41 FERE (8) 4.1 Credit risk (continued)
(B) Bk HAMARIE (B) Advances and other accounts (continued)
(&)
(c) KEEEZ (c) Rescheduled advances
2021 2020
5 R 1% PR
Btk Hirth
% of gross % of gross
&5 advances to £%H advances to
Amount customers Amount customers
BEEET BIEETT
HK$’'m HK$'m
MEHEFPEK Rescheduled
SFHE( B E advances to
ST S customers net
3{EAZE of amounts
#Ba7) included in
“Advances
overdue for
more than
three months” 216 0.01% 178 0.01%
LEHERTERN Rescheduled advances are those advances that have been restructured and
& FN A S AR renegotiated between the bank and borrowers because of deterioration in the
B 19 TG 4 s 9 financial position of the borrower or the inability of the borrower to meet the
TEEEEEERE original repayment schedule, and the revised repayment terms, either of interest
R ARSRITEA R R or the repayment period, are “non-commercial” to the Group. Rescheduled
NEF T EBK advances, which have been overdue for more than three months under the
FrEIREHER revised repayment terms, are included in “Advances overdue for more than three
HEsT&ROERH months”.
FIE S8 A &
B EE
[T NEl S
1 - BETERGT
Hik 2 KEHE

HATE R A 3
& H - HEREE
M igndiliEa i 3 H
ZEGK e
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(d) EFEEREFE

() TS

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.1 Credit risk (continued)

(B) Advances and other accounts (continued)

(d) Concentration of advances to customers

(i) Sectoral analysis of gross advances to customers

F BRI
UTRNERE The following analysis of the gross advances to customers by industry sector is
BB AT based on the categories with reference to the completion instructions for the
ST H HKMA return of loans and advances.
(AE Vax ViE
WA B &R
BRZEER
HWRAVERTE
RIS o
2021
BB BUERER -
HAE R o FRE=
EZEE RELSE BERER - BB
B EERGEE % covered BRRME EEER Impairment
Gross by collateral Classified Impairment  allowances -
advances to or other or #WHY allowances - Stages 1
customers security impaired Overdue Stage 3 and 2
EEEET A¥EERT BEEET AWEET A¥EET
HK$’'m HK$’m HK$’m HK$’m HK$’m
TEEAHERZ &K Loans for use in Hong Kong
TrE4RhsE Industrial, commercial and
financial
- WG - Property development 166,208 26.82% - 171 - 899
- VPR E - Property investment 78,125 62.89% 28 41 1 248
- SRlE - Financial concerns 24,163 0.82% - - - 39
- RREERA - Stockbrokers 3,070 80.08% - - - 5
- i EEE - Wholesale and retail trade 27,281 47.95% 260 304 121 243
- Bt - Manufacturing 44,492 9.12% 31 3 20 180
- R R - Transport and transport
equipment 62,000 22.79% - - - 368
- (R ESE) - Recreational activities 176 97.15% - - - -
- ERER - Information technology 31,753 0.30% 32 32 20 61
- Hifthr - Others 145,302 43.76% 51 266 29 359
fEA Individuals
- EEEEAHEST - Loans for the purchase of
B~ s flats in Home Ownership
RS Scheme, Private Sector
N . Participation Scheme
HEEEH 4
;;Eﬂ#gj@%z“ﬁ and Tenants Purchase
S Scheme 34,776 99.49% 15 221 - 21
- [EEEM YR - Loans for purchase of
55K other residential
properties 349,645 99.95% 129 1,153 1 129
- [SFREER - Credit card advances 12,079 - 91 419 48 174
- Hifitr - Others 103,440 95.13% 117 469 67 196
TERS{IF 2 S Total loans for use in Hong
Kong 1,082,510 62.26% 754 3,079 307 2,922
EoaE Trade financing 73,611 15.17% 517 498 385 181
TEEABLINEHZ & Loans for use outside Hong
Kong 442,268 4.95% 3,050 2,703 1,940 4,142
Gross advances to customers 1,598,389 44.23% 4,321 6,280 2,632 7,245
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(&

4.1 Credit risk (continued)

d) EFERETE

(&

(i) #TITED B

TEEBEHZ &K
TREemcE

- YRR

- VERIE

- ERiE

- PRERL

- s Bk

- R

- (RHPES)

- EREEL

- Hf

(VN

- HEERHET
EIRINNG
[EEE AR
HEst#Tr &

ETe
K

- BEHMEEYRE S

- [SARERK
- Hft
TET{HE - B

ATRE

TEBABSNER 2 85K

G

BB EE

Loans for use in Hong Kong
Industrial, commercial and

financial

- Property development

- Property investment
- Financial concerns
- Stockbrokers

- Wholesale and retail trade

- Manufacturing

- Transport and transport

equipment

- Recreational activities
- Information technology

- Others

Individuals
- Loans for the purchase of
flats in Home Ownership

4. Financial risk management (continued)

(B) Advances and other accounts (continued)

(d) Concentration of advances to customers (continued)

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

(i) Sectoral analysis of gross advances to customers (continued)

Scheme, Private Sector

Participation Scheme
and Tenants Purchase

Scheme

- Loans for purchase of

other residential
properties
- Credit card advances
- Others

Total loans for use in Hong

Kong

Trade financing

Loans for use outside Hong

Kong

Gross advances to customers

2020

FEA LB IREAER -

HoAt A BHE—

HEZHIEE FrEDE TRAEAER - M
HEEHEHE % covered SR E HfEE Impairment
Gross by collateral Classified Impairment  allowances -
advances to or other or SATHA allowances - Stages 1
customers security impaired Overdue Stage 3 and 2
BREEHETT EEEETT  BEEHET BREETT VEUTER
HK$'m HK$'m HK$'m HK$'m HK$'m
132,966 27.12% - 1 - 803
64,768 67.95% 111 184 15 186
25,066 0.73% - - - 54
1,656 78.86% - - - 3
30,523 43.12% 198 239 109 411
53,629 8.05% 8 9 4 290
74,633 23.05% 260 - - 598
198 9.90% - - - 2
25,579 0.81% 97 99 13 33
131,571 47.23% 18 200 4 409
27,809 99.33% 18 183 - 17
311,070 99.92% 140 1,332 1 137
10,959 - 106 366 95 151
100,422 94.34% 126 537 81 384
990,849 61.74% 1,082 3,150 322 3,478
66,497 15.36% 569 573 372 202
439,910 5.29% 2,343 2,217 1,958 2,840
1,497,256 43.10% 3,994 5,940 2,652 6,520
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4. CRVEBREE (8)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

41 FERE (8) 4.1 Credit risk (continued)

(B) ERXRIEARE
(&
d) EFERETE
(&

(B) Advances and other accounts (continued)

(d) Concentration of advances to customers (continued)

() #HIT¥ETEZ (i) Sectoral analysis of gross advances to customers (continued)

B E A

(%)
A A 2 E For those industry sectors constitute not less than 10% of the Group’s gross
& B advances to customers, the amounts of new impairment allowances charged to

the income statement, and classified or impaired loans written off during the year
are shown below:

FAH 10%H]
7% Pl

L T
E2EMH - REF
i B8 7 7E 43 M
B E & KA
T
2021 2020
MR E R E
ik PEAIEN= 1Y Wiz BB ETK
WAEXEHE  Classified or JHIEMEME  Classified or
New impaired New impaired
impairment loans impairment loans
allowances written off allowances written off
BEHET  BEEET AR ETT A EE T
HK$’m HK$’'m HK$'m HK$'m
A Z 85K Loans for use in Hong Kong
Tr<pRicE Industrial, commercial and
financial
- Ve - Property development 533 - 428 -
@A Individuals
- S EM R S - Loans for purchase of other
residential properties 57 - 52 -
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MBEHENE (&) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
4, SRIEEEE (8) 4. Financial risk management (continued)

41 FERE (8) 4.1 Credit risk (continued)
(B) Sk HAIRIE (B) Advances and other accounts (continued)
(&)
d) EEEHZERE (d) Concentration of advances to customers (continued)
(&)
(if) 2 3 B 1 4K oy (ii) Geographical analysis of gross advances to customers

Blzm P ER
A
THIRRE F The following geographical analysis of advances to customers is based on the
B & locations of the counterparties, after taking into account the transfer of risk. For
% i BRI an advance to customer guaranteed by a party situated in a location different
T HEF 2R from the customer, the risk will be transferred to the location of the guarantor.

FEMY - A ERE K
JE\ R A 2 -

BEEFESRZ
¥& O~ A BT AE 3
H125 5 fiT 4 3
ENGIRRUIE s
A EERA
ZFTAEHt o
PSR Gross advances to customers
2021 2020
BEEET R ET
HK$’'m HK$'m
HH Hong Kong 1,332,106 1,218,025
o [5] A Chinese Mainland 95,416 112,527
HAth Others 170,867 166,704
1,598,389 1,497,256
MEEERE Impairment allowances made in
SEEH 2R respect of the gross advances to
{EXEMHE - customers - Stages 1 and 2
£T—RE—
PR B
ik Hong Kong 3,830 4,551
o [5] A HE Chinese Mainland 715 656
HAth Others 2,700 1,313
7,245 6,520
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MBEHENE (&) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
4, SRIEEEE (8) 4. Financial risk management (continued)

41 FERE (8) 4.1 Credit risk (continued)
(B) B EHAIRTE (B) Advances and other accounts (continued)
(&
d) EEFEHRETE (d) Concentration of advances to customers (continued)
(&
(i) FZ I S I 4y (ii) Geographical analysis of gross advances to customers (continued)
B2 % PR

HaEd ()

HHIERK Overdue advances
2021 2020
AEEHET B EHETT
HK$’'m HK$'m
A Hong Kong 3,954 4,115
o [ A HE, Chinese Mainland 296 567
HAl Others 2,030 1,258
6,280 5,940
BRHAERIE Impairment allowances made in respect
HZHEE of the overdue advances - Stage 3
- BE=R
B
ik Hong Kong 741 1,308
o [5] AT Chinese Mainland 101 320
oA Others 1,173 908
2,015 2,536
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4. CRVEBREE (8)

4.1 FEEE (8

(B) ERXRIEARE
(&
d) EFERETE
(&

(i) f2 ot B 18 3 o
Bz P ER
HaEd ()

Ry 2 2 BB
EERK

&
A
Hdth

B E 0 TR
AR BRI
H 2 R E 2%
# - B=R
B

o
P
HoAttr

4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.1 Credit risk (continued)

(B) Advances and other accounts (continued)

(d) Concentration of advances to customers (continued)

(ii) Geographical analysis of gross advances to customers (continued)

Classified or impaired advances

2021 2020
BEEET AEEET
HK$’'m HK$'m
Hong Kong 2,123 2,194
Chinese Mainland 207 404
Others 1,991 1,396
4,321 3,994
Impairment allowances made in respect
of the classified or impaired
advances - Stage 3
Hong Kong 1,111 1,410
Chinese Mainland 107 331
Others 1,414 911
2,632 2,652
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WEHENE (&) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
4, SRIEEEE (8) 4. Financial risk management (continued)

41 FERE (8) 4.1 Credit risk (continued)
(C) W& (C) Repossessed assets
RAER - AR During the year, the Group obtained assets by taking possession of collateral held as
R AT S AT (U [ security. The nature and carrying value of these assets held as at 31 December are
B 7E FE T LIS summarised as follows:

12 H 31 HFEAIE
FE - HIEE IR A

A
2021 2020
BEEET AR ETT
HK$’m HK$'m
EESUES Commercial properties 122 -
TV Industrial properties - 5
Y Residential properties 29 18
151 23
REEFA 2021 £ 12 The estimated market value of repossessed assets held by the Group as at 31
H 31 HEFFgmE December 2021 amounted to HK$274 million (2020: HK$67 million). The repossessed
BEEZAE B assets comprise properties in respect of which the Group has acquired access or
2.74 {&51(2020 4 : control (e.g. through court proceedings or voluntary actions by the proprietors
A2 0.67 f8IT) - 32 concerned) for release in full or in part of the obligations of the borrowers.
95 7 45 5] 3 2 3
EHH EY 15 P B B2
HIRERIZE (A0
EERFEETE
JiEAZ AR & T
S ) TEHERA
HY 18 75 1T 2 BE
BB IR o
U EE ERY IR When the repossessed assets are not readily convertible into cash, the Group may
REJIZ BB » A consider the following alternatives:
EEFREBE T
H 7=
- R EE(ERR - adjusting the selling prices
- HEIREE O - selling the loans together with the assets
HEEK
- ZHHEBEH - arranging loan restructuring
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WEHENE (&) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
4, SRIEEEE (8) 4. Financial risk management (continued)

41 =88k (8) 4.1 Credit risk (continued)
(D) FESRIT M EH ARt (D) Balances and placements with banks and other financial institutions
T2 G568 R EHATEIR
FEHURE SR 2 (F Balances and placements with banks and other financial institutions before impairment
SRTT B EHAh 4 il i allowances are analysed by internal credit grade and stage classification as follows:
2 & ik B PR R
N B (E R AR R P B
ST
2021
FEE  BIREE BE=REE &t
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
WESETT BYEET BYEET B¥EET
HK$’m HK$’'m HK$’'m HK$’'m
R Central banks
= Pass 160,930 - - 160,930
ETERE Special mention - - - -
AR LT Substandard or below R . R .
160,930 - - 160,930
HASRfT R HAr 5 Rl i Other banks and other
financial institutions
Etg Pass 283,999 - - 283,999
EERE Special mention . - - -
RERSLLT Substandard or below - - - -
283,999 - - 283,999
444,929 - - 444,929
JEE 2 Impairment allowances (23) - - (23)
444,906 - - 444,906
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4. SRIRREE (&) 4

4.1 FEEE (8

(D) FESRIT R HAth R
T SRR ERITRIR
€-))

HrORERAT
=y
BT
REFLAT

HA SR T R H A it
=L

HERE

KL

IR EAER

Financial risk management (continued)

4.1 Credit risk (continued)

(D) Balances and placements with banks and other financial institutions
(continued)

2020
ETEE BT EERE dast
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
BEEET BEEET BEEET BFEET
HK$'m HK$'m HK$'m HK$'m
Central banks

Pass 183,571 - - 183,571
Special mention - - - -
Substandard or below - - - -
183,571 - - 183,571

Other banks and other

financial institutions
Pass 241,331 - - 241,331
Special mention - - - -
Substandard or below - - - -
241,331 - - 241,331
424,902 - - 424,902
Impairment allowances (8) - - (8)
424,894 - - 424,894
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.1 FEEE (8
(D) FESRIT R HAth R

4.1 Credit risk (continued)

(D) Balances and placements with banks and other financial institutions

T SRR ERITRIR
€-))

FESRAT e T Ath <5z b

(continued)

Reconciliation of impairment allowances for balances and placements with banks and

1 > 4k N E HATE I other financial institutions is as follows:
2 RRAE B D
FIRATR
2021
FIEE  ECME  E=RE fEat
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
WEEETT BYEET BYEET BYEET
HK$’m HK$’'m HK$’'m HK$’m
w2021 FE1H1H At 1 January 2021 8 - - 8
e PRtz A > S Changes arising from transfer
of stage - - - -
IR R Net charge for the year 15 - - 15
2021 412 H 31 At 31 December 2021
H 23 - - 23
fEstizs (Mifs Charged to income statement
12) (Note 12) 15
2020
E—TEE EISE FE=REE HaEtT
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
BT ETT BEHET BEHET BEEET
HK$'m HK$'m HK$'m HK$'m
72020 FE1 H1H At 1 January 2020 3 _ - 3
[es ERfiiRe e A > SR ) Changes arising from transfer
of stage - - - -
NGRS gl Net charge for the year 5 - , 5
#2020 £ 12 H 31 At 31 December 2020
H 8 - - 8
fEztlgsze (IfsE Charged to income statement
12) (Note 12) 5

2021123315
R A SR E 2 AR
SRAT R LA < il AR
Z &5 Bk R B W TF TR
(2020 £ : 4&) -

As at 31 December 2021, there were no overdue or impaired balances and placements
with banks and other financial institutions (2020: Nil).
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WEHENE (&) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
4, SRIEEEE (8) 4. Financial risk management (continued)

41 EERE (8) 4.1 Credit risk (continued)
(E) BB TERE (E) Debt securities and certificates of deposit
TR B DLEET R The following tables present an analysis of the carrying value of debt securities and
Pl B 53 BT 2 (B 558 5 certificates of deposit by issue rating and stage classification. In the absence of such
B AT S MR T - TR issue ratings, the ratings designated for the issuers are reported.

STRTARATIEICT - Al
GHET ARYRFAR R

L o
2021 2020
B EHET AHET
HK$’'m HK$'m
DIANEESB T AR Investment in securities at fair value
- EULES 2 Bz through other comprehensive
& income
- PEE - Stage 1
Aaa Aaa 132,154 115,062
Aal £ Aa3 Aa1 to Aa3 232,356 151,807
A1 £ A3 A1to A3 447,446 429,534
A3 LI Lower than A3 20,511 19,064
faTak Unrated 21,634 15,868
854,101 731,335
- EBIRE - Stage 2 - -
- FE=PEER - Stage 3 - .
854,101 731,335
Hor o JRE AR Of which: impairment allowances (268) (238)
DR, - N = Investment in securities at amortised
HRE cost
- PEE - Stage 1
Aaa Aaa 60,600 42,880
Aal &£ Aa3 Aa1 to Aa3 18,649 3,194
A1 £ A3 A1to A3 46,170 4,563
A3 IR Lower than A3 6,364 3,573
fmaTak Unrated 1,880 894
133,663 55,104
- I - Stage 2 - -
- BEPREE - Stage 3 - .
133,663 55,104
TR HE Impairment allowances (34) (11)
133,629 55,093
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.1 FEEE (8
(E) SRR AT

4.1 Credit risk (continued)

(E) Debt securities and certificates of deposit (continued)

&)
2021 2020
AEEET A EETT
HK$’m HK$'m
DI ESEE A Financial assets at fair value through
B2 SREE profit or loss
Aaa Aaa 1,348 1,095
Aa1l £ Aa3 Aa1 to Aa3 15,416 22,573
A1 ZE A3 A1to A3 5,854 3,216
A3 DI Lower than A3 1,309 1,070
TR Unrated 2,555 1,324
26,482 29,278
REEFE Flii 5z 2 The preparation basis of the current year disclosure above has been refined to align
YmBl R EH with the credit risk management policy of the Group.
(EUBAEREEE
JeE gz & B B SR —
-
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4.1 FEEE (8

(E) fREsEH R
(&

e 77 R ks
ZIB(EAE B
MITRANT

PATEB(LE AR
el e P
FEHE

H2021E1H1H

Vil PR e A 2 SR

IR IFHE
VR §2 2= R LAt

#2021 £ 12 A 31
H

EEREnE NG

12)

DR AR B 258
iy

H2021E1H1H

P PRl 2 2 B )

AR

#2021 £ 12 H 31
H

[EErE e

12)

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.1 Credit risk (continued)

(E) Debt securities and certificates of deposit (continued)

Reconciliation of impairment allowances for debt securities and certificates of deposit

is as follows:

Investment in
securities at fair

value through other

comprehensive
income
At 1 January 2021
Changes arising from
transfer of stage
Net charge for the
year
Exchange difference
and others

At 31 December 2021

Charged to income
statement (Note 12)

Investment in
securities at
amortised cost

At 1 January 2021

Changes arising from
transfer of stage

Net charge for the
year

At 31 December 2021

Charged to income
statement (Note 12)
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2021
e E MR E 92 gt
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
AEEEET AYEET  BPEET AEEET
HK$’'m HK$’'m HK$’m HK$’'m
238 - - 238
29 - - 29
1 - - 1
268 - - 268
29
1" - - 1
23 - - 23
34 - - 34
23
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MBEHENE (&) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
4, SRIEEEE (8) 4. Financial risk management (continued)

41 FERE (8) 4.1 Credit risk (continued)
(BE) BEBZBEETRE (E) Debt securities and certificates of deposit (continued)
&)
2020
F—PEE B P Hat
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
AlgEE T BREET  BNEET AEET
HK$'m HK$'m HK$'m HK$'m
DA ESEET AR Investment in
A2 ER securities at fair
FHLT value through other
comprehensive
income
20201 H1H At 1 January 2020 147 . - 147
Ve Rl Rt s A > S5 ) Changes arising from
transfer of stage - - - -
ENEEE ] Net charge for the
year 90 - - 90
D 2 224 R LA Exchange difference
and others 1 - - 1
#2020 4 12 H 31 At 31 December 2020
H 238 - - 238
s (I Charged to income
12) statement (Note 12) 90
DB SRAST BB Investment in
KB securities at
amortised cost
20201 H1H At 1 January 2020 20 - - 20
P B A 2 ) Changes arising from
transfer of stage - - - -
NS T ] Net reversal for the
year 9) - - 9
#2020 £ 12 H 31 At 31 December 2020
H 11 - - 11
BitWmE (M Credited to income
12) statement (Note 12) 9)
#2021 F 12 H 31 As at 31 December 2021, there were no overdue or impaired debt securities and
H - 2 mEAsCRE certificates of deposit (2020: Nil).

Z IR A7
i (20204 : f) -
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WEHENE (&) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
4, SRIEEEE (8) 4. Financial risk management (continued)

41 zERE (8) 4.1 Credit risk (continued)
(F) S50KsE Bt (F) Loan commitments and financial guarantee contracts
&H
BRI SR Loan commitments and financial guarantee contracts are analysed by internal credit
GEFENE S SRR grade and stage classification as follows:
FePEE AR
2021
BB BTIBEE B=IEE &=t
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
B EHET BREET BEREET BEEET
HK$’'m HK$’'m HK$’'m HK$’'m
B R BIER Loan
&M commitments
and financial
guarantee
contracts
“ik Pass 769,834 2,939 - 772,773
R Special mention 2,062 1,244 - 3,306
RERELLT Substandard or
below - - 403 403
771,896 4,183 403 776,482
2020
H—PEE 5 PEES =P HEEt
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
A EETT BEEHET BEEET BIEEETT
HK$'m HK$'m HK$'m HK$'m
EROREE B Bk Loan
&F commitments
and financial
guarantee
contracts
g Pass 763,841 3,007 - 766,848
TERE Special mention 1,640 1,225 - 2,865
REFELLT Substandard or
below - - 36 36
765,481 4,232 36 769,749
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4. CRVEBREE (8)

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

41 8RR (8) 4.1 Credit risk (continued)

(F) BRURHE R TER

(F) Loan commitments and financial guarantee contracts (continued)

&F (%)
BRSSO Reconciliation of impairment allowances for loan commitments and financial
& [E 2 B A ) guarantee contracts is as follows:
EFIRATE
2021
R BB BMER &=t
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
AEEHET BEEET  BEEET EEEET
HK$’m HK$’m HK$’'m HK$’m
2021 £E1 H1H At 1 January 2021 594 44 20 658
L ey R Transfer to Stage 1 11 (1) - -
%ﬁikk—ﬁbbﬁz Transfer to Stage 2 (6) 6 - -
$ = Transfer to Stage 3 (5) - 5 -
Fxﬁiiiﬁéfﬁizi‘ﬁéj} Changes arising from
transfer of stage (10) 3 133 126
AAEE () 15 Net (reversal)/charge
for the year (76) 33 (3) (46)
TR S ) Changes in models (66) (24) - (90)
D 2 2R S LA Exchange difference
and others (3) - (2) (5)
202112 H 31 H At 31 December 2021 439 51 153 643
Eaciaas (ffaE 12) Charged to income
statement (Note 12) 80
2020
—TEE B IEE E=IEE {5
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
AlEEETT  BNEERT  BEEET AEEHETT
HK$'m HK$'m HK$'m HK$'m
#2020 EE 1H1H At 1 January 2020 535 22 20 577
B —TE Transfer to Stage 1 13 (13) - -
ﬁ@%“ﬁﬁbﬁx Transfer to Stage 2 3) 3 - -
i%zyk‘ R Transfer to Stage 3 - - - -
Ve R fad s A S Changes arising from
transfer of stage (12) 35 - 23
RAEFHERE /. (48ED) Net charge/(reversal)
for the year 57 3) - 54
PEE 2 72 5 K LAt Exchange difference
and others 4 - - 4
202012 H 31 H At 31 December 2020 594 44 20 658
g esZs (e 12) Charged to income
statement (Note 12) 77
R B HOK EE Majority of credit risk exposures of loan commitments and financial guarantee contracts
EMBIEESREZ(E are classified as Stage 1 and categorised as “Pass” in the internal credit grade
< RIS B S throughout the year. Key stage transfer for the year mainly represents transfer of a
%R&;%g{*%fﬁ financial guarantee contract from Stage 1 to Stage 3 (2020: Nil).

PRt Gt o AEEH
P it 2 %ﬂﬂ%
ERERRE P
S 28 55 — [ E%( 2020
S
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BRI (8D
4. CRVEBREE (8)

41 =8EE (8

(G) FEBbHTaif X RefEHY

ERRRER

2021 48> fEE FEmi T
Tt S 2 BB
RO TR R
18 M et i 8 e s
TR e b R S
T PR BT K
AR DL 28 FE Bk
B - AEE TR —
ZH R P
DAE S 57 AT
HIS B AHEENE:

- KEEREG2ER
VPN N
HETT— 2RV AT I
B - DAGE AR EL
SRR BE ] BT
BHIRE - PR
Tt AESA R &
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.1 Credit risk (continued)

(G) Credit risk management in response to COVID-19 pandemic

In 2021, the vaccination programme has rolled out in various countries, economic
activities are expected to recover gradually. While the COVID-19 pandemic is still
evolving and recurring, the operating environment and financial situations of borrowers
remain challenging. The Group has taken a series of risk control measures in response
to the adverse impact and the uncertainty from the pandemic:

The Group coordinated with the HKMA in launching various relief measures for
individuals and commercial borrowers, in order to alleviate the financial pressure
and the impact of the pandemic. The terms of the payment holidays under relief
measures are granted on commercial basis, therefore the extension of relief
measures to the concerned borrowers do not automatically trigger the migration to
Stage 2 and Stage 3, and are not classified as rescheduled advances.

The implementation of quarantine measures severely hit several industries,
including Trading, Retail, Aviation, Tourism (including hospitality), Catering,
Entertainment etc. The Group continues to conduct risk-based assessments on the
borrowers within these industries. The impacts of the pandemic on the affected
borrowers, their respective mitigation measures and short-term refinancing plans
are also assessed to identify the vulnerable borrowers, who are put into the watchlist
for on-going close monitoring. The loan classification and internal ratings of these
borrowers are timely reviewed according to their latest situation.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.1 Credit risk (continued)

(G) Credit risk management in response to COVID-19 pandemic (continued)

- The Group performed stress tests of different scenarios of containment of COVID-
19 pandemic regularly to assess the potential impacts on credit loss and asset
quality.

- The Group reviews the forward looking macroeconomic factors used in ECL model
on a quarterly basis to reflect the dynamic changes of economic outlook. While the
relief measures implemented by the governments of various countries have
alleviated the default pressure of the affected borrowers under COVID-19
pandemic, the Group continues its close monitoring on those borrowers with
multiple extensions of relief measures being granted, and additional impairment
allowances have been made to address the potential higher default risk of this
portfolio upon expiration of the relief measures.

The Group continues to closely monitor the situation brought by the COVID-19
pandemic on the economy and adopt prudent asset quality management to avoid
significant deterioration in asset quality.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.2 Market risk
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Market risk refers to the risk of loss arising from movements in the value of foreign
exchange, interest rate, equity and commodity positions held by the Group due to the
volatility of financial market price (foreign exchange rate, interest rate, equity price,
commodity price). The Group adopts a moderate market risk appetite to achieve a balance
between risk and return. The Group’s objective in managing market risk is to secure healthy
growth of the treasury business, by the effective management of potential market risk in the
Group’s business, according to the Group’s overall risk appetite and strategy of the treasury
business on the basis of a well-established risk management regime and related
management measures.

In accordance with the Group’s corporate governance principles in respect of risk
management, the Board and RMC, senior management and functional departments/units
perform their duties and responsibilities to manage the Group’s market risk. The RMD is
responsible for the Group’s market risk management, assisting senior management to
perform their day-to-day duties, independently monitoring the market risk profile and
compliance of management policies and limits of the Group and BOCHK, and ensuring that
the aggregate and individual market risks are within acceptable levels.
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4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.2 iR (8) 4.2 Market risk (continued)
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The Group’s market risk management covers BOCHK and its subsidiaries. The Group
establishes market risk management policies to regulate BOCHK’s and its subsidiaries’
market risk management; meanwhile, the Group sets up the Group’s VaR and stress test
limits, which are allocated and monitored across the Group according to the business
requirements and risk tolerance levels. In line with the requirements set in the Group’s
policy, the subsidiaries formulate the detailed policies and procedures and are responsible
for managing their daily market risk.

The Group sets up market risk indicators and limits to identify, measure, monitor and control
market risk. Major risk indicators and limits include but are not limited to VaR, Stop Loss,
Open Position, Stress Testing and Sensitivity Analysis (Basis Point Value, Greeks), etc. To
meet management’s requirements, major risk indicators and limits are classified into three
levels, and are approved by the RMC, senior management or the head of the respective
business unit respectively. The treasury business units of BOCHK and subsidiaries (as for
Group Limit) are required to conduct their business within approved market risk indicators
and limits.
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4, SRIEEEE (8) 4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.2 migEE (8) 4.2 Market risk (continued)
(A) EbaE (A) VaR

AEEEB A EEERT The Group uses the VaR to measure and report general market risks to the RMC
=TS E - and senior management on a periodic basis. The Group adopts a uniformed VaR
T E s Z &g calculation model, using a historical simulation approach and two years of historical
SEEHAEWE - market data, to calculate the VaR of the Group and its subsidiaries over a one-day
AREE R4 holding period with a 99% confidence level, and sets up the VaR limit of the Group
bpEst =AY - EH and its subsidiaries.

SRS DL 252
LTSRS S
o SHE9%EEK

ETRARFH#HN
EEEH R & B
Ry E bR (E - WEE
BB AT
e (PR -
TR AL E— The following table sets out the VaR for all general market risk exposures! of the
TS s R A 1 Group.
JEFg At o
Sx4E 24F 24
L~ 127 31H REBE meEE  EERE
F At Minimum for Maximum for Average for
Year |31 December the year the year the year
AEEE T AFas T BREET BREET
HK$'m HK$'m HK$'m HK$'m
il e VaR for all market risk 2021 55.1 19.0 55.1 30.7
b fE 2020 27.4 17.5 50.1 31.1
B e L e VaR for foreign exchange 2021 25.3 13.2 50.8 25.2
risk 2020 27.8 6.5 30.8 211
L ARRFIZR R VaR for interest rate risk 2021 57.9 6.2 57.9 16.5
JENC R in the trading book 2020 101 5.8 35.6 18.5
A SRR B e\ VaR for equity risk 2021 2.2 0.2 34 1.2
JENC R in the trading book 2020 0.8 0.3 2.9 1.0
P e 2 SR (L VaR for commodity risk 2021 0.4 0.0 35.2 7.0
2020 25 0.0 11.2 1.8
e Note:
1R B FE 45 8 4 A DR i 1 1. Structural FX positions have been excluded.
HYEE -
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4, SRIEEEE (8) 4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.2 migEE (8) 4.2 Market risk (continued)
(A) EExE (8 (A) VaR (continued)

R G H 2R E Although there is a valuable guide to market risk, VaR should always be viewed in the

i35 B f 1y — JH & context of its limitations. For example:

B HtAHEE

PR > filan -

- PR EE S T 45 - the use of historical market data as a proxy for estimating future events may not
BE et ARk encompass all potential events, particularly those which are extreme in nature;
REEE KA A ]

REHBRAVTEIL >
HJZ — S 1F
o

- 1T RFEPEHNETE - the use of a one-day holding period assumes that all positions can be liquidated or
FiE BT EE hedged in one day. This may not fully reflect the market risk arising at times of
B E—H severe illiquidity, when a one-day holding period may be insufficient to liquidate or
WNEHRBE T - & hedge all positions fully;

THR R W BE 5T
RS
T EAE T 35 i
FERBRIE > FTRE
RETE1RFFAIN
EHSE A
TERS

RIEEZ - EHRA - the use of a 99% confidence level, by definition, does not take into account losses
99%E (FAK I » that might occur beyond this level of confidence; and

Bl R A 5 R A It

B A5 KF LI

HERAVESIE § DL

)4

- JE g E R DL - VaR is calculated on the basis of exposures outstanding at the close of business
% [ 45 S BF Ay UE and therefore does not necessarily reflect intra-day exposures.
st
[ 3 R — 7 S
5 W B Y JE

b
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.2 Market risk (continued)

(A)

(8)

VaR (continued)

The Group recognises these limitations by formulating stress test indicators and limits
to assess and manage the market risk uncovered by VaR. The stress testing
programme of the market risk includes sensitivity testing on changes in risk factors
with various degrees of severity, as well as scenario analysis on historical events
including the 1987 Equity Market Crash, 1994 Bond Market Crash, 1997 Asian
Financial Crisis, 2001 9-11 event and 2008 Financial Tsunami, etc.

Currency risk

The Group’s assets and liabilities are denominated in major currencies, particularly HK
Dollar, US Dollar and Renminbi. To ensure the currency risk exposure of the Group is
kept to an acceptable level, risk limits (e.g. Position and VaR limit) are used to serve
as a monitoring tool. Moreover, the Group seeks to minimise the gap between assets
and liabilities in the same currency. Foreign exchange contracts (e.g. FX swaps) are
usually used to manage FX risk associated with foreign currency-denominated assets
and liabilities.
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MBEHENE (&) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
4, SRIEEEE (8) 4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.2 migEE (8) 4.2 Market risk (continued)

(B) SMNERBE (&) (B) Currency risk (continued)
TEYIHAEH The following is a summary of the Group’s major foreign currency exposures arising from
HEXS - FHEX trading, non-trading and structural positions and is prepared with reference to the
5 R SR B R completion instructions for the HKMA return of foreign currency position. The net options
A E TSN position is calculated based on the basis of delta-weighted positions of all foreign
fegE > W EER exchange options contracts.
HIMNEH N Z &E
J&) R AVE RIS R
iémEd - HARERS 54
TR P 4 b A

AL T SREED
ERAE  RETES

’ﬁ o
2021
A EETEE
Equivalent in million of HK$
HAttsME  sPBeEER
=5t s HIE BT Other Total
us Pound Japanese 765 AR% Australian foreign foreign
Dollars Sterling Yen Euro Renminbi Dollars currencies currencies
HEEE Spot assets 961,064 37,456 183,101 48,897 468,441 38,125 65,866 1,802,950
s aE Spot liabilities (925,054)  (44,696)  (6,489) (37,534) (539,807) (32,656)  (64,950) (1,651,186)
BHIE A Forward purchases 898,663 26,016 13,259 32,049 558,540 15,695 53,741 1,597,963
EHIE Forward sales (926,171)  (18,696) (186,845) (43,463) (486,088) (21,120)  (55,066) (1,737,449)
HRrEAs e Net options position 1,357 19 (5) 1)  (1,331) 12 (1) 40
£,/ (58) #3%4 Net long/(short)
position 9,859 99 3,021 (52) (245) 56 (420) 12,318
2020
B EETEE

Equivalent in million of HK$

HAtsMEE  HMEsEEEE

FETT HLgE HIEl JATT Other Total

us Pound Japanese BRER AERHE  Australian foreign foreign

Dollars Sterling Yen Euro  Renminbi Dollars  currencies  currencies

IREEE Spot assets 910,330 30,074 160,779 45,926 381,197 36,620 62,007 1,626,933

HE&E Spot liabilities (830,528) (25,986) (8,006) (27,974) (366,800) (30,815) (60,400) (1,350,509)

EHIE A Forward purchases 616,841 23,737 18,050 39,254 365,271 15,063 54,352 1,132,568

AR Forward sales (676,931) (27,641) (170,914) (57,474) (382,087) (20,758) (56,136) (1,391,941)

HARERS J5%H Net options position 650 7 - @) (406) ) ) 247
£/ (Jd) #5941 Netlong/(short)

position 20,362 191 (91) (270) (2,825) 109 (178) 17,298
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MBEHENE (&) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
4, SRIEEEE (8) 4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.2 migEE (8) 4.2 Market risk (continued)
(B) SMNERBE (&) (B) Currency risk (continued)
2021
AREEITSE
Equivalent in million of HK$
_ B HAtisMNEE LA
eI ER JEREHER Other Total
us E-373 Malaysian Philippine foreign foreign
Dollars Baht Ringgit Peso  currencies  currencies
SEREME AR T EE Net structural position 30,911 2,225 2,789 1,854 4,054 41,833
2020
BEEETEE
Equivalent in million of HK$
Jo % G HAtyME PN
S MWER  JEREER Other Total
us BT Malaysian Philippine foreign foreign
Dollars Baht Ringgit Peso currencies currencies
EREMEE T EE Net structural position 30,042 2,697 3,024 1,881 4,677 42,321
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MBERENE (&) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
4. SRERERE (&) 4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.2 R (8) 4.2 Market risk (continued)

B E R R b
SRRy -
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FACREE
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eI SHER
IEE =AYy
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— EET (S AR
DR 1 2
D4

i - A
P~ AREERINA
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JARETT (R & X
BB EERE
EAVER AT -

(C) FlZ=Jz b (C) Interest rate risk

1) 222 i e o 45 IR ) Interest rate risk means the risks to a bank’s earnings and economic value arising from
K EEAER movements in interest rate and term structures of the bank’s asset and liability positions.
[ReSEETEREE The Group’s interest rate risk exposures are mainly structural. The major types of interest
SEE T v SR E 2SR rate risk from structural positions are:

1T EE G U 4 AT AR

E{E R Z B LA E

i o AN SRR3R L

P RiE EEARE S

MR R - IR

- Gap risk: mismatches in the maturity or repricing periods of assets and liabilities that
may affect net interest income and economic value;

- Basis risk: different pricing basis for different transactions resulting that the yield on
assets and cost of liabilities may change by different amounts within the same repricing
period; and

- Option risk: exercise of the options embedded in assets, liabilities or off-balance sheet
items that can cause a change in the cash flows of assets and liabilities.
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B ENE (&) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
4. SRERERE (&) 4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.2 mEER (8) 4.2 Market risk (continued)
C) FREE (&) (C) Interest rate risk (continued)
N [H B s T 2 The Group’s risk management framework applies also to interest rate risk management.
s B A 3 P A I = The Asset and Liability Management Committee (“ALCO”) exercises its oversight of
JE\ g B o MR interest rate risk in accordance with the “BOCHK Group Banking Book Interest Rate Risk
bz B gD Management Policy” approved by the RMC. The RMD is responsible for the Group’s
(P ER T AR EE R interest rate risk management. With the cooperation of the Financial Management
17 BEF1) 2= Jeal i 25 7 Department and Investment Management, etc., RMD assists the ALCO to perform day-
BER)  BEAEE to-day interest rate risk management. Its roles include, but are not limited to, the
HZEE(ALCO)A formulation of management policies, selection of methodologies, setting of risk indicators
BT EHERT and limits, assessment of target balance sheet, monitoring of the compliance with policies
RIEAfHRRE - B and limits, and submission of interest rate risk management reports to senior
fpEHIaEAE management and the RMC, etc.
B o e B L
TE A 155 8 B T B A%
HEEHENL &
T BEEEAER
EHZEgHEH

YA 2 i B
LfF > "REERR
PR EE R
BEEHITE &
7 J B A A PR
B BHE H AR E
AR BEAER
Jee g B B SR B R
HHUTHI > =
Je i H N B LUK JE
b Ze B E R A=
J\ e g 5 5 -
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4. SRERERE (8D

4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.2 THEER (8
(©) FiEER (4

4.2 Market risk (continued)

(C) Interest rate risk (continued)

A B I35 E R R
et sdins
HA R0 - 5158 -
B R 47 o1 1) 2
b o FEE ST
AR A5 E AR BR
EETEERC - F
FRRLRE i~ A8 -
FLBLEH{E(PVBP)
ORI R B B &R
(NI ~ 4% 77 {5 {07
BLER(EVE)E - =
2\ 45 R AT R A
B REGH -
ENEIEE SabillzElu
TEHARE R\ AE s -
LEABEHEZA
g KR EZ Bt
A o ARIER R
H 25 2E 15 B AL b /B
T I 2 B e 5 A PR
A [ A B R A
BRAT R T 7 S BT
SEVSHT > FHBHEEAL
IR ST IR B A
2 o EfERE TS
TERIFIZR RS - A
2 B FRAT A R
BRI RS B4 -
WIHE R S 2 PP
Hh BB SR AT R R
JE\ B 3 Bk B K B2
2 HEWERZE
B -

The Group sets out interest rate risk indicators and limits to identify, measure, monitor
and control interest rate risk on a daily basis. The indicators and limits include, but are
not limited to, repricing gap limits, basis risk, duration, price value of a basis point
(“PVBP”), net interest income sensitivity ratio (“NII”), economic value sensitivity ratio
(“EVE”"), etc. The indicators and limits are classified into different levels, which are
approved by the CFO, CRO, ALCO and RMC accordingly. Risk-taking business units are
required to conduct their business within the boundary of the interest rate risk limits.
Before launching a new product or business in the banking book, the relevant
departments are required to go through a risk assessment process, which includes the
assessment of underlying interest rate risk and consideration of the adequacy of current
risk monitoring mechanism. Any material impact on interest rate risk noted during the
risk assessment process will be submitted to the RMC for approval.
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MR () Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
4. SRERERE (8D

4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.2 THEER (8
(©) Fimbz (F

4.2 Market risk (continued)

(C) Interest rate risk (continued)

R SR B B
(NI 758 7 B B 2
Bij LE K (EVE) [ Bt
GIES I BN
H R AN A5
BERIRE A
B R e Y E
SRR - A
BHREE)HE L
AR A ZE B
TR AR L
ARJEER: i
MR EALE HRITH
FHEE BT
RITEAVEE &
AR AN TR
ERATFRE DI
BAS o — ALK
bR - ZE S
FoiE W T 5 e E
FRaE > AR A%
A B EHERAITHR A
Sl

WRLBE SR TT 7%
S T 5T 87
TR PR Z 1Y F)
FRJm - 175 S ARl
R 7 A0k [ B A
WA EEE FRE P
PR e PR
B DU RS
B 7R R Al K
FHRTTIFFEUA
GRSy =R 2

NIl and EVE assess the impact of interest rate movement on the Group’s net interest
income and capital base. They are the Group’s key interest rate risk indicators. The
former assesses the impact of interest rate movement on net interest income as a
percentage to the projected net interest income for the year. The latter assesses the
impact of interest rate movement on economic value (i.e. the net present value of cash
flows of assets, liabilities and off-balance sheet items discounted using the market
interest rate) as a percentage to the latest Tier 1 capital. Limits are set by the RMC on
these two indicators to monitor and control the Group’s banking book interest rate risk.

The Group uses scenario analyses and stress tests to assess the banking book interest
rate risk that the Group would face under adverse circumstances. Scenario analyses and
stress tests are also used to assess the impact on net interest income and economic
value arising from the optionality of savings deposits, the prepayment of mortgage loans
and the prepayment of debt securities with embedded options.
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B ENE (&) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
4. SRERERE (&) 4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.2 mEER (8) 4.2 Market risk (continued)
C) FI=mbE (&) (C) Interest rate risk (continued)
AEE T ZEHmEE The Group is principally exposed to HK Dollar, US Dollar and Renminbi in terms of
TC ETT R A EREF interest rate risk. As at 31 December 2021, if market interest rates had a 100 basis point
s - B 2021 parallel shift of the yield curve with other variables held constant, the sensitivities on net
F12H331H = interest income over a twelve-month period and on reserves for the Group would have
B LB et S

been as follows:

43P (7R B 100
ARG  HLA R
BT B

AR 2 {E H Y FF]
BT A B R Y
BUEATT ¢
12 5 31 gk 12 @A
BRSBTS
Impact on net interest income 1t 12 F 31 B RERRE
over the next twelve months Impact on reserves
at 31 December at 31 December
2021 2020 2021 2020
BEEET AR ETT BEEET R EETT
HK$’'m HK$'m HK$’'m HK$'m
SR T 100 basis point
_EF% 100 {EELEL parallel up of
yield curve
&Et Total 1,269 2,589 (5,850) (7,827)
Hrp: Of which:
T HK Dollar 3,940 4,148 (97) (576)
ET US Dollar (779) 158 (2,414) (3,826)
NG Renminbi (1,558) (1,448) (2,988) (2,599)
ipe= il Nay 100 basis point
T 100 {FEEEL parallel down
of yield curve
&t Total (1,269) (2,589) 5,850 7,827
Hrfr e Of which:
AT HK Dollar (3,940) (4,148) 97 576
ETT US Dollar 779 (158) 2,414 3,826
UNEY: Renminbi 1,558 1,448 2,988 2,599
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MR () Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
4. SRERERE (8D

4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.2 THEER (8
(©) Fimbz (F

4.2 Market risk (continued)

(C) Interest rate risk (continued)

TR 28 2Rl 41 AT
% 100 {EEBY
BT 0 2021 4 |
i B N RE RS A
ISUONEN 7 B
[E0f > THEHMEFMH G
B E T T HIA]
U744 T ARG
T B
100 & AL B FRLAG
B R /D T £ B 3R
D FFREUA
IEHiR 8 2020 47
TRREHNZEE
S T AR D
i Pz 2020 ARV
TIHREART S Z
EHATA T -

TR 2k 2R H 4R AT
T 100 {EZEEHRGH)
T > 2021 £ |
LR WY R
BUA R & H 2 -
[FiF - FHEHERAE A
s st TR
RETE T HRRR S
Hih & FITTR
100 {8 H B A
{E 38 i <> 42 95 38
N0 SRR A
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e 2020 L350
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In a parallel shift up of 100 basis points of yield curve, the overall impact on net interest
income of the above currencies is positive in 2021. Reserves of the Group would have
been reduced because of the expected reduction in valuation of the debt securities
portfolio and relevant interest rate derivatives under hedge accounting due to a parallel
shift up of 100 basis points in the yield curve. The positive impact on net interest income
is decreased as the size of current and savings deposits increased and the reduction of
reserves is decreased compared with 2020 because the duration of the debt securities
portfolio in capital market decreased.

In a parallel shift down of 100 basis points of yield curve, the overall impact on net interest
income of the above currencies is negative in 2021. Reserves of the Group would have
been increased because of the expected increase in valuation of the debt securities
portfolio and relevant interest rate derivatives under hedge accounting due to a parallel
shift down of 100 basis points in the yield curve. The negative impact on net interest
income is decreased as the size of current and savings deposits increased and the
increase in reserves is decreased compared with 2020 because the duration of the debt
securities portfolio in capital market decreased.
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4. SRERERE (&) 4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.2 mEER (8) 4.2 Market risk (continued)
C) FI=mbE (&) (C) Interest rate risk (continued)

Rl R E R E The sensitivities above are for illustration only and are based on several assumptions,
HEEREAFA & B including, but not limited to, the change in the correlation between interest rates of
i (EARPERY) T relevant currencies, parallel movement of interest rates, the absence of actions that
% AIAHBH &8 2 would be taken to mitigate the impact of interest rate risk, the effectiveness of hedge
CIRytERATES L F accounting, all positions being assumed to run to maturity, behavioural assumptions of
TS E - R R products in which the actual repricing date differs from the contractual repricing date or
By A A R Ji fg a ] products without contractual maturity. The above exposures form only a part of the
AE B B 48 T L Group’s overall interest rate risk exposures.

T8 i Estas
B FrafraEt
EEIHIH Ryl - HHE
HI]EHHANHE
SR HAERE
AEH 2 E
Bt - bt
HRYE R R AR
A ) 2= g AR Y
i
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4. SRERERE (8D

4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.2 THEER (8
(©) FiEER (4

4.2 Market risk (continued)

(C) Interest rate risk (continued)

AT A E The tables below summarise the Group’s on-balance sheet exposure to interest rate risk
K12 A 31 HZE&E as at 31 December. Included in the tables are the assets and liabilities at carrying
EAEERANNFER amounts, categorised by the earlier of contractual repricing date and maturity date.

JEUB A - RN LUR

H{EYREE KA

5 W ELIERTE
R HIHEEHH (BL
BB RIE) 578 -

2021
-2 = FErR
—EAN =EH +—@ER —ZHEF HEHEME Non-
Up to 1to3 3 to 12 1to 5 Over interest et
1 month months months years 5 years bearing Total
BEEET BEEHET BBEERT BSEER BYEHERT BYEHET B%EER
HK$’'m HK$’'m HK$’'m HK$’'m HK$’'m HK$’m HK$’m
BE Assets
[EFH S RIEHRAT R M4 Cash and balances and
RS 2 45 ek KOE BRI placements with banks and
other financial institutions 359,590 17,281 23,108 1,416 - 61,097 462,492
PUATER s ABR & Financial assets at fair value
FhEE through profit or loss 18,840 11,402 7,321 5,402 1,914 23 44,902
fTESmTE Derivative financial instruments - - - - - 33,247 33,247
EHEBERTTE &R &E Hong Kong SAR Government
BHEE certificates of indebtedness - - - - - 203,810 203,810
AR HAARIA Advances and other accounts 1,335,910 165,069 35,656 44,032 7,956 7,876 1,596,499
BHRE Investment in securities
- LA EZARET A HA - At FVOCI
2HEE 115,222 309,250 135,357 199,395 94,877 3,591 857,692
- DU ERICAS T B - At amortised cost 2,465 6,574 15,968 88,225 20,397 - 133,629
e AT REERERER Interests in associates and joint
ventures - - - - - 687 687
BB Investment properties . . . . . 18,363 18,363
LB R & Properties, plant and equipment - - - . . 45,730 45,730
HittEE (EEENTRERL Other assets (including current
BIERIEETE ) and deferred tax assets) 11,397 - - - - 34,527 45,924
HEGE Total assets 1,843,424 509,576 217,410 338,470 125144 408,951 3,442,975
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4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.2 Market risk (continued)

(C) Interest rate risk (continued)

Liabilities

Hong Kong SAR currency notes
in circulation

Deposits and balances from
banks and other financial
institutions

Financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss

Derivative financial instruments

Deposits from customers

Debt securities and certificates
of deposit in issue

Other accounts and provisions
(including current and
deferred tax liabilities)

Total liabilities

Interest sensitivity gap

2021

—% == TR

—EAN =@A +-EE —FEHE AHENLE Non-
Up to 1to 3 3 to 12 1to 5 Over interest =t
1 month months months years 5 years bearing Total
BETETL BEOEL EWEOET BWEOET BEEEL B¥EET BEEER
HK$’m HK$’m HK$’m HK$’'m HK$’'m HK$’'m HK$’'m
- - - - - 203,810 203,810
386,144 18,081 714 412 - 80,456 485,807
5,249 4,784 973 1,343 171 - 12,520
- - - - - 29,697 29,697
1,685,791 279,751 117,181 1,716 - 249,923 2,334,362
563 - - 1,860 - - 2,423
18,475 7 138 893 224 48,514 68,251
2,096,222 302,623 119,006 6,224 395 612,400 3,136,870
(252,798) 206,953 98,404 332,246 124,749 (203,449) 306,105
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4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.2 Market risk (continued)

(C) Interest rate risk (continued)

Assets
Cash and balances and
placements with banks and
other financial institutions
Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss
Derivative financial instruments
Hong Kong SAR Government
certificates of indebtedness
Advances and other accounts
Investment in securities
- At FVOCI

- At amortised cost
Interests in associates and joint
ventures
Investment properties
Properties, plant and equipment
Other assets (including current
and deferred tax assets)

Total assets

2020
—% =% et
E A A =88 +=ME A BRE AFME Non-
Up to 1t03 3 to 12 1t05 Over interest 4

1 month months months years 5 years bearing Total
BREEETT EEEET BNEsET BREET BBEET BYEET BBEET
HK$'m HK$'m HK$'m HK$'m HK$'m HK$'m HK$'m
338,481 25,591 12,516 1,101 - 85,392 463,081
4,404 17,991 4,760 3,185 2,356 49 32,745
- - - - - 52,811 52,811
- - - - - 189,550 189,550
1,246,590 163,720 36,230 40,454 6,438 6,376 1,499,808
130,866 213,464 100,294 184,893 101,818 3,441 734,776
5,091 3,836 13,409 19,889 12,868 - 55,093
- - - - - 663 663
- - - - - 18,740 18,740
- - - - - 46,504 46,504
20,813 - - - - 29,946 50,759
1,746,245 424,602 167,209 249,522 123,480 433,472 3,144,530
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.2 Market risk (continued)

(C) Interest rate risk (continued)

2020
—% =% FatE
—EAXN =EA +Z@H —EAfE HEME Non-
Up to 1t03 3 to 12 1to 5 Over interest 4EEt
1 month months months years 5 years bearing Total
BREETT ENWOETT BNOE T BROET BNOE T BYOET B¥EET
HK$'m HK$'m HK$'m HK$'m HK$'m HK$'m HK$'m
aE Liabilities
BRI B R B AR Hong Kong SAR currency notes
in circulation - - - - - 189,550 189,550
SRAT R At S R ARE K Deposits and balances from
PrEsics banks and other financial
institutions 226,607 565 1,322 1,243 - 96,504 326,241
MATEE T ARGz S Financial liabilities at fair value
hEE through profit or loss 11,551 4,346 3,690 387 362 - 20,336
TS TR Derivative financial instruments - - - - - 60,355 60,355
BEES Deposits from customers 1,577,362 246,117 111,002 1,715 - 254126 2,190,322
EETHESE S RS Debt securities and certificates
of deposit in issue 233 - 193 - - - 426
HAMBRTE R (ELFERE(T Other accounts and provisions
FRYE FRIERITE A () (including current and
deferred tax liabilities) 18,477 4 93 1,139 447 40,582 60,742
BEEE Total liabilities 1,834,230 251,032 116,300 4,484 809 641,117 2,847,972
FZ R L BR 1 Interest sensitivity gap (87,985) 173,570 50,909 245038 122,671 (207,645) 296,558

4.3 fEEEER

4.3 Liquidity risk

REE R R IRTT
AL S RAS R 1
"FRRAES BT
FHAERR - AEEE
TERS IR BN & e b
RiF - BECRAEIEH 0L
FEESIES T AR
PRHURE - TSRS
HIEREACIR - e R E)
[ &3 B

Liquidity risk is the risk that banks may not be able to obtain sufficient and timely funding at
a reasonable cost to meet their obligations as they fall due. The Group maintains a sound
liquidity risk appetite to provide stable, reliable and adequate sources of cash to meet
liquidity needs under normal circumstances and stressed scenarios.
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4. SElEREE (&)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.3 mgrEEEkE (8) 4.3 Liquidity risk (continued)

A5 E B R A
FEERFAEHEREE
e\ o S R bR
ZEg  SEEEAR
FURREEOFT, AL - &%
I H S B HE - bR
ZEERNHE SR
BRI R
&SR RERAE
HEMT - JillaZEgR
HEEAEEHEEZERY
EHHENRBESE
b - WECRASEREIHISERS
LaErrallnZ g
TERVREE & B R
FIBERMUE - ERRE
HEEAEERIES
ElEERE - CEIBE
HEH B EHEES
{E - IRIBEHAVEE S
T EEAFREHZE
BYETEBNRENE
B HRAE -

In accordance with the Group’s corporate governance principles in respect of risk
management, the Board and the RMC, senior management and functional
departments/units perform their duties and responsibilities to manage the Group’s liquidity
risk. The RMC is the decision-making authority of liquidity risk management, and assumes
the ultimate responsibility of liquidity risk management. As authorised by the RMC, ALCO
exercises its oversight of liquidity risk and ensures the daily operations of the Group are in
accordance with the risk appetite and policies as set by the RMC. The RMD is responsible
for the Group’s liquidity risk management. It cooperates with the Financial Management
Department and Investment Management, etc. to assist the ALCO to perform liquidity
management functions according to their specific responsibilities.
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4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.3 Liquidity risk (continued)

The Group’s liquidity risk management objective is to effectively manage the liquidity of on-
and off-balance sheet items with a reasonable cost based on the liquidity risk appetite to
achieve sound operation and sustainable profitability. Deposits from customers are the
Group’s primary source of funds. To ensure stable and sufficient sources of funds are in
place, the Group actively attracts new deposits, keeps the core deposit and obtains
supplementary funding from the interbank market and by issuing bills in the capital market.
According to different term maturities and the results of funding needs estimated from
stressed scenarios, the Group adjusts its asset structure (including loans, bonds
investment, interbank placement, etc.) to maintain sufficient liquid assets which provides
adequate funds in support of normal business needs and ensure its ability to raise funds at
a reasonable cost to serve external claims in case of emergency. The Group is committed
to diversify the sources, tenors and use of funding to avoid excessive concentration of
assets and liabilities; and prevent triggering liquidity risk due to the break of funding strand
resulting from over-concentration of sources and use of funding in a particular area where
problems occur. In order to manage such risk, the Group sets concentration limits on
collateral pools and sources of funding such as Tier 1 high-quality readily liquefiable assets
to total high-quality readily liquefiable assets ratio, top ten depositors ratio and large
depositors ratio. Whenever necessary, the Group could improve the liquidity position by
taking mitigation actions including, but not limited to obtaining funding through interbank
borrowings or repos in the money market, selling bonds in the secondary market or retaining
existing and attracting new customer deposits. Apart from increasing the funding, the Group
would maintain good communication with the counterparties, the parent bank and the
regulators to enhance mutual confidence.
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4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.3 Liquidity risk (continued)

The Group has established intra-group liquidity risk management guidelines to manage the
liquidity funding among different entities within the Group, and to restrict their reliance of
funding on each other. The Group also pays attention to manage liquidity risk created by
off-balance sheet activities, such as loan commitments, derivatives, options and other
complex structured products. The Group has an overall liquidity risk management strategy
to cover the liquidity management of foreign currency assets and liabilities, collateral, intra-
day liquidity, intra-group liquidity, the liquidity risk arising from other risks, etc., and has
formulated corresponding contingency plan.

The Group established liquidity risk management indicators and limits to identify, measure,
monitor and control liquidity risk on a daily basis. These indicators and limits include, but are
not limited to liquidity coverage ratio (“LCR”), net stable funding ratio (“NSFR”), loan-to-
deposit ratio, Maximum Cumulative Cash Outflow (“MCQ”) and liquidity cushion. The Group
applies a cash flow analysis to assess the Group’s liquidity condition under normal conditions
and also performs a liquidity stress test (including institution specific, general market crisis
and combined crisis) and other methods at least on a monthly basis to assess the Group’s
capability to withstand various severe liquidity crises. Also, relevant management information
systems such as the Assets and Liabilities Management System and the Basel Liquidity
Ratio Management System are developed to provide data and to prepare for regular
management reports to facilitate liquidity risk management duties.
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4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.3 rErEeRE () 4.3 Liquidity risk (continued)
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In accordance with the requirements of Supervisory Policy Manual LM-2 “Sound Systems
and controls for Liquidity Risk Management” issued by the HKMA, the Group has
implemented a behaviour model and assumptions of cash flow analysis and stress test to
enhance the Group’s cash flow analysis under both normal and stressed conditions. In cash
flow analysis under normal circumstances, assumptions have been made relating to on-
balance sheet items (such as deposits from customers) and off-balance sheet items (such
as loan commitments). According to various characteristics of the assets, liabilities and off-
balance sheet items, the Group forecasts the future cash flow based on the contractual
maturity date and the assumptions of customer behaviour and balance sheet changes. The
Group establishes the MCO indicator which predicts the future 30 days maximum
cumulative net cash outflow in normal situations based on the above assumptions, to
assess if the Group has sufficient financing capacity to meet the cash flow gap in order to
achieve the objective of continuing operations. As at 31 December 2021, before taking the
cash inflow through the sale of outstanding marketable securities into consideration,
BOCHK's 30-day cumulative cash flow was a net cash inflow, amounting to HK$160,744
million (2020: HK$186,303 million) and was in compliance with the internal limit
requirements.
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4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.3 rErEeRE () 4.3 Liquidity risk (continued)
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In the liquidity stress test, institution specific, general market crisis and combined crisis
scenarios have been set up, a combined crisis scenario is a combination of institution
specific and general market crisis to assess the Group’s capability to withstand a more
severe liquidity crisis, with a more stringent set of assumptions being adopted. Stress test
assumptions include the run-off rate of retail, wholesale and interbank deposits; the
drawdown rate of loan commitments and trade-related contingent liabilities; the delinquency
ratio and rollover rate of customer loans; and haircut of interbank placement and marketable
securities. As at 31 December 2021, the Group was able to maintain a net cash inflow under
the three stressed scenarios, indicating the Group has the ability to meet financing needs
under stressed conditions. In addition, the Group has a policy in place to maintain a liquidity
cushion which includes high quality or comparable quality marketable securities issued or
guaranteed by sovereigns, central banks, public sector entities or multilateral development
banks with 0% or 20% risk weight or marketable securities issued by non-financial corporate
with a corresponding external credit rating of A- or above to ensure funding needs even
under stressed scenarios. As at 31 December 2021, the liquidity cushion (before haircut) of
BOCHK was HK$781,053 million (2020: HK$645,716 million). A contingency plan is being
established which details the conditions to trigger the plan based on stress test results and
early warning indicators, the action plans and relevant procedures and responsibility of
relevant departments.
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4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.3 rErEeRE () 4.3 Liquidity risk (continued)
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The Group, being classified as a category 1 authorised institution by the HKMA, is required
to calculate the LCR and NSFR on a consolidated basis in accordance with the Banking
(Liquidity) Rules. The Group is required to maintain a LCR and NSFR not less than 100%
in 2021.

In certain derivative contracts, the counterparties have the right to request from the Group
additional collateral if they have concerns about the Group’s creditworthiness.

The Group’s liquidity risk management also covers new products or business
developments. Before launching a new product or business, the relevant departments are
required to go through a risk assessment process, which includes the assessment of
underlying liquidity risk and consideration of the adequacy of the current risk management
mechanism. Any material impact on liquidity risk noted during the risk assessment process
will be reported to the RMC for approval.
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4. SRIERERE (&) 4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.3 rErEeRE () 4.3 Liquidity risk (continued)
AEEFETSR—RRE) The Group has established a set of uniform liquidity risk management policies which serve
B RE g #H as standards and guidance to all the Group’s members for liquidity risk management. On
AR ETE EEKE the basis of the Group’s uniform policies, each of the subsidiaries develops its own liquidity
HURENE B REE management policies according to its own characteristics, and assumes its own liquidity
HI R R IR AR Y risk management responsibility. Subsidiaries are required to report their respective liquidity
G—ECR A5 B8 positions with relevant liquidity ratios on a regular basis to the RMD of BOCHK, which
BE 5T B A4S 09 A T Bt consolidates this information and evaluates group-wide liquidity risk to ensure relevant
% WEEREEHEA requirements are satisfied.

BRI E bRy
I - SRS AE
e R AR RS
AR E S S A
BRE & bha o R
7 b R PR
IR EE -
el S B YR B & <
ARDEHET TRV AL - ORI

STEAERHEK
(A) ReEEELER (A) Liquidity coverage ratio and net stable funding ratio
REES/FHILE
2021 2020
BN E LR Average value of liquidity coverage ratio
SEHE
- BT - First quarter 134.09% 150.45%
- BEFE - Second quarter 134.20% 131.38%
- BEFE - Third quarter 134.73% 130.98%
- BT - Fourth quarter 146.70% 132.76%
TRENEEELREN Average value of liquidity coverage ratio is calculated based on the arithmetic mean of
S EEENEE the liquidity coverage ratio as at the end of each working day in the quarter and the
FEMYEE TAE HEL calculation methodology and instructions set out in the HKMA return of liquidity position.
EIFHY RN S
LR Ay Bl P39 8
B A BT Eh AR
Z BB RwEYH
HIEH R 7 7E R AE =
SR
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4. SRIERERE (&) 4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.3 rErEeRE () 4.3 Liquidity risk (continued)
(A) ReeFEELERE (A) Liquidity coverage ratio and net stable funding ratio (continued)
BEHSPELR
(&
2021 2020
BEEGRFHELE Quarter-end value of net stable funding ratio
HIZEFEASEEE
- BFE - First quarter 124.90% 116.60%
- BEE - Second quarter 118.50% 117.49%
- B=FE - Third quarter 125.92% 115.30%
- SRIUERE - Fourth quarter 126.96% 125.31%
EEESIFHEE® Quarter-end value of net stable funding ratio is calculated based on the calculation
O ENE RS - methodology and instructions set out in the HKMA return of stable funding position.
AR E & &k
W2 EEmHRY
HHRYET R T A KA
REHE -
REMEELLR K Liquidity coverage ratio and net stable funding ratio are computed on the consolidated
ZEE S FHE=R basis which comprise the positions of BOCHK and certain subsidiaries specified by the
LG EEREE HKMA in accordance with the Banking (Liquidity) Rules.
AR (BR1T2E O
) HHAT) eHgn
s R oy e
JEeE Z It JE A E
4K -
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WEENE (&) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
4. SRIEREE (&)

4.3 FEEsRE (8

(B) EHA ST

TERBALEEN 12
A3 HZAER
S E B 5y

(B) Maturity analysis

Mo S G H I
BENAFMEES
SYF I H AR B 5

PRI -

HE
AR AT SRAT B FL A
AR 2 Gt R E TR

PUAPEZLET ARG SR

fTESmMTE

BRI TBEBT A fEH
&

F R CEAMRTE

i
- DUAHEEE LT A Al

I AN
M i

o

>

i
- DlggrpcAstE
BrenE R EE RS

KBk

WIBE ~ B0 Rty

HirgE (EfEERRE g
TERIHATE )

REWRH

Assets
Cash and balances and
placements with banks and
other financial institutions
Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss
Derivative financial instruments
Hong Kong SAR Government
certificates of indebtedness
Advances and other accounts
Investment in securities
-AtFVOCI

- At amortised cost
Interests in associates and joint
ventures
Investment properties
Properties, plant and equipment
Other assets (including current
and deferred tax assets)

Total assets

4.3 Liquidity risk (continued)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

The tables below analyse the Group’s assets and liabilities as at 31 December into
relevant maturity groupings based on the remaining period at balance sheet date to
the contractual maturity date.

2021
—F =7
B —EAN =MEA +-EF —ZHE HENE  FEEE
On Up to 1t03 3to12 1to5 Over HEH st
demand 1 month months months years 5 years Indefinite Total
bl s s bl bl bt bl it
HEL HBHET HBHET HERL HERL HET HERX HET
HK$m HK$m HK$m HK$m HK$m HK$'m HK$’'m HK$’'m
351,388 69,300 17,297 22,727 1,780 - - 462,492
- 18,887 11,442 6,134 6,512 1,454 473 44,902
11,944 3,085 4,312 3,935 6,365 3,606 - 33,247
203,810 - - - - - - 203,810
258,527 45,031 80,004 235,036 602,050 374,119 1,732 1,596,499
- 104,884 298,133 141,743 207,743 101,598 3,591 857,692
- 2,807 6,853 16,858 87,279 19,832 - 133,629
- - - - - - 687 687
- - - - - - 18,363 18,363
- - - - - - 45,730 45,730
23,362 19,308 441 532 167 - 2,114 45,924
849,031 263,302 418,482 426,965 911,896 500,609 72,690 3,442,975
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B ENE (&) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

4. CRIEBREE (8)

4.3 FEEsRE (8
(B) EAR 4T (8D

&
TR AITBE A

R R MR TR
4R

DU TFEE LT ARG Z 2R
&

TEER TR

FEFEK

ERTREE SR R EGE

Liabilities

Hong Kong SAR currency notes
in circulation

Deposits and balances from
banks and other financial
institutions

Financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss

Derivative financial instruments

Deposits from customers

Debt securities and certificates of
depositin issue

EAIRIE R 2 (BIEMERTFRIE Other accounts and provisions

RABTERTAE )

(including current and
deferred tax liabilities)

Total liabilities

Net liquidity gap

4.3 Liquidity risk (continued)

(B) Maturity analysis (continued)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

2021
—£ ==

B —EAW  =EA +-ER —=HE AFENUE THEE
On Up to 1t03 3to12 1to5 Over HEH st
demand 1 month months months years 5years Indefinite Total
B B B b b b B B
BET HET BHET HET HET BEET HET 2 BHEET
HK$m HK$m HK$m HK$m HK$m HK$m HK$’'m HK$’'m
203,810 - - - - - - 203,810
292,365 174,168 17,452 1,028 794 - - 485,807
- 5,249 4,790 974 1,337 170 - 12,520
7,626 2,321 2,597 3,765 8,574 4,814 - 29,697
1,524,929 410,785 279,751 117,181 1,716 - - 2,334,362
- 588 - - 1,835 - - 2,423
37,149 18,710 1,964 3,339 7,018 71 - 68,251
2,065,879 611,821 306,554 126,287 21,274 5,055 - 3,136,870
(1,216,848) (348,519) 111,928 300,678 890,622 495,554 72,690 306,105
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WEENE (&) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
4. SRIEREE (&)

4.3 FEEsRE (8
(B) EAR 4T (8D

HiE
FRFFB B RAESRIT R HLAM 2Rl
TR 2 G508 RUE I

DU EELET ARG 2 S/
HiE

(TEEmTE

BRI TBEBUN S AT
=

IR AR
SEARE
- DUATES LR T AL
i
- DlgerpioAata
BrEAE R EERFE MR

KBk

YISE - bt R

HigE (EEERRE R
TERIHATE )

HENE

Assets
Cash and balances and
placements with banks and
other financial institutions
Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss
Derivative financial instruments
Hong Kong SAR Government
certificates of indebtedness
Advances and other accounts
Investment in securities
-AtFVOCI

- Atamortised cost
Interests in associates and joint
ventures
Investment properties
Properties, plant and equipment
Other assets (including current
and deferred tax assets)

Total assets

4.3 Liquidity risk (continued)

(B) Maturity analysis (continued)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

2020
—F =%
B —WARN  =MA +F-EA —=Z=HFE AFEME THEE
On Up to 1to3 3to12 1to5 Over HHA 4=t
demand 1 month months months years 5years Indefinite Total
HET  H&ET O HET H&T HET HET HETT BT
HK$m  HK$m  HKEm  HK$m HK$'m  HK$'m HK$'m HK$'m
367,448 56,425 25217 12,134 1,857 - - 463,081
- 4,411 17,816 4,231 3,707 2,152 428 32,745
15,506 3,614 6,174 8,883 12,076 6,558 - 52,811
189,550 - - - - - - 189,550
224,172 41,197 83,024 183,549 622,363 344,001 1,502 1,499,808
- 125,559 199,549 108,528 196,028 101,671 3,441 734,776
- 5,222 3,880 13,015 20,145 12,831 - 55,093
- - - - - - 663 663
- - - - - - 18,740 18,740
- - - - - - 46,504 46,504
32,711 15,153 463 476 116 2 1,838 50,759
829,387 251,581 336,123 330,816 856,292 467,215 73,116 3,144,530
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B ENE (&) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

4. CRIEBREE (8)

4.3 FEEsRE (8
(B) EAR 4T (8D

&
BRI @B

R R MR TR
4R

DU TFEE LT ARG Z 2R
&

TEER TR

FEFEK

ERTREE SR R EGE

Liabilities

Hong Kong SAR currency notes
in circulation

Deposits and balances from
banks and other financial
institutions

Financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss

Derivative financial instruments

Deposits from customers

Debt securities and certificates of
depositin issue

EAIRIE R 2 (BIEMERTFRIE Other accounts and provisions

4.3 Liquidity risk (continued)

(B) Maturity analysis (continued)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

2020
—% =%

gy —EAR  =ZEH +2EH —20F AFHUE FEE
On Up to 1t03 3to12 1t05 Over HHA 4t
demand 1 month months months years 5 years Indefinite Total
i bl bl bl b i bt bt
HET  HERT HET O EET  H&ET HET HET HETT
HK$'m HK$Em HK$Fm HK$m HK$m HK$m HK$'m HK$'m
189,550 - - - - - - 189,550
269,742 53,371 564 1,322 1,242 - - 326,241
- 11,552 4,348 3,690 386 360 - 20,336
11,253 5,065 7,052 9,480 16,786 10,719 - 60,355
1,465,055 366,433 246,117 111,002 1,715 - - 2,190,322
- 233 - 193 - - - 426
31,973 16,882 1,926 2,742 7,086 133 - 60,742
1,967,573 453,536 260,007 128,429 27,215 11,212 - 2,847,972
(1,138,186) (201,955) 76,116 202,387 829,077 456,003 73,116 296,558

FORIERTEAE) (including current and
deferred tax liabilities)
BRET Total liabilities
A S Net liquidity gap
25 6% F B H
e85 Z i i iR
BELUEIHIE S -
AT E B B A AR
EHFRFA 2T
BiE -
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The analysis of debt securities by remaining period to maturity is based on contractual
maturity date. The disclosure does not imply that the securities will be held to maturity.
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©)

MR () Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
4. SRERERE (8D

4. Financial risk management (continued)

43 REEERE (8
(©) #mALRHF OO

4.3 Liquidity risk (continued)

(C) Analysis of undiscounted cash flows by contractual maturities

ZRITHREER
(@) JEFTAETH (a) Non-derivative cash flows
&R
FE ok T & The tables below summarise the cash flows of the Group as at 31 December for
LEED 12 A 31 non-derivative financial liabilities by remaining contractual maturity.
HZ IETE SR
EEMFERGY
FIEAHFI R3]
S -
2021
—Z =7
—EAN =@H +=@H —FAE AFEMUEL R
Up to 1t03 3to12 1to5 Over et
1 month months months years 5years Total
B B B B B B
EEL H&Et HEL  HEot BHET HETT
HK$'m HK$m HK$Fm HKEm HK$'m HK$’m
= Financial liabilities
ISR TEE fUmAEE Hong Kong SAR currency notes in
circulation 203,810 - - - - 203,810
SR T R AR O Deposits and balances from banks and
i other financial institutions 466,594 17,507 1,054 877 - 486,032
PN ES T AJEs 4t Financial liabilities at fair value through
={{ profit or loss 5250 4,793 992 1,350 169 12,554
B Deposits from customers 1,935,794 280,074 117,795 1,742 - 2,335,405
ES T EGRSRRITGE Debt securities and certificates of
deposit in issue 589 - 26 1,891 - 2,506
THE & Lease liabilities 56 96 387 722 69 1,330
HAtr R Other financial liabiliti
R erfinancial iabilities 53,255 303 257 7 5 53827
SRS Total financial liabilities 2,665,348 302,773 120,511 6,589 243 3,095,464
2020
—F =F
—{EAAN =EA +=MEB —ZHF AFELE ]
Up to 1t03 3t012 1t05 Over HaEt
1 month months  months years 5 years Total
B B ER BR B B
HETT HETT BHEIT HETT H&ETT HETT
HK$m  HKPm  HK$Sm  HKEm  HK$m HK$'m
SRtEE Financial liabilities
TR TR A Hong Kong SAR currency notes in
circulation 189,550 - - - - 189,550
T R HAr e Rtks - 77k, Deposits and balances from banks and
4R other financial institutions 323,133 568 1,342 1,251 - 326,294
DUAHES LT ATt <Rl Financial liabilities at fair value through
={i{ profit or loss 11,552 4,349 3,698 409 342 20,350
K Deposits from customers 1,831,558 246,406 111,827 1,754 - 2,191,545
BT BRI TEE Debt securities and certificates of
deposit in issue 233 - 194 - - 427
TS Lease liabilities 61 12 468 1,011 134 1786
ﬁfﬁ[{ﬁ%ﬂ%\{ﬁ Other financial liabilities 45 158 275 143 4 6 45 586
SRIEERE Total financial liabilities 2,401,245 251,710 117,672 4,429 482 2,775,538
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B ENE (&) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
4. SRIERERE (&) 4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.3 rErEeRE () 4.3 Liquidity risk (continued)
C) HELAHEHAEH o (C) Analysis of undiscounted cash flows by contractual maturities (continued)
ZARIMHEBESR
(&)

(b) £T4ETE 4 (b) Derivative cash flows
i
R T A The tables below summarise the cash flows of the Group by remaining
Ej 12 H 31 H contractual maturity as at 31 December for derivative financial liabilities that will
DA 6k & 495 H be settled on a net basis, together with all derivative financial instruments that
HF R 2Z R4 will be settled on a gross basis regardless of whether the contract is in an asset
BT AR R or liability position. The amounts disclosed in the tables are the contractual
SEEZITAE S undiscounted cash flows, except for certain derivatives which are disclosed at
Bff KATA fair value.
BRRLREAEE 1T
L m TR
BHEGNEEE
EE) - BREY
74 THIAE
{BHIRIN N
B HAM %Y
R REIHNE
[EIFRER -
AEHEPFHEE The Group’s derivative financial instruments that will be settled on a net basis
BEHZTEE mainly include interest rate swaps whereas derivative financial instruments that
T B AR will be settled on a gross basis mainly include currency forwards and currency
FZR P H T4 swaps.
BRRLREAEE 1T
LT HIEE
BHEEEEI K
B -
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MR () Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
4. SRERERE (8D

4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.3 FEEsRE (8
©) BELBAHA DT

4.3 Liquidity risk (continued)

(C) Analysis of undiscounted cash flows by contractual maturities (continued)

ZARIMHEBESR
(&)
(b) £T4ETE 4 (b) Derivative cash flows (continued)
i (&)
2021
—z =z
—ERA =@RE +-@EA —ZEfF HAFNE
Up to 1t03 3to12 1to5 Over dast
1 month months months years 5 years Total
bt bl by bt bl bt
BHET HHET BHET HBET HET HETT
HK$’m HK$’'m HK$’m HK$’m HK$’'m HK$’m
R s AL AE 4L Derivative financial liabilities
BHrEE settled on a net basis
Rl A (8,138)  (1,181) (4,315) (6,464) (1,162)  (21,260)
U R ARG Derivative financial instruments
H2TEE settled on a gross basis
R TE
HERA Total inflow 928,041 413,024 315,783 81,488 6,666 1,745,002
4B Total outflow (927,043) (409,333) (315,157) (81,309) (6,657) (1,739,499)

2020
—F =%
—@AN  =@#EA +EA —ZHFE AFEME
Up to 1t03 3to 12 1to5 Over 4z
1 month months months years 5 years Total
P et i T il il
HETT HETT HETT HETT HETT HETT
HK$'m HK$'m HK$'m HK$'m HK$'m HK$'m
o7 05 2 AL HE 45 Derivative financial liabilities
C A settled on a net basis
& & (12,478) (1,822) (6,454) (15,829) (2,184) (38,767)
o0 WE BE B EE 4 Derivative financial instruments
B4 4 settled on a gross basis
BT HE
KA Total inflow 431,957 354,366 372,964 130,734 5,646 1,295,667
4B Total outflow (433,487) (355,490) (373,384) (130,260) (5,573) (1,298,194)
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B ENE (&) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
4. SRIERERE (&) 4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.3 merEeER (8) 4.3 Liquidity risk (continued)
C) #HEALTEH %7 (C) Analysis of undiscounted cash flows by contractual maturities (continued)
ZRITRAER
(&)

(c) & E & BRI (c) Off-balance sheet items
HH
EROREE Loan commitments
H B A & E The contractual amounts of the Group’s off-balance sheet financial instruments as
2021412 H 31 at 31 December 2021 that the Group commits to extend credit to customers and
RIEES=V 311 other facilities amounted to HK$719,254 million (2020: HK$709,217 million).
(=8 H AR Majority of those loan commitments can be drawn within one year.
B2 FRINERL T

B HE0NEH
sl 7,192.54
(&7 (2020 4 :
H W 7,092.17
{870 ) BLEFEGK
EEN: Pl
—AEAHEAT -

B E R ETE Financial guarantee contracts

KEEL 2021 Majority of financial guarantees and other financial facilities of the Group as at 31
F12H31HZ December 2021 amounting to HK$57,228 million (2020: HK$60,532 million) are
BT (R R LAt maturing no later than one year.

MBS R B

B 572.28 {7

7T (2020 4 : &

W 605.32 &

7T ) HEBHHE R

B VI
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BANK OF CHINA (HONG KONG) LIMITED

MBERENE (&) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
4. SRERERE (&) 4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.4 BRER 4.4 Capital management
RNEEEAREHNFHE The major objective of the Group’s capital management is to maximise total shareholders’
A 4 7 L [ return while maintaining a capital adequacy position in relation to the Group’s overall risk
JE g AR AR TR A E AT profile. The ALCO periodically reviews the Group’s capital structure to maintain an optimal
JEAKIE» [ B RS B AR balance among risk, return and capital adequacy.
BRIl - A TR

Z 58 E Wb o A SR ]
BARLERLLORR R ~ (o]

e P AR T B MR i £

e -

AEEELKEII—ER The Group has developed and maintained a sound framework of policies and controls on
HYE A B SR R 2R capital management to support the development of the Group’s business and to meet the
etk o Sl HAEIT BT - statutory capital adequacy ratio.

BRI R S B AE S
Frem s RER - e

TETEB AT R TR -

R E ]SRN The Group has complied with all the statutory capital requirements of the HKMA for the
RITEBFTESEHESS reported periods in respect of banking operation. The HKMA supervises BOCHK and certain
BEEEAIE - &E subsidiaries specified by the HKMA on a consolidated and solo basis and, as such, receives
RS B information on the capital adequacy of, and sets capital requirements for those companies as
FeAERL S R AR R a whole. Individual overseas banking subsidiaries and branches are directly regulated by their
W& EfeE 2 S local banking supervisors, who set and monitor their capital adequacy requirements. Certain
INED T RS % AN E] non-banking financial subsidiaries are also subject to the supervision and capital
ZEARFR LR requirements of local regulatory authorities.

RN T EE R

EAREOR - LOEIRITHE
A 0 T g 2 ] e
TR EMRITEEE
PR LR L
& i E A B R L E
T ZERTERME il
BT - G TR
KOBMITEB R B RR
5 I 2 W1 32 P e
AV E T - 10
B AMEARRE -
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MR () Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
4. SRERERE (8D

4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.4 HREHE (8D

4.4 Capital management (continued)

HEARHEHZREES
FEEEENERATE
ERNIZEEE RIS TSR
SR - REREI TR ETE
I e S e
FORER Sy IEE 22 (LA
o A Y 5 B
RER - FER NS E
B A AR (S
) stEUEAR - A
B EEE A EMNE
ik stEEAEESE
HEERNZHETE

5 B A R ] P A5
At EAH FEIMNE KA
IR — i 5 b
BOR W ESE AR
eEt E A E R
FELE BT 85 B AN 2
R AL EFTER A
(HEEE ) RAR
HerSmRE AR -

BB R (SE
BRI st EUA TR
SRR E AR -

REEEY 2021 FEEGTUR
FIPREE A 7 R w1
FLHEEEREER
R T EEEERR
REVEDR - BB RS
RIS A
FiJe R TE Fr E AT BL
FHETES —ETRA
HE B B E R
JR\R PR R AR NEA - e
T % 78 7 42 [ f (B
Pt — 4R AR ~ (B
— AR LR R A K4
BARLEER - [El - AEEH
IREE AT A A PR
BT EIFER]  PICREE
BHERE N REEAR
IVAERUE - AEERL R
M E AT e R AR 7
- ER S EAREH
MR S ERIE E SRR
e B B tR I I E B
FiE R E AR
i

The ALCO monitors the Group’s capital adequacy and adjusts the capital mix where
appropriate. The Group has adopted the foundation internal ratings-based (“FIRB”) approach
to calculate the credit risk capital charge for the majority of its non-securitisation exposures.
Small residual credit exposures are remained under the standardised (credit risk) (“STC”)
approach. The Group has adopted the standardised credit valuation adjustment (“CVA”)
method to calculate the capital charge for the CVA risk of the counterparty.

The Group continues to adopt the internal models (“IMM”) approach to calculate the general
market risk capital charge for foreign exchange and interest rate exposures and, with the
approval from the HKMA, exclude its structural FX positions in the calculation of the market
risk capital charge. The Group continues to adopt the standardised (market risk) (“STM”)
approach to calculate the market risk capital charge for the remaining exposures.

The Group continues to adopt the standardised (operational risk) (“STO”) approach to
calculate the operational risk capital charge.

The Group has continued to adopt an internal capital adequacy assessment process
(“ICAAP”) to comply with the HKMA's requirements in the Supervisory Policy Manual
“Supervisory Review Process” in 2021. Based on the HKMA's guidelines on Pillar I, ICAAP
has been initiated to assess the extra capital needed to cover the material risks not captured
or not adequately captured under Pillar I, and therefore minimum Common Equity Tier 1
capital ratio, minimum Tier 1 capital ratio and minimum Total capital ratio are determined.
Meanwhile, operating ranges for the aforementioned capital ratios have also been established
which enable the flexibility for future business growth and efficiency of capital utilisation. The
Group considers this ICAAP as an on-going process for capital management and periodically
reviews and adjusts its capital structure where appropriate in relation to the overall risk profile.

220



@ ¥ 84 tsmn)aman

BANK OF CHINA (HONG KONG) LIMITED

B EHE (&) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
4. SRERERE (&) 4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.4 BREHE (B) 4.4 Capital management (continued)
Jtt'?[\ REFGEHIEFE In addition, the capital plan of the Group is drawn up annually and then submitted to the Board
EAHE HEEAE for approval after endorsement of the ALCO. The plan is built up by assessing the implications
EEE%%E SRR EE of various factors upon capital adequacy such as the business strategies, return on equity,
FEEfE - A EINEE risk appetite, credit rating, as well as regulatory requirements. Hence, the future capital
HSRNE ~ o (o] 37 ~ requirement is determined and capital sources are identified also. The plan is to ensure the
TRl ~ (S FHEEER ~ BRfEsE Group maintains adequate capital and appropriate capital structure which align with its
K R A business development needs, thereby achieving an optimal balance among risk, return and
?EE‘TSEH’J%% FETTEH capital adequacy.

FRARE AT R BRI
JE U\ﬁﬁﬁ%lﬁﬁ&&ﬁ?é
ﬁ?ﬁ’] SR B RE

HEER BLaEB#
E ORFr b  [mlRelE

AT B AT E A -
(A) BB EER (A) Basis of regulatory consolidation
B R E G A A The consolidation basis for regulatory purposes comprises the positions of BOCHK and
BETIIRE (SR1T certain subsidiaries specified by the HKMA in accordance with the Banking (Capital)
(&EAR) #HH) e Rules. For accounting purposes, subsidiaries are consolidated in accordance with
fﬁ &R H Dgﬁi HKFRSs.
BRI EZ WL
H4HRY - TR TR
T3 > R IE A S
75 i 25 28 U 4R & F
BAE] -
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MR () Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
4. SRERERE (8D

4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.4 HREHE (8D
(A) BEGOER (8

4.4 Capital management (continued)

(A) Basis of regulatory consolidation (continued)

B G T AEAILE
GHE > A ERE

The particulars of subsidiaries which are included within the accounting scope of

consolidation but not included within the regulatory scope of consolidation are as follows:

EEMEG A

PR B s 2 B 22 5
AT
2021 2020
HEGRH BAMER HRENEH BRI
218 Name Total assets Total equity Total assets Total equity
BREET B EHET BEEHET BEEET
HK$’'m HK$’'m HK$'m HK$'m
FEREEEITAAR BOC Group Trustee Company
AE Limited 200 200 200 200
PR B S B RS T BOCI-Prudential Trustee Limited
AR 593 491 553 498
China Bridge China Bridge (Malaysia) Sdn. Bhd.
(Malaysia) Sdn.
Bhd. 12 2 13 9
SR T (F&) Bank of China (Hong Kong)
ANBPRAFE Nominees Limited - - - .
FEERTT (FA&) 3 Bank of China (Hong Kong)
SLARAHE Trustees Limited 8 8 11 1
hiReRAR (5 BOC Financial Services (Nanning)
=) AIRAHE Company Limited 199 40 248 43
P EEREL OF BOCHK Information Technology
) HIRAF (Shenzhen) Co., Ltd. 399 275 387 265
RS B AR S BOCHK Information Technology
CFEYID ARAE Services (Shenzhen) Co., Ltd. 441 373 421 360
WL ((REA) AR Che Hsing (Nominees) Limited*
SN N/A N/A - -
L SRS IR Po Sang Financial Investment
AHIRAH] Services Company Limited 364 345 364 345
HEhBAERTEAER Po Sang Securities and Futures
INH] Limited 595 415 952 375
HEEAERAT Sin Hua Trustee Limited 5 5 5 5

Billion Express
Development Inc.
Billion Orient Holdings

Ltd.
Elite Bond
Investments Ltd.
Express Capital
Enterprise Inc.

Billion Express Development Inc.

Billion Orient Holdings Ltd.

Elite Bond Investments Ltd.

Express Capital Enterprise Inc.
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BANK OF CHINA (HONG KONG) LIMITED

MEsHENEE (&) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
4. SRVERREE (#)

4.4 BREE (8

4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.4 Capital management (continued)

(A) BBEEeER (B (A) Basis of regulatory consolidation (continued)
2021 2020
BELH B B BRI
2fE Name Total assets Total equity  Total assets Total equity
BEEHETT AEEHET B EETT B EHETT
HK$’'m HK$’'m HK$'m HK$'m

Express Charm
Holdings Corp.
Express Shine Assets
Holdings Corp.
Express Talent
Investment Ltd.
Gold Medal Capital
Inc.
Gold Tap Enterprises
Inc.
Maxi Success
Holdings Ltd.
Smart Linkage
Holdings Inc.
Smart Union Capital
Investments Ltd.
Success Trend
Development Ltd.
Wise Key Enterprises
Corp.

Express Charm Holdings Corp.
Express Shine Assets Holdings
Corp. - -
Express Talent Investment Ltd.
Gold Medal Capital Inc.
Gold Tap Enterprises Inc.
Maxi Success Holdings Ltd.
Smart Linkage Holdings Inc.
Smart Union Capital Investments
Ltd. - -

Success Trend Development Ltd.

Wise Key Enterprises Corp.

*OE (REA) AREAEER * Che Hsing (Nominees) Limited was dissolved on 16 February 2021.

2021 4£. 2 A 16 HIFfigsy -
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WEENE (&) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
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4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.4 Capital management (continued)

(A) Basis of regulatory consolidation (continued)

The principal activities of the above subsidiaries are set out in “Appendix — Subsidiaries
of the Bank”.

There were no subsidiaries which are included within the regulatory scope of
consolidation but not included within the accounting scope of consolidation as at 31
December 2021 (2020: Nil).

There were also no subsidiaries which are included within both the accounting scope of
consolidation and the regulatory scope of consolidation where the methods of
consolidation differ as at 31 December 2021 (2020: Nil).

The Group operates subsidiaries in different countries/regions where capital is governed
by local rules and there may be restrictions on the transfer of funds or regulatory capital
between the members of the Group.

(B) Capital ratio

The capital ratios are analysed as follows:

2021 2020

CET1 capital ratio
17.30% 17.75%
Tier 1 capital ratio 19.11% 19.67%
Total capital ratio 21.44% 22.10%
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MR () Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
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4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.4 Capital management (continued)

(B) Capital ratio (continued)

The consolidated capital base after deductions used in the calculation of the above capital

ratios is analysed as follows:

2021 2020
EREEET A EETT
HK$’'m HK$'m
CET1 capital: instruments and reserves
Directly issued qualifying CET1 capital
instruments 43,043 43,043
Retained earnings 193,800 184,230
Disclosed reserves 45,033 45,100
CET1 capital before regulatory deductions
281,876 272,373
CET1 capital: regulatory deductions
Valuation adjustments (66) (24)
Other intangible assets (net of associated
deferred tax liabilities)
(1,623) (1,502)
Deferred tax assets (net of associated deferred
tax liabilities)
(185) (91)
Gains and losses due to changes in own credit
risk on fair valued liabilities
(31) (22)
Cumulative fair value gains arising from the
revaluation of land and buildings (own-use
and investment properties)
(49,709) (49,413)
Regulatory reserve for general banking risks
(6,073) (4,780)
Total regulatory deductions to CET1 capital
(57,687) (55,831)
CET1 capital 224,189 216,542
AT1 capital: instruments
Qualifying AT1 capital instruments classified
as equity under applicable accounting
standards 23,476 23,476
AT1 capital 23,476 23,476
Tier 1 capital 247,665 240,018
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4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.4 Capital management (continued)

(B) Capital ratio (continued)

Tier 2 capital: instruments and provisions

Collective provisions and regulatory reserve for
general banking risks eligible for inclusion in
Tier 2 capital

Tier 2 capital before regulatory deductions

Tier 2 capital: regulatory deductions

Add back of cumulative fair value gains arising
from the revaluation of land and buildings
(own-use and investment properties) eligible
for inclusion in Tier 2 capital

Total regulatory adjustments to Tier 2 capital

Tier 2 capital

Total regulatory capital
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2021 2020
BREEIT AT ETT
HK$’m HK$'m
7,805 7,322
7,805 7,322
22,369 22,236
22,369 22,236
30,174 29,558
277,839 269,576
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4.4 Capital management (continued)

(B) Capital ratio (continued)

The capital buffer ratios are analysed as follows:

Capital conservation buffer ratio

Higher loss absorbency ratio

Countercyclical capital buffer ratio

(C) Leverage ratio

The leverage ratio is analysed as follows:

Tier 1 capital

Leverage ratio exposure

Leverage ratio

4. Financial risk management (continued)

227

2021 2020
2.500% 2.500%
1.500% 1.500%
0.799% 0.790%

2021 2020
BEEET AW ETT
HK$’m HK$'m
247,665 240,018
3,357,085 3,036,425
7.38% 7.90%
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BANK OF CHINA (HONG KONG) LIMITED

WEENEE (&) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
5. BEMNAEBHIYARE 5. Fair values of assets and liabilities

Fra LA EETEEEMTE  All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements
HWENWENEENAE are categorised within the fair value hierarchy as defined in HKFRS 13, “Fair value
YR A S & 2EHI 5513 measurement”. The categorisation are determined with reference to the observability and
BRIV EETE ES R significance of the inputs used in the valuation methods and based on the lowest level input
INEEEBHFERNTIE - %% that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

SRR S IR ETT AR R

HYRZ 2 r 2 R ER

P - MBS  EERT

HHERPE Y RREHA

HAME
- E—EY  HEEENE - Level 1: based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or
BEERE TS HmE liabilities. This category includes equity securities listed on exchange, debt instruments issued
(AREETHEL ) - 24 FE by certain governments and certain exchange-traded derivative contracts.

A 5 Ft L B R (0 58
75 ~ BT BURF S THIMATS
THREEFSNZZHITT
ETHEL -

- FETE TR EER Level 2: based on valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to

(ziee 30N S BN RS G ES the fair value measurement is observable, either directly or indirectly. This category includes

( [ g5 e e S EE T maijority of the OTC derivative contracts, debt securities and certificates of deposit with quote
EEFEANEE) n4iE5F from pricing services vendors, issued structured deposits and other debt instruments. It also
oy EEh i ZE o IR includes certain foreign exchange contracts, precious metals and properties with insignificant
FERE BN BINTAE adjustments or calibrations made to observable market inputs.
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JEE s HU ST AR Y (5 2 2%
FAFkEs - S THIGS RN
ko UR A T A -
[FIRF NG S AT 22 A
BINZRHEST T A ERHE
SRR T INE ST

e EE -
- E=JE4 ThEMEER. - Level 3: based on valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to
T E A B (S 4 R 2= the fair value measurement is unobservable. This category includes equity investments, debt
([EI0F B e S E 5 instruments and certain OTC derivative contracts with significant unobservable components.
EHEAEE) BAOH It also includes properties with significant adjustments made to observable market inputs.
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WEENEE (&) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
5. EEMAMBN/AFE 5. Fair values of assets and liabilities (continued)
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For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis,
the Group determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by
reassessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

5.1 Financial instruments measured at fair value

The Group has an established governance structure and controls framework to ensure that
fair values are either determined or validated by control units independent of the front offices.
Control units have overall responsibility for independent verification of valuation results from
front line businesses and all other significant fair value measurements. Other specific
controls include verification of observable pricing inputs; review and approval for new models
and changes to models; calibration and back-testing of models against observed market
transactions; analysis and investigation of significant daily valuation movements; review of
significant unobservable inputs and valuation adjustments. Significant valuation issues are
reported to senior management, Risk Committee and Audit Committee.

Generally, the unit of account for a financial instrument is the individual instrument. HKFRS
13 permits a portfolio exception, through an accounting policy election, to measure the fair
value of a portfolio of financial assets and financial liabilities on the basis of the net open risk
position when certain criteria are met. The Group applies valuation adjustments at an
individual instrument level, consistent with that unit of account. According to its risk
management policies and systems to manage derivative financial instruments, the fair value
adjustments of certain derivative portfolios that meet those criteria is measured on the basis
of the price to be received or paid for net open risk. Those portfolio-level adjustments are
allocated to the individual assets and liabilities on the basis of its relative net risk exposure
to the portfolio.
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B ENE (&) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

5. EEMAMBNAFE 5. Fair values of assets and liabilities (continued)
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5.1 Financial instruments measured at fair value (continued)

The Group uses valuation techniques or broker/dealer quotations to determine the fair
value of financial instruments when unable to obtain the open market quotation in active
markets.

The main parameters used in valuation techniques for financial instruments held by the
Group include bond prices, interest rates, foreign exchange rates, equity and stock prices,
commodity prices, volatilities and correlations, counterparty credit spreads and others,
which are mostly observable and obtainable from open market.

The technique used to calculate the fair value of the following financial instruments is as
below:

Debt securities and certificates of deposit and other debt instruments

fufiEEs TR
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The fair value of these instruments is determined by obtaining quoted market prices from
exchange, dealer or independent pricing service vendors or using discounted cash flow
technique. Discounted cash flow model is a valuation technique that measures present
value using estimated expected future cash flows from the instruments and then discounts
these flows using a discount rate or discount margin that reflects the credit spreads
required by the market for instruments with similar risk. These inputs are observable or can
be corroborated by observable or unobservable market data.

Asset backed securities
For this class of instruments, external prices are obtained from independent third parties.

The valuation of these securities, depending on the nature of transaction, is estimated from
market standard cash flow models with input parameter which include spreads to discount
rates, default and recovery rates and prepayment rates that may be observable or compiled
through matrix pricing for similar issues.
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5.1 Financial instruments measured at fair value (continued)

Derivatives

OTC derivative contracts include forward, swap and option contracts on foreign exchange,
interest rate, equity, commodity or credit. The fair values of these contracts are mainly
measured using valuation techniques such as discounted cash flow models and option
pricing models. The inputs can be observable or unobservable market data. Observable
inputs include interest rate, foreign exchange rates, equity and stock prices, commodity
prices, credit default swap spreads, volatilities and correlations. Unobservable inputs may
be used for less commonly traded option products which are embedded in structured
deposits. For certain complex derivative contracts, the fair values are determined based on
broker/dealer price quotations.

Credit valuation adjustments (“CVAs”) and debit valuation adjustments (“DVAs”) are applied
to the Group’s OTC derivatives. These adjustments reflect market factors movement,
expectations of counterparty creditworthiness and the Group’s own credit spread
respectively. They are mainly determined for each counterparty and are dependent on
expected future values of exposures, default probabilities and recovery rates.
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5. EEMAMEN/AFE 5. Fair values of assets and liabilities (continued)

(&)

51 IAVEHENERT
8 (&

(A) DPERIER

SR
LHMATE (Jitik 21)
- R
tect
- Bty
- HALEH TR
AR UL
L A &
WA (k21

- [EFEET I
ke
FUE Ry LA PEEE LA
NR#E 2 S RlAE
(K& 21)
- [EEsEETR R
ke
- HAt{Fs LA
PTAESRTA
(KaE 22)
PLAPEZEALEE AH
il 2= T 2 2 B R
B H AR (I &k
23)
PLAPEZEALEE AH
i 2= T U 2 2 B 2R
& (IfEE24)
- [EEsEETR R
EE G
- RetraEze

(A) Fair value hierarchy

5.1 Financial instruments measured at fair value (continued)

2021
FBE  BOER  B=ER st
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
AREET AYEOET ABYEET BEEET
HK$’'m HK$’'m HK$’m HK$’'m
Financial assets
Trading assets (Note 21)
- Debt securities and
certificates of deposit 121 23,746 - 23,867
- Equity securities 23 - - 23
- Other debt instruments - 3,201 - 3,201
Other financial assets
mandatorily classified at
fair value through profit or
loss (Note 21)
- Debt securities and
certificates of deposit - 1,138 - 1,138
Financial assets designated
at fair value through profit
or loss (Note 21)
- Debt securities and
certificates of deposit 711 766 - 1,477
- Other debt instruments - 15,196 - 15,196
Derivative financial
instruments (Note 22) 16 33,231 - 33,247
Advances and other
accounts at FVOCI
(Note 23)
- 2,757 - 2,757
Investment in securities at
FVOCI (Note 24)
- Debt securities and
certificates of deposit 291,622 562,479 - 854,101
- Equity securities - 1,459 2,132 3,591
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5. EEMAMEN/AFE 5. Fair values of assets and liabilities (continued)
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(A) Fair value hierarchy (continued)

5.1 Financial instruments measured at fair value (continued)

2021
F—E%k FoRES BEER &=t
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
AREET AYEOET ABYEET BEEET
HK$’'m HK$’'m HK$’m HK$’'m
Financial liabilities
Financial liabilities at fair
value through profit or loss
(Note 30)
- Trading liabilities - 12,322 - 12,322
- Financial liabilities
designated at fair value
through profit or loss - 198 - 198
Derivative financial
instruments (Note 22) 1 29,686 - 29,697
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BANK OF CHINA (HONG KONG) LIMITED

(A) Fair value hierarchy (continued)

Financial assets
Trading assets (Note 21)
- Debt securities and
certificates of deposit
- Equity securities
- Other debt instruments
Other financial assets
mandatorily classified at
fair value through profit or
loss (Note 21)
- Debt securities and
certificates of deposit
Financial assets designated
at fair value through profit
or loss (Note 21)
- Debt securities and
certificates of deposit
- Other debt instruments
Derivative financial
instruments (Note 22)
Advances and other
accounts at FVOCI
(Note 23)

Investment in securities at
FVOCI (Note 24)

- Debt securities and
certificates of deposit
- Equity securities
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B ENE (&) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
5. EEMAMBN/AFE 5. Fair values of assets and liabilities (continued)

5.1 Financial instruments measured at fair value (continued)

2020
F—lgk Ak FE=TEE) Wt
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
WETET  AWEHET BYEET BEEET
HK$'m HK$'m HK$'m HK$'m
- 26,817 - 26,817
49 - - 49
- 3,300 - 3,300
- 1,154 - 1,154
720 587 - 1,307
- 118 - 118
8 52,803 - 52,811
- 1,163 - 1,163
258,400 472,935 - 731,335
- 1,074 2,367 3,441
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B EHE (&) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

5. EEMAMBN/AFE 5. Fair values of assets and liabilities (continued)
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5.1 Financial instruments measured at fair value (continued)

(A) Fair value hierarchy (continued)

2020
FBE  EoE% BEEE Yzt
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
BEEET BEEET BREET BYEET
HK$'m HK$'m HK$'m HK$'m
Financial liabilities
Financial liabilities at fair
value through profit or loss
(Note 30)
- Trading liabilities - 20,336 - 20,336
- Financial liabilities
designated at fair value
through profit or loss - - - -
Derivative financial
instruments (Note 22) 29 60,326 - 60,355

There were no financial asset and liability transfers between level 1 and level 2 for the
Group during 2021 (2020: There were transfers of derivative financial assets of
HK$15,498 million and derivative financial liabilities of HK$11,227 million from level 1 to
level 2 for the Group during 2020 as a result of calibrations of market observable inputs
on certain financial instruments. The impact arising from such calibrations was
insignificant to the fair value measurement of the relevant financial instruments).
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5. Fair values of assets and liabilities (continued)

5.1 Financial instruments measured at fair value (continued)

(B) Reconciliation of level 3 items

At 1 January 2021
Losses
- Income statement
- Net trading gain
- Other comprehensive income
- Change in fair value
Additions
Transfer out of level 3

At 31 December 2021
Total unrealised gains for the year included in

income statement for financial assets held as at
31 December 2021

- Net trading gain
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2021
SREE

Financial assets
BIATEE(L
s AH At 2
W BERE
Investment in
14 securities
SEiTE at FVOCI
Derivative g5
financial Equity
instruments securities
BEEET BEEHET
HK$’'m HK$’'m
- 2,367
- (246)
- 1"
- 2,132
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B ENE (&) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

5. EEMAMBINAFE 5. Fair values of assets and liabilities (continued)
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5.1 Financial instruments measured at fair value (continued)

(B) Reconciliation of level 3 items (continued)

At 1 January 2020
Gains
- Income statement
- Net trading gain
- Other comprehensive income
- Change in fair value
Additions
Transfer out of level 3

At 31 December 2020

Total unrealised gains for the year included in
income statement for financial assets held as at
31 December 2020

- Net trading gain
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2020
SRILERE
Financial assets

LA (b
A A4
Wis Z 58 1A
Investment in
$iE securities
A = at FVOCI
Derivative R85 %5
financial Equity
instruments securities
BEEHET BEEHET
HK$'m HK$'m
11 2,154
146 -
- 213
(157) -
- 2,367
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B ENE (&) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
5. EEMAMBN/AFE 5. Fair values of assets and liabilities (continued)

€:-))
5.1 PAREHSBNSRT 5.1 Financial instruments measured at fair value (continued)

B (&)

(B) B=|E4 1 EEE (B) Reconciliation of level 3 items (continued)
gy ()
#2021 412 H 31 As at 31 December 2021 and 2020, financial instruments categorised as level 3 are
HE 2020 & 12 H mainly comprised of unlisted equity shares.
31 H > HRE=R
G ER T A TER
FEIE LR -
NSNS For certain OTC derivative contracts, the counterparty credit spreads used in valuation
PTAETEEY  HXX techniques are unobservable inputs with significant impact on valuation. Therefore,
ST EERNERER these instruments have been classified by the Group as level 3. Transfers out of level 3
AR S A during 2020 were due to change of valuation observability. The Group has established
EAEEZE - JHit internal control procedures to control the Group’s exposure to such financial
AEEFELE SR T instruments.
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B ENE (&) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
5. EEMAMBN/AFE 5. Fair values of assets and liabilities (continued)
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AN HESH R Z 2B
B s AR
25.76x - 51.58x ~ i
JE% 0.49x - 1.04x ~
FENEHTI 30% ~
P S B ER 23.44%
- 83.51% Fe AR #t
BRT7.95%-12.21% -
NHEEEGRNZ
Cljast e =Pl
R H{E R HE
EE ~ FRMEARACRSE
F R S B
FAEE R > 8
ARy ERTAE]
ZAHIE, EAtE
R H{E R HE
ELRER IR R BT
ISR S LR AU B
PR RGER 2Rl S [ )
e

ERTA S E R AT
JEFHAYEE R TR 22

b/ FIE{E (2020
1 5%) > AIALEE
Z A AT SR oy
BN 0.96 {&
TLECRV S 0.94
{7t (2020 £ : #H0
AW 0.55 (FITEE
/Dl 0.54 fE5T) °

5.1 Financial instruments measured at fair value (continued)

(B) Reconciliation of level 3 items (continued)

The fair values of unlisted FVOCI equity investments are determined with reference to
(i) multiples of comparable listed companies, including average of the price/earnings
ratios and average of the price/book values ratios of the comparables; or (ii) dividend
discount model calculation of the underlying equity investments; or (iii) net asset value
with fair value adjustments on certain assets or liabilities held (if applicable), if neither
appropriate comparables nor dividend discount model calculation is available or
applicable. The significant unobservable inputs and their range applied in the fair values
measurement of the Group’s unlisted FVOCI equity investments includes price/earnings
ratios of the comparables of 25.76x - 51.58x, price/book values ratios of the
comparables of 0.49x - 1.04x, liquidity discount of 30%, dividend payout ratio of 23.44%
- 83.51% and return on shareholders’ equity of 7.95% - 12.21%. The fair value is
positively correlated to the price/earnings ratios and price/book value ratios of
appropriate comparables, forecasted stream of future dividend payout or net asset
values, and is negatively correlated to the liquidity discount used in the average of
price/earnings ratios and price/book value ratios of comparables or discount rate used
in dividend discount model.

Had all of the significant unobservable inputs applied on the valuation technigues
favourably changed/unfavourably changed by 5% (2020: 5%), the Group’s other
comprehensive income would have increased by HK$96 million and decreased by
HK$94 million, respectively (2020: increased by HK$55 million and decreased by HK$54
million, respectively).
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B ENE (&) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

5. EEMAMBN/AFE 5. Fair values of assets and liabilities (continued)
(&

5.2 Financial instruments not measured at fair value

5.2 JERLAHEST RIS

IHA

AR DAL — R E
B A B T S B A
6] b T B 2 EkE ST
fli o NN Z AR 2
FH R IRE R A RS
BRI T HZNPE -

TR 18 R SRAT e LAt

Fair value estimates are made at a specific point in time based on relevant market
information and information about various financial instruments. The following methods and
assumptions have been used to estimate the fair value of each class of financial instrument
as far as practicable.

Balances with/from banks and other financial institutions and trade bills

S B 7 45 B N B 5
£
KERY 2GR EE R A
R SR B 1R —E N
FH] > HARH{EBNF
B -

5 SR e Al

Substantially all the financial assets and liabilities mature within one year from the balance
sheet date and their carrying value approximates fair value.

Advances to customers and banks and other financial institutions

RIS
Koy 2 % F &R
17 B HiAth = R A B K
EFEITER SRR
STEFE, - HARH{EELA
SR -

LI# eR B AE B 2 555

Substantially all the advances to customers and banks and other financial institutions are
on floating rate terms, bear interest at prevailing market interest rates and their carrying
value approximates fair value.

Investment in securities at amortised cost

fica=

Li#ger g Ast 2 2 585
ZPHEEEEIEE 5.1
WL SEE T BRI
o R R E R
EZFRA ZI77EMIE -

The fair value of securities at amortised cost is determined by using the same approach as
those debt securities and certificates of deposit and asset backed securities measured at
fair value as described in Note 5.1.
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B ENE (&) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

5. EEMAMBN/AFE 5. Fair values of assets and liabilities (continued)
(&

5.2 JERLAHEST RIS

IHE (8

HEFK

RER G 2 2 FAF GRS
HERARENEI H
MR BB PEARE -

BTt % R 17

5.2 Financial instruments not measured at fair value (continued)

Deposits from customers

Substantially all the deposits from customers mature within one year from the balance sheet
date and their carrying value approximates fair value.

Debt securities and certificates of deposit in issue

&
B3 T L O
BT 5.1 POBLA TS
R U053 4 R A
BRFE 7R -

P bl SR (5
BAFEOSMTASN T
£ BIELUA T R
SATE 2 IR
T -

SHMEE
DlereA st B 55
& (KfE24)

SRR
EB TR AR
(bt 32)

The fair value of these instruments is determined by using the same approach as those debt
securities and certificates of deposit measured at fair value as described in Note 5.1.

The following tables set out the carrying values and fair values of the financial instruments
not measured at fair value, except for the above with their carrying values being

approximation of fair values.

Financial assets
Investment in securities at
amortised cost (Note 24)

Financial liabilities

Debt securities and
certificates of deposit in
issue (Note 32)
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2021 2020

WRMEIA HRHEE
Carrying AE Carrying ANFEE
value Fair value value Fair value
WEEETT AREE R BYEErT AEEEC
HK$’'m HK$’'m HK$'m HK$'m
133,629 133,430 55,093 56,097
2,423 2,426 426 426
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B ENE (&) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
5. EEMAMBN/AFE 5. Fair values of assets and liabilities (continued)

(&)

5.2 JERLAHEST RIS
IHE (8

TRIVREHFE
fEE*J/\“ﬁIE
Fah -

BIHAT
AFE

SREE
DI ER AT B 256 %5
Eita =

SRis R
BT I R
7—‘1:# EvAd

SREE
DI ER AT B 258 %5

Ei'a=y

SRS
ERTH
1FEss

it R

5.2 Financial instruments not measured at fair value (continued)

The following tables show the fair value hierarchy for financial instruments with fair values

disclosed.

Financial assets
Investment in securities at
amortised cost

Financial liabilities
Debt securities and certificates
of deposit in issue

Financial assets
Investment in securities at
amortised cost

Financial liabilities
Debt securities and certificates
of deposit in issue
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2021
E =134 FEEK =14 &t
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
WEEET AB¥oER B¥EERT B¥EET
HK$’'m HK$’m HK$’m HK$’'m
995 132,049 386 133,430
- 2,426 - 2,426

2020
FoER FOER S=ER yazt
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
mEEETT  BNEHET  ABEET A EHET
HK$'m HK$'m HK$'m HK$'m
957 54,752 388 56,097
- 426 - 426
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WM HFENEE (&) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

5. EEMAMEN/AFE 5. Fair values of assets and liabilities (continued)
(&

5.3 DA EE-EHNIESR: 5.3 Non-financial instruments measured at fair value

=1
G [H 3 0 — L A {E The Group uses valuation techniques or quoted market prices in active market to determine
iy Bk o B 1T 15 A e the fair value of non-financial instruments.

TEIEERE T RATAPE -

BB Investment properties and premises

KEEZ YA S B The Group’s properties can be divided into investment properties and premises. All of the
BEYE KRR - B A8 Group’s investment properties and premises were revalued as at year end. This year, the
HEEVENEED valuations were carried out by an independent firm of chartered surveyors, Knight Frank
R TR - KFEZ Petty Limited, who have among their staff Fellow and Members of The Hong Kong Institute
1 18 18 17 45 5 M = B of Surveyors with recent experience in the locations and categories of properties being
HHIHEET AR AT valued. The Group’s Management had discussions with the surveyors on the valuation
HELT > HigrE BfEE SN methods, valuation assumptions and valuation results when the valuation is performed at
B2 R LHET S each interim and annual reporting date. There has been no change in valuation methods
e =N~ during the year and the methods used are consistent with last year.

G AT A {8 1) 2 i 3t &

SRS EHEA S - oS

E R B AR

I - AR &R
BRI ETE (5
BB R Al {E AR - fli(E
TIERERNIGATE TR

EEF—E

) & JE@H N\ FEET = (i) Valuation methods and inputs used in level 2 fair value measurements
AN E T ERA
E
W ke R g The fair value of properties classified as level 2 is determined using either the market
YISER ] T92% comparison approach by reference to recent sales price of comparable properties or the
o] b EE )2 2 IT HA HY income capitalisation approach by reference to market rent and capitalisation rate, with
ERAE (HEthE appropriate adjustments to reflect the differences between the comparable properties
B ESETEHES & and the subject properties. These adjustments are considered as insignificant to the
BEAREE (AELR measurement.
%) LR
B s AL )2 2 [EIEY

AR R - ot
SRR R B R A

ETE L R E Y
@ .
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B ENE (&) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
5. EEMAMBN/AFE 5. Fair values of assets and liabilities (continued)
(&)

5.3 Non-financial instruments measured at fair value (continued)

5.3 DAAHEETBHIIEER
IHE (8

BN mrE ()
() B =4 N PER 2

Investment properties and premises (continued)

(i) Valuation methods and inputs used in level 2 fair value measurements (continued)

PRI RIS 1E 775 A

# (&)

REE 2 EHENR The Group’s properties are located in Hong Kong, certain major cities in the mainland,
TR~ Y - B Thailand and Malaysia where the property markets are considered active and
KB ARV aE 2 T Eh transparent. Sales price, market rent and capitalisation rate of comparable properties

DERE D Gy reonh &
BHHPSE TS - mTEREL
Yz & i
& RBEAER R
HERET S EHE
PSSR -

(YA B 5 = 8 E
EHERYER

PRE(IT RSN > B34
B =B A
Vst 2 A P ESRA
MG EA S AE
ARk FHEAEEYIE
HE R A% 2
PB4 A Rk

HEIE -

R SRAT 2 [ 2 S8
MWE W GRGE
BaTE R HAHE
T AITEEERA
EHEE - EEHINZE Ry
IR L T
33 3UESE LTI ®N
FATER WIFEER
i B DS L) 3 6 0
A -

(i)

are generally observable either directly or indirectly in these markets.

Information about level 3 fair value measurements

The fair value of all of the Group’s properties classified as level 3, except for the bank
vault, is determined using either the market comparison approach or the income
capitalisation approach, adjusted for a premium or a discount specific to the features of
the Group’s properties compared to the comparable properties.

The fair value of the bank vault is determined using the depreciated replacement cost
approach as no direct comparable is available given the specialised nature of the
property. The major inputs are the market value of the existing land, the current cost of
replacing the property and the depreciation rate. Appropriate adjustments are made to
reflect the specialised nature of the property.
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B ENE (&) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

5. EEMAMEN/AFE 5. Fair values of assets and liabilities (continued)
(&

5.3 Non-financial instruments measured at fair value (continued)

5.3 DAAHEETBHIIEER
IHE (8

Investment properties and premises (continued)

"EYE R EE (8D

(i) 7055 = e 0 25 P (.
EFRAVER (8)

(i) Information about level 3 fair value measurements (continued)

DU BN EEE The valuation methods and significant unobservable inputs used in the fair value
HEE R e = measurement of the Group’s properties classified as level 3 are as follows:
ez REFEVERTER
FAHIEETT 7 R R
NHEEERE
FHEERZEAFENR R
BT BEARIBERRE it SRS Relationship of
Valuation Significant Weighted unobservable inputs
method unobservable inputs average to fair value
ST reEEERAE rees HHE2% e - A PEAK -
Bank vault Depreciated Depreciation rate (20204 : 2%) The higher the depreciation rate,
replacement cost 2% (2020: 2%) the lower the fair value.
approach per year
VISR TREERLA+15% ERE A HEAS -
Premium on specialised (20204 : +15%) The higher the premium,
nature of the property| +15% (2020: +15%) the higher the fair value.
to building cost
FAtr TGEERUAER| VIS S AT ELER YR -3.7% wfERS A HEES -
Other U AEAE B2 (PrE) (2020: -8%) The higher the premium,
properties Market Premium/(discount) the higher the fair value.
comparison on features of the
approach or property compared to riEfs  AFHEBE -
income comparable properties The higher the discount,
capitalisation the lower the fair value.
approach

YISEAL S ] PR 5k
EHE L2 E S

Cip-PVAE =3
EEE AR R R
EAYZEE > PIAOREC
k58S -~ (IH
M ~ MR IR
e ~ R s
EE -

Premium/(discount) on features of a property is determined after taken into account
various factors, such as time for market movement, location, accessibility, building

age/condition, floor level, size, layout, etc., with reference to the differences in features

with comparable properties.
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Mgz () Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

5. EEMAMBN/AFE 5. Fair values of assets and liabilities (continued)
(&

5.3 DA EE-EHNIESR: 5.3 Non-financial instruments measured at fair value (continued)
ITA (8
EEYERFE (48) Investment properties and premises (continued)
(VAR =R A\ E (i) Information about level 3 fair value measurements (continued)

STEAVER (%)

B E A EETE For the fair value of the investment property with a redevelopment plan, it is measured
BV NPE on a redevelopment basis by adopting residual approach which is a valuation method
PR R eR (5 (B4 generally used to value development of lands. Gross Development Value (“GDV”) is first
FEHREERETEH determined using market comparison approach by reference to recent transactions of
E{E - FerfhEE— comparable properties and adjusted for a premium or a discount specific to the quality
BOE A LR of the Group’s development compared to the comparable properties. The ultimate fair
fHEFE - Ehgi value of the redevelopment is the residual value after deducting the present value of the
HthEE R B EH development costs (including professional fees, demolition cost, constructions cost etc.)
HIEHMEEEE and developer’s profit from the present value of the GDV. The higher the GDV, the higher
H - HiGtbiEEE S the fair value; the higher the development costs and the discount rate, the lower is the
AR T EE Y fair value.

SERYRAC(E - ik A]

b2k B £ 5% fB 0H

HAVE 2= 2RET

ai (R o RS
HY PRy HE S R E
ERRE R PR
JA (ELIRESEEE A ~
PrEpeA ~ AR
L) R EAEEHE
ERFTRIERAIEE -
WEREAGES > o
FEGEE  BRK
KRR >

SPE & A -
HEE Precious metals
BEE AN PEERE The fair values of precious metals are determined by obtaining quoted market prices in
B miGmENAE ST active market or market quote with certain adjustments.
BT Ry B
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B ENE (&) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
5. EEMAMBN/AFE 5. Fair values of assets and liabilities (continued)

€:-))
5.3 DIANEEEFEIIESR 5.3 Non-financial instruments measured at fair value (continued)
THE (&
(A) N HERELR (A) Fair value hierarchy
2021
F—E%k FER B=RE% QT
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
BREET B¥EERT BYREET  A¥EET
HK$’'m HK$’m HK$’'m HK$’m
JEEREE Non-financial assets
EYE (M5 26) Investment properties (Note 26) - 477 17,886 18,363
YIZE ~ 2IMF Rt Properties, plant and equipment
(M 27) (Note 27)

- FBiE - Premises - 3,302 39,841 43,143
Hptn&zE (HfsE 28) Other assets (Note 28)

- BB - Precious metals - 10,207 - 10,207

2020
g EIER E=JEEk HEEt
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
BiEEET BEEET BEEET BBHET
HK$'m HK$'m HK$'m HK$'m
JEEREE Non-financial assets
&eEYE (Mf5k 26) Investment properties (Note 26) - 715 18,025 18,740
YIZE ~ 23M Rt Properties, plant and equipment
(MfeE 27) (Note 27)

- R - Premises - 2,583 40,666 43,249
Htn&zE (s 28) Other assets (Note 28)

- BEE - Precious metals - 10,697 - 10,697
AREHZFEEMEBERER There were no non-financial asset transfers between level 1 and level 2 for the Group during
ERNGEE—BRRE the year (2020: There were transfers of HK$5,721 million of precious metals from level 1 to
g4l [EIrvEERS (2020 level 2 for the Group during 2020 as a result of calibrations of market observable inputs on
FHRNAEENEESE precious metals. The impact arising from such calibrations was insignificant to the fair value
G RN E T measurement of precious metals. There were no other non-financial asset transfers between
TREE A 2020 FERZ level 1 and level 2 for the Group during the year).

HEBHE -ERES
g AR R BN
57.21 {7t - AHRERAEE
HEBA T EEPE
FEKR - AL HEMIE
BRIBEENENLHS
—JE KRB B
HIERRS ) -
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B ENE (&) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
5. EEMAMBN/AFE 5. Fair values of assets and liabilities (continued)

(&)

5.3 DIANEEEFEIIESR 5.3 Non-financial instruments measured at fair value (continued)

IHE (8

(B) =24 HE B &) (B) Reconciliation of level 3 items

2021 FE1H1H
[
- s
- A T
IR
- EEE P
e
- A
yies
WE
BB
BB B
E
BR324

2021412 H 31 H

2021 4 12 H 31 HEFF
HIFEERE AT EE R A
Wi RAIAR 5 IRAEEH
- REVEEAHERE S

HETIR
- EflFBEZ TR

At 1 January 2021
Losses
- Income statement
- Net loss from fair value adjustments
on investment properties
- Net loss from revaluation of premises
- Other comprehensive income
- Revaluation of premises
Depreciation
Additions
Transfer into level 3
Transfer out of level 3
Reclassification
Exchange difference

At 31 December 2021

Total unrealised losses for the year included
in income statement for non-financial
assets held as at 31 December 2021
- Net loss from fair value adjustments on

investment properties
- Net loss from revaluation of premises

248

2021

JFERIEE

Non-financial assets

Yisk ~ B R

Properties, plant

s and equipment
Investment EE
properties Premises
BEHET BEBET
HK$’'m HK$’'m
18,025 40,666
(229) .

- (16)

- 612

- (1,125)

232 38

422 595

(163) (1,291)

(401) 401

- (39)

17,886 39,841
(229) .

- (16)

(229) (16)
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B ENE (&) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

5. EEMAMBN/AFE 5. Fair values of assets and liabilities (continued)
(&

5.3 DAAHEETBHIIEER

IHE (8

(B) FE=EHHEABE
(&

202041 H1H

i
- UGER
- R T
>
- EERE PR
- BT
- REELS
i
i

HAFE =B
LS = E
EER ey
bEE S A2

A 20204£12 H 31 H

J~ 2020 4 12 A 31 HiFA
HIFEERIE A EENET A
Wi RAUAR TR 5 TR AEEH
- AV HEERE Y

HETR
- EffifEEE 2 kR

(B) Reconciliation of level 3 items (continued)

5.3 Non-financial instruments measured at fair value (continued)

2020

IEERIERE
Non-financial assets

VI ~ B30 R

Properties, plant

At 1 January 2020
Losses
- Income statement
- Net loss from fair value adjustments
on investment properties
- Net loss from revaluation of premises
- Other comprehensive income
- Revaluation of premises
Depreciation
Additions
Transfer into level 3
Transfer out of level 3
Reclassification
Exchange difference

At 31 December 2020

Total unrealised losses for the year included
in income statement for non-financial
assets held as at 31 December 2020
- Net loss from fair value adjustments on

investment properties
- Net loss from revaluation of premises

B and equipment
Investment B
properties Premises
B EET B EET
HK$'m HK$'m
20,032 45,004
(1,641) .

- (57)

- (1,705)

- (1,153)

9 87

(295) (1,590)

(80) 80
18,025 40,666
(1,641) .

- (57)

(1,641) (57)
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B ENE (&) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
5. EEMAMBN/AFE 5. Fair values of assets and liabilities (continued)

(&)

5.3 DAAHEETBHIIEER
IHE (8

(B)

BEEGHIREE
(&

AR LE =)
FHIMETIR G F
EAERIERYE SRS
LRI SEAETEE
2B (D
A5 P Y B B P
518 - WA B
VS DIEEIVRIS
i i B ) 5% BLAT 3
AL 2 W] EE ) 3
TEME BHIZESE -
SEES = Fin
55 %38 2 AT EE )
EHGRTARRE - 5
fiti (B9 5% 8 ] B ¢
VIR B2
8/ (Jr(E) GiamE
BHEAE(L > fET
B RSN
AT R
BEARMT G %
b SIEZEREEA
S =B -

5.3 Non-financial instruments measured at fair value (continued)

(B) Reconciliation of level 3 items (continued)

The transfer of properties into and out of level 3 is due to change in the
premium/(discount) on features applied between the subject and comparable properties
during the year. Premium/(discount) on features is determined with reference to
differences in features between the subject properties and the comparable properties
recently transacted in the market. As comparable properties that come from recent
market transactions may be different in each year, the premium/(discount) on features
applied between the subject and comparable properties would change from year to year
accordingly. As a result, the significance of adjustments made to observable market
inputs may vary and lead to the transfer of properties into and out of level 3.
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BRI (8D

6.

2 SUIN

FIRURA

R FRERT KA
BRI

R HRE AN T EALET
NB#E 2 SRl

EAl

FE X

EEER - SR1T R EeAft
PR RO

EE TS 75 R e

RIEAR
HEAR
it

AFRMA

1E R A R LA PEZ
st AR A s (Fa T2
SR EATREMA ST B B
HilE 293.95 7T (2020 £ :
A 364.91 (BIT) KB
68.04 fE7T (2020 4 : HiE
94.75 {E7T) -

st BRI S
Fy il 83.46 (F7T( 2020 4E:
HEWE 148.89 fET) -

6. Net interest income

Interest income

Advances to customers, due from banks and
other financial institutions

Investment in securities and financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss

Others

Interest expense

Deposits from customers, due to banks and
other financial institutions

Debt securities and certificates of deposit in
issue

Subordinated liabilities

Lease liabilities

Others

Net interest income

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

2021 2020
BREEIT A ETT
HK$’m HK$'m
27,375 34,703
9,007 11,505
119 222
36,501 46,430
(8,239) (14,747)
(42) (2)

- (80)

(33) (53)
(43) (250)
(8,357) (15,132)
28,144 31,298

Included within interest income are HK$29,395 million (2020: HK$36,491 million) and
HK$6,804 million (2020: HK$9,475 million) for financial assets measured at amortised cost
and at fair value through other comprehensive income respectively.

Included within interest expense are HK$8,346 million (2020: HK$14,889 million) for financial
liabilities that are not measured at fair value through profit or loss.
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WEHENRE (&) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
7. FRBENFASKA 7. Net fee and commission income

2021 2020
BREET A ETT
HK$’'m HK$'m
BB AESRA Fee and commission income
HIFERAD Securities brokerage 3,743 3,567
EiHE Loan commissions 2,750 2,314
ERR¥ES Credit card business 2,152 1,868
Trbs Insurance 1,757 1,480
(B R ETE IR Trust and custody services 777 700
SRS Payment services 751 740
B oAy Funds distribution 739 783
MEE( 4 Bills commissions 623 591
REE Safe deposit box 306 306
HEEY Currency exchange 119 226
HAth Others 1,225 1,083
14,942 13,658
ISk S =958 i dan) Fee and commission expense
fEHRER Credit card business (1,400) (1,179)
AL Securities brokerage (458) (415)
Hoft Others (625) (666)
(2,483) (2,260)
BREERASWA Net fee and commission income 12,459 11,398
HRE - Of which arise from:
JEDLAPEE(LE A Financial assets or financial liabilities that are not
fEEt B2 SREER S measured at fair value through profit or loss
=i
- IRBE R HESUA - Fee and commission income 3,077 2,592
- RS G - Fee and commission expense (13) (7)
3,064 2,585
St R HAZ A EE) Trust and other fiduciary activities
- R E LRSI A - Fee and commission income 980 899
- B RS E - Fee and commission expense (38) (30)
942 869
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LIMITED

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

8. Net trading gain

2021 2020
AEEET A EETT
HK$’'m HK$'m
Net gain/(loss) from:
Foreign exchange and foreign exchange
products 4,676 5,066
Interest rate instruments and items under
fair value hedge (48) (800)
Commodities 175 361
Equity and credit derivative instruments 129 136
4,932 4,763

9. Net (loss)/gain on other financial instruments at fair
profit or loss

value through

2021 2020
BEREET B EET
HK$’'m HK$'m
Net (loss)/gain on other financial instruments
mandatorily classified at fair value through
profit or loss (39) 36
Net (loss)/gain on financial instruments
designated at fair value through profit or
loss (26) 121
(65) 157
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10. Hft&g T E >2/3UZ 10. Net gain on other financial instruments

N2

E

FRELSEE DA PE S LA
AH At SIS 2 3R
g P liiem

SEICI DR A T 2 R 7R
& 2518

ity

11. HAnZEUA 1.

EEISUION
- REFERPEE T

I g S
:é(

- RAFEEMFEAEZN
SPEE LA AH At 4
[l eawacizia
REYZEZ B
AR AR S
HAttr

FAESEYHZ T B
FEARHNHREYE Z 5%
KB HER 7 8T (2020
A EET -

Net gain on disposal/redemption of investment in
securities at FVOCI

Net loss on redemption of investment in securities at
amortised cost
Others

Other operating income

Dividend income
- From investment in securities at FVOCI derecognised
during the year

- From investment in securities at FVOCI held at the
end of the year

Gross rental income from investment properties
Less: Outgoings in respect of investment properties
Others

2021 2020
BEEET A & T
HK$’'m HK$'m
1,059 4,411
(117) (35)
25 7
967 4,383
2021 2020
BEEET AW ETT
HK$’'m HK$'m
1 "
169 93
576 597
(57) (61)
63 97
752 737

Included in the “Outgoings in respect of investment properties” is HK$7 million (2020: HK$4
million) of direct operating expenses related to investment properties that were not let during

the year.
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IRERERE (R (A

BRI ELAt R

FESRTT B At R AR 2 465
B R E I

A
- DIATPES L AL

ESEIlIE
- DigeRpcAE =

EHoReE R BRG]

HiAth

R E AL

12. Net charge of impairment allowances

Net (charge)/reversal of impairment allowances on:

Advances and other accounts

Balances and placements with banks and other
financial institutions

Investment in securities
- At FVOCI

- At amortised cost

Loan commitments and financial guarantee
contracts

Others

Net charge of impairment allowances
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

2021 2020
BEEET HIEEETT
HK$’m HK$'m
(1,966) (2,489)
(15) (5)
(29) (90)
(23) 9
(52) (81)
(80) (77)
(2,113) (2,652)
(20) (19)
(2,133) (2,671)
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

13. Operating expenses

2021 2020
BEEHET AREHETT
HK$’'m HK$'m
ANEEH (AEEEWS) Staff costs (including directors’ emoluments)
- RN R H A - Salaries and other costs 8,625 8,541
- BRECA - Pension cost 514 525
9,139 9,066
FRE Rk i (R | Premises and equipment expenses (excluding
FEITEE D) depreciation and amortisation)
- EHIHE - KEEESE - Short-term leases, leases of low-value assets and
HE R FEfHelE variable lease payments 10 10
- HAth - Others 1,199 1,204
1,209 1,214
PrEs R B Depreciation and amortisation 2,974 2,978
T < Auditor’s remuneration
- Bt - Audit services 24 28
- JEFETARFS - Non-audit services 8 13
HAKET H Other operating expenses 2,455 2,476
15,809 15,775
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14. TLEYIEBRE /N F  14. Net loss from disposal of/fair value adjustments on investment
{EERR 2 2E51E properties

2021 2020
AEEET A EETT
HK$’'m HK$'m
BN ERE Net loss from fair value adjustments on investment
SFEE (JffeE 26) properties (Note 26) (227) (1,641)

15. BE "EftY3 - 22 15. Net loss from disposal/revaluation of properties, plant and
Y4 P i equipment

2021 2020
AEEET R ETT
HK$’m HK$'m

PRE R ~ [ S F 2 Net loss from disposal of equipment, fixtures and
ZEEH fittings (3) (@)

Bl EFEAR (M Net loss from revaluation of premises (Note 27)

27) (17) (59)
(20) (63)
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16. 318 16. Taxation

W RN Z A IEAH AT T -

EN T
MG
- HEHNEFARIH
- TR

HAELIMTHE
- FENEFARIH
- TEAEEEERRE

PEIERIH
W2 AR 2 A R
FRBERITRE R
¥ 34)

TR AL R A (S

R 16.5% (2020 4 :
16.5% ) 215 - FELLINGA]
Z R B A R (T R
PRI AN G2 B 40 S 5 P
EE%E Wl > BT Rt

B

AR AT R B
BB - BURSEERIGR
BB RAT

R AT

FifR % 16.5% (2020 4 :
16.5% ) st HEAIIMIH

HANRFR  HilE R R = 2
P

TR Z A

TR R eI B

i A AR R IS 515

TR ORI

EABLIINERER

HAtl

Taxation in the income statement represents:

2021 2020
AEEET A EETT
HK$’'m HK$'m
Current tax
Hong Kong profits tax
- Current year taxation 4,761 5,367
- Over-provision in prior years (283) (147)
4,478 5,220
Taxation outside Hong Kong
- Current year taxation 436 412
- Over-provision in prior years (1) (25)
4,913 5,607
Deferred tax
Origination and reversal of temporary differences and
unused tax credits (Note 34)
(69) (512)
4,844 5,095

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of 16.5% (2020: 16.5%) on the estimated
assessable profits arising in Hong Kong during the year. Taxation on profits outside Hong
Kong has been calculated on the estimated assessable profits for the year at the rates of
taxation prevailing in the countries/regions in which the Group operates.

The taxation on the Group’s profit before taxation that differs from the theoretical amount that
would arise using the taxation rate of Hong Kong is as follows:

2021 2020
BEREET A EET
HK$’'m HK$'m
Profit before taxation 29,075 32,628

Calculated at a taxation rate of 16.5% (2020: 16.5%)
4,797 5,384

Effect of different taxation rates in other

countries/regions 199 75
Income not subject to taxation (154) (295)
Expenses not deductible for taxation purposes 437 447
Utilisation of previously unrecognised tax losses (15) -
Over-provision in prior years (284) (172)
Withholding tax outside Hong Kong 90 (117)
Others (226) (227)
Taxation charge 4,844 5,095
Effective tax rate 16.7% 15.6%
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17. IR 17. Dividends

2021 2020
i S 571,54 ke
BT A¥EER i B EET
Per share Total Per share Total
HK$ HK$’'m HK$ HK$'m
#4358 Dividends 0.274 11,794 0.282 12,138
2021 £8 H30 H#E= On 30 August 2021, the Board declared an interim dividend of HK$0.110 per ordinary share
& H R PR B SR A amounting to approximately HK$4,735 million, which was paid on 21 September 2021.
I 0.110 T > BAEHET Ry
s 47.35 {g7T AL 2021
F9H 21 HXZff -
2021 12 H14 H » & On 14 December 2021, the Board declared an interim dividend of HK$0.164 per ordinary
Fo TR TP HARE S RS share amounting to approximately HK$7,059 million, which was paid on 30 December

ey 0.164 JT > BEET Ry 2021.
AW 7059 T AER
2021 ££ 12 4 30 H¥%f -
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

18. Retirement benefit costs

AREELE OB (RAEHN T 5
BEREEEHNET - 15
B Rt T AEE A THE
HPRGTE ek
BB E T SRR
B R P SRR S o

s -

IRIEHEEE R E) BEA
kIR (RET > & B
R EEAF & 5% i
BEXEZEHEI BREEE
KH#FZ 5%E 15% 1%
(R REZ IRISER) -
(B B ERRIR FERTR IR
SR A% I H RS EE
10 FEELLL SR Tk
HY 100% 2 {8 E K - fRi%
WS ERE IENAT A
oAl R4 LE R F St
BTG i (R B 41 ) » AT YRR
30%ZE 90% & F- K -
B BUREU R X0 H
(RFEEIRG) AR -

W& (o RpI )L 2000
F12 51 B - AR5
INZ A B SORER AL T 985
EETE] - ALH 2019 4RIEE
HIRBSEEW 5 FHRL
WEATIT B RN %5
#2 SZEE AR R B 0
BRI (ST AIRAT &
CEEVN L s
WEFEEHARAE LR
MIATE /AT Z A
AL -

#HZE 2021 £ 12 H31
1 - AT BR &9 0 8
0.20 fg7T (2020 4 : 477
¥ 0.10 {ByT) )2tk
& IR IRETH] 2 (KA
Y BT 361 (BT
(2020 £ 4yH 3.75 %
7LD > A EGER S
B SRR R 4 B B
1.09 57T (2020 4 : €34
¥ 1.10{87T) -

Retirement benefits are provided to eligible employees of the Group. In Hong Kong, defined
contribution schemes for the Group’s employees are ORSO schemes exempted under the
MPF Schemes Ordinance and the BOC-Prudential Easy Choice MPF Scheme.

Under the ORSO schemes, employees make monthly contributions to the ORSO schemes
equal to 5% of their basic salaries, while the employer makes monthly contributions equal
to 5% to 15% of the employees’ monthly basic salaries, depending on years of service. The
employees are entitled to receive 100% of the employer’s contributions upon retirement,
early retirement or termination of employment after completing 10 years of service.
Employees with 3 to 9 years of service are entitled to receive the employer’s contributions
at a scale ranging from 30% to 90% upon termination of employment for other reasons other
than summary dismissal. All employer’s contributions received by employee are subject to
MPF Schemes Ordinance.

With the implementation of the MPF Schemes Ordinance on 1 December 2000, the Group
also launched the MPF Scheme according to the regulatory requirement. Since 2019,
employees with 5 years of service or above are entitled to employer’s voluntary contribution.
The trustee of the Scheme is BOCI-Prudential Trustee and the investment manager is
BOCI-Prudential Asset Management, which are related parties of the Bank.

The Group’s total contributions made to the ORSO schemes for the year ended 31
December 2021 amounted to approximately HK$361 million (2020: approximately HK$375
million), after a deduction of forfeited contributions of approximately HK$20 million (2020:
approximately HK$10 million). For the MPF Scheme, the Group contributed approximately
HK$109 million (2020: approximately HK$110 million) for the year ended 31 December
2021.
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19. EF - 5EEEAER

(i) Directors’ emoluments

KEZEANEME
(a) EEREEEEAR
Bl
(i) #E=Hie
KRR ERRA
SRITEEE R ARSRIT
FOE T ER
it AR T e R
HE AR Bl
SEIFAT ¢
#H{TEE  Executive Directors
#HIE SUN Yu
(€29 (Chief Executive)
JEHfTEE Non-executive Directors
SR LIU Liange
Zle™ LIU JinNote !
i WANG Jiang ot¢2
3=t LIN Jingzhen
B e CHENG Eva*
EZTTon CHOI Koon Shum*
= Ea KOH Beng Seng*
R LAW Yee Kwan Quinn*
R TUNG Savio Wai-Hok*

1 PMENERE
i 2 T PMENRHE -

(a) Directors’ and senior management’s emoluments

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

19. Directors’, senior management’s and key personnel’s emoluments

Details of the emoluments paid to or receivable by the directors of the Bank in respect
of their services rendered for the Bank and managing the subsidiaries within the
Group during the year are as follows:

2021
BEAFrE

EHER

BYHEF]

Basic

salaries,

allowances

HEES and HArfR*

Directors’ benefits TE4T Other =t
fee in kind Bonus payments” Total
BT BT BETT BT BETT
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
- 5,390 2,905 - 8,295
600 - - - 600
600 - - - 600
650 - - - 650
550 - - - 550
700 - - - 700
3,100 - - - 3,100
3,100 5,390 2,905 - 11,395
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Note 1: Appointed during the year.
Note 2: Resigned during the year.
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(&)

(a) EBREEEEAR

Hiig: (&)

() EEHE (&

YITESE
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(48O

AR
(4880

JEBfTES
bzt
FT
PREEER
LIy
R
[
FEF
HRE

* IR T

¥ RE R E R
BIREE#IEE

(continued)

(i) Directors’ emoluments (continued)

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

(a) Directors’ and senior management’s emoluments (continued)

19. Directors’, senior management’s and key personnel’s emoluments

2020
B
pEiLiyg
BEYItEF]
Basic
salaries,
allowances
FHEE and AR
Directors’ benefits 64T Other 4=t
fee in kind Bonus payments* Total
BT BT AT AT AT
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Executive Directors
SUN Yu
(Chief Executive) - 140 31 - 171
GAO Yingxin
(Chief Executive) - 3,041 1,636 - 4,677
- 3,181 1,667 - 4,848
Non-executive Directors
LIU Liange - - - - -
WANG Jiang - - - - -
LIN Jingzhen - - - - -
CHENG Eva* 600 - - - 600
CHOI Koon Shum* 600 - - - 600
KOH Beng Seng* 650 - - - 650
LAW Yee Kwan Quinn* 550 - - - 550
TUNG Savio Wai-Hok* 700 - - - 700
3,100 - - - 3,100
3,100 3,181 1,667 - 7,948

- RlREEEM
R HEEER
REHEERIT L
BEYSEENE

B 22021412 7 31
HIEFR - R AHE

JBCEE H B <2
) -

(2020
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* Independent Non-executive Directors

# Including the contributions to pension scheme for directors, inducement to join the Group and
the compensation for the loss of office paid to or receivable by directors.

There were no directors waived emoluments for the year ended 31 December 2021
(2020: Nil).
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BANK OF CHINA (HONG KONG) LIMITED

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

19. Directors’, senior management’s and key personnel’s emoluments
(continued)

(a) Directors’ and senior management’s emoluments (continued)

(ii) Five highest paid individuals

AR BN AL R The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest in the Group for the year
S B 1 include one (2020: Nil) director whose emolument is reflected in the analysis
$#EE (2020 4 : presented above. The emoluments payable to the remaining four (2020: five)
fit) > Hl<eE#rn individuals during the year are as follows:
Rt Hek 4 %
(2020 &£ : 5 %)
% =38t A L 2 B
EOTATE -
2021 2020
BEEET AHET
HK$’'m HK$'m
FARET & RORENE Basic salaries and allowances 16 23
TEar Bonus 9 10
BIREET B Contributions to pension schemes 2 1
27 34
FEN R E N Emoluments paid to or receivable by individuals during the year with reference to
BT R HIEY R UL their tenure are within the following bands:
Z R
N4
Number of individuals
2021 2020
4 6,000,001 JT £ ## 6,500,000 JT HK$6,000,001 to HK$6,500,000 2 1
i 6,500,001 JTE##E 7,000,000 JT HK$6,500,001 to HK$7,000,000 - 1
2 7,000,001 JTEH#HE 7,500,000 JT HK$7,000,001 to HK$7,500,000 2 2
M 7,500,001 JT £ ##E 8,000,000 7T HK$7,500,001 to HK$8,000,000 - 1

263



@ ¥ 8 4L £ m ) maa

BANK OF CHINA (HONG KONG) LIMITED

MBERMEE (88) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

19. EE - 5@EEAE 19. Directors’, senior management’s and key personnel’s emoluments

&t YN 5 (continued)
€:-))
(a) EBREEEHEAR (a) Directors’ and senior management’s emoluments (continued)

s (&)
(iii) SREEASHE (iii) Senior management’s emoluments

HEEH A BEHFEN Emoluments paid to or receivable by individuals during the year with reference to

I ETEANEAT their tenure as senior management are within the following bands:

Je L R i

BRI

AE
Number of individuals
2021 2020

R 0 T4 500,000 T HK$0 to HK$500,000 - 1
&z 500,001 JT 2 4% 1,000,000 7T HK$500,001 to HK$1,000,000 1 -
iz 3 500,001 T4 #4 4,000,000 jT HK$3,500,001 to HK$4,000,000 1 1
&z 4 500,001 T4 #4 5,000,000 JT HK$4,500,001 to HK$5,000,000 1 1
&2 5,000,001 ST &4 5,500,000 JT HK$5,000,001 to HK$5,500,000 1 2
iz 5 500,001 T4 #4% 6,000,000 JT HK$5,500,001 to HK$6,000,000 1 1
&2 6,000,001 ST & #4% 6,500,000 JT HK$6,000,001 to HK$6,500,000 2 1
&2 6,500,001 T4 #4% 7,000,000 JT HK$6,500,001 to HK$7,000,000 1
&2 7,000,001 ST & 7,500,000 T HK$7,000,001 to HK$7,500,000 1 1
iz 7 500,001 T4 #4% 8,000,000 jT HK$7,500,001 to HK$8,000,000 - 1
&2 8,000,001 T & #HE 8,500,000 JT HK$8,000,001 to HK$8,500,000 1 -
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19. 5 - 58EE AR 19. Directors’, senior management’s and key personnel’s emoluments

KEZEAEME (continued)
(&)
(b) CG-5 TEHAEHAER (b) Remuneration for Senior Management and Key Personnel under CG-5
B IN=liv .|
PR R SEE A For the purpose of disclosure, Senior Management and Key Personnel are defined as
ERTEANEBEERN follows:
T
- SHVETA S EEe - Senior Management: The senior executives designated by the Board who are
fEENSgEEA S responsible for oversight of the firm-wide strategy or material business lines, including
BE s R E the Chief Executive, Deputy Chief Executives, Chief Financial Officer, Chief Risk
TS ELFRAEH - BIAE Officer, Chief Operating Officer, Board Secretary and General Manager of Group Audit.

B AR ~ RE
B BEANE EEE
Wb DL S E A 4

- FEAE EAELE - Key Personnel: The employees whose individual business activities involve the
B K AR IE - assumption of material risk which may have significant impact on risk exposure, or
B E R E A E Y whose individual responsibilities are directly and materially linked to the risk
=R A PN =g agialiy management, or those who have direct influence to the profit, including heads of
EHEERE  BEAE material business lines, heads of major subsidiaries, senior executives of Southeast
2 s B F A EHiE Asian entities, head of trading, as well as heads of risk control functions.

BRINB BREEBE
HIFE A BLAL E
(ERES SRSV
HE-EEAFHE
HHEBAR 5L
B IRl E A
IERES 2 TiD) 9= Ki

E—EEA-
REFREH SHE Details of the remuneration for Senior Management and Key Personnel of the Group
HASRFEANENH during the year are as follows:
BEEBAT
(i) REFBEERST (i) Remuneration awarded during financial year
%N
2021 2020
EHREEANE EIEAE SHEEAER FEAE
Senior Key Senior Key
Management Personnel Management Personnel
BeaEr  AREEIT  AYEERT A EHET
HK$’'m HK$’'m HK$'m HK$'m
[ Fixed remuneration
R4 Cash-based 42 135 45 141
A U Of which: deferred - - - -
DR jE Variable remuneration
4 Cash-based 16 57 18 57
Hh o JEUE Of which: deferred 4 12 5 13
HrimaEER Total remuneration 58 192 63 198
BT#H Number of employees
[ 72 Fixed remuneration 1 58 13 56
BTN Variable remuneration 10 53 13 55
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19. ¥ - HEETEAR

KEZAEHiE

(&)

(b) CG-5 THAEEAEBRK
FTEABHTHE (&)

(ii) RFAITRK

HLHEE

BTHHE

iz 202

1412 A 31 HIE

HE - RAEGTEREEA
BRERANRREICALE
Bt (2020 4 : 4 ) -

(iii) AT
EEBH AR Senior Management
b7 Cash
THEAR Key Personnel
B Cash
e Total
mENE  Senior Management
B Cash
TEAE Key Personnel
B Cash
ERkE] Total

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

19. Directors’, senior management’s and key personnel’s emoluments
(continued)

(b) Remuneration for Senior Management and Key Personnel under CG-5 (continued)

(ii) Special payments

Sign-on awards

2021 2020
EREEAR FEAR EREHEAR FEAR
Senior Key Senior Key
Management Personnel Management Personnel
BT JERTT AT HEWTIT
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
- 167 - 333
- 1 - 1

Number of employees

There were no guaranteed bonuses and severance payments to Senior Management and Key Personnel
for the year ended 31 December 2021 (2020: Nil).

(iii) Deferred remuneration

2021
Hob : TEESESA
ETREBRIMER
SRAERRREN
REARER
of VERENER mmmrpr e AR EE
amount of EEARETRIFHE EEMETRHEN TERMMBEEN
outstanding MEBEMSASETH AIEREMEBETHY LG
RIZAHY deferred and AR s poidnE . o
BEERTREA retained Total amount of Total amount of Total amount of
Total amount of remuneration amendment during amendment during deferred

outstanding

exposed to ex post

the year due to ex

the year due to ex

remuneration paid

deferred explicit and/or post explicit post implicit  out in the financial
remuneration _implicit adjustment adjustments adjustments year
EHEET EHEHET AWEHET ANEET AYEET
HK$’'m HK$’'m HK$’'m HK$’'m HK$’'m
9 9 (1) (4)
26 26 (3) (17)
35 35 (4) (21)
2020

Hep o Al AR E AN

T IRHEREVIME R

/ENTE S R R

ARSTIRAE R,

Rt - .
VRN e tmmprBcere BB R

amountof (EEARSETRIELHN  EEARGTREFNY AR BN
outstanding SMEFEEMULIEETHY  NAERBEM LT S
R deferred and HraEEE HraEE IRAEHANAEER

L F A A
Total amount of
outstanding

retained
remuneration
exposed to ex post

Total amount of
amendment during
the year due to ex

Total amount of
amendment during
the year due to ex

Total amount of
deferred
remuneration paid

deferred explicit and/or post explicit post implicit out in the financial
remuneration implicit adjustment adjustments adjustments year
HREHE T HREETT BREETT AREETT HEE T
HK$'m HK$'m HK$'m HK$'m HK$'m

10 10 - - (5)

34 34 - - (18)

44 44 - - (23)
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

20. EEHRSEFIRITR 20. Cash and balances and placements with banks and other financial

HAth SRS &R institutions
B BRI
2021 2020
AREEET BHET
HK$’'m HK$'m
EEHE Cash 17,586 38,187
TERURYLRTT > &6 Balances with central banks 142,560 141,803
E LR T—(E B N EIHA Placements with central banks maturing within one month
Z EERFI 12,882 36,842
R T—2+—(EH Placements with central banks maturing between one and
WEIHR 2 & BRI twelve months 4,332 3,379
1E PR TR I — A E A Placements with central banks maturing over one year
ZEMIHEI 1,156 1,547
160,930 183,571
A SR T R EAth <Rl Balances with other banks and other financial institutions
Mt 4heR 191,244 187,459
T H A SRTT e HoA 4 Rl Placements with other banks and other financial
TE—(E B N EEA > 2 8 institutions maturing within one month
I 56,430 19,588
T EH A ERTT e oA 4 Rl Placements with other banks and other financial
E—2 -+ {E H N EIHE institutions maturing between one and twelve months
Z TERATEI 35,701 33,974
T H A SRTT e HoA 4 Rl Placements with other banks and other financial
A — R e institutions maturing over one year
7 624 310
283,999 241,331
462,515 463,089
T BAE R Less: Impairment allowances
- PEE - Stage 1 (23) (8)
- FETFEE - Stage 2 - i,
- BEIRE - Stage 3 - )
462,492 463,081
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21. DA ESE(EET AR 21. Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
e ERIRE

2021 2020
AREET BEEHET
HK$’m HK$'m
o Securities
TAHMERE Trading assets
- S - Treasury bills 11,548 19,491
- FGH - Certificates of deposit 1,506 171
- HAMEHE - Other debt securities 10,813 7,155
23,867 26,817
- BEEss - Equity securities 23 49
23,890 26,866
HoAth A B LA EE Other financial assets mandatorily
ELET AfBR 2 @l classified at fair value through profit or
HiE loss
- B - Treasury bills - -
- HAMhfEsER - Other debt securities 1,138 1,154
1,138 1,154
FrIE B LA TS LR A Financial assets designated
B2 BREE at fair value through profit or loss
- (7 - Certificates of deposit - -
- HAMfEsE R - Other debt securities 1,477 1,307
1,477 1,307
SESAEER Total securities 26,505 29,327
HEH T A Other debt instruments
R E Trading assets 3,201 3,300
FRIE R LA EAEE LET A Financial assets designated
Has 2 SRS at fair value through profit or loss 15,196 118
HoA s L H AR5 Total other debt instruments 18,397 3,418
44,902 32,745

268



@ ¥ 84 tsmn)aman

BANK OF CHINA (HONG KONG) LIMITED

MEENE (&) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

21. DA ESE(EET AR 21. Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (continued)
< CRIRE (8)

SO SRR i ok Total securities are analysed by place of listing as follows:
W
2021 2020
AEEET A EETT
HK$’m HK$'m
B ARG Debt securities and certificates of deposit
- REE LT - Listed in Hong Kong 6,129 4,191
- NEBS Bl - Listed outside Hong Kong 3,253 2,479
- JEEm - Unlisted 17,100 22,608
26,482 29,278
[ifeharice= Equity securities
- REE LT - Listed in Hong Kong 23 49
SUARAERE Total securities 26,505 29,327
B URRE ST 2 Total securities are analysed by type of issuer as follows:
wr e
2021 2020
BEEET R EETT
HK$’m HK$'m
BITHERE Sovereigns 20,180 26,102
NEEL Public sector entities 748 535
SRTT R HoAth e ml i Banks and other financial institutions 4,003 2,204
YAEiki=e Corporate entities 1,574 486
S Total securities 26,505 29,327
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22. {T4RI T E R¥HH 22, Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

' F

AEBETIIHER « FI2 - 7
i~ R R (5 SRR TR
B LR G FEE R
bEHE s -

BB N AR —
S S BB M E TS  F
R IRIE G4y
HMZRATEAL UL —
{8 F B 54T SHER )
FrEH ARl 5 L1y
TE(ERSAEAR KA — H
HOESE ARG/ T A
e 4 - FEHIRR R AL
5L T P T 22 A 1 2
BEL) TORIEARKF—H
TRIE & LT R AT HR
B 72 B R S A B Y 8
HEATRT RSB -

FHS ~ R R e R
SCHA [F) B 2 2 Y
AR - BLIRVAS FUR AR
[E B ~ AR (AORETE AR
EUREINAR) SRR (W
ESREHA DB AT FTA S
B (A B AR ) -
PrFLE A 45 3%

BNV ~ FIIR ~ 3 <)l e P
i R e IR )T (L
71 BT (FAT7) feflt
TEARAH: 5 E B B 50k
e — TE S R 4T E R (E
T EE (FURHINE) St

(B ) —EBENE
L EAHER] (MIEAGE)
Y — T 55 - 5 FE E S A
FER s HIRERYE T
B TWE—E RIS - K
EHE SRR T
TES 5 M B R A 5L
GFTHETT (AT S BT T
HE IR -

The Group enters into exchange rate, interest rate, commodity, equity and credit related
derivative financial instrument contracts for trading and risk management purposes.

Currency forwards represent commitments to purchase and sell foreign currency on a future
date. Interest rate futures are contractual obligations to receive or pay a net amount based
on changes in interest rates or buy or sell interest rate financial instruments on a future date
at an agreed price in the financial market under the administration of the stock exchange.
Forward rate agreements are individually negotiated interest rate futures that call for a cash
settlement at a future date for the difference between a contract rate of interest and the
current market rate, based on a notional principal amount.

Currency, interest rate and commodity swaps are commitments to exchange one set of cash
flows or commodity for another. Swaps result in an exchange of currencies, interest rates
(for example, fixed rate for floating rate), or precious metals (for example, silver swaps) or
a combination of all these (for example, cross-currency interest rate swaps). Except for
certain currency swap contracts, no exchange of principal takes place.

Foreign currency, interest rate, precious metal and equity options are contractual
agreements under which the seller (writer) grants the purchaser (holder) the right, but not
the obligation, either to buy (a call option) or sell (a put option) at or by a set date or during
a set period, a specific amount of the financial instrument at a predetermined price. In
consideration for the assumption of foreign exchange and interest rate risk, the seller
receives a premium from the purchaser. Options are negotiated over-the-counter between
the Group and its counterparty or traded through the stock exchange (for example,
exchange-traded stock option).
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22. $TESRELT B ¥ 22, Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting (continued)
g5t (&)

REEZITESMTES The contract/notional amounts and fair values of derivative financial instruments held by the
ESPEEZE 3 g =Y S @ /AN Group are set out in the following tables. The contract/notional amounts of these
RSN TR AR T instruments indicate the volume of transactions outstanding at the balance sheet dates and
Biad/ AR EE certain of them provide a basis for comparison with the fair values of instruments recognised
NN EEARERH KT on the balance sheet. However, they do not necessarily indicate the amounts of future cash
R GE mETem TR flows involved or the current fair values of the instruments and, therefore, do not indicate
T EY S AR the Group’s exposure to credit or market risks. The derivative financial instruments become
T HHEEEAERANA favourable (assets) or unfavourable (liabilities) as a result of fluctuations in foreign exchange
TEERAYE 7 B A YA rates, market interest rates, commodity prices or equity prices relative to their terms. The
(B3 EEAVEREE o (HE - 3330 aggregate fair values of derivative financial instruments can fluctuate significantly from time

AN WLETE B AR 2R AT to time.
ERECERIIATE > Hif
1 E S i A £E B iy T e
(5 SR a5 s -
FEHLTE SR T EELR
SIPHBHIIRER ~ TG FIER -
PR i S B PR A (R Y U8
By £74E SR T BAIAEE
REELEAR CEE) 50AF]
(BfR) e ishipe
] REAE AN [E A K

HrH) o

(a) f144mTH (a) Derivative financial instruments
NEBE BETHN LS The Group trades derivative products (both exchange-traded and OTC) mainly for
IMTEE ST HIN T customer business. The Group strictly follows risk management policies and
TEHNEHEZFE requirements in providing derivative products to our customers and in trading of
W - EEEEIE R [E ¥ derivative products in the interbank market.
T 35 R A A 137 42 7E
X5 R S A A
B2 (B 2% A o L B B
BURFHRE -
FTAE SN E AR E Derivatives are also used to manage the interest rate risk of the banking book. A
FHERTTIRATFI Rz - derivative instrument must be included in the approved product list before any
HAEEBEH AL 2 &5 transactions for that instrument can be made. There are limits to control the notional
L FEAENLTAEE amount of exposure arising from derivative transactions, and the maximum tenor of the
S A HETTAS 5 o HET deal is set. Every derivative transaction must be input into the relevant system for
AR B E A R R settlement, mark-to-market revaluation, reporting and control.
b S 44 T BB DA

PRI - AHIETHHY
B RSIR - FFERITAEE
ih 58 B A EC K A E
JERYZ & > DAHETT &S
F HGHEIE - R

BT
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22. $TESRELT B ¥ 22, Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting (continued)
g5t (&)

(a) 7L TH (&) (a) Derivative financial instruments (continued)

TR AL AT R
TH®12 A 31 HZ&

The following tables summarise the contract/notional amounts and fair values of each
class of derivative financial instrument as at 31 December:

&)/ BB R H AT
R
2021
a8,/ NOHE
Bt S e Fair values
Contract/
notional =13 §=Ci=t
amounts Assets Liabilities
AEEET BY¥EET  BEEET
HK$’'m HK$’'m HK$’'m
PEREY Exchange rate contracts
BIHH ~ ARG Spot, forwards and futures 203,078 11,728 (7,539)
PaEA Swaps 1,602,631 11,616 (8,422)
it Options 40,382 92 (86)
1,846,091 23,436 (16,047)
FIREL Interest rate contracts
e Futures 2,220 1 (3)
FRiHA Swaps 1,084,835 9,361 (13,321)
HArE Options 567 - .
1,087,622 9,362 (13,324)
EimaEdy Commodity contracts 13,873 388 (265)
HEREEEY Equity contracts 1,459 61 (61)
2,949,045 33,247 (29,697)
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22. $TESRELT B ¥ 22, Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting (continued)

it (8
(a) f74&LmTH (8) (a) Derivative financial instruments (continued)
2020
=r AFEE
B2E S e Fair values
Contract/
notional EiE afE
amounts Assets Liabilities
A ETT A ETT A ETT
HK$'m HK$'m HK$'m
[EREL Exchange rate contracts
RIHA ~ 22H R HE S Spot, forwards and futures 252,159 13,501 (9,918)
A Swaps 1,161,386 18,641 (20,803)
it Options 21,443 147 (136)
1,434,988 32,289 (30,857)
HMREL Interest rate contracts
e Futures 488 R -
piRers| Swaps 1,152,857 17,211 (26,218)
HARE Options 5,845 R -
1,159,190 17,211 (26,218)
ey Commodity contracts 42,819 3,282 (3,246)
HEHEGEY Equity contracts 2,468 29 (34)
2,639,465 52,811 (60,355)
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

22. $TESRELT B ¥ 22, Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting (continued)
g5t (&)

(b) Bhparst

AT

A SR PRI
T T R 3
b e T AT
(HE) - A BRI
ORI R
BT SRR
FE) AT
B - R R
AT (LEEES
SRR RIS
RSB R R R
YA S 53 1
S - EEORE
e R e
ST -

DU R R AT B 8

- BTSRRI

EEZE S EuliEinha

B

- REHHFEAEEE
KL -

TR TN 12 5 31
A DIeR & 4IZIHIE 51

R TENEE,
HEBEE -

Rl

Fl et

Interest rate swaps 1,875 2,011 8,382 61,441 37,545

(b) Hedge accounting

Fair value hedges

The Group uses interest rate swaps to hedge against change in fair value of financial
assets and liabilities arising from movements in market interest rates. Interest rate risk to
which the Group applies hedge accounting arises from fixed-rate debt securities, whose
fair value fluctuates when benchmark interest rates change. The Group only designates
interest rate risks to the extent of benchmark interest rates as the hedged risks because
the changes in fair value of the fixed-rate debt securities are significantly influenced by
the changes in the benchmark interest rates. Hedge accounting is applied where
economic hedging relationships meet the hedge accounting criteria.

Possible sources of ineffectiveness are as follows:

- Notional and timing differences between the hedged items and hedging instruments;

- Significant changes in counterparties’ credit risk.

The table below summarises the contract/notional amounts of the hedging instruments
as at 31 December by remaining contractual maturity.

2021
—= ==
—@EAAN Z=MA +ZEA —ZEHFE AFEMNE
Up to 1t03 3to12 1t05 Over dEst

1 month months months years 5 years Total
bt bt B P P P
HERT HET B©HET HET HERT BET

HK$'m HK$m HK$m HK$m HK$'m HK$'m
Interest rate swaps 1,513 2,821 11,543 65,070 42,111 123,058
2020
—F =F
—(EHAR =@EA +SEA —E2AF AFEME R
Up to 1103 3to12 1t05 Over HEET
1 month  months  months years 5 years Total
s s i i A W

e e — e

HETT H&ET 08T Ot g8t O8rT
HK$'m HK$'m HK$'m HK$'m HK$'m HK$'m

111,254
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22. $TESRELT B ¥ 22, Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting (continued)

it (80D

(b) #peErsT (8

DFEE (8

FRoE Ry ¥h TR ZHH R
ST

TSR TE
GAlESTE

TSR THE
EAESTEE

(b) Hedge accounting (continued)

Fair value hedges (continued)

The amounts relating to items designated as hedging instruments are as follows:

2021
F AR
FRSTZ
ATEEE)
N Change in
&8/ AR fair value
LHEE Fair values used for
Contract/ } recognising
notional BE =¥y hedge
amounts Assets Liabilities ineffectiveness
B¥EHE T B¥EET BYEET BEEHET
HK$’'m HK$’'m HK$’'m HK$’'m

Derivative financial instruments

Interest rate swaps 123,058 741 (2,617) 4,046

2020
FH DAREST S
fERE oy 2
TR
N Change in
?%’9/ AT fair value
RaE e Fair values used for
Contract/ recognising
notional =23 AafE hedge
amounts Assets Liabilities ineffectiveness
BEHET BYEEET BEEET A EHET
HK$'m HK$'m HK$'m HK$'m

Derivative financial instruments

Interest rate swaps 111,254 50 (6,196) (4,074)
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22. $TESRELT B ¥ 22, Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting (continued)

it (80D

(b) #peErsT (8

DHEE (8

BB IR H 2 AHRH %0
W

IFE

EH T

B

E%E s

TERR B 4 T

G (BHR)
Wegs

(b) Hedge accounting (continued)

Fair value hedges (continued)

The amounts relating to hedged items are as follows:

2021
FHARREER
NOPEEA
EERses  ANERRDE
Accumulated RS2
amount of fair EEEE
value hedge Change in value
adjustment used for
WRMEE  included in the recognising
Carrying carrying hedge
amounts amounts _ ineffectiveness
EREET AEEET AEEET
HK$’'m HK$’m HK$’'m
Investment in securities
Debt securities 127,438 3,096 (4,216)
2020
FHARRT{ER
ATAEE o
MRS FA LA
Accumulated R T2
amount of fair E{EEH)
value hedge Change in value
adjustment used for
MR {E included in the recognising
Carrying carrying hedge
amounts amounts ineffectiveness
AEEET AEHET AEEHET
HK$'m HK$'m HK$'m
Investment in securities
Debt securities 119,092 6,538 4,302
Hedge ineffectiveness recognised is as follows:
2021 2020
AREEET AR EETT
HK$’m HK$'m
Net trading (loss)/gain
(170) 228
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

23. Advances and other accounts

2021 2020
AEEET AEEET
HK$’m HK$'m
Personal loans and advances 507,578 457,013
Corporate loans and advances 1,090,811 1,040,243
Advances to customers 1,598,389 1,497,256
Less: Impairment allowances
- Stage 1 (4,839) (5,405)
- Stage 2 (2,406) (1,115)
- Stage 3 (2,632) (2,652)
1,588,512 1,488,084
Trade bills 7,264 9,826
Less: Impairment allowances
- Stage 1 (1) -
- Stage 2 - -
- Stage 3 - -
7,263 9,826
Advances to banks and other financial
institutions 727 1,898
Less: Impairment allowances
- Stage 1 (3) -
- Stage 2 - -
- Stage 3 - -
724 1,898
1,596,499 1,499,808

As at 31 December 2021, advances to customers included accrued interest of HK$1,892
million (2020: HK$1,961 million).

As at 31 December 2021, advances and other accounts at fair value through other
comprehensive income amounted to HK$2,757 million (2020: HK$1,163 million).
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

24. Investment in securities

2021 2020
AREET BHET
HK$’'m HK$'m
Investment in securities at fair value through other
comprehensive income
- Treasury bills 410,009 334,480
- Certificates of deposit 38,059 46,029
- Other debt securities 406,033 350,826
854,101 731,335
- Equity securities 3,591 3,441
857,692 734,776
Investment in securities at amortised cost
- Certificates of deposit 2,675 966
- Other debt securities 130,988 54,138
133,663 55,104
Less: Impairment allowances
- Stage 1 (34) (1)
- Stage 2 - -
- Stage 3 - -
133,629 55,093
991,321 789,869
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24. Investment in securities (continued)

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

Investment in securities is analysed by place of listing as follows:

Investment in securities at fair value through other

comprehensive income

Debt securities and certificates of deposit

- Listed in Hong Kong
- Listed outside Hong Kong
- Unlisted

Equity securities
- Listed in Hong Kong
- Listed outside Hong Kong
- Unlisted

Investment in securities at amortised cost
Debt securities and certificates of deposit

- Listed in Hong Kong
- Listed outside Hong Kong
- Unlisted

Market value of listed securities at amortised cost

279

2021 2020

B EET BT
HK$’m HK$'m
100,612 89,507
174,572 150,048
578,917 491,780
854,101 731,335
347 345

449 487
2,795 2,609
3,591 3,441
857,692 734,776
6,478 1,241
73,896 38,385
53,255 15,467
133,629 55,093
991,321 789,869
80,037 40,429
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

24. Investment in securities (continued)

Investment in securities is analysed by type of issuer as follows:

Sovereigns

Public sector entities

Banks and other financial institutions
Corporate entities

The movements in investment in securities are summarised as follows:

At 1 January 2021

Additions

Disposals, redemptions and maturity
Amortisation

Change in fair value/fair value hedge adjustment

Net charge of impairment allowances
Exchange difference

At 31 December 2021
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2021 2020
AEEET A EETT
HK$’m HK$'m
549,733 421,152
55,078 26,363
264,163 231,489
122,347 110,865
991,321 789,869
2021
DA B it
AFAtr WS
At fair value
through other DIk As &
comprehensive At amortised
income cost
BEEET BEEET
HK$’'m HK$’'m
734,776 55,093
1,496,145 113,087
(1,354,902) (35,581)
(1,101) 437
(4,689) (71)
- (23)
(12,537) 687
857,692 133,629
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

24. Investment in securities (continued)

At 1 January 2020

Additions

Disposals, redemptions and maturity
Amortisation

Change in fair value/fair value hedge adjustment

Net charge of impairment allowances
Exchange difference

At 31 December 2020

2020
DUAFEZE (5
AEA A
At fair value
through other  DItRp A&
comprehensive At amortised
income cost
BHET BEEHET
HK$'m HK$'m
670,945 68,390
1,137,842 33,513
(1,095,867) (47,130)
436 140
9,961 (15)
- 9
11,459 186
734,776 55,093

The Group has designated certain equity securities as equity securities at fair value through
other comprehensive income. The fair value through other comprehensive income designation

was made because these are held for strategic investments.
subordinated Additional Tier 1 securities, listed and unlisted equity shares.

Investments include

The Group derecognised certain equity securities at fair value through other comprehensive
income with fair value of HK$31 million (2020: HK$621 million) during the year. The
derecognition was made because of portfolio rebalancing and the redemption by issuer.
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25. BB N\E REEMNE 25. Interests in associates and joint ventures

G
2021 2020
BEHET AEET
HK$’'m HK$'m
»1H1H At 1 January 663 619
JEMGF4E Share of results 90 67
TE(LFRIE Share of tax (15) (25)
BUZEE Dividend received (51) -
PE A=A Exchange difference } 5
W12 B 310 At 31 December 687 663
REHZBESN\T REED The particulars of the Group’s associates and joint ventures, all of which are unlisted, are as
EHRIEETAE - FBA follows:
T
Rl &=¢ ik
Place of
P2 incorporation B TRA FrE#R FEE
Name and operation Issued share capital Interest held Principal activities
PiRe R ARAE HhE] AR 45% ERREERB %
BOC Services PRC 50,000,000 A\ & Credit card back-end
Company Limited Registered capital service support
RMB50,000,000
BB E AR AE i 10,025,200 &7t 19.96% Ry EENNE EARE R AL
Joint Electronic Teller Hong Kong HK$10,025,200 FRITRAAGHUE g4
Services Limited Operation of a private
inter-bank message
switching network in
respect of ATM services
FPilBE AT RGBS None of the above associates and joint ventures is considered individually or in aggregate

TEE & B R R E s material to the Group.

N7 B
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26. &Y 26. Investment properties
2021 2020
BEEET AEEETT
HK$’'m HK$'m
wW1H1H At 1 January 18,740 20,428
o Additions 233 9
INEEEE (B 14) Fair value losses (Note 14) (227) (1,641)
EH IR Y S5 S Reclassification to properties, plant and equipment (Note
aeffs (FffEE 27) 27) (383) (56)
W12 431 H At 31 December 18,363 18,740
EYE 2 WEHEEHEL The carrying value of investment properties is analysed based on the remaining terms of the
FIEREARS AT - leases as follows:
2021 2020
BEEET AR ETT
HK$’'m HK$'m
TEERE Held in Hong Kong
RHAFHZY (#8838 50 &) On long-term lease (over 50 years) 5,230 5,016
diHAFHZY (10 Z££ 50 ) On medium-term lease (10 to 50 years) 12,774 13,365
EEBLINTE Held outside Hong Kong
HAFELY (10 42 50 42) On medium-term lease (10 to 50 years) 328 328
HHAFHZY (ZDFY 10 42) On short-term lease (less than 10 years) 31 31
18,363 18,740
#2021 412 H 31 H - %l As at 31 December 2021, investment properties were included in the balance sheet at
NEEAERNZILEY valuation carried out at 31 December 2021 on the basis of their fair value by an independent
¥ TRIEE LR = firm of chartered surveyors, Knight Frank Petty Limited. The fair value represents the price
=T A EA SR that would be received to sell each investment property in an orderly transaction with market
2021 /£ 12 H 31 HLAAE participants at the measurement date.
B Ry B HE Pl AT 7 SHIEAG
f - N EEEETRERS
TEABR P B A A5 T 1

52l BT —HE
EYSETERUSHIERS -
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#2021 412 H 31 H
IR HE

biEE 2 RAME S
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202112 A 31 H
FERAE
HEfli{E

HZE 2021 F LA TER
W R Bt B E (2020
H IRHEVFHE R 18.08
BT » A RS 49.82 (B
7T Rt Rl 31.74
{ETTHIRE RS 2020 42
12 7 31 B R HAt &
WAE Ry feIE E AT ) -

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

27. Properties, plant and equipment

R~ EERH
R
Equipment, EREEE
BE fixtures and Right-of-use qast
Premises fittings assets Total
AEEET EREET AEEET BREET
HK$’m HK$’'m HK$’m HK$’'m
Net book value at 1
January 2021 43,249 1,560 1,695 46,504
Additions 40 342 279 661
Disposals (4) (11) (41) (56)
Revaluation 628 - - 628
Depreciation for the
year (1,150) (558) (663) (2,371)
Reclassification from
investment
properties (Note 26) 383 - - 383
Impairment for the year - (4) - (4)
Exchange difference (3) (6) (6) (15)
Net book value at
31 December 2021 43,143 1,323 1,264 45,730

At 31 December 2021
Cost or valuation 43,143 6,951 2,663 52,757
Accumulated

depreciation and

impairment - (5,628) (1,399) (7,027)

Net book value at
31 December 2021 43,143 1,323 1,264 45,730

The analysis of cost or valuation of the above assets is as follows:

At 31 December 2021

At cost - 6,951 2,663 9,614
At valuation 43,143 - - 43,143
43,143 6,951 2,663 52,757

There was no transfer of application software to other assets during 2021 (2020: Application
software with net book value of HK$1,808 million, representing cost of HK$4,982 million and
accumulated amortisation of HK$3,174 million, was transferred to other assets and presented
as intangible assets on 31 December 2020).
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27. WL ~ BRI KBt 27. Properties, plant and equipment (continued)

(&)
B~ [EE R
yr&isin
Equipment, (ERE&E
B fixtures and Right-of-use 4Et
Premises fittings assets Total
AR ETT AR BT A ETT A ETT
HK$'m HK$'m HK$'m HK$'m
7202041 H1H>Z Net book value at 1
FRMHEFHE January 2020 46,024 3,259 1,890 51,173
g Additions 91 1,206 534 1,831
oA Disposals 2) (13) (10) (25)
=i Revaluation (1,751) - - (1,751)
TEREHTES Depreciation for the
year (1,169) (1,085) (724) (2,978)
E¥ o fEEE A Reclassification from
(FfF5E 26) investment
properties (Note 26) 56 - - 56
R A B Transfer to other assets
(¥ 28) (Note 28) - (1,808) - (1,808)
PSR AEEH Exchange difference - 1 5 6
2020412 H 31 H Net book value at
ZIRHFHE 31 December 2020 43,249 1,560 1,695 46,504
720204412 H 31 H At 31 December 2020
BANE B E Cost or valuation 43,249 6,928 2,910 53,087
FEHTEE RORE Accumulated
depreciation and
impairment - (5,368) (1,215) (6,583)
2020412 H 31 H Net book value at
ZRRTHFHE 31 December 2020 43,249 1,560 1,695 46,504
balcE R AR E B The analysis of cost or valuation of the above assets is as follows:
ETATT -
A 2020412 H 31 H At 31 December 2020
ESENEL At cost - 6,928 2,910 9,838
FfhE At valuation 43,249 _ - 43,249
43,249 6,928 2,910 53,087
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MR () Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

27. WL ~ BRI KBt 27. Properties, plant and equipment (continued)
(&)

FoEE 2 AR E A FHE TR The carrying value of premises is analysed based on the remaining terms of the leases as
ARSI BTAT R - follows:
2021 2020
AEEET A EETT
HK$’'m HK$'m
EEERE Held in Hong Kong
EHATHEY (3 50 &) On long-term lease (over 50 years) 12,437 12,608
iHAFHZY (10 Z££ 50 ) On medium-term lease (10 to 50 years) 30,359 30,289
EEBLINTE Held outside Hong Kong
EHAFHLY (#8350 ) On long-term lease (over 50 years) 7 75
HAFELY (10 4EZ& 50 /) On medium-term lease (10 to 50 years) 276 277
43,143 43,249
#2021 412 H 31 H %1 As at 31 December 2021, premises were included in the balance sheet at valuation carried
NEERBBERENZFE T out at 31 December 2021 on the basis of their fair value by an independent firm of chartered
eI 8 15 2 R 2 BT A b surveyors, Knight Frank Petty Limited. The fair value represents the price that would be
HIEERTTAIRAERY 2021 received to sell each premises in an orderly transaction with market participants at the
H#12 H 31 HUAFEE measurement date.

FEAEFT AT 2 B {E - 1
PEfEERT R E DEER
TRIF RS HIIE T BT
S2HFENEG—HEER
HUFFHIER -

¥ Bt Efh&ER BE As a result of the above-mentioned revaluations, changes in value of the premises were
(H{EEBREAT ¢ recognised as follows:
2021 2020
BEEET BT ETT
HK$’'m HK$'m
fE 2t U % 3 2 B A5 JRUE Decrease in valuation charged to income
(£ 15) statement (Note 15) (7 (59)
& (fE) Hitrsm Increase/(decrease) in valuation
U ts 2 EfhtE{E, (R credited/(charged) to other comprehensive
1H) income 645 (1,692)
628 (1,751)

#2021 £12 H 31 H > & As at 31 December 2021, the net book value of premises that would have been included in
R EE R A EIRE R the Group’s balance sheet had the premises been carried at cost less accumulated
PTEE RO (EAE TR » AL depreciation and impairment losses was HK$9,044 million (2020: HK$8,772 million).

Bl EEABERNZFE

MR A SH{EE Ry 515 90.44 {5

I (2020 4F - #ik 87.72 (&

JC) e

286



©)

¥ & 4L £5 (&) A mAT

BANK OF CHINA (HONG KONG) LIMITED

BRI (8D

28.

29.

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

Hit&EE 28. Other assets
2021 2020
BEEETT A ETT
HK$’'m HK$'m
B Repossessed assets 151 23
EEE Precious metals 10,207 10,697
s g E" Intangible assets" 1,952 1,808
JEULRRIE R, TR & Accounts receivable and prepayments 33,392 38,067
45,702 50,595

(1) e S EhEL AL
W

1A HZERESHE

WE
SR

R 12 A 31 HZiREHE
K12 H 31 H

JlA
FE A

P12 A 31 HZiRHEHE

EEFIMTRERE 29
S

BRI TR AR
Hr A 2 &R I T E
BUN & FEEHEZ ks
EAEERR -

(1) The movements in intangible assets are summarised as follows:

2021

BEEET

HK$’'m

Net book value at 1 January 1,808

Additions 747

Amortisation for the year (603)

Net book value at 31 December 1,952
At 31 December

Cost 5,713

Accumulated amortisation and impairment (3,761)

Net book value at 31 December 1,952

Hong Kong SAR currency notes in circulation

The Hong Kong SAR currency notes in circulation are secured by deposit of funds in respect
of which the Hong Kong SAR Government certificates of indebtedness are held.
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MBERMEE ()  Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

30. DI ESE L AR 30. Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
i SRl fE

2021 2020
AEEET A EETT
HK$’'m HK$'m
L HMEE Trading liabilities
- INERSIEE M ES - Short positions in Exchange Fund Bills and
sk Ed Notes 12,322 20,336
FUE R LA EE bR A Financial liabilities designated at fair value
B SRaEE through profit or loss
- [ElfE - Repurchase agreements 198 -
12,520 20,336
72021 F£12 H 31 H As at 31 December 2021, the carrying amount of financial liabilities designated at fair value
FUE BN ES( BT A through profit or loss was approximately the same as the amount that the Group would be
B2 &REEIIEmE contractually required to pay at maturity to the holders.

BAEEREI €95
TR A 2 Sl
LFREK -
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31. HFEK

32.

S Se e
- AF

- {EA

HEETH
- /\a
- fEHA

TEH ~ R R mARIER
- /\E
- {EA

ERTEEER LT
e

DU BRACAGT i

- THGE
- HAhERS 2

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

31. Deposits from customers

2021 2020
AEEET A EETT
HK$’'m HK$'m
Demand deposits and current accounts
- Corporate 232,188 227,116
- Personal 97,908 87,940
330,096 315,056
Savings deposits
- Corporate 513,896 500,057
- Personal 680,538 649,295
1,194,434 1,149,352
Time, call and notice deposits
- Corporate 544,041 456,318
- Personal 265,791 269,596
809,832 725,914
2,334,362 2,190,322
32. Debt securities and certificates of deposit in issue
2021 2020
BREET BEEET
HK$’'m HK$'m
At amortised cost
- Certificates of deposit 563 233
- Other debt securities 1,860 193
2,423 426
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MBERMEE ()  Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

33. HARETE M EHE 33. Other accounts and provisions
2021 2020
BEEET A & T
HK$’m HK$'m
FoAth P REVE R B Other accounts payable and provisions 57,300 48,745
THEAE Lease liabilities 1,263 1,683
EHUREE R AR ETE Impairment allowances on loan commitments
JEE and financial guarantee contracts
- PEE - Stage 1 439 594
- EIEE - Stage 2 51 44
- BEIEE - Stage 3 153 20
59,206 51,086
34. EREFRIE 34. Deferred taxation
BIERTE SR/ East Deferred tax is recognised in respect of the temporary differences arising between the tax
RHIFE1258 TSR | 5t bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the financial statements and
B B EAE s unused tax credits in accordance with HKAS 12 “Income Taxes”.
BLE AT B iR NIR HI{E
T 7 B R 22 B R AR
FARUIEHR R R -
BEEABENZIEERIE The major components of deferred tax (assets)/liabilities recorded in the balance sheet, and
EiE) S AEFEAS the movements during the year are as follows:
DUR HAF AR FEN 2 S8
T
2021
InEEYTE
R
Accelerated YaEM FEHEH
tax Property B51E  Impairment Ak Bzt
depreciation revaluation Losses  allowances Others Total
BEEETT BEEET B¥EET  B¥OExT  B%EET BEEET
HK$’m HK$’'m HK$’m HK$’'m HK$’m HK$’'m
7202141 31 H At1January 2021 793 6,511 (15) (1,152) (454) 5,683
f&sd,/ (&3) g Charged/(credited) to
tmze (fffEE 16) income statement
(Note 16) 25 (105) 10 23 (22) (69)
st/ (&%) H  Charged/(credited) to
2T 2 other comprehensive
income 98 - - (276) (178)
PR § 25 R LAt Exchange difference and
others 1 2 - 3
#2021 412 H 31 At 31 December 2021
H 818 6,504 4 (1,127) (752) 5,439
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34. RIERIR (8

20201 A1 H

f&se, (&a) W
mR (ffk 16)

(&) MEaeH
il 2 g

R B EEE
{bEt AHA 2 TH
g Bt T 5
L

PRI E e Ry DAY
PEEZ(LE AR
i ERE R
L SEt:

72020 12 H 31 H

EHEERN TR AR
TR BB T S
> MRIERTIES e 7] — i
BUKRE > RIETRHE 1A AR

34. Deferred taxation (continued)

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

2020
I#RYTEE
e
Accelerated YIEE L E e
tax Property K548 Impairment HAh st
depreciation revaluation Losses allowances Others Total
AlrmErr BNOE T B¥OET BBgET  BYOET BT ETT
HK$'m HK$’'m HK$’'m HK$'m HK$'m HK$'m
At 1 January 2020 752 6,944 - (803) (581) 6,312
Charged/(credited) to
income statement
(Note 16) 41 (141) (15) (349) (48) (512)
(Credited)/charged to
other comprehensive
income - (292) - - 170 (122)
Release upon disposal of
equity instruments at
fair value through other
comprehensive income - - - - (1) (1)
Release upon
redemption of financial
liabilities designated at
fair value through profit
or loss - - - - 6 6
At 31 December 2020 793 6,511 (15) (1,152) (454) 5,683

offsetting, are shown in the balance sheet:

A AR5 I T E B AR A A I
BHTARRS - TYEEE
BERNIIRZ & et

NBERS

PERTHE
TRIERIHEA (7

WRERIHEE (HiE12

Deferred tax assets
Deferred tax liabilities

Deferred tax assets to be recovered after more than

EDERELSED) twelve months
IRIEFRTEAE (i 12 Deferred tax liabilities to be settled after more than
& B &) twelve months

291

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset on an individual entity basis when there is a
legal right to set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities and when the deferred
taxation relates to the same authority. The following amounts, determined after appropriate

2021 2020
BT ETT EEHETT
HK$’m HK$'m
(192) (95)

5,631 5,778
5,439 5,683

2021 2020
EREET BHEHETT
HK$’m HK$'m
(153) (84)
6,326 6,195
6,173 6,111
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MBERMEE (88)  Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

34. WA (&) 34. Deferred taxation (continued)
72021 F£12 H 31 4 » As at 31 December 2021, the Group has no unrecognised deferred tax assets in respect of
AL E AR R AR TH tax losses (2020: Nil). All of the amount for the Group has no expiry date under the current
EE M ES1E (2020 tax legislation in different countries/regions.

) - IR RER,
HEAYEATHB) - A EEE
A T R (R RS R

35. A 35. Share capital
2021 2020
BEEET BEEHET
HK$’'m HK$'m
EEET AR - Issued and fully paid:
43,042,840,858 i1 iy 43,042,840,858 ordinary shares 43,043 43,043
36. ARERTTHAMAGETE  36. Other equity instruments of the Bank
2021 2020
BEEET B EET
HK$’'m HK$'m
K EIE BRI — R E Undated non-cumulative subordinated Additional
R Tier 1 capital securities 23,476 23,476
A 2018 &£ 9 H » HgRE#E In September 2018, BOCHK issued USD3,000 million undated non-cumulative
#$(7 30.00 fBE Tk &Ik subordinated Additional Tier 1 capital securities. The capital securities are perpetual
R RPEAIN— G E A securities in respect of which there is no fixed redemption date and are not callable within
1B o EARER Ak the first 5 years. They have an initial rate of distribution of 5.90% per annum payable semi-
15 REEEEERH - fFE annually which may be cancelled at the sole discretion of BOCHK. Dividend paid to other
FEFENART]IEE - Hy)EA%E equity instrument holders in 2021 amounted to HK$1,378 million (2020: HK$1,376 million).

BT 5.90% 1Y
=2 PRE R AT
HRERE T HUS AT E
2021 SRS A T
BRrAERE R 13.78
BT (2020 4 : }&# 13.76
&) -
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37. i FHE&RERMEE 37. Notes to consolidated cash flow statement

(a) BRIFIBERIRATEE

HEZ FRARIR

RS

ITES RS
BB
PTEURE A ]
EMHZ B0 (kR
EES€2D)
HE&FEZ S
JREIFIHEE 3 [EH =~
FESRAT S HoAth Bl
T2 4585 BOEBIEIL
Z S
BLa-PEZ bt AR
Z R B
CTEERM TR 225
B HABRTH 2 S5 )
Fogzdia - wd i)
HM&zE 2 B
SRAT e Hoh A
TPk R4k ER 2 B E)
VA \ﬁﬁiﬂ Eat AdEE
ERMERCEY)
%Pﬁ K FEE
E#TEBRE S RATK
i B
FLAMRTE e e i S
REY) 2 &

FRIEAIECEIR SR A

KEEBE IR RES
(Ekan
- BHAIE
- EAFIE
- TR R

Operating profit

Depreciation and amortisation

Net charge of impairment allowances

Unwind of discount on impairment allowances
Advances written off net of recoveries

Interest expense on lease liabilities

Change in balances and placements with banks
and other financial institutions with original
maturity over three months

Change in financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss

Change in derivative financial instruments

Change in advances and other accounts

Change in investment in securities

Change in other assets

Change in deposits and balances from banks
and other financial institutions

Change in financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss

Change in deposits from customers

Change in debt securities and certificates of
deposit in issue

Change in other accounts and provisions

Effect of changes in exchange rates

Operating cash inflow before taxation
Cash flows from operating activities included
- interest received

- interest paid
- dividend received
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

(a) Reconciliation of operating profit to operating cash inflow before taxation

2021 2020
AEEHET T ST
HK$'m HK$'m
29,247 34,290
2,974 2,978
2,133 2,671
(37) (8)
(1,157) (425)
33 53

(622) 3,800
3,001 10,593
(11,094) 5,878
(97,400) (89,443)
(143,588) (22,160)
4,960 (6,721)
159,566 58,584
(7,816) 1,130
144,040 176,230
1,997 310
8,545 (15,825)
(5,255) (13,253)
89,527 148,682
35,461 48,377
8,484 17,617
170 104
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MEsHENEE (@) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
37. S RERMEE  37. Notes to consolidated cash flow statement (continued)

(&
(b) RIEERELNAE Y (b) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing activities
Efii]
2020
A ETT
HK$'m
BIEAE Subordinated liabilities
wW1H1H At 1 January 12,954
HEmE Cash flows:
I 5] 1% (B & E T T # Payment for redemption of subordinated
TE liabilities (12,603)
IR EAERE Interest paid for subordinated liabilities (350)
(12,953)
IR ) - Non-cash changes:
HEEERE 2 A Change in fair value of own credit risk
HELEEHM S credited to other comprehensive income
e 1)
PR S0 7= %H Exchange difference (39)
HoAthr 55 d) Other changes 39
H12H31H At 31 December -
2021 2020
BEHET AW ETT
HK$’'m HK$'m
HEAR Lease liabilities
W1H1H At 1 January 1,683 1,810
HEmE Cash flows:
TS Payment of lease liabilities (681) (692)
JEH ) Non-cash changes:
Hrig Additions 269 522
EE Disposal (41) (10)
HoAth ) Other changes 33 53
12 H 31 H At 31 December 1,263 1,683
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) RERFAREERE
o
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BB TR
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38. HRERRRE

RARBEREETISBH
MEATRLEZ SER
SRR - 3
S 2 £ 4 B
R85 £ BB D
A -

HPFEEERER
PIXZ S AR SR A S
BLE8 SRR 2 SR A R
PRSI AR
s 2R
HARIE - FEHIE 5
- 1M

-1 HERE

(EE AR

{58 ke o BT AR IR
(1728 (&) HAD) 5
B o ICREHEEUAN S AT
ZBEH KB EL IR

Rk -

* jr20214£12431H - AEHZ
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A FRAT) o BN E AR
MR EEEARE (20204
fi®) -

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

37. Notes to consolidated cash flow statement (continued)

(c) Analysis of the balances of cash and cash equivalents

2021 2020
AEEET A EETT
HK$’'m HK$'m
Cash and balances and placements with
banks and other financial institutions with
original maturity within three months
421,737 422,933
Treasury bills, certificates of deposit and other
debt instruments with original maturity within
three months
- financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss 18,461 3,303
- investment in securities 88,674 29,192
528,872 455,428

38. Contingent liabilities and commitments

The following is a summary of the contractual amounts of each significant class of
contingent liability and commitment and the aggregate credit risk-weighted amount and is
prepared with reference to the completion instructions for the HKMA return of capital
adequacy ratio.

2021 2020

EREET AEEE T

HK$’'m HK$'m

Direct credit substitutes 1,338 2,487

Transaction-related contingencies 30,075 30,215

Trade-related contingencies 25,815 27,830
Commitments that are unconditionally cancellable

without prior notice 528,966 514,326

Other commitments with an original maturity of

- up to one year 15,665 20,416

- over one year * 174,623 174,475

776,482 769,749

Credit risk-weighted amount 83,704 88,017

The credit risk-weighted amount is calculated in accordance with the Banking (Capital) Rules.
The amount is dependent upon the status of the counterparty and the maturity characteristics
of each type of contract.

* As at 31 December 2021, there were HK$1,000 million of loan commitments to a connected company
which were treated as direct capital investment instead of commitments in accordance with the Banking
(Capital) Rules (2020: Nil).
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MBERMEE (&) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

39. BEAKIE 39. Capital commitments
ENCAE I SIN P el The Group has the following outstanding capital commitments not provided for in the financial
2 EARIESENOT ¢ statements:
2021 2020
AREEET BEHET
HK$’'m HK$'m
AR R Z 4 E A B Authorised and contracted for but not provided for 183 274
EftAEEAEY Authorised but not contracted for 119 70
302 344
DL BB ARIE R B 57 Ryl The above capital commitments mainly relate to commitments to purchase computer
A > B RS Rk - equipment and software, and to renovate the Group’s premises.
DIRASEE FEEET
(EWAEC-
40. ZKBFHE&E 40. Operating lease commitments
fERHIFELA As lessor
RIBE RS 2 B E The Group has contracted with tenants for the following future minimum lease receivables under
&8 T AL E non-cancellable operating leases:
BTN RARF M
B R
2021 2020
BREET A EHET
HK$’'m HK$'m
LUEYr&rdin Properties and equipment
- R 14 - Not later than one year 488 530
-1E2MF - One to two years 245 323
-2 FE 34F - Two to three years 103 106
-3F4F - Three to four years 16 14
-4 E5F - Four to five years 5 10
-5 % - Later than five years - -
857 983
AEEDKEHE R The Group leases its investment properties under operating lease arrangements, with leases
HIEE Y o HEFEH typically for a period from one to three years. The terms of the leases generally require the
w1 FEE 34 - FHER tenants to pay security deposits and provide for rent adjustments according to the prevailing
R — IR R R e market conditions upon the lease renewal.

& o PMEFHLES > RIFEFA S
i85 2RI B 8
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MBERRMEE (88) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

1. i

A5 B IE 1A 2 T 80T
ANV RE RS -
PSRRI MR B AR
BRI IEHEEEEAR -

MR ERER AR E T
R AME LA DhiksiE
STIL SR E R AT AV
PR BOEARBIETEZRE F
LR MENF A -

41. Litigation

The Group has been served a number of claims and counterclaims by various independent
parties. These claims and counterclaims are in relation to the normal commercial activities of
the Group.

No material provision was made against these claims and counterclaims because the directors
believe that the Group has meritorious defences against the claimants or the amounts involved
in these claims are not expected to be material.
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BANK OF CHINA (HONG KONG) LIMITED

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

42. Segmental reporting

The Group manages the business mainly from a business segment perspective and over 90%
of the Group’s revenues, profits before tax and assets are derived from Hong Kong. Currently,
three operating segments are identified: Personal Banking, Corporate Banking and Treasury.
The classification of the Group’s operating segments is based on customer segment and
product type, which is aligned with the RPC (relationship, product and channel) management
model of the Group.

Both Personal Banking and Corporate Banking provide general banking services including
various deposit products, overdrafts, loans, credit cards, trade related products and other
credit facilities, investment and insurance products, and foreign currency and derivative
products. Personal Banking mainly serves retail customers and small enterprises, while
Corporate Banking mainly deals with corporate customers. Treasury manages the funding
and liquidity, and the interest rate and foreign exchange positions of the Group in addition to
proprietary trades. “Others” mainly represents the Group’s holdings of premises, investment
properties, equity investments, certain interests in associates and joint ventures and the
businesses of the Southeast Asian entities.

Measurement of segment assets, liabilities, income, expenses, results and capital
expenditure is based on the Group’s accounting policies. The segment information includes
items directly attributable to a segment as well as those that can be allocated on a reasonable
basis. Inter-segment funding is charged according to the internal funds transfer pricing
mechanism of the Group, which is primarily based on market rates with the consideration of
specific features of the product.

As the Group derives a majority of revenue from interest and the senior management relies
primarily on net interest income in managing the business, interest income and expense for
all reportable segments are presented on a net basis.
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42. Segmental reporting (continued)

Year ended 31 December
2021

Net interest income/(expense)

- External
- Inter-segment

Net fee and commission
income/(expense)
Net trading gain

Net loss on other financial
instruments at fair value
through profit or loss

Net gain on other financial
instruments

Other operating income

Net operating income
before impairment
allowances

Net reversal/(charge) of
impairment allowances

Net operating income
Operating expenses

Operating profit/(loss)

Net loss from disposal
offfair value adjustments
on investment properties

Net loss from disposal/
revaluation of properties,
plant and equipment

Share of results after tax of
associates and joint
ventures

Profit/(loss) before taxation

At 31 December 2021

ASSETS
Segment assets

Interests in associates and

joint ventures

LIABILITIES
Segment liabilities

Year ended 31 December
2021

Other information

Capital expenditure

Depreciation and
amortisation

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

{ELASRHT FERAT
Personal Corporate B Hir /Nt EpHEss &a
Banking Banking Treasury Others Subtotal Eliminations  Consolidated
BEEET BNEET BNEET  ANEET  BEEET SEREET EREET
HK$’'m HK$’'m HK$’'m HK$’'m HK$’'m HK$’'m HK$’'m
4,063 12,421 9,859 1,801 28,144 - 28,144
2,790 (1,311) (1,264) (215) - - -
6,853 11,110 8,595 1,586 28,144 - 28,144
7,663 4,033 (90) 1,220 12,826 (367) 12,459
1,066 1,452 1,874 545 4,937 (5) 4,932
- - (65) - (65) - (65)
- 16 940 1 967 - 967
62 1 84 1,876 2,023 (1,271) 752
15,644 16,612 11,338 5,238 48,832 (1,643) 47,189
128 (295) (55) (1,911) (2,133) - (2,133)
15,772 16,317 11,283 3,327 46,699 (1,643) 45,056
(9,518) (3,393) (1,167) (3,374) (17,452) 1,643 (15,809)
6,254 12,924 10,116 (47) 29,247 - 29,247
- - - (227) (227) - (227)
4) - - (16) (20) - (20)
81 - - (6) 75 - 75
6,331 12,924 10,116 (296) 29,075 - 29,075
533,841 1,031,942 1,732,891 174,568 3,473,242 (30,954) 3,442,288
633 - - 54 687 - 687
534,474 1,031,942 1,732,891 174,622 3,473,929 (30,954) 3,442,975
1,203,126 1,100,321 753,732 110,645 3,167,824 (30,954) 3,136,870
35 24 - 1,582 1,641 - 1,641
1,266 295 101 1,335 2,997 (23) 2,974
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42. RS (8) 42. Segmental reporting (continued)
E AR T T
Personal Corporate MHEsERs FHAth et EHHESH &re
Banking Banking Treasury Others Subtotal Eliminations Consolidated
AEETT  BMaET  ARoET EYoET BsEET Al EETT Al EETT
HK$'m HK$'m HK$'m HK$'m HK$'m HK$'m HK$'m
#%220204£12H31H Year ended 31 December
2020
FRIBUA (SZHD Net interest income/(expense)
- bk - External 2,014 14,859 12,623 1,802 31,298 - 31,298
- B - Inter-segment 10,955 (1,365) (8,840) (750) - - -
12,969 13,494 3,783 1,052 31,298 - 31,298
TRRESE B A Net fee and commission
24 income/(expense) 7,092 3,522 (26) 1,240 11,828 (430) 11,398
AR Net trading gain 1,004 1,311 2,012 437 4,764 (1) 4,763
HADIASHESZ BT A Net gain/(loss) on other
1B R T ERL financial instruments at fair
w/ (E58) value through profit or loss - - 160 3) 157 - 157
Hfthemh T2 s Net gain on other financial
instruments - 7 4,376 - 4,383 - 4,383
HAEZA Other operating income 18 5 76 2,009 2,108 (1,371) 737
THUREEHRT SRR Net operating income
B before impairment
allowances 21,083 18,339 10,381 4,735 54,538 (1,802) 52,736
TREZER T Net charge of impairment
allowances (421) (1,877) (87) (286) (2,671) - (2,671)
FREBULA Net operating income 20,662 16,462 10,294 4,449 51,867 (1,802) 50,065
s Operating expenses (9,684) (3,427) (1,160) (3,306)  (17,577) 1,802 (15,775)
vl Operating profit 10,978 13,035 9,134 1,143 34,290 - 34,290
HEEYEERE NHE Net loss from disposal
Fitcvers <iisl offfair value adjustments
on investment properties - - - (1,641) (1,641) - (1,641)
JREEEYRE - 23 Net loss from disposal/
Y& P i revaluation of properties,
plant and equipment 3) - - (60) (63) - (63)
JE(LERRE AT R EER Share of resullts after tax of
SEMMESEA associates and joint
ventures 42 - - - 42 - 42
BRaEsR] . (RS Profit/(loss) before taxation 11,017 13,035 9,134 (558) 32,628 - 32,628
R 202041231 H At 31 December 2020
HE ASSETS
SYEERE Segment assets 491,213 985,638 1,537,529 156,719 3,171,099 (27,232) 3,143,867
TN\ E EEE Interests in associates and
Tz joint ventures 603 - - 60 663 R 663
491,816 985,638 1,537,529 156,779 3,171,762 (27,232) 3,144,530
§=Li=t LIABILITIES
Syl EfiE Segment liabilities 1,159,255 1,013,145 601,420 101,384 2,875,204 (27,232) 2,847,972
#HZ20204£12 931 H  Year ended 31 December
2020
HAEE Other information
BAM S H Capital expenditure 29 8 - 1,803 1,840 - 1,840
HTEs S s Depreciation and
amortisation 1,274 281 101 1,345 3,001 (23) 2,978
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43. Offsetting financial instruments

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

The following tables present details of the Group’s financial instruments subject to offsetting,
enforceable master netting arrangements and similar agreements.

2021
NEEER RENREEEFERY
zHiEs b Pl oL
EHELsR NEEEHE Related amounts
=liet | FHFRE  not set off in the balance
EfR S Gross SRIEESE sheet
BRI amounts of Net amounts
Gross recognised of financial BELZ
amounts of financial assets e
recognised liabilities set presented in SRETH Cash
financial off inthe  the balance Financial collateral 7
assets balance sheet sheet instruments received Net amount
HWHEET AT AEEERT  A¥OEr A¥aET  B¥EET
HK$’m HK$’m HK$’m HK$’'m HK$’'m HK$’'m
16,764 - 16,764 (12,315) (3,869) 580
17,064 - 17,064 (17,064) - -
3,201 - 3,201 (3,201) - -
12,008 (8,908) 3,100 (1) - 3,099
49,037 (8,908) 40,129 (32,581) (3,869) 3,679
2021
REEAR FRENKEAFERT
KPR i ARG
ErEiSR NEEAER Related amounts
BEME EHF7RI  not set off in the balance
R Gross <RI sheet
§=C= et amounts of Net amounts
Gross recognised of financial [Stiviivd
amounts of financial liabilities S
recognised assets set presented in SRTE Cash
financial off inthe the balance Financial collateral ;
liabilities balance sheet sheet instruments pledged Net amount
AEETT AEEET AEEERT BROERT  BEEE R BYEET
HK$’m HK$’m HK$’m HK$’m HK$’m HK$’'m
18,056 - 18,056 (12,315) (5,559) 182
68,268 - 68,268 (68,268) - -
9,540 (8,908) 632 (1) - 631
95,864 (8,908) 86,956 (80,584) (5,559) 813
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43. &RITE S (&) 43. Offsetting financial instruments (continued)

HE
TR T A

[ e [E i ek

B AR ek

HAth

&R
TR T A

Elkcaiit:

HAth &g

Assets

Derivative financial
instruments

Reverse repurchase
agreements

Securities borrowing
agreements

Other assets

Liabilities
Derivative financial
instruments
Repurchase
agreements
Other liabilities

AR SR ARSI AL
B~ BRI R S AK

DRGSR

finak - e

BLHA R R ERI S Al
A —2 ¥ T 2 BRI 8 AT B

ERGEEL

2020
NEEAR FANEEAFERT
FHIREH RS 2 AH BRI
B R NEEAE Related amounts
A FPFIRAY  not set off in the balance
(Wi Gross <l T4 sheet
B AEAEER amounts of  Net amounts
Gross recognised of financial EE
amounts of financial assets e
recognised liabilities set  presented in £ T H Cash
financial off in the the balance Financial collateral YRR
assets  balance sheet sheet instruments received  Net amount
BEATE  OBNEST  OBWEST  OBEEST OBNEET  OBNEST
HK$'m HK$'m HK$'m HK$'m HK$'m HK$'m
35,525 - 35,525 (28,068) (3,314) 4,143
1,284 - 1,284 (1,284) - -
3,300 - 3,300 (3,300) - -
19,737 (14,300) 5,437 - - 5,437
59,846 (14,300) 45,546 (32,652) (3,314) 9,580
2020
NEEARE FANEEAFERT
TR B4~ AHRH e 3E
ERER R NEEAE Related amounts
BEHH FH%IRA) ot set off in the balance
[WRiERE Gross <Rl &I sheet
E(ELEEE amounts of  Net amounts
Gross recognised of financial EARH
amounts of financial liabilities B e
recognised assets set  presented in SR THE Cash
financial off in the the balance Financial collateral SREAR
liabilities  balance sheet sheet instruments pledged  Net amount
A EETT A EETT A EETT AeEE e OBEESTT ENEET
HK$'m HK$'m HK$'m HK$'m HK$'m HK$'m
48,847 - 48,847 (28,068) (16,858) 3,921
210 - 210 (210) - -
15,454 (14,300) 1,154 - - 1,154
64,511 (14,300) 50,211 (28,278) (16,858) 5,075

For master netting agreements of OTC derivative, sale and repurchase and securities
lending and borrowing transactions entered into by the Group, related amounts with the
same counterparty can be offset if an event of default or other predetermined events occur.
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BANK OF CHINA (HONG KONG) LIMITED

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

44. Assets pledged as security

As at 31 December 2021, the liabilities of the Group amounting to HK$12,788 million (2020:
HK$15,293 million) were secured by assets deposited with central depositories to facilitate
settlement operations. In addition, the liabilities of the Group amounting to HK$88,268 million
(2020: HK$210 million) were secured by debt securities related to sale and repurchase
arrangements. The amount of assets pledged by the Group to secure these liabilities was
HK$103,349 million (2020: HK$15,570 million) mainly included in “Financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss” and “Investment in securities”.

45. Transfers of financial assets

The transferred financial assets of the Group below that do not qualify for derecognition are
debt securities held by counterparties as collateral under sale and repurchase agreements.

2021 2020
EEREE TERREE ClErs & E L=t
FRTEIE ARTEE WRIEIE IRIHI{E
Carrying Carrying Carrying Carrying
amount of amount of amount of amount of
transferred associated transferred associated
assets liabilities assets liabilities
HEET AEEET AEEHET A E T
HK$’'m HK$’'m HK$'m HK$'m

Repurchase

agreements 70,488 68,268 231 210

46. Loans to directors

Particulars of loans made to directors of the Bank pursuant to section 383 of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance and Part 3 of the Companies (Disclosure of Information about Benefits
of Directors) Regulation are as follows:

2021 2020
AREHETT A EETT
HK$’'m HK$'m
Aggregate amount of relevant transactions outstanding
at year end - -
Maximum aggregate amount of relevant transactions
outstanding during the year 1 -
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

The Group is subject to the control of the State Council of the PRC Government through
China Investment Corporation (“CIC”), its wholly-owned subsidiary Central Huijin Investment

Ltd. (“Central Huijin”), and BOC in which Central Huijin has controlling equity interests.

(a) Transactions with the parent companies and the other companies controlled by the

parent companies

General information of the parent companies:

The Group is controlled by BOC. Central Huijin is the controlling entity of BOC, and it is
a wholly-owned subsidiary of CIC which is a wholly state-owned company engaging in
foreign currency investment management.

Central Huijin has controlling equity interests in certain other entities in the PRC.

The Group enters into banking transactions with these entities in the normal course of
business which include loans, investment securities and money market transactions.

The majority of transactions with BOC arise from money market activities. As at 31
December 2021, the Group’s related aggregate amounts due from and to BOC were
HK$191,797 million (2020: HK$188,780 million) and HK$245,648 million (2020:
HK$110,389 million) respectively. The aggregate amounts of income and expenses of
the Group arising from these transactions with BOC for the year ended 31 December
2021 were HK$1,598 million (2020: HK$1,037 million) and HK$936 million (2020:
HK$157 million) respectively.
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47. FE > EBIE AL E 47. Significant related party transactions (continued)
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(a) Transactions with the parent companies and the other companies controlled by

the parent companies (continued)

As at 31 December 2021, the related aggregate amounts due from and to subsidiaries
of BOC were HK$1,113 million (31 December 2020: HK$237 million) and HK$10,139
million (31 December 2020: HK$5,657 million) respectively.

Other transactions with companies controlled by BOC are not considered material.

(b) Transactions with government authorities, agencies, affiliates and other state

controlled entities

The Group is subject to the control of the State Council of the PRC Government through
CIC and Central Huijin, which also directly or indirectly controls a significant number of
entities through its government authorities, agencies, affiliates and other state
controlled entities. The Group enters into banking transactions with government
authorities, agencies, affiliates and other state controlled entities in the normal course
of business at commercial terms.

These transactions include, but are not limited to, the following:

- lending, provision of credits and guarantees, and deposit taking;

- inter-bank balance taking and placing;

- sales, purchases, underwriting and redemption of bonds issued by other state
controlled entities;

- rendering of foreign exchange, remittance and investment related services;

- provision of fiduciary activities; and

- purchase of utilities, transport, telecommunication and postage services.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

(c) HERNBEAT - BrE
AE - AR A

(c) Summary of transactions entered into during the ordinary course of business with
a fellow subsidiary, associates, joint ventures and other related parties

ARBEALTEEERE
HENETIXHHE

BRI 2 [F 2~
N BRE AT AR R

The aggregate income/expenses and balances arising from related party transactions
with a fellow subsidiary, associates, joint ventures and other related parties of the Group

e FoAth 77 TRl 72 N -2 are summarised as follows:
Z RN LA S R E
7B LRSS
BRIEALAT T
2021 2020
BEHETT B ETT
HK$’'m HK$'m
Was2HEH Income statement items
[EENE) =7l Fellow subsidiary
- RS AR eI A - Fee and commission income 850 952
e AT REERFE Associates and joint ventures
- FIEZH - Interest expenses 1 1
- HA s ST - Other operating expenses 79 80
HAth A RHEA L Other related parties
- & R AHEUA - Fee and commission income 14 12
EEAFERIHE Balance sheet items
AN P ey =i Associates and joint ventures
- PR - Deposits from customers 120 124
- HAARIA K e - Other accounts and provisions - 7
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47. FE > EFREANT3TE 47. Significant related party transactions (continued)
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

(d) Key management personnel

Key management personnel are those persons having authority and responsibility for
planning, directing and controlling the activities of the Group, directly or indirectly,
including directors and senior management. The Group accepts deposits from and
grants loans and credit facilities to key management personnel in the ordinary course
of business. During both the current and prior years, no material transaction was
conducted with key management personnel of the Bank and its holding companies, as
well as parties related to them.

The compensation of key management personnel for the year ended 31 December is
detailed as follows:

2021 2020
BREHETT A EETT
HK$’'m HK$'m
Salaries and other short-term employee
benefits 52 55

(e) Balances with subsidiaries

As at 31 December 2021, the aggregate sums of amounts due from subsidiaries and
amounts due to subsidiaries of the Bank arising from transactions entered into during
the normal course of business at commercial terms are HK$13,883 million (2020:
HK$11,569 million) and HK$2,457 million (2020: HK$2,905 million) respectively.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
48. IBOR reform
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The Group has fair value hedge accounting relationships that are exposed to different
interbank offered rates, predominantly US Dollar LIBOR. External progress on the
transition to risk-free interest rates is being monitored, with the objective of ensuring a
smooth transition for the Group’s hedge accounting relationships. The specific issues
arising will vary with the details of each hedging relationship, but may arise due to the
transition of existing products included in the designation, a change in expected volumes
of products to be issued, a change in contractual terms of new products issued, or a
combination of these factors. Some hedges may need to be de-designated and new
relationships entered into, while others may survive IBOR reform.

The hedged items that are affected by the adoption of the applicable temporary reliefs in
hedge accounting relationships are debt securities which are presented in the consolidated
balance sheet as “Investment in securities”. When identifying the hedged items that are
affected by the adoption of the applicable temporary reliefs, judgement has been exercised
by the Group in determining when uncertainty is expected to be resolved and therefore
when the applicable temporary reliefs will cease to apply. As at 31 December 2021, the
Group believed that the uncertainty continued to exist and so the applicable temporary
reliefs apply to all of the Group’s hedge accounting relationships that reference benchmarks
subject to reform or replacement.

As at 31 December 2021, the contract/notional amounts of interest rate derivatives
designated in fair value hedge accounting relationships was HK$77,496 million (2020:
HK$104,022 million), which represented the extent of the risk exposure around fair value
hedging relationships managed by the Group that was directly affected by IBOR reform and
impacted by applicable temporary reliefs.

308



@ ¥ B 4 25 (5 m) A AT

BANK OF CHINA (HONG KONG) LIMITED

WMEHENE (&) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
48. FEREFRUE (&) 48. IBOR reform (continued)

R E AR R S A The Group manages risks related to IBOR reform and completed most of the system
BE RS fT A FoR5E updates. The Group continuously monitors the risk exposure of IBOR reform, converts
R A o R T A existing contracts and actively communicates with customers.

2 RS e
BB AR T A
TR B = A

AREEEI R A [ Y R F] The Group is exposed to different interbank offered rates, predominantly US Dollar LIBOR.
B FEUA ST MBORT The following table contains details of financial instruments that the Group holds as at 31
[FEZERE » T2 AR 2021 December 2021 which reference LIBOR and have not yet transitioned to an alternative
£ 12 A 31 OALERS interest rate benchmark:

B e R Ry B AR R
RIS IR R BER T FIESF
R TSR

2021
AR S AEENRNSM TR
Financial instruments yet to
transition to alternative

benchmarks
E BT
e HAth*
USD LIBOR Others*
BEHETT BEBET
HK$’'m HK$’'m
JECTE SRNEE Non-derivative financial assets 183,073 23,227
JERT A SR E Non-derivative financial liabilities 626 -
MAEESMTEEY 4% Derivative contract/notional amounts
B 501,140 -
" L HE i A i A B (R RN " Comprises financial instruments referencing other significant benchmark rates yet to transition to
SR H M TEHECAE R Ry & alternative benchmarks (GBP LIBOR and JPY LIBOR).

T E (BEgmEuR TR
PR BT TR
B e
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49. International claims
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The below analysis is prepared with reference to the completion instructions for the HKMA
return of international banking statistics. International claims are exposures to
counterparties on which the ultimate risk lies based on the locations of the counterparties
after taking into account the transfer of risk, and represent the sum of cross-border claims
in all currencies and local claims in foreign currencies. For a claim guaranteed by a party
situated in a location different from the counterparty, the risk will be transferred to the
location of the guarantor. For a claim on an overseas branch of a bank whose head office
is located in another location, the risk will be transferred to the location where its head office
is located.

Claims on individual countries/regions, after risk transfer, amounting to 10% or more of the
aggregate international claims of the Group in either year end are shown as follows:

2021
FESITRNERE
Non-bank private sector
IR B
SRR FERl
BT Non-bank TN
ST Official financial Non-financial sast
Banks sector institutions private sector Total
BEEET A¥EET AREET AT AT
HK$’'m HK$’'m HK$’'m HK$’'m HK$’'m
o [5] A HE Chinese Mainland 407,418 145,740 18,917 118,450 690,525
Tk Hong Kong 28,881 1,471 39,256 367,349 436,957
HA Japan 13,073 172,186 1,334 2,340 188,933
EH United States 10,149 145,486 15,460 13,836 184,931
2020
FESRITRL A RS
Non-bank private sector
JESRAT B
SRR FERb
BTN Non-bank VNG
$R1T Official financial Non-financial Yzt
Banks sector institutions  private sector Total
BEEHETT BEEETT AEEETT AEEETT AEEETT
HK$'m HK$'m HK$'m HK$'m HK$'m
I ER i Chinese Mainland 376,937 130,889 14,873 128,333 651,032
EH Hong Kong 6,982 78 36,661 331,717 375,438
HA Japan 5,377 155,963 888 3,735 165,963
FE[H United States 2,590 135,997 16,574 17,066 172,227
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

50. Non-bank Mainland exposures

The analysis of non-bank Mainland exposures is based on the categories of non-bank
counterparties and the types of direct exposures with reference to the completion
instructions for the HKMA return of Mainland activities, which includes the Mainland
exposures extended by BOCHK’s Hong Kong office only.

Central government, central
government-owned entities and their
subsidiaries and joint ventures

Local governments, local government-
owned entities and their subsidiaries
and joint ventures

PRC nationals residing in Mainland
or other entities incorporated in
Mainland and their subsidiaries and
joint ventures

Other entities of central government
not reported in item 1 above

Other entities of local governments
not reported in item 2 above

PRC nationals residing outside
Mainland or entities incorporated
outside Mainland where the credit is
granted for use in Mainland

Other counterparties where the
exposures are considered to be
non-bank Mainland exposures

Total

Total assets after provision

On-balance sheet exposures as
percentage of total assets
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2021
BEARE BEAR
&EF AW FHMY
HwFEHEE B JEBR A E
Items in On-balance Off-balance  #EFEE&EE
the HKMA sheet sheet Total
return exposure exposure exposure
WESETT IBYEERT BE¥EET
HK$’'m HK$’'m HK$’m
1 391,272 28,052 419,324
2 78,458 10,669 89,127
3 128,755 26,084 154,839
4 28,200 1,333 29,533
5 1,001 7 1,008
6 74,082 12,916 86,998
7 3,713 - 3,713
8 705,481 79,061 784,542
9 3,372,961
10 20.92%
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HITET ~ HITEURARY
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R EERE

A EFEAE R AR —TH L
JRF PR A A
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h R NE R B NE
RS - AR
B8

HAAE 2 T T H b R
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HRIE

HaEt

HTRAE R IR AT A R4 A

HEA RN R RE
IR RS T

Central government, central
government-owned entities and their
subsidiaries and joint ventures

Local governments, local government-
owned entities and their subsidiaries
and joint ventures

PRC nationals residing in Mainland
or other entities incorporated in
Mainland and their subsidiaries and
joint ventures

Other entities of central government
not reported in item 1 above

Other entities of local governments
not reported in item 2 above

PRC nationals residing outside
Mainland or entities incorporated
outside Mainland where the credit is
granted for use in Mainland

Other counterparties where the
exposures are considered to be
non-bank Mainland exposures

Total

Total assets after provision

On-balance sheet exposures as
percentage of total assets
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

50. Non-bank Mainland exposures (continued)

2020
HEAMR HEAME
EEE FAHY FIN
HEIEE JE\F R JoEL A
ltems in On-balance  Off-balance  4&JE\[H&IE
the HKMA sheet sheet Total
return exposure exposure exposure
BEEHET  BNEET BEEET
HK$'m HK$'m HK$'m
1 349,405 36,110 385,515
2 69,104 11,230 80,334
3 109,921 23,386 133,307
4 32,628 4,765 37,393
5 1,002 - 1,002
6 83,664 8,477 92,141
7 1,849 10 1,859
8 647,573 83,978 731,551
9 3,067,224
10 21.11%
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(a) Balance sheet

As at 31 December

ASSETS

Cash and balances and placements with
banks and other financial institutions

Financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss

Derivative financial instruments

Hong Kong SAR Government certificates of
indebtedness

Advances and other accounts

Investment in securities

Interests in subsidiaries

Interests in associates and joint ventures

Investment properties

Properties, plant and equipment

Deferred tax assets

Other assets

Total assets

LIABILITIES

Hong Kong SAR currency notes in circulation

Deposits and balances from banks and other
financial institutions

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit
or loss

Derivative financial instruments

Deposits from customers

Debt securities and certificates of deposit in
issue

Other accounts and provisions

Current tax liabilities

Deferred tax liabilities

Total liabilities
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

51. Balance sheet and statement of changes in equity

2021 2020
B EETT AR ST
HK$’m HK$'m
460,345 459,069
47,628 35,290
33,230 52,772
203,810 189,550
1,566,584 1,470,216
983,190 781,300
8,710 8,709

8 8

19,125 19,510
44,086 44,799
106 29
44,824 49,841
3,411,646 3,111,093
203,810 189,550
483,989 323,149
12,520 20,336
29,677 60,317
2,310,375 2,165,742
1,860 426
56,247 48,042
3,407 3,848
5,230 5,372
3,107,115 2,816,782
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51. EEABERKMEZE 51, Balance sheet and statement of changes in equity (continued)
gk (8&)

() EEAER (B (a) Balance sheet (continued)
w12 531 H As at 31 December 2021 2020
BEHET AREHETT
HK$’'m HK$'m
B EQUITY
AEA Share capital 43,043 43,043
EE Reserves 238,012 227,792
ASRI TR FE (L REAR Capital and reserves attributable to equity
EE holders of the Bank 281,055 270,835
AR THAIGET B Other equity instruments of the Bank 23,476 23,476
A Total equity 304,531 294,311
AR E AR Total liabilities and equity 3,411,646 3,111,093
KEREFN 2022 43 Approved by the Board of Directors on 29 March 2022 and signed on behalf of the Board
A 29 HiEBiZ A H L by:
TALRFTRFEE:

)
U 2 45

SN LIU Liange o yS) SUN Yu

.-

o Director Director
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#20204E12 H 31 H

At 1 January 2020

Profit for the year
Other comprehensive
income:
Premises
Equity instruments at fair
value through other
comprehensive income
Own credit risk
Debt instruments at fair
value through other
comprehensive income
Currency translation
difference

Total comprehensive
income

Release upon disposal of
equity instruments at fair
value through other
comprehensive income:
Transfer
Deferred tax
Current tax

Release upon redemption
of financial liabilities
designated at fair value
through profit or loss:
Transfer
Deferred tax
Current tax

Transfer to retained
earnings

Dividend paid to other
equity instrument holders

Dividends

At 31 December 2020

(b) Statement of changes in equity

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

51. Balance sheet and statement of changes in equity (continued)

(i)
Reserves
HEER
B ANTHE JE\ gk A FHtt
i B Reserve Rt TH
fA  Premises Reserve for forown  EREEEMT HREREHE HEEEA Other  HAKHEH
Share revaluation fair value credit Regulatory Translation Retained £ equity Total
capital reserve changes risk reserve* reserve earnings Total instruments equity
BEEETT OBWHET  BWEADT BWEEDT EWEEDT BT OBWEETT OBWEET EWEEIT EWEEDT
HK$'m HK$'m HK$'m HK$'m HK$'m HK$'m HK$'m HK$'m HK$'m HK$'m
43,043 36,449 1,829 (33) 11,007 (352) 165,340 257,283 23,476 280,759
- - - - - - 27,037 27,037 - 27,037
- (1,386) - - - - - (1,386) - (1,386)
- - 274 - - - - 274 - 274
- - - 1 - - - 1 - 1
- - 1,046 - - - - 1,046 - 1,046
- - 62 - - 32 - 94 - 94
- (1,386) 1,382 1 - 32 27,037 27,066 - 27,066
- - (7) - - - 7 - - -
- - 1 - - - - 1 - 1
- - - - - - Q) Q) - Q)
- - - 38 - - (38) - - -
- - - ® - - - ®) - ®
- - - - - - 6 6 - 6
) - - - (6261) - 6,261 - - -
R R R - - - (1,376) (1,376) - (1,376)
- - - - - - (12,138) (12,138) - (12,138)
43,043 35,063 3,205 - 4,746 (320) 185,098 270,835 23,476 294,311
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

51. Balance sheet and statement of changes in equity (continued)

(b) PEEEEEIR (8D

(b) Statement of changes in equity (continued)

(i1
Reserves
HEER
FE AVE RS FHAth
B BEE  Reserve BT E
BA  Premises Reserve for forown ESEREHE BEE HEER Other BHAGEE
Share revaluation fair value credit Regulatory Translation Retained =t equity Total
capital reserve gt risk reserve* reserve earnings Total instruments equity
BWEHET BWDET BNEET BWEDET BWOET EWEHET BYEET BWEET BWEHET B¥EET
HK$’'m HK$’'m HK$’'m HK$’'m HK$’'m HK$’'m HK$’'m HK$’'m HK$’'m HK$’'m
7202141 H1H At 1 January 2021 43,043 35,063 3,205 - 4,746 (320) 185,098 270,835 23,476 294,311
R Profit for the year - - - - 24,168 24,168 - 24,168
HoAt 2w - Other comprehensive
income:
R Premises 523 - - - 523 - 523
DA EE bsT AR Equity instruments at fair
LUES Atz value through other
TH comprehensive income - - (29) - - - (29) - (29)
LAATHE Debt instruments at fair
ftr =L value through other
TE comprehensive income - - (1,095) - - - (1,095) - (1,095)
AR R Currency translation
difference - - 3 - (178) - (175) - (175)
2 TS AR Total comprehensive
income 523 (1,121) - (178) 24,168 23,392 - 23,392
R AR Transfer from retained
earnings - - - 1,293 - (1,293) - - -
AT HAT R T B Dividend paid to other
FHE equity instrument holders - - - - (1,378) (1,378) - (1,378)
RS Dividends - - - - (11,794) (11,794) - (11,794)
2021412 31 H At 31 December 2021 43,043 35,586 2,084 - 6,039 (498) 194,801 281,055 23,476 304,531

* PRiEE B BRSNS 9 SRS
HUBE 5D 2B R SR o
2 ) 22 B Gl A (SR T — AU 2 F

CEFERAGRR M T TR ) -

* In accordance with the requirements of the HKMA, the amounts are set aside for general banking risks, including future

losses or other unforeseeable risks, in addition to the loan impairment allowances recognised under HKFRS 9.
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BRI (8D
52. X EIBAFE

52. Principal subsidiaries

i’ 2021 £12 A 31 H>2FE The following is a list of principal subsidiaries as at 31 December 2021:

FI B AEYIRAE
Ealisd=t Sai
Place of
& incorporation E&TRE FrEfER EEEH
Name and operation Issued share capital Interest held Principal activities
FEREMAF (EIE) AR A 565,000,000 7T 100% BRI
INH] Hong Kong HK$565,000,000 Credit card services
BOC Credit Card
(International) Limited
R AR uE BRI T SY s 760,518,480 100% HRATHER
Bank of China (Malaysia) Malaysia AR P O AR Banking business
Berhad RM760,518,480
PESRT (B BHAR #H 10,000,000,000 % #100% SRTHERS
NG| Thailand Baht10,000,000,000 Banking business
Bank of China (Thai) Public
Company Limited
BHES S IHERR AT i 335,000,000 37T *100% 5657 SOHESETS
Po Sang Securities and Hong Kong HK$335,000,000 Securities and
Futures Limited futures brokerage

* ORSRITEPEHEA 99.99%H3 73 K
FEFA 0.01%H55 -

* AHATRIBER A Y

#99.99% of the shares held directly and 0.01% of the shares held indirectly by the Bank.

* Shares held indirectly by the Bank
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
53. Ultimate holding company
The Group is subject to the control of the State Council of the PRC Government through

China Investment Corporation, its wholly-owned subsidiary Central Huijin Investment Ltd.
(“Central Huijin”), and BOC in which Central Huijin has controlling equity interests.

54. Event after the balance sheet date

On 17 February 2022, the Group issued HK$2 billion “sustainable and smart living” themed
green bonds, which was listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited, as part of
the Group’s USD15 billion Medium Term Note Programme. The themed green bonds are
denominated in HKD, have a maturity of 2 years due in 2024, and bear a fixed interest rate
of 1.33% per annum payable semi-annually in arrear.

55. Approval of financial statements

The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors
on 29 March 2022.
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Unaudited Supplementary Financial Information

1. BS5HER 1. Regulatory Disclosures
BLE Y SR B R R N 2 B The Regulatory Disclosures, together with the disclosures in this Annual Report, contained
% CEVISERER 2 ($R7F  all the disclosures required by the Banking (Disclosure) Rules and Financial Institutions
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(Resolution) (Loss-absorbing Capacity Requirements — Banking Sector) Rules issued by
the HKMA. The Regulatory Disclosures is available under the section “Regulatory
Disclosures” on BOCHK'’s website at www.bochk.com.

This Annual Report and the Regulatory Disclosures are prepared according to the Group’s
disclosure policy. The disclosure policy sets out a robust mechanism for the Group’s
disclosures of financial information on a legitimate and compliant basis. It depicts the
principles and internal control measures to ensure the timeliness, fairness, accuracy,
integrity, completeness and legitimacy of financial disclosures.

2. Risk management

Overview

The Group believes that sound risk management is crucial to the success of any organisation.
In its daily operation, the Group attaches a high degree of importance to risk management and
emphasises that a balance must be struck between risk control and business development.
The principal types of risk inherent in the Group’s businesses are credit risk, market risk,
interest rate risk, liquidity risk, operational risk, reputation risk, legal and compliance risk, and
strategic risk. The Group’s risk management objective is to enhance shareholder value by
maintaining risk exposures within acceptable limits. The Group has a defined risk appetite
statement approved by the Board, which is an expression of the types and level of risk that the
Group is willing to take in a controllable way in order to achieve its business goals and to meet
the expectations of its stakeholders. For details of the Group’s risk management governance
structure, please refer to Note 4 to the Financial Statements.
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R BER (&)
2. Bl HE (8) 2. Risk management (continued)

EERREE Credit risk management

EEREERE PSR 5T Credit risk is the risk of loss that a customer or counterparty is unable to or unwilling to meet
FREENAFFEEBITEMEET  its contractual obligations. Credit risk exists in the trading book and banking book, as well as
SRR R o AEER from on- and off-balance sheet transactions of the Group. It arises principally from lending,
GERFERITIE - UNEEAE trade finance and treasury businesses. For details of the Group’s Credit Risk Management,
FNFIRINZ L G1ETETE  please refer to Note 4.1 to the Financial Statements.

LR < (5 B T ERE S E

G RE B e - AR

EEHESEREEHE Y FFHE

o SE R BERNTE41 -

TR e Market risk management

MG S e R T S {E R Market risk refers to the risk of loss arising from movements in the value of foreign exchange,
(PEZR ~ FIZR ~ B2 ~ P interest rate, equity and commodity positions held by the Group due to the volatility of financial

B8R SBEEERITAMNE « #]  market price (foreign exchange rate, interest rate, equity price, commodity price). The Group

R BRI A A E R adopts a moderate market risk appetite to achieve a balance between risk and return. For

1L 1T AT B 45 A 2 E 1E Ay 18 details of the Group’s Market Risk Management, please refer to Note 4.2 to the Financial
S o REBRHUETAYTISE ~~ Statements.

b fmir - BB b B A Y
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2. Risk management (continued)
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Market risk management (continued)

The Group uses the VaR to measure and report general market risks to the RMC and senior
management on a periodic basis. The Group adopts a uniformed VaR calculation model, using
a historical simulation approach and two years of historical market data, to calculate the VaR
of the Group and its subsidiaries over a one-day holding period with a 99% confidence level,
and sets up the VaR limit of the Group and its subsidiaries.

The Group adopts back-testing to measure the accuracy of VaR model results. The back-
testing compares the calculated VaR figure of market risk positions of each business day with
the actual and hypothetical gains or losses arising from those positions on the next business
day. Generally speaking, the number of back-testing exceptions in a rolling 12-month period
will not exceed four times, given a 99% confidence level. The graph below shows the back-
testing result of the VaR against actual gains or losses of the Group.

2021 B RERERH
M T Daily Back-testing in 2021
HKD Miillion
11070 e e e e e T el e s e — H—— e e R e R
80 —|
60 — .
40 S 2 " X . 2 ’ 2
20 —}oene . . . . .
, I||I|.|||.ill...||||.|||.h|..||l||||.|.II..||.n.|..||||I.II...,,uh..’.mI|...||||I..|m.1|ln,..I.||;|.I.III|||||I|..||I|.|||I...I|I,|I..n..|.nlm...|||l...|uI....|J||||||.|.|.,||||.H.mllmlI||I.||m||..|,|.|||||||..,||1| |||||
20 v ; : —
-80 T T T T T T T T T T T T
TE Y F F PP F P Yy T Sy Sy S
= HF L JRG: (B
Actual gains or losses VaR

202148 A [ AT ES ST
A SR R B PR S S 1
K E bR EAFEL -

There was no actual loss exceeding the VaR for the Group in 2021 as shown in the back-
testing results.
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Unaudited Supplementary Financial Information (continued)

2. Risk management (continued)
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Interest rate risk management

Interest rate risk means the risks to a bank’s earnings and economic value arising from
movements in interest rate and term structures of the bank’s asset and liability positions. The
Group'’s interest rate risk exposures are mainly structural. The major types of interest rate risk
from structural positions are gap risk, basis risk and option risk. For details of the Group’s
Interest Rate Risk Management, please refer to Note 4.2 to the Financial Statements.

Liquidity risk management

Liquidity risk is the risk that banks may not be able to obtain sufficient and timely funding at a
reasonable cost to meet their obligations as they fall due. The Group maintains a sound liquidity
risk appetite to provide stable, reliable and adequate sources of cash to meet liquidity needs
under normal circumstances and stressed scenarios. For details of the Group’s Liquidity Risk
Management, please refer to Note 4.3 to the Financial Statements.

Operational risk management
Operational risk is the risk of loss resulting from inadequate or failed internal process, people

and system, or from external events. The risk is inherent in every aspect of business operations
and confronted by the Group in its day-to-day operational activities.
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2. Risk management (continued)
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Operational risk management (continued)

The Group has implemented the “Three Lines of Defence” for its operational risk management.
All departments or functional units as the first line of defence are the first parties responsible
for operational risk management, and carry out the duties and functions of self risk control in
the process of business operation through self assessment and self enhancement. The Legal
& Compliance and Operational Risk Management Department (“LCQO”), together with certain
specialist functional units in relation to operational risk management within the Group, including
the Human Resources Department, Corporate Services Department, Financial Crime
Compliance Department, Financial Management Department, Treasury and General
Accounting & Accounting Policy Department (collectively known as “specialist functional
units”), are the second line of defence. They are responsible for assessing and monitoring the
operational risk conditions in the first line of defence, and providing them with guidance. The
LCO, being independent from the business units, is responsible for assisting the Management
in managing the Group’s operational risk, including the establishment and review of the
operational risk management policy and framework, designing the operational risk
management tools and reporting mechanism, and assessing and reporting the overall
operational risk position to the Management and RMC. Specialist functional units are required
to carry out their managerial duties of the second line of defence with respect to some specific
aspects of operational risk and its related issues. Besides taking charge of operational risk
management in their own units, these units are also required to provide other units with
professional advice/training in respect of certain operational risk categories and to lead the
group-wide operational risk management. Group Audit is the third line of defence which
provides independent assessment to the effectiveness and adequacy of the operational risk
management framework and is required to conduct periodic audit of the operational risk
management activities of various departments or functional units within the Group regarding
their compliance and effectiveness and to put forward recommendations for remedial actions.
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BANK OF CHINA (HONG KONG) LIMITED

Unaudited Supplementary Financial Information (continued)

2. Risk management (continued)

Operational risk management (continued)

The Group has put in place an effective internal control process which requires the
establishment of policies and control procedures for all the key activities. The Group adheres
to the fundamental principle of proper segregation of duties and authorisation. The Group
adopts various operational risk management tools or methodologies such as key risk
indicators, self-assessment, operational risk events reporting and review to identify, assess,
monitor and control the risks inherent in business activities and products, as well as purchase
of insurance to mitigate unforeseeable operational risks. Business continuity plans are
established to support business operations in the event of an emergency or disaster. Adequate
backup facilities are maintained and periodic drills are conducted.

Reputation risk management

Reputation risk is the risk that negative publicity about the Group’s business practices, whether
genuine or not, will cause a potential decline in the customer base, or lead to costly litigation
or revenue decrease. Reputation risk is inherent in other types of risk and every aspect of
business operation and covers a wide spectrum of issues.

In order to mitigate reputation risk, the Group has formulated and duly followed its Reputation
Risk Management Policy. The policy aims to identify and prevent reputation risk proactively
at an early stage when an incident occurs. Since reputation risk is often caused by various
types of operational and strategic issues that negatively impact the trust and perception of the
Group, all operational and key risks identified are assessed through the established Key
Control Self-Assessment framework, including risk assessment tools, to evaluate the severity
of their impact on the Group, including the damage to reputation.

324



@ ¥ B 4 25 (5 m) A AT

BANK OF CHINA (HONG KONG) LIMITED

REFTZ
M BER (8
2. AEE (8D
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2. Risk management (continued)
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Reputation risk management (continued)

In addition, the Group has put in place a comprehensive framework to continuously monitor
reputation risk incidents in the financial industry. This continuous monitoring enables the Group
to effectively manage, control and mitigate any potential adverse impact from an incident. The
Group also adopts robust disclosure practices to keep our stakeholders informed at all times,
which helps build confidence in the Group and establish a strong public image.

Legal and compliance risk management

Legal risk is the risk that unenforceable contracts, lawsuits or adverse judgments may disrupt
or otherwise negatively affect the operations or financial conditions of the Group. Compliance
risk is the risk of legal or regulatory sanctions, financial losses or losses in reputation the Group
may suffer as a result of its failure to comply with applicable laws and regulations. Legal and
compliance risks are managed by the LCO, while the risks related to money laundering,
terrorist financing, fraud, bribery and corruption are independently managed and monitored by
the Financial Crime Compliance Department (“FCC”). Both LCO and FCC report directly to the
DCE. As part of the Group’s corporate governance framework, the policies for the
management of legal and compliance risks, and money laundering, terrorist financing and
financial crime compliance risks are approved by the RMC as delegated by the Board.

325



@ ¥ B 4 25 (5 m) A AT

BANK OF CHINA (HONG KONG) LIMITED

REFTZ
M BER (8
2. AEE (8D

Unaudited Supplementary Financial Information (continued)

2. Risk management (continued)
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Strategic risk management

Strategic risk generally refers to the risks that may cause current or future negative impacts on
the earnings, or capital or reputation or market position of the Group because of poor business
decisions, improper implementation of strategies and inadequacies in the response to the
changing market condition. The Board reviews and approves the Strategic Risk Management
Policy. Key strategic issues have to be fully evaluated and properly endorsed by the senior
management and the Board.

The Group regularly reviews its business strategies to cope with the latest market situation and
developments.

Capital management

The major objective of the Group’s capital management is to maximise total shareholders’
return while maintaining a capital adequacy position in relation to the Group’s overall risk
profile. The ALCO periodically reviews the Group’s capital structure and adjusts the capital mix
where appropriate to maintain an optimal balance among risk, return and capital adequacy.

To comply with the HKMA'’s requirements as stated in the Supervisory Policy Manual
“Supervisory Review Process”, the Group adopts the internal capital adequacy assessment
process (“ICAAP”) and reviews it annually. Based on the HKMA's guidelines on Pillar I, ICAAP
has been initiated to assess the extra capital needed to cover the material risks not captured
or not adequately captured under Pillar |, and therefore minimum Common Equity Tier 1 capital
ratio, minimum Tier 1 capital ratio and minimum Total capital ratio are determined. Meanwhile,
operating ranges for the aforementioned capital ratios have also been established which
enable the flexibility for future business growth and efficiency of capital utilisation.
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Appendix

Subsidiaries of the Bank

The particulars of subsidiaries are as follows:

R ]
BE R HEA
Place and date of E&THRE FEER
B incorporation/ Issued FiEM#%: Principal
Name operation share capital _Interest held activities
hEREAR (B AIRAE i 565,000,000 37T 100.00% {5 FI-RHRS
BOC Credit Card (International) Limited 1980 29 H 9 H HK$565,000,000 Credit card
Hong Kong services
9 September 1980
HEREEIEEAAIRAT i 200,000,000 #7¢ 66.00% &R
BOC Group Trustee Company Limited 1997 £ 12 H 1 H HK$200,000,000 Investment
Hong Kong holding
1 December 1997
H SR B RS R Rk (S R A IR A F i 300,000,000 &7t 42.24%* (S5t
BOCI-Prudential Trustee Limited 1999410 H 1 H HK$300,000,000 Trustee services
Hong Kong
11 October 1999
R AR ua BRI T =Y AL 760,518,480 100.00% $RITHEHS
Bank of China (Malaysia) Berhad 2000 £4 B 14 H AR PR Banking business
Malaysia RM760,518,480
14 April 2000
China Bridge (Malaysia) Sdn. Bhd. 2R 1,000,000 100.00% ~ZHH sl &L
200944 H 24 H Sy RN China visa
Malaysia RM1,000,000 application
24 April 2009
HEISRTT (ZRED B AIRATE =B 10,000,000,000 Z=#£ 100.00% SRITERS
Bank of China (Thai) Public Company 2014 FE4 51 H Baht10,000,000,000 Banking business
Limited Thailand
1 April 2014
HEIERTT (B REAFRAE i 2 %7t 100.00% {{EEAHRTS
Bank of China (Hong Kong) Nominees 19854410 H 1 H HK$2 Nominee services
Limited Hong Kong
1 October 1985
HEIERT (BB EtARAE & 3,000,000 & 100.00% (S:LRACIERE
Bank of China (Hong Kong) Trustees 1987 F£11 H6 H HK$3,000,000 Trustee and
Limited Hong Kong agency
6 November 1987 services
hERemiR (F%E) ARAE™ i L&A 100.00% <Rl EIRES
BOC Financial Services (Nanning) 20192 H 19 H 60,000,000 T Financial
Company Limited** PRC Registered capital oper_ational
19 February 2019 HK$60,000,000 services
HhER(E BB CFRIID ARATE™ HE FEEA 100.00% ¥IEFFH

BOCHK Information Technology
(Shenzhen) Co., Ltd.**

thER(E SRk (RN ARRATE™

BOCHK Information Technology Services

(Shenzhen) Co., Ltd.**

1990 24 H 16 H
PRC
16 April 1990

e

1993 5 H 26 H
PRC

26 May 1993
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70,000,000 j&7T
Registered capital
HK$70,000,000

FEfrEA
40,000,000 &7T
Registered capital
HK$40,000,000

100.00%

Property holding

{5 B HigHR %5

Information
technology
services
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Appendix (continued)

Subsidiaries of the Bank (continued)

R ]
BE R HEA
Place and date of E&THRE FEER
B incorporation/ Issued FiEM#%: Principal
Name operation share capital _Interest held activities
B SRR AR ) w 335,000,000 47T 100.00% H&EE
Po Sang Financial Investment Services 19804F 9 H 23 H HK$335,000,000 PeE el
Company Limited Hong Kong Gold trading and
23 September 1980 investment
holding
BAEs MHEARAE wH 335,000,000 #&T 100.00% &% ISR
Po Sang Securities and Futures Limited 199310 H 19 H HK$335,000,000 Securities and
Hong Kong futures
19 October 1993 brokerage
FrEEEFARAT HH 3,000,000 7T 100.00% (SRS
Sin Hua Trustee Limited 1978 /£ 10 H 27 H HK$3,000,000 Trustee services
Hong Kong
27 October 1978
Billion Express Development Inc. HEIBGH TS 1T 100.00% Rr&fzeps
201442 H7H US$1 Investment
British Virgin Islands holding
7 February 2014
Billion Orient Holdings Ltd. e h e = 1%E57T 100.00% $i&ieps
201442 A3 H US$1 Investment
British Virgin Islands holding
3 February 2014
Elite Bond Investments Ltd. BB TS 1%57¢ 100.00% #&ieps
20142 H7H US$1 Investment
British Virgin Islands holding
7 February 2014
Express Capital Enterprise Inc. EEAHTEHE 13E50 100.00% & &EZ=Ry
20142 H 3 H US$1 Investment
British Virgin Islands holding
3 February 2014
Express Charm Holdings Corp. EEAHIEHE 13E5T 100.00% & &EZERy
2014 2H7H US$1 Investment
British Virgin Islands holding
7 February 2014
Express Shine Assets Holdings Corp. EEMGEREEEE 1%E50 100.00% & ER:
20141 H3H US$1 Investment
British Virgin Islands holding
3 January 2014
Express Talent Investment Ltd. HEMAFHRHE 13%E5T 100.00% &R
20142 413 H US$1 Investment
British Virgin Islands holding
13 February 2014
Gold Medal Capital Inc. BB S 1257 100.00% L& PR
20141 H 3 H US$1 Investment
British Virgin Islands holding

3 January 2014
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KT MIBATE ()  Subsidiaries of the Bank (continued)

-]
IR R H
Place and date of [S gy 42N FEER

B incorporation/ Issued FiEM#%: Principal

Name operation share capital _Interest held activities

Gold Tap Enterprises Inc. HEAFHIEHE 1%E5T 100.00% F&EPER:
20142 H 13 H US$1 Investment
British Virgin Islands holding
13 February 2014

Maxi Success Holdings Ltd. HEAFHIHE 13E5T 100.00% F&EER:
2014 2H7H US$1 Investment
British Virgin Islands holding
7 February 2014

Smart Linkage Holdings Inc. EEAHIEHE 13E5T 100.00% &Ry
2014 2 H 13 H US$1 Investment
British Virgin Islands holding
13 February 2014

Smart Union Capital Investments Ltd. EEAFHIEHE 13E5T 100.00% &Ry
20141 H3H US$1 Investment
British Virgin Islands holding
3 January 2014

Success Trend Development Ltd. EEAHIEHE 13E5T 100.00% &Ry
2014 2 H 18 H US$1 Investment
British Virgin Islands holding
18 February 2014

Wise Key Enterprises Corp. HEIEGH TS 1T 100.00% Rr&fzeps
2014 2 H 18 H US$1 Investment
British Virgin Islands holding

18 February 2014

* R (RS LR R A E] * BOCI-Prudential Trustee Limited is a subsidiary of a non-wholly-owned subsidiary of the Bank and,
BARRITE N —FIELENE accordingly, is accounted for as a subsidiary by virtue of the Bank’s control over it.
AT AT » BEARITE
A FEIRERIRE - S AT A
REUTHIHSE A E] -

> AR A IR E AT - ** |t is registered as limited liability company in the PRC.

HE (A BIREAEEN Che Hsing (Nominees) Limited was dissolved on 16 February 2021.
2021 422 A 16 HIE#EHL -
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Definitions

In this Annual Report, unless the context otherwise requires, the following terms shall have the meanings set out below:

Terms Meanings

“ALCO” the Asset and Liability Management Committee

“AT1” Additional Tier 1

“ATM” Automated Teller Machine

“BOC” Bank of China Limited, a joint stock commercial bank with limited liability established
under the laws of the PRC, the H shares and A shares of which are listed on the Hong
Kong Stock Exchange and the Shanghai Stock Exchange respectively

“BOCHK (Holdings)” BOC Hong Kong (Holdings) Limited, a company incorporated under the laws of Hong

Kong

“BOCHK” or “the Bank”

Bank of China (Hong Kong) Limited, a company incorporated under the laws of Hong
Kong and a wholly-owned subsidiary of BOC Hong Kong (Holdings) Limited

“BOCI-Prudential Asset Management”

BOCI-Prudential Asset Management Limited, a company incorporated under the laws
of Hong Kong, in which BOCI Asset Management Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary
of BOC International Holdings Limited, and Prudential Corporation Holdings Limited
hold equity interests of 64% and 36% respectively

“BOCI-Prudential Trustee”

BOCI-Prudential Trustee Limited, a company incorporated under the laws of Hong
Kong, in which BOC Group Trustee Company Limited and Prudential Corporation
Holdings Limited hold equity interests of 64% and 36% respectively

“BOC Malaysia”

Bank of China (Malaysia) Berhad, a wholly-owned subsidiary of BOCHK

“BOC Thailand”

Bank of China (Thai) Public Company Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of BOCHK

“Board” or “Board of Directors”

the Board of Directors of the Bank

“CE” Chief Executive

“CET1” Common Equity Tier 1

“CFO” Chief Financial Officer

“CIC” China Investment Corporation
“CRO” Chief Risk Officer

“CVA” Credit Valuation Adjustment
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Definitions (continued)

Terms

Meanings

“Central Huijin”

Central Huijin Investment Ltd.

“DCE” Deputy Chief Executive

“‘DVA” Debit Valuation Adjustment

“ECL” Expected Credit Loss

“‘EVE” Economic Value Sensitivity Ratio

“FCC” the Financial Crime Compliance Department
“FIRB” Foundation Internal Ratings-based

“FVOoCI” Fair value through other comprehensive income
“FVPL” Fair value through profit or loss

“HKAS” Hong Kong Accounting Standard

“HKFRS” Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standard
“HKICPA” Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
“HKMA” Hong Kong Monetary Authority

“Hong Kong” or “Hong Kong SAR”

Hong Kong Special Administrative Region of the PRC

“IBOR reform” Interest Rate Benchmark reform

“ICAAP” Internal Capital Adequacy Assessment Process

“IMM” Internal Models

“T” Information Technology

“LCO” the Legal & Compliance and Operational Risk Management Department

“LCR” Liquidity Coverage Ratio

“Listing Rules” the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong

Limited
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Definitions (continued)

Terms Meanings

“mC” the Management Committee
“MCO” Maximum Cumulative Cash Outflow
“MPF” Mandatory Provident Fund

“MPF Schemes Ordinance”

the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance, Chapter 485 of the Laws of Hong
Kong, as amended

“N/A” Not applicable

“NII” Net Interest Income Sensitivity Ratio

“NSFR” Net Stable Funding Ratio

“ORSO schemes” the Occupational Retirement Schemes under Occupational Retirement Schemes
Ordinance, Chapter 426 of the Laws of Hong Kong

“‘OTC” Over-the-counter

“PRC” the People’s Republic of China

“PVBP” Price Value of a Basis Point

“RMB” or “Renminbi”

Renminbi, the lawful currency of the PRC

“RMC” the Risk Committee

“RMD” the Risk Management Department
“‘RWA” Risk-weighted Assets

“SME” Small and Medium-sized Enterprise
“STC” Standardised (Credit Risk)

“STM” Standardised (Market Risk)

“STO” Standardised (Operational Risk)

“Standard & Poor’s”

Standard & Poor’s Ratings Services

“Stock Exchange” or “Hong Kong Stock
Exchange”

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited

“the Group” the Bank and its subsidiaries collectively referred as the Group
“‘us” the United States of America
“VaR” Value at Risk
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